
Ciasse.11111~WGG D~2'lf-!3.0 AH~ml?.3 ~11.oDill 

,_~E~X~H~IB .. IT_..._. 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -x 

ASHOT EGIAZARY AN, 

Plaintiff, 

PETER ZALMA YEV, 

Defendant. 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - x 

DECLARATION OF RINAT AKHMETSHIN 

CITY OF WASHINGTON 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

) 
) 
) 

SS. : 

11Civ.0267 
(PKC)(GWG) 

RINAT AKHMETSHIN, declares under penalty of perjury pursuant to 28 

U.S.C. § 1746, as follows: 

1. I am the subject of a subpoena issued by the Plaintiff in this action to 

J 

Google, Inc. for copies of my emails on my ginail account since December 1, 2009. I am not a 

party to this action. Unless otherwise specified, I make this declaration based on personal 

knowledge. 

2. My counsel received a subpoena for me sometime late last year that was 

issued by Mr. Egiazaryan. That subpoena called for both my deposition and for the production 

of documents. I made document productions in this case, disclosing more than 800 pages of 

documents, and my deposition was taken on March 20, 2012. The transcript of that deposition 

runs to some 380 pages. 



3. Plaintiff issued a subpoena to Google, Inc. dated July 16, 2012. That 

subpoena calls for Google to produce emails from my gmail account that (1) are either to, from, 

or have me copied on or mention 139 separate search terms (not including pennutations), or (2) 

mention in the body of the email those same 139 search tenns. Some oftbe terms are so general 

they could encompass anything "Russian" or "Jewish" or "Kremlin." 

4. My business is strategic communications. Individuals and entities seek 

me out when they have an issue; if one does not have an issue one does not need to engage in 

strategic communications. As such, a considerable percentage of the emails I write or read in my 

profession touch on confidential, proprietary, and even more sensitive information. That is one 

reason I delete them as a matter of routine practice. 

5. Please allow me to provide a few examples. Some of my clients are 

national governments or high ranking officials in those governments. These are the most 

sensitive communications in which I engage. Some of my government clients have highly 

sensitive discussions in my emails concerning the location or relocation of American military 

bases in areas within the former Soviet Union. This client's interest was directly aligned with 

the United States' interests and included communications with both the Department of State and 

the Department of Justice. Some of these communications also address other nation' s interests 

in the base location issue in a candid, unvarnished manner. On a separate issue, other 

communications involved the Head of the Russian Drug Enforcement Agency. Topics included 

in communications on this task range from narco-trafficking and terrorism in Afghanistan to 

surveillance of undercover agents, suspected undercover agents, and their identities. Disclosure 

of such data could put individual lives at risk, potentially including American lives. 
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6. In addition to my government clients, I have clients in the private sector. 

Many of my private sector clients are in the energy industry. Competition for oil rights in the 

arctic, including the Russian arctic, is extreme. Many commercial enterprises are seeking to 

advance their interests, or replace other interests, in these markets. As such, my emails contain 

highly proprietary commercial trade secrets and strategic plans that would severely disadvantage 

the subject of such communications if they were disclosed. While all of these communications 

have something to do with "Russia," none of them have anything to do with Mr. Zalmayev, Mr. 

Bloomfield, or Mr. Egiazaryan. They certainly have nothing to do with whether Mr. Egiazaryan 

is anti-semitic, is anti-American, is a neo-Stalinist, or is worthy of asylum in the United States. 

7. To attempt to resolve the Google Subpoena issue without Court 

intervention, I instructed my counsel to offer to accept the Google Subpoena if Plaintiff agreed to 

limit the search terms to Zalmayev, Bloomfield, and Egiazaryan. Counsel advised me that 

Plaintiff rejected that offer and countered with an offer that included acceptance of all 139 search 

terms. 

8. Plaintiff made no effort to even try to discriminate between relevant and 

irrelevant search terms with respect to this litigation. The resulting burden on me and my 

counsel if the subpoena is not quashed would be overwhelming. Counsel's review of my emails 

for a two-and-a-half year period could take weeks, if not longer, and would jeopardize 

communications of the most sensitive type that have nothing to do with this case. 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed 
on August 21, 2012. 

Isl 
Rinat Akhmetshin 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

-------------------------------x 
ASHOT EGIAZARYAN , ) 

) 

Plain ti ff , ) 
) 

- against- ) 
) 

PETER ZALMAYEV , ) 
) 

Defendant . ) 
---- - ------------------ --------x 

Civ . Action No . 

11 CIV 2670 
( PKC) (GWG) 

Tuesday , March 20 , 2012 

Videotape Deposition of RINAT R. 

AKHMETSHIN held in the of fices of Greenberg 

Traurig, 2101 L Street , Northwest, Washington , 

D. C . 20037 commencing at approximately 10 : 11 a . m., 

on the above date , before 111111 II 11111, 
Registered Merit Reporter , Certified Real - Time 

Reporter , Certified Shorthand Reporter , Registered 

Professional Reporter, Certified Court Reporter , 

Real -Time Systems Administrator and Notary Public . 
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Represen t ing the Plain t iffs 
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4 WITNESS 
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6 By Mr . Cohen 
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1 94 E-mail string 

195 E-mail stri ng 

196 E-mai l string 

197 E-mai l, Zalmayev to Akhmetshin, 

198 

19 9 

200 

201 

New York 
Connecticut 

April 21, 201 1 

April-May Progress Repor t 

Progr ess report 

llllllllllBank tra n sacti o n 

Letter t o Joel 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 

7 

PAGE NO. 

296 

298 

305 

309 

318 

32 1 

324 

339 

341 

342 

344 

New Jersey 
Pennsylvania 



1 

2 EX HI B I T S (Con t ' d) 

3 

4 EXHIB I T 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0 

1 1 

12 

13 

1 4 

15 

1 6 

17 

1 8 

1 9 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

NUMBER DESCRI PTION 

202 E-mai l with attachment , 

Akhme t shin to Zal mayev , 

May 2 4 , 201 1 

203 E-mail, Moscow Burea u for Human 

Rights t o Zalmayev , March 18 , 

20 11 

204 E- mail wi th a t tachme n t , 

205 

206 

207 

208 

New York 
Connecticut 

Akhmet s hin to Za l mayev , 

Apri l 21 , 20 11 

E-mai l with a t tac hment , 

Akhme t shin t o Zalmayev , 

February 18 , 20 11 

Russ i an document 

E-mail wi th attachment , 

Akhmet s hin to Za l may ev , 

Ma rch 15, 20 11 

Seri es of a rti c l es a n d paper s 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 

8 

PAGE NO . 

350 

35 7 

358 

359 

3 60 

36 1 

363 

New Jersey 
Pennsylvania 



1 

2 EX HI B I T S (Con t ' d) 

3 

4 EXHIB I T 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0 

1 1 

12 

13 

1 4 

15 

1 6 

17 

1 8 

1 9 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

NUMBER DESCRI PTION 

209 E-mai l s tring 

* Exhibit s Att ach ed t o Ori gi nal Transcript . 

New York 
Connecticut 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 

9 

PAGE NO . 

374 

New Jersey 
Pennsylvania 



10 

1 DEPOS I T I ON SUPPORT I NDEX 

2 Di rec t ion to Wi t ness No t To Answer 

3 Page Li ne Page Li ne 

4 (None) 

5 

6 

7 Request For Product i o n o f Documen t s 

8 Page Li ne Page Li ne 

9 (None) 

1 0 

1 1 

12 St ipu l a t ions 

13 Page Li ne Page Li ne 

1 4 (N o ne) 

15 

1 6 

17 Quest i o ns Marked 

1 8 Page Line Page Line 

1 9 (N o ne) 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

New York Hudson Reporting & Video New Jersey 
Connecticut Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 Pennsylvania 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0 

11 

12 

13 

1 4 

15 

1 6 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

New York 
Connecticut 

11 

RINAT R. AKHMETSH I N 

THE VIDEOGRAPHER : This is 

Disc Number 1 of the v i deo t ape 

deposition of Rinat Akhmetshin taken 

in the matter of Ashot Egiazaryan 

versus Peter Zalmayev in the U. S . 

District Court f or the Southern 

District o f New Yo rk , Case 

Number 11 CI V 2670 (PKC) (GWG) 

This deposition is being held 

at the o f fices o f Greenberg Traurig , 

2 10 1 L St ree t, Nor t hwest , 

Washington , D. C . 

Today ' s date is March 20th , 

20 12 . 

The time on the video screen is 

currently 10 : 11 and 50 seconds a . m. 

The videographer is 

The court reporter 

is 1111, both here o n behalf o f 

Hudson Repor t ing & Vi deo . 

Will counsel present please 

introduce themselves and state whom 

t hey represent? 

MR . COHEN : Go od morning . My 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 
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RINAT R. AKHMETSH I N 

name is Jas o n Co hen . I ' m c o unsel f o r 

Ashot Eg i azaryan . I' m here wi t h my 

colleague , Jonathan Lupkin . 

MR . GOLDEN : James Go lden 

represen t ing Peter Zalmayev. 

MR . SPERDUTO : Kim Sperduto f o r 

the witness . 

THE WI TNESS : Rina t Akhmetsh i n , 

the witness . 

THE VIDEOGRAPHER : And will the 

reporter swear in t he wi t ness , 

please? 

RI NAT R. AKHMETSH I N 

after having been first duly sworn , was 

e x amined and testi f ied as f o llows : 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Good morning , Mr . Akhmetshin . 

A. Good morning . 

Q. As I men t ioned , my name is 

Jas o n Co hen . I ' m g o ing t o be asking you 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 

New Jersey 
Pennsylvania 
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RI NAT R. AKHMETSH I N 

s o me quest i o ns today related to t he 

defama t ion lawsu i t of Ashot Eg i azaryan 

A. Yes . 

Q. -- aga i nst Peter Zalmayev . 

If, during the course o f today ' s 

depo si t ion , y o u d o n 't unders t and a quest i o n , 

l e t me kn ow, and I wi l l repeat i t or rephrase 

i t for you . 

A. Um- hum . 

Q. I f you do answer , we ' re g o i ng t o 

assume tha t you heard and unders t ood the 

q ues t ion . 

A. Unders t o od . 

Q. Al l of my ques t ions and al l of 

your answers are going to be transcri bed by 

a c o urt repo rter and are going to be o n the 

video record . 

A. Unders t o od . 

Q. Okay . You mus t answer a l l 

ques t ions ou t l oud 

A. Understood . 

Q. -- so the c o urt repo rter --

because t he cour t reporter can ' t take down 

gestures . 

New York 
Connecticut 
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RINAT R. AKHMETSH I N 

A. Of course . 

Q. I n add i t i on , as t he deposi t ion 

is going forward , please try and let me 

f inish my question --

A. Of course. 

Q. be f ore y o u answer . And --

THE COURT REPORTER : Like that . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. I know -- I know it ' s hard to 

d o , and I will try and let you finish y o ur 

answer before I ask t he next --

A. Understood . 

Q. questi o n . Otherwise , it ' s 

very d i fficu l t for the court repor t er t o 

take down when two people are speaking at 

A. Um- hum . 

Q. -- a t one t ime . 

A. Agreed . 

Q. Okay . If y o u need a break at 

any t ime for any reason , jus t l e t us know , 

and we ' ll accommodate you at the most 

c o nvenient 

A. Very well. 

Q. -- and quickest oppo rtun i ty . 

New York 
Connecticut 
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RI NAT R. AKHMETSH I N 

Al l of tha t i s agreeabl e? 

A. Agreed . 

Q. Are you aware o f the f act that 

Asho t Eg i azaryan bro ught a lawsu i t aga i nst 

New York 
Connecticut 

Pe t er Za l mayev? 

A. I am . 

MR . GOLDEN : Excuse me . 

Before you -- you go on wi t h 

your questions , I want to make an 

object i o n . 

And my ob j ec t ion is t hat l as t 

nigh t, I received 2 , 025 d o cuments 

l abe l ed PS il through PSI2025 . I t 

appears t hat those documen t s were 

provided to you on February 28th and 

March 9th . 

I have no idea whe t her those 

d o cuments have any relevance a t al l 

t o this deposi t ion , bu t I object to 

your use of t hem , be c ause I didn ' t 

get them unti l l ast night . 

There ' s another batch o f 

documents numbered PS I 2026 to 22 5 8 

wh i ch I st i l l haven 't rece i v e d . 
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RINAT R. AKHMETSH I N 

We ' re trying to wo rk tha t out. 

Those , I understand , you 

received on l y yesterday , but I also 

object to t he use o f tho se documen t s , 

because I haven 't had a chance , 

still, to l ook a t t hem . 

MR . COH EN: Al l right . We ll, 

you 'll have a chan c e dur i ng t he 

course o f today to l ook at those 

d ocuments and over breaks and -- and 

t he l unch break. 

As you noted , we just rece ived 

a maj ority o f those d o cuments l a te 

l ast n i ght . We haven 't had t hem or 

an opportunity to review them until 

just now . Yet , because 

Mr . Akhme t sh i n i s here t oday , some of 

t hose d o cuments appear relevan t t o 

thi s depos i t i o n , and we wo u l d hope 

no t t o have t o bring Mr . Akhme t shin 

back to discuss just those -- those 

d ocuments . 

We ' re planning t o proceed and 

ask about t hose d o cuments t hat we 
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RINAT R. AKHMETSHIN 

think are relevant to this 

deposition . And your -- but your 

objection is noted . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Just going back t o --

A. Yes . 

Q. my earlier question , y o u said 

you were aware of t he fact tha t 

Mr . Egiazaryan brought a lawsuit against 

Mr . Zalmayev; is that c o rrect? 

A. I ' m aware of the lawsuit , yes , 

sir . 

Q. And when did you first become 

aware of tha t ? 

A. Mr . Zalmayev told me that he was 

served by the d o cuments . 

Q. And he -- did he tell you t hat 

almost immediately after he was served with 

the summons and c om- -- c omplaint in the 

defama t ion case? 

A. I ' m sorry? 

Q. Did Mr . Zalmayev tell y o u about 

t he lawsui t shor t ly af t er he was served wi t h 

the lawsuit? 

New York 
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RI NAT R. AKHMETSH I N 

A. I I don ' t kn ow. He -- he just 

c a lled me and we d i s c ussed this . 

Q. Did he say , I was just served 

with a lawsuit? 

A. He he told me tha t some people 

approached him approached him o n the 

street and just dumped it on him . 

Q. Do you recal l i f tha t was i n 

April o f 201 1? 

A. It was spr ing. I d o not recall 

t he exac t da t e . It was spring . 

Q. Okay . And -- and y o u described 

it, he called y o u and he said , I ' m standing 

on the s t ree t and someone just del i vered 

some papers to me? 

A. I d o ubt it. I think it was after 

t he fact . 

Q. Okay . Di d you , shortly 

therea fter, receive a c opy o f the c omplaint 

i n Mr . Egiazaryan ' s l awsui t agains t 

Mr . Zalmayev? 

A. Yes , I -- he informed me abo ut 

it . 

Q. Okay . And do y o u recall that 

New York 
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RI NAT R. AKHMETSH I N 

was also in t he spring o f 20 --

A. I t was 

Q. 1 1? 

A. in spring 20 1 1 , yes 

Q. Okay . Once again 

A. bas i cal l y 

Q. try to --

A. I' m sorry , sorry , yeah 

Q. it ' s -- it ' s --

A. sorry , yeah 

Q. not the way we usua lly --

A. I ' m sorry --

Q. communica t e 

A. yes --

Q. in --

A. I ' m sorry 

Q. in -- in genera l 

c o nve rsa t ion , s o jus t t ry and --

A. Unders t ood . 

Q. -- ta ke a pause af t er I finish 

the question , and then you -- you can 

answer . 

answe r . 

New York 
Connecticut 
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Yo u reca l l receiving a copy of 

t he summons and c omp l a i n t i n the spr i ng of 

2011 ; is that correct? 

A. Co rrect . 

Q. Al l right. Are you represen t ed 

by counsel today? 

A. I am . 

Q. I s tha t Mr -- Mr . Sperdu t o? 

A. Yes . 

Q. Okay . Have y o u been represented 

by counsel with regard to t his litigation by 

anyo ne o t her than Mr . Sperdu t o ? 

A. No . 

Q. You have a retainer agreemen t 

with Mr . Sperduto? 

A. I d o . 

Q. Do you have a re t ainer agreement 

wi t h any o t her a t torneys o r l aw firms 

re l a t ing to t he Ash o t Eg i azaryan --

A. No . 

Q. -- matter? 

Have you been -- have y o u met 

Mr . Golden before t oday? 

A. I did . 
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Q. Have you spo ken wi th him fr om 

time to time? 

A. Not f rom time -- I think I met 

him once o r t wice. 

Q. Has he interviewed you with 

regard to t he Egiazaryan versus Zalmaye v 

ma t ter? 

A. No . He made it clear that he 

doesn't want to discuss this matter with me . 

Q. Have you had e - mai l 

communications with Mr . Go lden? 

A. No . 

Q. Have you had e - mai l 

c ommun i cat i ons wi th Andy Ryan? 

A. No . 

Q. Have you had e - mai l 

communications with any counsel for 

Mr . Zalmaye v? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objec t t o the 

form . I' m not sure he can kn ow who 

any counsel f or Mr . Za lmayev is other 

than the pe ople i n the room. 

THE WITN ESS: Ac t ua lly , 

t here ' s -- there ' s a c l ari fi ca tion , I 

New York 
Connecticut 
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think. 

At f i rst , before Mr . Za l mayev 

was represented by Mr . Go lden, there 

was another c o unsel . It' s firm 

called Baker Hos t e tler . And f or a 

while -- f or a whi le, t hey represent 

him . And I thin k I was in con t act 

with those people , but they -- they 

dropped out o f the case . 

BY MR . COH EN: 

Q. Was your fir s t communica tion 

with Baker Hos tetler be f ore or a fter you 

learned of the fact that there was a 

l awsui t ? 

A. For -- a f ter the f act . 

Q. Do you recall who y o u spoke wi th 

a t Baker Hos t e tler? 

A. A partner , Mark Cymrot . 

Q. Do you recall -- can you 

state or spel l t he l ast name aga in? 

A. Cymrot , Mark , M- I -- M- A- R- K, I 

think ; Cymro t , C- Y- M- R- 0 - T . 

He should be in t he docket . 

Q. Yes, that ' s a f ami lia r name . 
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Did he interview you regarding 

t he l awsui t ? 

A. He did not . 

Q. What d i d you d i scuss wi th 

Mr . Cymrot? 

A. I t o l d him tha t I have a f riend 

who needs l ega l represen t a t ion in t h i s 

defama tion case , and he i n t roduced 

Mr . Za l mayev to Mr . Cymrot . 

Q. Yo u were helping Mr . Zalmayev 

find counse l to represen t him --

A. Yes , I d i d . 

Q. -- and -- i n the defense o f t he 

l awsuit aga i ns t h i m; i s t hat corre c t? 

A. That is correct . 

Q. Did y o u discuss or -- with any 

other counse l t he possibi l ity o f them 

represen t ing Mr . Zalmayev i n the de f amat i o n 

case? 

A. I d i d not. 

Q. Did you talk to or meet 

Mr . Go l den be f ore Mr . Zalmayev retained 

Mr . Go l den and his l aw f irm? 

MR . SPERDUTO : I ' m sorry . I 
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just mi ssed t hat . 

Could you repeat i t for me? 

MR . COHEN : Yes . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did you have any conversations 

or communica t ions wi t h Jim Golden or h i s law 

New York 
Connecticut 

f irm before Pe t er Za l mayev retained 

Jim Go l den and h i s law f i rm t o represent h i m 

in the de f amation case? 

A. I did no t . 

Q. Do you know how Mr . Za l mayev 

came to re t a i n Jim Golden and his l aw f irm 

t o defend him i n this l awsui t ? 

MR . SPERDUTO: Objec t ion ; 

capacity . 

Go ahead . You can answer . 

THE WITNESS : I t hink he was 

recommended by some o ne I kn ow i n 

New Yo rk . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Someone you -- you know where? 

A. He was -- he was recommended by 

someone e l se . 

Q. Okay . Wh o -- who recommended 
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Jim Go l den? 

A. Andy Ryan . 

THE COURT REPORTER : Sorry? 

THE WITNESS : Andy Ryan , 

R- Y- A-N. 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Who approached Andy Ryan abo ut 

poss i b l y represent i ng Mr . Za l mayev? 

A. I did . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Ob j ect -- g i ve 

me a chance . 

THE WITNESS : I' m s o rry . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Had you k nown Andy Ryan before 

the lawsuit was brought against 

Mr . Zalmayev? 

A. I did . 

Q. And h ow did y o u know Andy Ryan 

be f o re the lawsu i t was bro ught aga i nst 

Mr . Za l mayev? 

A. Mr . Ryan and I , we go back 

probably seven , eight years , even mo re 

probab l y . We were on t he same mat t er , but on 

t he oppo si t e s i des . We -- we wo rked this 
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case . 

Q. What was tha t ma t ter? 

A. It was matter in a country called 

Kyrgyzstan , K- -- K- Y- R- G- Y- S- T- A- N [sic] , 

Kyrgyz s tan Sociali s t Republic. 

Q. What was the nature o f the 

litigation that y o u were invo lved with? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objec t ion ; form . 

THE WITNESS : We represented 

the Government o f Kyrgyzstan , and 

Mr . Ryan repre se nted the -- s ome 

people wh o -- who were , y o u know , in 

this kind of conflict with the 

Government . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Were you a party to that 

lawsui t ? 

A. I was n o t . 

Q. Were any companies o r entities 

t hat you work for a party t o tha t l aws ui t ? 

A. I was more in the capacity of 

translato r in that case . 

Q. What ' s your da t e of birth? 

A. -· 
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Q. What ' s your curren t address? 

A. -
Washington , D. C. 

Q. II - the address o f an 

organiza t ion tha t you operate? 

A. -
Q. And what ' s the name of tha t 

organ i za tion? 

A. The International Eurasian 

I nst i tute . 

Q. I s i t t he I n t ernationa l Eurasian 

I nst i tute f o r Economi c and Pol i t i cal 

Research? 

A. Correct. 

Q. But you cal l it International 

Eurasian Institute f or sho rt? 

A. Yes . 

Q. And wo uld i t be al l righ t if we 

discuss i t today to ca l l i t IEI ? 

A. I EI will be ac c eptab l e . 

Q. It doesn ' t work out to a 

c o nven i ent acronym . 

A. That ' s f ine . 

Q. Do you res i de i n the O. C. area? 
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A. Co rrect. 

MR . SPERDUTO: Objection . 

Go ahead . Give me a chance . 

TH E WI TN ESS : I' m s o rry . 

Sorry , sorry . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. I s - the 

headquar t ers of I EI ? 

A. I wou l dn ' t descr i be it as 

" headquarters " --

Q. It' s where you have an 

A. -- i t' s an opera t ional o ffi ce . 

Q. Okay . Is y o ur te l eph o ne number 

-----? 
A. Correct . 

Q. I s tha t a t e l ephone number f or 

I EI ? 

A. Co rrec t. 

Q. ·--··----·· • 
Q . Do you have any other t e l ephone 

numbers t ha t you use? 

A. I have o t her numbers . 
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Q. What is the other telephone 

number? 

A. 

Q. Is that ass o ciated with any 

en t i t y or organiza t ion tha t you work with? 

New York 
Connecticut 

A. No . 

Q. That ' s purely a personal number? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Has Mr . Zalmayev or anyone on 

his behalf asked i f y o u wo uld be a witness 

for him at the trial of Mr . Egiazaryan ' s 

lawsuit against Mr . Zalmayev? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Just a minute , 

ple ase . 

(Pause . ) 

MR . SPERDUTO : To the e x tent 

t hat tha t includes a lawyer spea king 

representing you --

THE WITNESS : Um- hum . 

MR . SPERDUTO : -- you shou l d 

not include that in your answer . 

Otherwise , you can answer the 

ques t ion . 

THE WITNESS : I d o n ' t recall 
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such appr oach or such a reques t. 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. I f you were asked by 

Mr . Zalmayev o r his c o unsel t o appear as a 

wi t ness for him at tria l, wou l d you do so? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objec t ion ; 

hypo t het i cal . 

THE WITNESS : Why no t ? 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Okay . 

A. Yes , maybe . 

Q. And if you we re asked by 

Mr . Eg i azaryan o r c o unse l f o r Mr . Eg i azaryan 

i f you wou l d appear as a wi tness a t t r i a l, 

wou l d you would you do so? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Same object i o n . 

THE WITNESS : I wou l d consider 

i t . 

THE COURT REPORTER : Cou l d you 

just keep your voi c e up? 

THE WITNESS : Sorry . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you ever been deposed 

be f o re? 
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A. No . 

Q. Have you ever t est i f i ed at a 

trial? 

A. No . 

Q. Have you ever provided a sworn 

statemen t i n a l i t i gat i o n? 

A. No . 

Q. What d i d you do t o prepare for 

today ' s deposition? 

A. I engaged a lawyer . 

Q. Did you -- in t erms of preparing 

f o r t o day ' s t estimony specifical l y , what d i d 

y o u d o ? 

New York 
Connecticut 

MR . SPERDUTO: To t he e x t ent 

that ca l ls f or communications between 

y o u and I , you ' re no t t o answer . 

Otherwi se , you can answer . 

THE WITNESS : I t h i nk I j us t 

discussed t h i s --

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. You -- you met with Mr . --

A. 

Q. 

A. 

upcomi ng 

you --

upcomi ng -- I met wi th 
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Mr . Sperdu t o . 

Q. Okay . For how long -- for 

how -- on how many occasions did you meet 

with Mr . Sperduto? 

A. On a few . 

Q. Okay . For how long , a l l 

t o ge t her , wo uld y o u say y o u me t wi t h 

Mr . Sperdu t o? 

A. A f ew hours . 

Q. Was anyo ne else present when you 

were mee t ing wi th Mr . Sperdu t o? 

A. No . 

Q. Did y o u speak wi t h 

Pe t er Za l mayev about your forthcomi ng 

testimony today in this lawsuit? 

A. He ' s aware o f my upcomi ng 

t estimony . 

Q. Did y o u t a l k wi th Pe t er Zalmaye v 

abou t t he ques t ions t hat you ant i c i pate or 

he ant i c i pates being as ked a t t oday ' s 

deposition? 

A. No . 

Q. Do you are -- are you -- do 

y o u rema i n in regu l ar c o ntac t wi t h 
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Mr . Za l mayev? 

MR . SPERDUTO: Form --

THE WITNESS : Yes 

MR . SPERDUTO : " regular ." 

Go ahead . 

THE WITNESS : I wo uld say yes . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. I s there anyone else who you ' ve 

spoken with strike that . 

Is there anyone else who you told 

t hat you wi ll be tes t ifyi ng in this l awsui t 

t o -- t o day? 

A. My wi fe . 

Q. Anyone e l se other t han your wife 

and Mr . Za l mayev and your counsel? 

A. I ' m no t -- I don ' t recall . 

Q. Did you review any documen t s in 

preparat i o n f o r t o day ' s depo si t ion? 

A. I did . 

Q. What documen t s d i d you revi ew? 

A. Files . 

Q. Did y o u review -- well , strike 

t hat . 

What -- what fi les? Wha t 
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ma t erials? 

A. Some memos , some -- just e - mai l s , 

I guess . 

Q. And did y o u review the documents 

t hat you produced in response t o the 

subpoena? 

A. Those were the o nes wh i ch I 

reviewed . 

Q. Did you review the summons and 

c ompla i nt i n this action? 

A. I did no t read them t hrough . 

I t ' s too dense o f a wr i t i ng . 

Q. Yo u read some of i t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Did you read Mr . Za l mayev ' s 

answer and counterclaims in th i s lawsu i t? 

A. I don 't reca ll. 

Q. Did y o u review documen t s 

produced by any other part i es i n this 

l awsui t ? 

A. I don ' t remember . 

MR . SPERDUTO : The o nly part i es 

we ' re aware of are Mr . Egiazaryan 

and -- and Mr . Zalmayev , correct? 
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MR . COHEN : Yes . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. You reviewed your -- you 

reviewed the -- the d o cuments that you , 

yourself , produced --

A. Co rrec t. 

Q. -- is t hat correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Did you review documents 

produced by Mr . Egiazaryan? 

A. I did no t -- I' m -- I' m -- I 

d o n 't remember . I jus t -- I revi ewed what I 

gave to my counsel . Tha t' s al l I reviewed . 

Q. Okay . 

You reviewed what you gave to 

y o ur counsel to produce? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Okay . And -- and s o then what 

I ' m asking is , d i d you revi ew any d o cuments 

t hat any o t her anybody else may have 

produced in this litigation? 

A. I d o n ' t think s o . 

Q. Okay . Do you recal l if you 

reviewed any documen t s provided by 
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Mr . Za l mayev in t h i s lawsu i t? 

A. I doub t i t . 

Q. In preparing f or today ' s 

depo sition , did y o u take any notes o f 

A. No . 

Q. No . 

I n preparing for today ' s 

deposi t ion , did you c onduc t an inves t iga t ion 

into any issues or f acts that you had some 

questions about? 

A. I searched for -- once I was 

subpoenaed , I searched f or documen t s . Tha t' s 

al l I did . 

MR . COHEN: I' m go i ng t o as k 

the court reporter to mark as the 

nex t e x hibi t a copy o f Subpo ena t o 

Produce Documents , I n f orma t ion or 

Objects or to Permi t Inspect i o n o f 

Premi ses in a Civi l Ac t ion dated 

Oc t ober 2 1, 20 11. 

MR . SPERDUTO : And what ' s that 

number , Jas o n? 

MR . COHEN: We ' re ge t ting t he 

number . We ' re con t inu i ng i n sequence 
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fr om the previous . 

MR . LUPKIN: It appears t o be 

159. 

MR . COHEN : Al l right . So 

we 'll make this 159. 

MR . LUPKIN: 159 is the next 

number in the sequence . 

MR . COHEN: Yes . 

THE COURT REPORTER : Do you 

want me t o put the witness ' name? 

MR . COHEN: Just wri t e 15 9 , no 

names . 

(Sotto voce . ) 

MR . COHEN: That' s from 

Egiazaryan , right? That ' s fr om 

Egiazaryan , - 58? 

Okay . 

(Whereupo n , Subpoena t o 

Produce Documents , I nformation or 

Objects or to Permit Inspection o f 

Premises in a Civi l Action was marked , 

for identification purposes , as 

Depo sition Exhibit Number 159.) 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Do you have Exhibit 159 in f ront 

o f you , Mr . Akhmetsh in? 

A. I do . 

Q. Okay . Have y ou seen this 

d o cument before? 

A. I t h i nk I did . 

Q. Okay . And , sir , call your 

attentio n t o the f ourth page . 

Do you see there ' s a list of 

d ocuments requested? 

A. I d o see that . 

Q. You see t hat? 

You ' ve seen that before ; is that 

correct? 

A. I t hink I did. 

Q. And -- and did you search f o r 

a ll d o cuments responsive to that -- those 

reques t s for documen t s? 

A. I did . 

Q. And in respo nse t o that , you 

produced a set of documents ; i s t hat 

New York 
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A. Co rrect . 

Q. Did anyone o ther than you search 

f or those documents? 

A. No . 

Q. Did you find -- where did you 

l o ca te the documen ts that y o u produced? 

A. In the house . 

Q. But i t was in your home and not 

in your IEI o ffi ces? 

A. I n both . 

Q. Okay . Did you have a fi l e that 

y o u maintain with regard to Ash o t 

Egiazaryan- related issues? 

A. No t exactly a fi l e . 

Q. You had sets o f documents in 

di fferent l o ca tions ; is that correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Did y o u c ommunicate with anyone 

t o ass i s t in locating every d o cument tha t 

you c ould find? 

A. I didn ' t , no . 

Q. And , in addi tion and -- and 

the documents you produced were hard copies 

o f documen ts f ound in either your h ome o r at 
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I EI of f ices ; is t hat correct? 

A. I don 't re c a l l . 

Q. Do you recall i f there were any 

d o cuments that you printed o ut f r o m a 

computer tha t were produced? 

A. I d o n 't remember . 

Q. Do you recal l i f you had checked 

for any e - ma i ls t hat were responsive to t he 

request provided in contained in 

Exhibit 159? 

A. I did check my compu t er . I 

searched my c omputer . 

Q. Do you recal l i f , i n searching 

your compu t er , you located any e - mai l s tha t 

are -- were responsive to the request 

c o ntained i n Ex hibi t 159? 

A. I don 't reca ll. 

Q. Do the documen t s tha t y o u 

produced con t a i n a l l o f t he reco rds i n your 

possession , c ustody or con t rol regarding or 

relating to Ashot Egia zaryan , Za l mayev and 

the Eurasia Demo cracy In i t i ative? 

A. To my best knowl edge . 

Q. That wou l d inc l ude a l l research 
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regarding Egiazaryan ; is that c o rrect? 

A. I -- I wou l d say so , yes . 

Q. That would include al l 

c ommunicati o ns regarding Egiazaryan ; is that 

correc t ? 

A. That is c o rrect . 

Q. That wou l d include a ll 

agreemen t s or c ontracts re l a ti ng to your 

New York 
Connecticut 

Egiazaryan project --

MR . SPERDUTO : Form --

BY MR. COHEN: 

Q. is that correct? 

MR . SPERDUTO : -- object i o n t o 

t he form ; assumes facts . 

THE WITNESS : I got everything 

I c o uld fi nd and gave it to my 

counsel. 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Okay . And that wo uld also 

i nclude everything you had regarding 

Peter Zalmayev and Eurasia Democracy 

Initia tive ; i s that c o rrect? 

A. Correct. On thi s ma tter , yes. 

Q. And that would include a ll --
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and -- strike that . 

Are you aware t hat there were no 

e - mails that were provided in response to 

Exhibit 159? 

A. I am aware of t hat . 

Q. Why is it that that -- that y o u 

did n o t provide any e - mails in respo nse t o 

t he subpoena tha t' s been marked as 

Exhibit 159? 

A. I r o utinely delete --

THE COURT REPORTER : I' m sorry? 

THE WITNESS : I r o ut inely 

de lete my c o rrespo ndence o n matters 

and , in genera l, keep my mai l box 

light . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. How do you decide what ge t s 

relie f -- deleted or not deleted? 

A. Something wh ich is relevant , I 

keep , but what ' s irre l evant, things get 

deleted . 

Q. If you were c o ntinuing to wo rk 

on a particular project , do you retain the 

e - mails relating to that pro ject until the 
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projec t i s completed? 

A. I don 't. 

Q. Have you checked whether de l eted 

i tems that were on your c omputer cou l d be 

re t rieved from your computer? 

A. I did check . 

Q. How did y o u check? 

A. I went to t hese unde l e t e . I wen t 

to this trash box . I went to all those 

areas . 

Q. Did you have any compu t er or 

i n f o rmat i o n t echn o l o gy special i s t l o ok a t 

y o ur compu t er t o determine whe t her documen t s 

t hat you bel i eve were de l e t ed c ould be 

located on the computer somewhere? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Ob j ection to the 

form . 

THE WITNESS : I' m pret t y 

c omfor t able wi t h compu t ers mysel f. 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did you go to anybody e l se to 

help -- t o help y o u? 

A. I don 't ever go t o anyone e l se . 

Q. And did y o u i n this case --
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occasion go t o anybody else? 

A. I did not . 

Q. Do you stil l have the computer? 

A. No t t hat o ne . I have a new one 

now . 

Q. When d i d you get a new compu te r? 

A. I thin k i t was last year , I 

thi n k, somet i me . 

Q. At the end o f 20 11 ? 

A. Co rrect . 

Q. Were you notifi ed by anyone tha t 

y o u shou l d retain t he c omputer dur ing t he 

pendency o f the l awsui t by Ashot Egiazaryan 

aga ins t Peter Za l mayev? 

A. I do not reca ll such warning . 

Q. What was your process by which 

you maintained and deleted e - ma il s? 

A. Co uld y o u please 

MR . SPERDUTO : I think you 

as k ed that , didn ' t you , Jason? 

Asked and answered . 

Go ahead i f y o u --

THE WITN ESS: Could you 

elaborate a little bit? 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Sure . 

Did you have a regular practice 

of reviewing your c omputer o n a regular basis 

t o delete e - mails , or did you do i t on a 

ongo i ng basis? 

A. On an ongo ing basis . There ' s n o 

system; but, you k now , I tend no t t o keep 

documents . Most of the documents have 

attachments which I save , but -- i f it ' s 

relevant . I f not, then -- because , you know , 

I t end not to keep a lot o f ma i l . 

Q. And where d o you save 

at t a c hments? 

A. On the hard drive . 

Q. What did you do with the 

computer tha t you used in 20 10 and 20 11 and 

y o u say y o u g o t rid --

A. Just did -- just --

Q. -- of some t ime towards the end 

o f 2011? 

A. -- it ' s -- it was an o ld 

computer . It crashed 

Q. And where i s i t righ t --
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A. I --

Q. now? 

A. just disposed o f it . 

Q. Ho w did y o u dispose o f it? 

A. Just throw i t ou t in the trash . 

I t wou l dn 't even s t art . 

Q. Do you back up your c omputer? 

A. No t regu l arly . I shou l d , 

probably . 

Q. Do you have a backup device that 

you use t o -- t o make sure if t he computer 

crashes , you don ' t lose al l y o ur data --

A. No 

Q. and informa t ion? 

A. no , I never have anything 

relevant . 

I t happens to me a ll the time. 

Sometimes I l o se compu te r . I have a l i ttle 

child s o me times just s tep on it , and it 

just -- I go through many c omputers . 

Q. And do you , f rom time to time , 

keep e - mails? 

A. There ' s no sys t em for t his . 

Q. Do you , f rom time t o time , keep 
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e - mails? 

A. I migh t. 

Q. When you replaced the 

c omputer the older c omputer with a new 

computer a t t he end of 20 11, did you 

transfer any o f the data f r om the old 

c omputer to the new c omputer? 

A. I did not. I did not. 

Q. Other than e - mails , did you 

destroy any other d ocuments --

MR . SPERDUTO : Objection 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. relating t o 

MR . SPERDUTO : -- object i on , 

objection 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Ashot Egiazaryan? 

MR . SPERDUTO : -- objectio n t o 

the f o rm ; that assumes facts not in 

what you ' re in evi dence ; and i t ' s 

arg -

THE WITNESS: I did no t destroy 

anything in t his --

MR . SPERDUTO : -- and it's 
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argumentat i ve . 

Come on , Jason . 

THE WITNESS : Yes ; go ahead . 

I did no t destroy --

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did y o u destroy any --

A. I didn ' t --

Q. documen t s? 

A. I didn ' t destroy anything . 

Q. During the course o f your review 

and search f or documen t s re l ating t o the 

Eg i azaryan lawsu i t aga i nst Peter Zalmayev , 

did y o u l o ca t e any documen t s tha t have not 

been produc ed? 

A. No . 

Q. What d i d you do with the 

documents t hat you l ocated? 

A. I bundl ed t hem together , too k t o 

my lawyer ' s of f ice . 

Q. Fo llowi ng t he production of 

documents , did you ever go back and take a 

seco nd loo k f o r additional documents? 

A. I don 't remember . I -- I migh t 

have . 
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Q. During the 20 10 t o 20 11 period , 

did you have jus t one c om- -- one c omputer? 

A. I did . 

Q. Do you have in your p o ssession 

any backup hard drives or -- or o ther 

devices that con t a in any in f ormation f r om 

the c omputer that was destr oyed? 

A. I do not . 

And if I may mention --

MR . SPERDUTO : I'm going to 

ob j ec t --

THE WITNESS : -- compu ter has 

n o t been des troyed . It ' s 

MR . SPERDUTO : I I was just 

going to object to the f orm 

THE WITNESS: discarded 

THE COURT REPORTER : Wa it, 

wait . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Yeah , right . 

I was go i ng t o objec t t o the 

f orm nunc pro tune on that , because 

it -- he didn 't say it was 

" des t royed "; he sa id it was 

discarded . 
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THE WITNESS : And I ment i o ned 

severa l times i t was d i s carded , 

because it was -- it crashed . 

BY MR . COH EN: 

Q. Could -- describe your 

educatio na l background . 

A. I have a doc t o rate in chemi s try . 

Q. From where? 

A. From Catholi c Univers ity . 

Q. Where were you born? 

A. I was born i n Russia . 

Q. And where in Russia? 

A. In a c i ty ca lled Kazan , 

K- A- Z- A-N, Russia . 

Q. Approx imate l y where is that? 

A. I t ' s o utside o f Mo scow . It' s 

eas t of Moscow . 

Q. Fo r h ow l o ng d i d you live in 

Russ i a? 

A. I l eft Russia when I was 24 , I 

think . I -- I l e ft Russia in 1 993 , so I was 

2 5 . 

Q. On wha t ki nd of v i sa did you 

leave Russ i a? 
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A. I'm s o rry? 

Q. On wha t kind of v isa? How d i d 

you come to the United States? 

A. Student visa , F-1. 

Q. What i s your current immigra tion 

status? 

A. I'm a U. S . citizen . 

Q. Did you ever app l y for asyl um? 

A. No . 

Q. How did y o u beco me a U. S . 

ci ti zen? 

A. Just appl ied f or c i t izensh i p . I 

g o t the first green card , then citizenship . 

Q. You say you have a a Ph . D. 

in in chemis - in chemistry? 

A. That is c o rrect , b i o organ i c 

chemis t ry . 

THE COURT REPORTER : I ' m sorry? 

THE WITNESS : Bioo rganic 

c hemi s t ry . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Do you act pro f ess i o nally in the 

chemis t ry field at all? 

A. No t any mo re . 
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Q. Do you have any degrees past 

t hat -- t hat degree? 

A. No . That ' s the highest degree I 

have . There are no higher degrees . 

Q. Do you have any professional 

l icenses? 

A. No . 

Q. Have you ever he l d any tea c h i ng 

positions? 

A. I did . 

Q. I n wha t ? 

A. I n chemistry . 

Q. Okay . Have y o u published any 

papers in c hemi s t ry? 

A. I did . 

Q. In anything else? 

A. No ; j ust in chemis t ry . 

Q. Ever g i ve l ectures o r 

presen t a t ions on chemistry? 

A. I have , years ago . 

Q. Have you given any lectures or 

presentations on anything else? 

A. Yeah . I might have t alk about 

Centra l As i an ma t ters . I -- I ' ve been 
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invited t o talked on mat ters o f Centra l As i a 

a few times . 

Q. By whom are you currently 

employed? 

A. By t he I nternational Eurasian 

Institute . 

Q. And -- and does the 

I nternat i ona l Eurasian I nstitute have any 

employees other than you? 

A. We have an empl oyee i n Londo n . 

Q. Who i s t ha t? 

A. It's the f ormer Pr i me Minister o f 

Ka zakhstan . 

Q. What is h is name? 

A. Akezhan Ka z hege ldin. 

Q. And how did y o u get c o nnected 

with Mr . Kazhege ldi n? 

A. I met him in 1998, I think . 

Yeah . 

Q. Have you represented h i m? 

A. I have . 

Q. I n wha t capacity d i d -- did y o u 

represent Mr . Kazhegeldin? 

A. As an advis o r t o h i m. 
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Q. At the time that you first began 

work i ng with h i m, he -- he was no l onger the 

Prime Minister o f Kazakhstan ; is that 

c o rrect? 

A. That is correct. 

Q. And at the time that you began 

t o represent him , was he -- was there a 

warrant out for his arrest in Kazakhstan? 

A. That is correct . 

Q. And at the time y o u represented 

him , was there an INTERPOL Red No tice for --

ou t f o r him? 

A. I d o believe so . 

Q. And do you recal l what the 

warrant f or arrest was f or? 

A. I d o not remember . 

Q. And s trike that. 

And am I correct that he is still 

wanted by -- there ' s still an arrest warrant 

for him i n the country of Kazakhstan? 

MR . SPERDUTO: Objection to the 

f o rm ; capaci ty. 

THE WITN ESS: I -- I don 't 

know . 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Do you con t inue t o represent 

him? 

A. In some capacity, yes . 

Q. I n wha t capaci t y? 

A. Just advi s i ng . 

Q. On wha t i ssues do y o u advise 

him? 

A. The media communications . 

Q. What ' s the purpo se o r miss i o n o f 

I EI ? 

A. We ' re t rying to promote democracy 

i n Cen t ral Asia , former Soviet Union , and 

promote pro- -- I mean progress and reform . 

Q. Does IEI , from time to time , 

have payi ng cl i ents? 

A. Yes , correct . 

Q. Do you rely -- does I EI re l y o n 

paying c l ien t s for i t s -- i ts i ncome? 

A. I n some ways , yes . 

Q. Does IEI re l y upon charitabl e 

d o nations? 

A. I wou l d no t reca ll those , 

ac t ual l y . 
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Q. Okay . Mos tly , you work f o r 

clients? 

A. Correct . 

Q. Is IEI registered as a 50 1 (c) (3) 

entity? 

A. No . 

Q. I s it c o rrect that IEI is n o t a 

char i tab l e organ i zat i on? 

A. It is not . 

Q. Do you -- d oes IEI pay a salary 

to Mr . Kazhege ldi n? 

A. It does , y es. 

Q. Has Mr . Kazhegeldin wo rked in 

any capacity wi th -- ass i s t ed i n any 

capacity with your work relating to 

Asho t Egiazaryan? 

A. No. He ' s a former prime 

minister . 

Q. He s till has got to wo rk , right? 

A. He does . He has h i s hands busy 

with other things . 

Q. I ' m s o rry . Co uld y o u speak up a 

littl e bit? 

A. He has his hands busy with o t her 
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things . 

Q. Okay . Things re l ating to 

Ka zakhstan? 

A. Co rrect . 

Q. And thi ngs relating to the 

prosecut i o n o f -- o f crimes against him ; is 

that correct? 

MR . SPERDUTO: Objection ; 

assumes f acts not in evidence ; ca ll s 

f o r a legal c o nclusion . 

If you -- if 

THE WITNESS : He ' s -- y o u know , 

he ' s trying t o promo te reform in his 

c ountry . That ' s wha t he does . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. What is the Kazakhstan 21st 

Century Foundation? 

A. It used t o be a predecesso r t o 

Internat i o na l Eurasian Institute . It --

THE COURT REPORTER : I' m sorry? 

THE WITNESS : It was a 

predecesso r t o International Eurasian 

I nstitute . It' s no longer 

f unc tional . 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did you have any emp l oymen t i n 

the -- in Russia before you left? 

A. I did no t . 

Q. I' m sorry . You said you came 

over here when you were 24? 

A. Twenty- five . 

Q. Twen t y - f i ve . 

Did you participate in the war in 

which Russia was engaged in in Af ghanistan 

before coming t o the Uni t ed States? 

A. I n some capaci t y . 

Q. In what capacity? 

A. So l d i er . 

Q. Have you ever worked f or the 

Russian Government o ther than as a soldier? 

A. Just U. S .-Soviet Army -- US --

Army o f USSR . 

Q. And was there a specific 

division or department tha t you wor ked in 

when you were working for the Soviet Army 

in -- when you worked f o r the Soviet Army? 

A. I did no t work for Sovie t Army . 

MR . SPERDUTO : I ' m sorry . 
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Just can y o u repeat the f i rst hal f 

of your ques t ion? I -- c an you read 

it back , Jason? I just missed that 

f irst 

MR . COHEN: I -- I'll ask 

another q ues t ion . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Al l r i ght , 

t han k s . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. When you served as a soldier , 

who did you serve for? 

A. I serve d f or the Sovi e t Army . I 

did n o t wo rk . 

Q. Okay . Di d you -- you wor k in a 

speci f ic division or department when you 

served f or the Sovi et Army? 

A. I was -- every sol dier served in 

a specifi c depar t men t. I did serve i n my 

un i t . 

Q. What uni t was t hat? 

A. Do you need the number? 

Q. What was the -- yes , the unit 

number . 

A. 1 -- 12129 . 
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Q. What was the -- what was the 

name -- name or t i t le of tha t un i t? 

A. It ' s -- you know , in Russian , 

it ' s called " Komendantsky ." It ' s a 

t here ' s no equivalen t in the Uni t ed States , 

but there ' s equivalent in -- used t o be 

equivalent in Germany . It ' s called 

servi ce command in servi ce 

commandant -- command in service? I don ' t 

know how you describe . 

Q. What was the role of this unit 

o f the Soviet Army? 

A. It ' s pro tect well - being of 

so l d i ers . 

Q. By doing what? 

A. Just tro op movements , y o u know , 

t raffic , you know , all those things , security 

o f soldiers . I t has -- it ' s a very broad 

unit . 

Q. Who was Viktor I vanov? 

A. I know one Viktor Ivanov who is 

the head o f Russian drug enforcement agency . 

Q. I ' m sorry. Again , if you could 

speak up a little bit . 
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A. I know Vikto r Ivanov wh o is the 

head of Russ i an drug enforc ement agency . 

Q. Did you serve with him in 

Afghani stan? 

A. I did not. Much older . 

Q. Did y o u serve with any o f 

Mr . Ivanov ' s deput ies in Af ghanistan? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objection to the 

f orm; capacity . 

THE WITNESS : I d o not recall 

that. 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Do you kn ow who David Masti o is? 

A. Never heard thi s name . 

MR . COHEN : I ' ll ask the court 

repo rter -- repo rter to mark as 

Exhibit 1 60 an e - mail dated March 4 , 

2011 to Peter Zalmayev titled Op- Ed 

Submission o n the Ro le o f Russ i a in 

Afghan i s tan. 

There ' s two . That one ' s f or 

Jim . So rry . 

MR . SPERDUTO : I' m sorry . 
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(Whereupo n , an e - mail string 

was marked , for i den t ifica t ion 

purposes , as Deposition Exhibit 

Number 160 . ) 

(Whereupon , the witness reviews 

the d o cument . ) 

THE WI TNESS : Yes , I' ve read 

it . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you had a chance t o review 

this e - mail? 

A. I did . 

Q. And i t ' s a fairly recent e - mai l 

from 2 - -- March 2011 ; is that correct? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objection to the 

form , charac t eriza t ion of t he e - mail . 

THE WITNESS : The -- this 

e - mail , I -- I do recall , yes --

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q . Okay . 

A. -- and now I remember the name o f 

t he -- Mr. Mas t io. 

Q. And the date o f the e - mail f r om 
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y o u t o Peter Zalmayev i s March 4 t h , 201 1; i s 

t hat corre c t? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Can you just 

give me a seco nd , please? 

(Pause . ) 

MR . SPERDUTO : Okay . 

Yeah , g o ahead . 

THE WITNESS : That ' s we i rd . 

MR . SPERDUTO : To -- to save 

time , can I just point o ut some 

t he da t es t hat you ' re referring t o 

MR . COHEN : I -- I ' l l ge t t o 

MR . SPERDUTO : -- Co unse l ? 

MR . COHEN: I' l l ge t t o the 

other dates . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Um- hum . Okay . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. I s the date t hat -- t hat this 

e - ma i l was forwarded to Mr . Za l mayev 

March 4th , 20 11 ? 

A. It appears on the e - mai l. I do 

no t remember this . 

Q. You do you -- you -- you --

d o you remember f o rwarding this e - ma i l to 
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Mr . Za l mayev o n or abo ut March 4 t h , 201 1 ? 

A. I mi gh t have , yes . I --

probably , I did . I don ' t remember . 

Q. That ' s your e - -- the From is 

t hat ' s your e - mai l address 

A. I t is c o rrec t. 

Q. is t hat correct? 

A. That is c orrect, s i r . 

Q. And the To , that ' s 

Peter Zalmayev ' s e - mail address 

A. Correc t --

Q. is t hat correct? 

A. correct . 

Q. And -- and below tha t i s a 

e - mai l f rom October 10 , 20 10 ; is that 

c o rrect? 

A. Correct, sir . 

Q. And i n tha t e - ma i l , y o u -- i t 

says tha t y o u wo uld l ike to submi t an op- ed 

by Mr . Viktor I vanov ; i s tha t c orrec t ? 

A. That is correct , sir . 

Q. Is that Viktor Ivano v the 

Viktor I vanov you j ust men t ioned who ' s head 

o f the Russian drug en f o rcemen t agency? 
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A. That is c o rrect, s i r . 

Q. And c a l l i ng your a t ten t ion a 

little bit f arther down in the document 

t owards the middle 

A. Served wi th? 

Q. Yes . 

It says , I ' m a veteran o f 

Russ i a ' s Afghanistan campa i gn ; is t hat 

correct? 

A. That is correct , yes . 

Q. And t hat ' s a true s tatemen t ? 

A. I am , yes . 

Q. Okay . And i t says you served 

wi t h one of Mr . I vanov ' s deput i es t he r e ; is 

that correct? 

A. That ' s not e x act ly correct . 

Q. Okay . Wha t did -- wha t did you 

mean when y o u wrote t hat you served wi t h o ne 

o f Mr . Ivan ov ' s depu t ies there? 

A. I k now someone for the se rvi c e 

who worked with Mr . Ivanov . It wasn ' t his 

deputy , but i t was some o ne who worked f o r him 

in thi s capaci t y of drug enforcement i ssues . 

Q. Whom you served wi t h in 
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Afghanistan? 

A. I -- I served with h i m in army , 

yes . 

Q. What ' s the name o f that person? 

A. Genera l Volkov . 

Q. Can y o u spell the l ast name, 

please? 

A. V- 0 -L- K- 0 - V. 

Q. Is Mr . Volkov still in the 

Sov - -- still in Russia? 

A. He passed away , unfortunately , 

but he served here in Washington , D. C . 

Q. Do you and who -- wh o 

submi t t ed -- I' m sorry . St r ike t hat . 

Did Mr . Ivanov contact you to 

c ommunicate on his behal f with The Washingto n 

Times? 

A. No . 

Q. How d i d it come abou t that you 

were submitting an op-ed by 

Mr . Viktor Ivanov to The Washington Times? 

A. I was asked t o help during 

Mr . I vanov ' s trip t o Wash ing t on , D. C . I was 

approached by this General Volkov and another 
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frien d o f mine to help them if -- telling 

the ir story, which I found very c ompe lling . 

Q. Was this a paid assignment? 

A. No . 

Q. And -- and you were approached 

by General Volkov at that time ? 

A. Co rrect , and an o ther perso n . 

Q. Who e ls e? 

A. It ' s f ormer head o f a news agency 

here . 

Q. Who ' s that? 

A. It's Ms . Babayeva, 

B- A- 8 - A- Y- E- V- A, Babayeva . Babayeva . 

Q. What news agency? 

A. RIA Novosti , R- I - A, Novosti , 

N- 0 - V- 0 - S- T-I, Novosti . 

Q. Have you ever met Mr . I vanov? 

A. I have . 

MR . COH EN: Let me ask the 

c ourt reporter to mark as Exhibit 1 6 1 

a printout fr om Russian Government 

Web site titled Presidential 

Executive Office with a biography o f 

Viktor Ivan ov . 
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(Whereupon , a printou t from 

Russian Government Web site titled 

Presidential Ex ecutive Of fice was 

marked , for iden t ifica t ion purposes , as 

Depo sition Exhibi t Numbers 161 . ) 

THE WI TNESS : Thank you . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Do you have Exhibit 161 in fr o nt 

of you , s ir? 

A. Co rrect . 

Q. And -- and if y o u l ook o n the 

right, there ' s a phot ograph . 

Is that a photograph of 

Viktor Ivanov? 

A. It appears so. 

Q. And y o u -- you ' ve seen him 

befo re? 

A. Oh , yes , I have . 

Q. And that l ooks like him , 

correct? 

A. It doe s look like him , yes , his 

mo ustache . 
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Q. And -- and it says he ' s do 

you know h i s current pos i t i on i n the 

administration o f --

MR . SPERDUTO : Object - --

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Vl adimir Pu ti n? 

MR . SPERDUTO : -- object i o n t o 

t he form . 

Go ahead . 

THE WITNESS : I ' m no t sure ; but 

at the time when I knew him , he was 

t he head o f Russ i an drug en f orcement 

agency . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Is he a l so -- was he also an 

aide to Pres i dent Putin? 

A. He might have been . I did not 

know him in t hat capacity . 

Q. Did y o u know him as Deputy 

Director of t he Federa l Security Service of 

the Russian Federation? 

A. I did no t . 

MR . SPERDUTO: I' m sorry . Hold 

on . Jus t -- you ' re asking if he knew 
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him in that capacity? 

MR . COHEN : Yes . 

THE WITNESS : No . I only knew 

him in the capacity o f Russian drug 

enforcement. 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did y o u know Mr . Ivan ov t o have 

worked for the KGB? 

A. I might have . 

Q. Just calling your attentio n t o 

the se cond page in -- in the middle of the 

d o cument . 

There ' s a reference that begins 

From 1 977? 

A. Um- hum . Yes . 

Q. Okay . You see that it says , 

Worked in the KGB in various operational and 

leadership capacities? 

A. I d o see that . 

Q. Does that refresh your 

reco llection as to roles he may have played 

in the KGB? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objection to 

f o rm . 
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Yo u can answer . 

THE WITNESS : I never me t him 

in other capacities -- in -- in 

capacities o ther than Russian drug 

enforcemen t agency chief . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you ever d o ne -- other than 

t h i s see kin g to assist h i m in plac i ng an 

article in The Washington Times , have you 

d o ne o ther work f o r Viktor Iva nov? 

A. I helped to organize his public 

presentation . 

Q. To wh om? 

A. The Carneg i e Endowment . 

Q. When was that? 

A. That ' s a r o und the same time when 

he was visiting t he United St a t es . 

Q. That wou l d have been in in 

2 010 ; is that c o rrect? 

A. I t was around t he t ime when t he 

article ran . So if it says October , that 

should be October . 

Q. Wa s t his article published in 

The Wash i ngton Times? 
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A. It was . 

Q. Ca l l i ng your a t ten t ion to 

Exhibit 160 again . 

A. Yes . 

Q. And do you see tha t t he lower 

e - ma i l is da t ed Oc t ober 18 , 20 10 ; i s tha t 

c o rrec t ? 

A. That is c orrect, i t appears so . 

Q. And you forwarded that e - mail to 

Mr . Akhmetshin o n March 4th , 2000 --

MR . SPERDUTO : I s t hat --

object i o n t o f orm . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. I' m sorry . 

And you -- you f orwarded the 

e - mail dated Octo- -- did y o u f o rward the 

e - mai l dated October 18 , 20 10 t o Mr . Za l mayev 

on March 4 t h , 20 1 1? 

A. It does appear so , s i r . 

Q. That ' s a l mos t five mon t hs l a t er ; 

is that correct? 

A. Co rrect . 

Q. This is no t an e - mail t hat you 

destroyed ; is t hat correct? 
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A. That was o ne which I had a t t hat 

t ime . It appears t hat way . 

Q. Where did you keep e - mails that 

y o u didn ' t destroy? Is i t j ust kept in y o ur 

New York 
Connecticut 

inbox? 

A. I t probably was t here . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objec t ion . 

I' m -- I' m going to -- excuse me . 

I ' m going to have a standing 

objectio n s o I don ' t have t o 

in t errupt every t ime , bu t every t ime 

y o u use t he wo rd "destro y " -- t here ' s 

n o t h i ng on the record t hat says he 

destroyed anything . He discarded an 

old computer . That ' s all there is . 

I f it gets argumentative , I ' ll 

make the objec t ion again ; otherwise , 

y o u know , we have a standing 

object i o n t o counsel ' s 

c harac t eriza t ion of t he wi t ness ' 

testimony . 

THE WITNESS : And I agree , yes , 

I' m no t comfor t abl e . You ' re put t ing 

wo rds i n my mo uth , s i r . 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. We l l , when you put the compu t er 

in the -- out into the trash , you knew it 

was g o ing t o be destroyed , didn ' t y o u? 

A. I t was discarded . I tossed it 

Q. Yo u discarded i t , but y o u knew 

it was going to be destroyed? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objec t ion to t he 

form ; argumentative . 

Yo u d o n ' t have to answer that . 

THE WI TNESS : Sir , i t was 

crashed already . I t was 

n o nfuncti o nal c omputer . I ' m sure y o u 

destroy many compu t ers yourself . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did y o u seek to have anyone 

recover t he da t a on t he computer before you 

discarded i t? 

A. I did n o t . 

Q. Why no t ? 

A. Because I ' m very good with 

c omputers , sir . 

Q. Excuse me? 

A. I am very g o od wi th c omputers . I 
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program and I wo rk wi th c omputers -- worked 

ex t ens i vely . 

Q. Going back to Mr . Ka z hegeldin , 

did do y o u re ca ll that he was -- there 

was an arres t warran t and t hat he was wanted 

f o r organized crime? 

A. I d o not remember t he charges , 

bu t 

Q. Do you remember 

A. there was an arrest warrant 

because he was detained on tha t warrant. 

Q. Do you recal l t hat o ne o f t he 

charges was t ransnat i o na l cr i me? 

A. I was no t -- as I ment i oned , I 

was not aware o f the charges . 

Q. He never shared those -- tho se 

charges wi t h you? 

A. I -- I was qu i t e sure t hat th o se 

are t rumped- up charges . 

Q. Did you eve r loo k at them? 

A. I didn ' t . I ' m not a lawyer . 

Q. And why -- how -- ho w were you 

s o sure t hey we re t rumped- up charges? 

A. Becaus e he was the subject o f 
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harassment complaint . 

Q. Led by by whom? 

A. Led by the regime in Kazakhstan . 

Q. I s it y o ur pos i t i o n that the 

regime in Kazakhstan can arrange f or 

t rumped- up charges aga inst pol itical enemies 

o r d i ssidents? 

New York 
Connecticut 

MR . SPERDUTO: Obj ection to the 

f orm . 

THE WITNESS : I --

MR . SPERDUTO: Go ahead . 

Asked and answered . 

THE WITNESS : I ma inta in it ' s 

p o s s i b l e . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. I s it p o ss i b l e f o r tha t t o 

happen i n Russ ia? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objec tion to 

f o rm 

THE WITNESS : I wou ldn ' t 

specu l ate . 

MR . SPERDUTO : -- "possible ." 

THE COURT REPORTER : Just l e t 

him fi nish . 
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THE WITNESS : I said I -- I --

I -- I wou l dn 't know. 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Yo u wo uldn ' t know one way or the 

o ther? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Pr i o r t o 20 10, were there other 

proj ec t s in wh i ch you worked wi th 

Peter Zalmayev? 

A. Oh , I wo rked with him on many 

projects . 

Q. And what ' s the nature o f the 

projects that y o u wo rk o n wi th Mr . Zalmayev? 

A. I t ' s mostly media freedom , 

politica l activities in my position politics. 

Q. And when you work with him , d oes 

he ge t paid for his work? 

A. By me? 

Q. Yes . 

A. He has done some works for me , 

and I paid h im f or many works , actua lly. 

Q. Did y o u d o any work with him 

regarding anti - Semitism? 

A. I d o not recall anti - Semi tic 
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i ssues . 

Q. Did you do any work wi th him 

regarding anti - Americanism? 

A. I wo uldn't remember that. I 

wou l dn 't no t reca ll. 

Q. Did y o u d o work with him 

regarding xen ophobi a? 

A. I migh t have , yes . 

Q. What -- what projects do you 

re ca ll relat i ng t o xenophobia that you 

worked with him on? 

A. I t ' s abo ut these genoc i de i ssues 

with -- where just a large number o f 

people -- minori t y was kill ed . 

Q. Do you reca ll a particul ar 

genocida l i ssue that you worked on? 

A. It was in Kyrgyzstan . There was 

a mass i v e massacre o f Uzbek -- mi nor i ty Uzbek 

ci tiz ens there . It was very unfor t una t e . 

Q. Do you r eca ll any other proj ec t s 

that you worked on with Mr . Za lmayev that 

rel a ted t o xenophobia, race -- o r r ac ism? 

A. I migh t have . I do no t reca ll. 

I -- I -- I -- you kn ow, actua l ly I -- I -- I 
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remember tha t -- yes , I d o remember . I -- I 

was no t wor ki ng , but he as k ed me to he l p on 

some o f those , yes . 

Q. Do you recal l any part i cular 

pro j ec t s? 

A. I t ' s abo ut these Roma , S i n t i 

i ssues . 

Q. Can you say t hat aga i n? 

A. Roma , R- 0 - A R- 0 - M- A, Roma , 

Sinti, S- I - N- T- I , I th i nk , S i nti . Roma , 

Sinti . I t ' s thi s -- i t' s gypsies , pre t ty 

much . 

Q. Okay . Have -- have y o u wo rked 

wi t h h i m on any ma t ters re l a t ing to t he 

Liberal Democratic Party o f Russia? 

A. I d o not recall . 

Q. Did you work wi th Mr . Za l mayev 

on any ass i gnmen t s relat i ng t o corrupt i o n i n 

Russ i a , p o l i t ica l c o rrupt ion? 

A. I -- I -- I migh t have , yes . 

Q. Do you reca l l any speci f ic 

assignments o r pro jects? 

A. I work on t his i ssues wi t h 

Mr . Zalmaye v . 
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Q. Any other ones? 

A. I don 't remember o t hers . 

Q. Did you work -- putting aside 

anything that y o u did --

A. And LDPR -- and LDPR as well , 

yes , actua l ly , s i r . 

Q. With regard t o Mr . Egiazaryan? 

A. Mr . Eg i azaryan , yes . 

Q. And putting aside your work with 

Mr . Eg i aza ryan, be f o re you began to wo rk o n 

t hat mat t er , did you wor k wi t h Mr . Zalmayev 

i n any ass i gnmen t s relat i ng t o 

Chechnya - related war crimes , a trocities? 

A. Pr i or t o working 

Q. Yeah . 

A. -- pr i or prio r t o Egiazaryan 

ma tter? 

Q. Righ t. 

A. I d o not recal l. But I know he 

did . 

Q. Did there come a time in 2010 

when you began to wo rk o n a project relating 

t o Ashot Egiazaryan? 

A. I t h i nk i t was in 20 1 1 o r 20 10 . 
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I d o n 't remember . Yes , but I started wo rking 

on the Egiazaryan project , correct . 

Q. Do you recall generally when 

that was? 

A. I think it was around the new 

year . So it mi ght have been , like, end o f 

2010 , early 201 1. But I think it was 201 1 

Q. How did how d i d 

A. -- I do not remember exactly . 

Q. Ho w did that pro ject come about? 

A. It was very o ld client of mine 

asked me to l o ok into this issue . 

Q. Who is that? 

A. His name is Andrey Vavilov . 

Andrey , A-N-0-R-E-Y, Andrey ; l ast name is 

Vavi l o v , V- A- V- I - L- 0 - V, Vavi l o v . 

Q. Who is Andrey Vavilov? 

A. Andrey Vavilov is a, I would say , 

personal friend of mine and also a 

l ong - s tanding client . 

Q. Where does he reside? 

A. He resides in New Yo rk and in 

Monaco , as far as I'm concerned -- or as far 

as I kn ow. And I know he has a residence in 
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Russ i a . 

Q. I s he Russ i an? 

A. He ' s a Russian . 

Q. By who m i s he employed? 

A. He -- his own hedge fund , and I 

think he a lso owns these , like, 

plaintiff cases he ' s an eco n omist by 

training and an accompli shed one , publi shes 

on issues. 

Q. And ho w did he -- did he reach 

ou t to you? 

A. He d id. 

Q. And what d i d he say? 

A. You know, he reached out to me on 

Mr . -- and I actua lly have known Mr . Vavi l ov 

since l a t e '90s, and the is sue o f Eg i aza ryan 

was an impor tant i ssue in -- in our 

interact i o ns . 

Q. In the 1 990s? 

A. Lat e ' 90s . 

Q. And -- and what -- did you have 

any interact i o ns with Mr . Eg i aza ryan in the 

1990s? 

A. Personally , I know that my c lient 
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did . 

Q. What -- what interac t ions did 

Mr . Vavilov have with Mr . Egiazaryan in the 

1990s? 

A. Mr . Egiazaryan was Mr. Vavilov ' s 

adversary . 

Q. And on -- on what issue or 

ma t ter? 

A. On the financial issues , on the 

issue of o il company which I used t o 

represen t . 

Q. What ' s that c ompany? 

A. It ' s called Severnaya Neft , 

S- E- V- E- R- N- A- Y- A, Nef t, N- E- F- T , wh i ch i s 

also called Northern Oil in Russian . So 

Severnaya is northern ; Neft means oil . 

Northern Oil . 

Q. Did y o u wo rk o n matters re l ating 

t o Northern Oil in the 1990s? 

A. Correct. 

Q. What did you do? 

A. I advised them o n their 

communication . 

Q. What does t hat mean? 
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A. I helped them t o tell their 

story . Thi s was very diff i cult time in 

Russia at that time . 

Q. Ho w did y o u shift f rom becoming 

a chemist to a -- an advisor? 

A. I think I just have a t a le nt f or 

media . 

Q. But how did i t come about that 

you started working f or clients to advise 

them o n p o liti ca l or bus iness i ssues? 

A. Well , living in the 

Un ited S t a tes, I observed p o liti ca l life, 

especially in Washington . And I think I 

understand this politica l system quite wel l. 

And news cycle , I understand it better , 

probably , than most Amer icans . 

Q. And how -- how did the i ssue 

relating to No rthern Oil u ltimately res o lve ? 

A. It was resolved p ositively . 

Q. For? 

A. For the company . 

Q. Fo r Mr . Va l- -- Va l-

Valvivo -- Vavilov? 

A. Oh , yes . He d i d really well o n 

New York 
Connecticut 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 

New Jersey 
Pennsylvania 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0 

1 1 

12 

13 

1 4 

15 

1 6 

17 

1 8 

1 9 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

85 

RI NAT R. AKHMETSH I N 

t h i s issue . 

Q. And what was the nature of the 

dispute between Mr . Val - -- Vavilov and 

Mr . Eg i azaryan in the 1990s? 

A. I t hink it was there ' s something 

wh i ch went back years and be f o re the o i l 

c ompany . I know tha t Mr . Eg i azaryan was 

c ons t ant l y harassing Mr . Vavi lov for the 

lawsuits and f rivolous prosecution . 

THE COURT REPORTER : And f or 

what? For --

THE WITNESS : Fo r f r i volous 

prosecut i o n . 

And I I thin k tha t -- and 

Mr . Vavilov believed f or physical 

violence as well . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Do you have any personal 

knowl edge of th ose issues? 

A. I do k now what was told t o me by 

my client , or his perception o f this . 

Q. Where i s Mr . Vavi lov now? 

A. Probab l y in New York or in 

Mo naco . I don ' t kn ow. I haven 't spoken wi th 
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him i n a whi l e . Or maybe i n Mosco w. 

Q. Do you k now where he l i ved in 

New York? 

A. He had several res i dences . 

Q. Do you reca ll t he l oca t ion of 

any o f h i s res i dences? 

A. I -- I think I met wi th him i n 

The and i n t he ho t e l s , 

- -· Q. Is Mr . Vavi lov involved i n the 

Russian Government in any capaci t y? 

A. No . 

Q. And h ow did -- ho w d i d 

Mr . Vavi l ov reach ou t t o you? Phone cal l ? 

E- mai l ? 

A. I was i ntroduced by -- when they 

needed media he l p , a mutua l acquaintance of 

ours intro duced me . 

Q. Who was t he mu t ual acqua i n t ance? 

A. He is an edi t or of the newspaper 

in Moscow 

Q. Who i s that? 

A. ca ll ed -- a newspaper ca ll ed 

Novaya Gazata . Novaya , N- 0 - V- A- Y- A, Gazata , 
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G- A- Z- A- T- A, Gazata , new newspaper . 

His name is Dmi tri Muratov . 

Dmitri Muratov , M- U- R- T- 0 - V [sic ], Muratov . 

It' s a well - known person here in the 

United St a t es as we ll. The New Yorker did a 

story about him as a oppos i t i o n j o urna list. 

Q. And what -- what 

was Mr . Mura t ov ' s i n t erest in t h i s mat t er? 

MR . SPERDUTO: Objection to the 

f o rm; capacity. He ' s no t a mind 

reader . 

THE WITNESS : I d o not kn ow. 

He told me that he kn ow there's these 

p eop l e who -- t here are p eop l e who 

need some help with media and would 

I -- would I meet with them . And I 

sa id yes . 

His newspaper was q uite 

ac tively wri ting abo ut your client a t 

t hat t i me . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. So a t that time , he was 

assisting Mr . Vavilov in -- in findin g 

s omeone t o help him with his public 
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relations 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objection --

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. is that correct? 

MR . SPERDUTO : -- ob j ection to 

f o rm ; assumes f acts ; mi sstates 

THE WITNESS : I --

MR . SPERDUTO : -- the 

testimony . 

THE WITNESS : -- do no t know . 

To be honest , I cannot tell , 

but I know that he -- y o u know , it 

was personal . He knew Mr . Vavilov , 

and I think that he probab l y wanted 

to -- I was very glad that he 

introduced me , because I needed the 

job --

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. He was trying t o help ou t 

Mr . Vavi - -- Vavi lov --
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Q. And he was a lso trying to help 

ou t Mr . Vavi - -- Vavi lov , c orrec t ? 

New York 
Connecticut 

A. I wouldn ' t know . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objection to 

form . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Why else wou l d he introduce y o u 

t o h i m? 

MR . SPERDUT O: Objection to the 

f o rm 

THE WITNESS : I --

MR . SPERDUTO : -- he ' s not a 

mind reader . He -- he doesn ' t kn ow 

what 

MR . COHEN : He spoke to him --

MR . SPERDUTO : -- his mo tives 

were . 

THE WITNESS : I spoke with 

him and he said --

MR . SPERDUTO : -- you can ask 

him what did he tell you . You can ' t 

ask him what he was thinking . 

THE WITNESS: Mr . Muratov is a 

g o od perso na l frie nd o f mine , and he 
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t r i ed t o help me to ge t an account . 

He was aware of t hese d i ff i culties a t 

that f irm, and he tol d me that , you 

know , I shou l d probably g o and help 

t hem ; t hey mi gh t need some he l p . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. What happened next? 

A. We met wi th Mr . Vavilov and h i s 

colleagues . 

Q. When was tha t ? 

A. I rea lly , t ru l y don 't reca ll. It 

was l a t e ' 90s . I t was be f ore 9/ 1 1 . 

Q. How d i d i t come t hat 

Mr . Vavi- -- Vavilov approached you i n l ate 

20 10 regardi ng Ashot Eg i azaryan? 

MR . SPERDUTO : I' m sorr y . Wha t 

was t he verb , Jason? I cou l dn 't hear 

t hat . 

THE WI TNESS : I' m s o rry . 

Pl ease repea t. 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Yes . 

How d i d Mr . Vavilov approach you 

i n late 20 10 regarding Mr . Egia zaryan? 
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A. Mr . Vavi l ov approached me 

regard i ng Mr . Eg i azaryan , I t h i n k, before , I 

think , 2009 . 

Q. 2 009? 

A. Yes . 

Q. Did he appro ach y o u i n perso n , 

by ph o ne o r by 

A. By phone . 

Q. What did he say? 

A. He -- he was very upset because 

he -- t here was an • -• 
Q. And what d i d he want you to d o ? 

A. He as ked me t o come t o Monaco t o 

talk to him about this matter . His -- and he 

and his wi f e are -- I mean , they're 

-- - - -' and I knew his 

wi f e a l so q u i te we l l . We ' re f riendly . 

And t hr o ugh o ut th o se years , I 

he l ped h i m on severa l differen t ma t ters . I 

worked three , f our matters f or h im. 

Q. Those were paid matters ; is that 

correc t ? 

A. Co rrec t, y es. 
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Q. He didn 't 

A. He s i mply asked me to --

MR . SPERDUTO : Wait for a 

question . 

THE WITNESS : Sorry. 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. What happened next? 

A. I came down t o Monaco , and they 

told me the story o f 1111 

Q. And what -- what did they ask 

y o u t o do? 

A. They asked my advice , what sho uld 

t hey do . 

Q. What did you advise them? 

A. I t o ld them they sho uld really 

pursue thi s ma tter for legal channels . 

Q. Did t hey do s o ? 

A. They did so , yes . 

Q. Did you do any more wor k on t hat 

related issue -- on that issue? 

A. By that time, they asked me --

because , you know, Mr . Vavilov had reasons to 

be l ieve t hat Mr . Egiazaryan was behind tha t 
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So he asked me t o loo k 

i n t o Mr . Egiazaryan ' s you kn ow , h i s 

political activities and maybe try to tell 

the story about this perso n i n the West . 

Q. Did you t ake that assignment? 

A. I did . It was not exactly an 

assignment , but I tried t o -- I researched 

thi s Mr . Egiazaryan at that time . 

Q. Was this stil l in 2009? 

A. I think i t was 2009 , yes . I 

searched his activities , his business 

activities . At t hat time, there was a 

there was a ma t ter o f s o me construct i o n wh i ch 

went bad , and I thi n k that ' s the mat t er that 

just real l y didn ' t go that f ar to be honest 

at that time . 

Q. How -- how much time did you 

spend on that projec t in 2009? 

A. Maybe a week . 

Q. What d i d you do with your 

research? 

A. Oh , I shared wi th s o me -- s o me 

people , some j ourna li s t s , tri ed to br i ng 

t heir attentio n t o the s t o ry . 
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Q. Did y o u share i t wi th 

Mr . Vavilov? 

A. I might have , yes -- o f course , I 

did . 

Q. And do -- do you recall wha t 

j o urna lists or o t her individuals you spo ke 

t o abo ut the -- y o ur research results? 

A. I think I spoke t o a few 

reporters, yes . 

Q. Who did y o u speak t o ? 

A. I t a lked t o New York Times . 

There ' s a repo rter wh o cove rs business 

ma t ters there. 

Q. Do you recal l the name? 

A. Andrew Kramer . 

Q. Do you recall if he published 

anything on thi s s to ry? 

A. No t -- not o n t h is sto ry , but 

i t -- but he publi shed some th ing in general 

abou t i t , yes . 

Q. Who else -- what other 

j o urnalists or ind i v i dua l s d i d you speak 

to regarding --

A. There was a --
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Q. your research? 

A. there was a journal i s t who --

was a journalist who was traveling to Russia 

at that time fr om Washington Times , and I 

remember I spoke with him abou t t his mat t er 

as wel l. 

Q. Who was that? 

A. His name is Jason Mo t lagh . 

Q. Did he publish an article at 

that time? 

A. I t hink he did . 

Q. Did y o u speak with anybo dy e l se? 

A. I d o n ' t remember . I might have . 

I spoke -- I spoke to Mr . -- wha t' s his 

name? -- Muratov from Novaya Gazata . 

THE COURT REPORTER : 

Mr . Mura t ov what? 

THE WITNESS : Muratov from 

Novaya Gazata , this newspaper editor 

who i s a friend of mi ne . They mi ght 

have published something . I ' m 

I ' m -- I ' m not aware o f it . 

BY MR. COHEN : 

Q. Other than discussing the issues 
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wi th several journal i s t s , i s there anyth ing 

e ls e that you did with regard t o the project 

that you were summoned to Monaco f or? 

A. No . I don ' t remember . I t ' s not 

some thi ng i n particu l ar . It was a sma ll 

matter . 

Q. Then the mat ter dropped af ter a 

short wh ile 

A. I don ' t think --

Q. i s t hat correct? 

A. it dropped. I thi n k tha t, you 

know , just -- I t h ink Mr . Vavi l o v just kind 

of d i dn 't want to get invo lved in thi s any 

further . 

Q. What was your next invo lvement 

with Mr . Vavilov relating t o Mr . Egiazaryan? 

A. I thi n k some time , like , around 

t he new year , li ke 201 1, early 201 1, he -- I 

thin k I was in Mosco w, and he invited me to 

h is house . And he told me that 

Mr . Egia zaryan i s now residing in the 

Un i ted States , and he was very sho cked by 

thi s f ac t tha t he -- and t ha t he has now 

became a pol itical act ivist and t rying to 
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stay in the United St a te s and get p oliti ca l 

asyl um . And he was real l y , I wou ld say , 

disgusted by this . 

Q. Did he ask you to d o something? 

A. He as ked me what could be done to 

tell the American a u t hor itie s who -- and 

Amer i can publi c , first o f al l, wh o 

Ashot Eg i azaryan is. 

Q. Did you then continue to work on 

this pro ject? 

A. I discussed thi s mat t er wi th 

Mr . Vavi l o v extensively . 

Q. And did he did y o u ever enter 

i n t o an agreemen t with h i m? 

A. Yes , I was engaged by 

Mr . Vavi l o v . 

Q. Wa s there a writ t en engagement 

between y o u and Mr . Vavi l ov? 

A. Rare l y . Since we know each other 

for such a l ong time , i t ' s I d o n 't thi n k 

I've ever had a contract with him or anything 

t o that matter . 

I might have years ago , bu t from 

n ow on , it' s just kind o f he asked me t o do 
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s ome thing and I did i t for him . 

Q. And what were the t e rms by wh ich 

you agreed to work on a project relating to 

Mr . Eg i aza r yan f or him? 

A. What do you mean "terms " ? 

Q. Were you get ti ng paid? 

A. I was pa i d , c o rrect , yes . 

Q. Did you -- at the time when you 

fir st met, did you agree on an amount? 

A. Yo u know , he he had some cash 

around t he house , ac t ua lly . He sa id tha t, 

y o u know , just so on , s o o n and s o o n . I 

I thin k he got some -- I don ' t remember . 

He -- he -- he sa id that , you 

know , just I got a cash f or something , 

s omeone owed him money o r s ome thi ng like 

tha t. I don 't remember. 

But I remember there was money 

in, li ke , hundred- d o llar b ill s bags . And , 

you know, he sa id that , you know, just -- I 

mean , he sa id, I wou l d like to -- you to 

star t thi s publi c awareness project i n the 

United States , and he though t how much -- and 

asked me how much wo uld it cos t. 
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Q. What did you say? 

A. I sa i d tha t, you kn ow , we c ould 

try , you know . I don ' t know how far it could 

g o , but , you know, I think that we could try 

and maybe s tart wi t h $100 , 000 . 

Q. Did he give y o u $100,000 cash 

right 

A. He d i d not have --

Q. then and there? 

A. he did no t have $100 , 000 , but 

I t hink he had something like 70 or some t hing 

like that, 70 or 80. I d o n 't remember . 

Q. Did he g ive y o u $70 , 000 cash at 

t hat t i me? 

A. Cash , correct , yes . 

I d o n 't remember . 70 or 80 , 

some t hing like that. 

Q. I s -- is he a Russian ci tizen --

A. Mr . Vavil ov? 

Q . -- Mr . Vavilov? 

A. I do believe so , yes . 

Q. Did y o u ever register under the 

Foreign Agen t s Regis t ration Ac t wi t h regard 

t o this project? 
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A. I did n o t . 

Q. Why no t ? 

A. Because --

MR . SPERDUTO : Objection to the 

form . 

THE WITNESS : So rry . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Go ahead . 

THE WITNESS : -- because i t' s 

not a FARA matter . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did you have to see k advice of 

c o unse l regardi ng t hat? 

A. I have , yes . 

Q. Who -- from whom? 

A. From Baker & Hostetler . 

May I add s omething? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Wai t. Hold on . 

Yo u can 't disc l o se any communica t ions 

between y o u and y o ur counsel --

THE WITNESS : Under s t ood . 

MR . COHEN : so -- so wait 

f o r a question . And when he asks the 

next question , you can give your 

answer . 
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THE WITNESS : Okay . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Who did you meet with at Baker & 

Ho stetler? Mr . Cymrot? 

A. Correct, yes . 

Can I --

(Wi tness and counsel con f er . ) 

THE WITNESS : Okay . This 

just -- may -- may -- may I add 

s ometh i ng? 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. If you wan t t o take a shor t 

break , tha t' s f ine 

A. No , no , no 

Q. or --

A. j ust -- I want t o j ust 

assert -- you know, I t hink t hat thi s whol e 

FARA mat t er , I -- I' ve seen t h i s a l so i n the 

c ompl a i n t. 

The FARA , i t ' s an old l aw , and 

I -- I think -- FARA is this very o ld law, 

and th i s applies to people who represent 

po l i t ica l partie s of foreign governmen t s , 

wh i ch n o ne o f t h i s was . 

New York 
Connecticut 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 

New Jersey 
Pennsylvania 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

1 6 

17 

1 8 

1 9 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1 02 

RINAT R. AKHMETSH IN 

Mr . Vavi l ov i s a priva te c i t izen, 

and he lives in the United States , res i den t 

o f the United States and resident o f Russia . 

So there ' s absolutely no FARA a ffili at i o n . 

Q. Do you know where Mr . Vavi lov 

g o t t he cash f r o m? 

A. I d o n 't know . You sho uld ask 

h i m. 

Q. Did Mr . Vavilov say whether 

there were o ther individuals o r entities who 

were par ticipa ting with him in initiating 

t h i s pro ject aga inst Ashot Egiazaryan? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objection to the 

form . 

THE WITNESS : Mr . Vavilov hates 

y o ur client ' s guts . You kno w, he 

doesn 't need any organizations . He 

ha te s him f o r --

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did he say 

A. a dozen years . 

Q. d i d he say whether he was 

cooperating wi th anybody e l se? 

A. I d o n 't t h ink s o . 
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Q. He -- did he say -- did he --

A. No , he d i d not . I mean , this was 

an ongoing matter f or over 12 years . II II 

-- II - -II---
MR . COHEN : Move to strike as 

n o nrespo nsive . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Then 

A. Do you mind if I get ano ther 

wa t er? 

THE VIDEOGRAPHER : Mi crophone . 

Whoa , whoa , whoa , whoa . 

MR . COHEN: Don 't -- don ' t --

let ' s just take a few-minute -- let ' s 

t ake a few-minute break . 

THE WITN ESS : Sorry. 

MR . SPERDUTO : Let ' s take --

yeah . 

MR . COHEN: Le t' s t ake a 

few-minute break . You can get a 

water and 

THE WITN ESS : Sorry. 

MR . COHEN : -- we 'l l resume in 
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a fe w minu te s . 

THE WITNESS : Sorry . 

THE VIDEOGRAPHER : The time is 

11:43. We ' re g o i ng o ff the reco rd . 

Thi s i s the end o f Disc Number 1, 

g o ing on to Disc Number 2 . 

(Whereupon , a brief recess was 

taken from 11: 4 3 a . m. t o 12 : 0 1 p . m. ) 

THE VI DEOGRAPHER : The time is 

12 : 0 1 p . m. This is t he beginn i ng o f 

Di s c Number 2 in t he deposition o f 

Rina t Akhmetsh in. 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. We l come ba ck, sir . 

A. Thank you . 

Q. Yo u stated tha t Mr . Vavi l o v gave 

you approx i ma t e l y $ 70 , 000 in cash when you 

met with him in Mo scow; i s that c o rrec t ? 

A. That is c o rrect , s ir. 

Q. And that was some t i me around the 

end o f 20 10 ; is that correct? 

A. Or ear l y 2 011. I d o n 't remember 

exactly . 

Q. Did Mr . Vavi l o v tell you where 
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t he 70 , 000 in cash came f rom? 

A. I don 't remember . He -- he migh t 

have said something to someone , either they 

return it t o him -- I -- I don ' t remember , 

sir . I t ' s not -- I did no t focus on tha t. 

Q. What d i d did y o u t hen return 

back to Wash i ngton? 

A. Yes , I d i d . 

Q. And what did you do next with 

regard to y o ur Ashot Egiazaryan pro j ect? 

A. I star t ed researching 

Mr . Eg i azaryan ' s perso na and h i s -- his 

ac t ivi t ies . 

Q. You had researc hed h i m before 

that ; is that correct? 

A. Yes ; but I never f ocused o n these 

po l i t ica l ma t ters . You know , I never l ooked 

i n t o this -- h i s Duma reco rds or h i s o t her 

t h i ngs , ac t ivi t ies . 

I i n t ervi ewed peop l e . 

Q. What type o f things did you 

research when y o u were researching things 

in -- at the ear l ier period for Mr . Vavi l ov? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Form . 
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THE WITNESS : May I answer? 

I t was about this propert y 

which Mr . Egia zaryan was developing , 

and he kind o f dropped this matter . 

And we were t rying t o find out wha t 

t he ma t ters are ei t her o r . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Does tha t researc h exist 

anywhere? 

A. I just asked pe ople around . No . 

Q. Did you write a memo f or 

Mr . Vavi l ov? 

A. No . He ' s n o t a memo k i nd of guy . 

Q. Who did you i n t ervi ew during 

this earlier period? 

A. I t a lked to repo rters f o r Novaya 

Gaza t a newspaper . 

Q. Do you recal l who y o u spoke 

wi t h? 

A. Mr . Mura t ov . And t here was a 

girl who worked f or him . I don ' t remember 

her name . 

And I t alked t o , I think, some 

peopl e in his o ff ice . I jus t -- I remember 
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having a meeting in his o ffice, people in 

his -- he -- h i s i t ' s an i nvest i gat i ve 

newspaper , very well - respected newspaper . 

Q. Did y o u speak with anybo dy e l se? 

A. Abou t t his mat t er? 

I searched a lot o f d o cuments on 

line, ac t ua lly. I d i d a l ot o f searches . 

Q. Over the In terne t ? 

A. Over the Internet, correct , yes , 

Russian and Engli sh . 

Q. Did you prepare a compilation of 

the materials or any research results from 

that , o r you just read ? 

A. I read mos tly , yes . 

Q. And then you said you came back 

t o -- t o D. C . and then you con - -- continued 

research regarding Mr. Egiazaryan; i s t hat 

c o rrect? 

A. Co rrect, that ' s c o rrect, yes . 

Q. And did you do tha t by yourse lf? 

A. I contacted Mr . Zalmayev . 

Q. I s that Peter Zalmayev? 

A. Pe t er Zalmayev , correct. 

Q. Why did y o u c o ntac t 
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Pe ter Zalmayev? 

A. Because he -- he ' s a very 

thorough researcher himself , and I asked 

f o r his help in being -- doing this matter . 

Q. Did you t e ll him you were going 

t o pay him? 

A. Yes , I d i d . 

Q. Did you t e ll h i m who you were 

being paid by? 

A. I did , yes . 

Q. What did you tell him? 

A. I said that -- and he was aware 

of Andrey Vavi l ov . I think he met him 

before , t oo . I sa i d it was Mr . Vavilov , yes . 

Q. Mr . Zalmayev knew from the 

outset -- outset that Mr . Vavi l ov was 

financing thi s assignment ; is that correct? 

A. That is c o rrect, y es. 

Q. Did y o u tell Mr . Zalmayev what 

his c ompensa tion wou l d be for work on the 

project? 

A. Yo u know , I thought Mr . Zalmayev 

could do this project on his own . So I 

actually was not really planning o n d o ing it 
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myself . So I t o ld him it will be around 

$ 100 , 000 . 

Q. That he would get paid? 

A. He will get paid for the who le 

projec t . 

Q. Is that c ompensation f or him o r 

is that payment t o include expenses? 

A. Of course , expenses , yes , t h i s 

whole thing . 

Q. He would get paid 100 , 000 plus 

expenses? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objection . 

THE WITNESS : I think that , y o u 

know , just -- I arranged for transfer 

this cash -- I arranged for transfer 

of that cash to Mr . Zalmayev ' s 

accoun t . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Yo u arranged for a transfer of 

$70 , 000? 

A. I don ' t remember . I might have 

taken cash mysel f, because I -- f o r my 

expenses as well --

Q. Okay . 
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A. -- fr om thi s amo un t. I d o not 

remember an exac t amount 

Q. Okay . 

A. -- but it was be l o w 100 . 

Q. Did you -- was there anybody 

else wh o you bro ught o n t o work on the 

projec t at tha t time? 

A. Just Mr . Za l mayev at that time , 

yes . 

Q. What was your wha t was y o ur 

unders t anding o f t he goa l o f t he pro j ec t a t 

t hat time? 

A. I thin k that I ' m not -- since I 

had my independent kn owl edge of thi s mat t er , 

I think that i ssue was educat i on , public 

educatio n , o f Mr . Eg i aza r yan ' s track record . 

It' s awareness campaign. 

The projec t -- the pro ject was 

i s to c o nduc t an awareness campa i gn abou t 

Mr . Eg i azaryan . 

Q. Why did you decide to have 

Mr . Za l mayev pro secu t e th i s campa ign rather 

than do it yourse l f? 

A. Because I d o not kn ow -- I ' m 
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n o t a -- Mr . Zalmayev i s a very 

we l l - a c compl i shed human righ t s defender . He 

worked f or very important human rights 

organization . Mr . Zalmayev wo rked aga i nst 

an t i - Semitism, xenophobia , and he had -- he 

knew pe ople . I didn ' t . 

Q. What human r i ghts organiza t ions 

are you referr i ng t o tha t Mr . Za l mayev 

worked -- worked f or? 

A. Zalmayev worked f o r , I think , six 

or seven years f or I nterna t iona l League o f 

Human Righ t s , I LHR . I t' s t he oldest U. S . 

human righ t s o rgan i zat i o n . Eleano r Roosevel t 

es t abl i shed i t . 

Q. Do you know 

Kather i ne Fitzpatr i ck? 

A. I do know , yes . 

Q. And -- and wh o is she? 

A. She was Mr . Za l mayev ' s boss . 

Q. Do you respe c t her as a human 

rights advocate? 

A. I th i nk she i s a very -- I think 

she is -- I' m no t sharing a ll o f her 

opi n i o ns , bu t I respec t her as a perso n . Bu t 
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I may disagree wi th s ome o f her opi n i o ns . 

Bu t she ' s a wonderfu l person and very 

dedicated person . 

MR . COHEN : I ' m g o i ng t o ask 

t he cour t reporter to mark as 

Exhibi t 1 62 a c opy o f a d o cument wi th 

Ba t es Number PZ33 17 , a December 2 1, 

20 10 e - mai l from Ri nat Ak hme t shin t o 

Peter Za l mayev . 

There ' s one f o r Jim . 

MR . SPERDUTO: 162? 

MR . COHEN : Yes . 

(Whereupon , an e - ma i l s t r i ng 

was marked , f or identi f ication 

purposes , as Depos i t i o n Exhibit 

Number 1 62 . ) 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen t h i s documen t 

be f ore? 

A. I may --

MR . SPERDUTO: Can you give me 

a minu t e to review i t, p l ease? 
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(Whereupon , c o unse l reviews the 

d o cument . ) 

MR . SPERDUT O: Okay . Thanks . 

THE WITNESS: Just o ne second . 

Ye s , s ir. 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Okay . Have y o u seen th i s 

d o cument b e fore ? 

A. I it appears o f my e - mail to 

Mr . Za l mayev . 

Q. And loo ki ng a t t he e - ma il tha t 

begins o n t he t o p t hree q uarters o f t he 

page , and then there ' s some info rmati o n 

be l ow that 

A. Um- hum . 

Q. -- do y o u see that? 

A. Ye s , I do see tha t. 

Q. Who dra ft ed t hat? 

A. Ash o t Gevo rkovich Eg i a zaryan , 

c orrect? 

Q. Yes . 

A. Yes , I see tha t. 

Q. And who draft who drafted 

t h is d is cuss i o n regarding Ash o t Egiazaryan? 
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A. It might have been o ne o f my 

summar i es . 

THE COURT REPORTER : Sorry? 

Summaries? 

THE WITN ESS : I t might have 

been o ne o f my summaries . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. One of your summar i es? 

A. Correct , yes . 

Q. Do you recall when this summary 

was prepared? 

A. Probabl y in 2009 when I was 

wo rking on this previ o us matter . 

Q. And i n 2009 , your goal was to 

find out anything negative you could f ind 

ou t about Mr . Eg i aza ryan; i s that c o rrect? 

A. It was an oppos ition research , 

I'l l describe i t tha t way . 

Q. Okay . Wel l, you were l ook ing 

for i nformat i on t hat wou l d paint 

Mr . Egiazaryan in a bad light ; is that 

c o rrect? 

A. I would no t pu t it that way , s ir. 

Q. How wo uld y o u pu t i t? 
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A. I wo uld l ike to d o ful l du t ies o f 

Mr . Eg i azaryan ' s pol i t i cal and o t her 

activities . 

Q. Do you bel i eve that th i s is a --

is this an a t tempt a t a neutral summary of 

Mr . Eg i azaryan ' s l ife? 

A. I wo uld say yes . Yo u know , I 

just I I need t o revi ew t h i s , sir . I 

haven ' t seen it in a long time , yes . 

Q. And in 

A. Bu t I wou l d -- I would -- I wou l d 

say i t ' s jus t probabl y very fa i r descr i p t ion 

of h i s perso na . 

Q. I f you had seen some t h i ng pr i or 

to this time that described him as 

anti - Semi tic , y o u wo uld have included that 

in here ; is t hat correct? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objec t ion to t he 

f o rm ; hypo t het i cal . 

THE WITNESS : I -- a t -- a t 

that time , I hadn ' t -- you know , it 

crossed my mi nd that this LDPR , which 

is deplorabl e , tha t t ru l y disgus t ing 

organiza t ion -- bu t at tha t t ime --
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Just an -- answer my quest i on , 

p lease , if you had seen something 

A. I wo uld have included thi s . 

Q. if you had seen -- if you had 

seen something that -- that charac terized 

Mr . Egiazaryan o r y o u believed characterized 

him as ant i-Amer i can , you would have 

included that in here 

MR . SPERDUTO : Same 

ob j ec tion 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. is that correct? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Same object i on . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. That ' s a yes , right? 

A. If I -- if I wou ld have -- if I 

wo uld had info rmati o n which reflected that, I 

might have incl uded it. 

Q. I f you had information tha t 

reflected that Mr . Egiazaryan was xenophobic 

or had taken xenophobic actions or made 

xenophobic s t a t emen t s , you wou ld have 

included that ; is that correct? 
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MR . SPERDUTO : Same object i o n . 

THE WITNESS : I t ' s 

argumentative . But I -- i f I wou l d 

have established something at that 

t ime , I wou l d have probabl y inc l uded 

t hat as we l l --

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. As -- as --

A. because I , persona l ly , f ee l 

stro ngly abo ut tho se things . 

Q. I f you had estab l ished a t t hat 

t ime tha t Mr . Eg i azaryan had commi t ted war 

cr i mes , y o u wo uld have inc l uded t hat ; i s 

t hat corre c t? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Same objection . 

THE WITNESS : I ' m no t sure 

abou t war crimes , sir --

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Okay . 

A. -- he was -- and I -- I' m no t 

aware o f Mr . Egiazaryan ' s military service 

ever . 

Q. If you had estab l ished a t t hat 

t ime tha t Mr . Eg i azaryan had embezzled 
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Government funds , y o u wo uld have inc l uded 

t hat ; i s tha t c orrec t ? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Same objection . 

THE WITNESS : Sir , just 

what - if , you know , I jus t -- if I 

wo uld have f ound something which was 

re l evant to his case , I wo uld have 

defini t e l y inc l uded i t . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. At the time that you prepared 

t his documen t t hat ' s Exhibit -- marked as 

Exhibi t 1 -- Number 1 62 , d i d you have any 

i nf o rmat i o n or evidence t hat Mr . Egiazaryan 

was an t i - Semi t i c? 

A. I do not recall that . 

Q. And at that time that y o u 

prepared thi s document tha t' s been marked as 

Exhibi t 1 62 , d i d you have any evi dence o r 

i n f o rmat i o n t hat Mr . Egiazaryan had t aken 

an t i - Ameri c an ac t ions or made an t i - Ameri c an 

statements? 

A. I was no t aware o f that . 

Q. At the time you prepared thi s 

d o cument tha t' s been marked as Exhibi t 16 2 , 
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did y o u have any informa t ion o r evi dence 

sugges t ing tha t Mr . Eg i azaryan had made 

xenophobic statements or taken xenophobic 

actions? 

A. I was no t aware of such 

statemen t s 

Q . At the --

A. or ac t ions . 

Q. at the time you prepared this 

d o cument , Number 162 , had y o u -- d i d you 

have any informa t ion or evi dence in your 

p o ssession tha t Mr . Eg i azaryan had commi t ted 

war cr i mes? 

A. I was no t aware of those . 

Q. At the time you made -- prepared 

the summary that ' s conta i ned in Exhibit 16 2 , 

did you have any informa t ion or evi dence 

t hat Mr . Egiazaryan had stolen Chechnya war 

re l ief funds? 

A. I t h i n k t here ' s some t h i ng here if 

you read it carefully, but there was a 

paragraph here abo ut h i s involvement in 

Chechnya mat t ers . 

Q. And t h i s -- t h i s memo wo uld 
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c o ntain whatever information you col lected 

on that i nformat i on ; is that correct ? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objection to the 

f o rm . 

THE WITNESS: I wou l dn ' t --

sir , this memo is re fle c ti ng wha t I 

knew a t that t i me 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. This memo --

A. reflects 

Q. reflects what you knew at 

t hat time? 

A. In summaries , yes . 

Q. Yes , thank you . 

And cal li ng your attention to the 

t o p o f the page i n your e - ma il to 

Mr . Za l mayev , you say you need a one - pager 

pi t ch f o r t he projec t ? 

A. Yes . 

Q. We l l , what d i d -- what are you 

referring to by that? 

A. I wanted to wr i te a summary f o r 

Mr . Vavi lov and for -- f or -- relating to our 

discussion . 
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Q. And -- and I see you have put in 

al l c aps tha t -- tha t you want this re l a t ing 

to OLD Chechen structures and OLD Russian 

Government . 

Why did you emphasize t he OLD 

g overnments? 

A. I also emphasize NGOs . That just 

migh t have been t h i ngs tha t --

THE COURT REPORTER : I ' m sorry? 

THE WITNESS : I emphasized 

NGOs . I also pu t in caps . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Those are initia l s . But then , 

l a t er , you emphasize o l d . 

Why did you emphasize old? 

A. I d o n ' t think it was an emphasis , 

sir . 

Q. I s there any reas o n why y o u 

didn ' t want Mr . Za l mayev to investigate 

i ssues relat i ng t o the then c urren t Russ i an 

Government? 

A. I have no reasons t o believe so . 

I want him to do the --

Q. Can y o u ex -
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A. -- as f u l l a job as p ossibl e . 

Q. Can you explain why you as k ed 

him to mention that it ' s an OLD Chechen 

structure and an OLD Russian Government? 

A. Because I t hink , if -- if I 

remember correct l y , Mr . Eg i azaryan was not 

i nvo l ved in t h i s mat t er af t er new g overnment 

c ame to power , because Mr . Berezovs ky was ou t 

by that time . 

And I th i nk that Mr . Egiazaryan 

was invo l ved wi th Mr . Berezovsky in t hese 

ma t ters . So , t here f ore , I jus t didn ' t wan t 

him t o k i nd of loo k i n t o something which was 

no t re l evant . 

It ' s a very broad area . It was a 

brutal war . 

Q. To wha t period of t ime were you 

asking Mr . Zalmayev t o inve s t iga t e? 

A. I wo uld l ike to br i ng y o ur 

at t ent i on t o Page Number 4 i n t h i s documen t, 

1 62 . And there ' s a paragraph cal l ed AY ' s 

I nvo l vement i n Chechen Matters , and I th i nk 

t hat -- you know , t hat there ' s the mat t er o f 

Berezovsky . 
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And I t h i nk t hat was the -- by 

t he t ime Mr . Berezovs ky was out, new 

government was in . And I had reasons to 

believe that Mr . Egiazaryan was i n contact 

wi t h , at tha t t ime , t he Ye l tsin Government in 

t hese ma t ters . 

And af t er t hese peopl e left, 

t here was some o t her people . And 

Mr . Egia zaryan -- I was not -- I did not 

believe Mr . Eg i azaryan was involved any 

further in Chechen mat t ers after 

Q. Aft er what y e ar 

A. -- he went 

Q. Af t er what year period? After 

what year? 

A. I -- I don ' t know. I just --

j ust know it was when Berezovsky was kicked 

ou t f rom the country . So -- a f ter Yel t s i n 

was dismi ssed , so just when t he new 

government came i n . 

Q. What year was that? 

A. I d o n ' t remember when -- when did 

Ye l tsin re t ire , l ike in 2000 , I t hink? I 

I -- I ' m not -- I d o n 't remember when -- wha t 
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2 I mean is that by the time new government 

3 came in, these mat t ers of -- Che chen mat t ers 

4 were kind o f brought into some order . 

5 I t was be f o re t hat , a l o t o f 

6 peop l e I i n t ervi ew be li eved it was j us t a 

7 kind o f t rough where the pe ople un lea shed 

8 themse l ves . 

9 Q. And l ater , you s tat e that 

1 0 eventually , h i s act i ons -- re fe rr ing to 

11 Mr . Eg i aza r yan -- l ead to kidnappings , 

12 torture , s t ea li ng o f money a lloca t ed t o he l p 

13 re f ugees , and, eventually, became a reason 

14 why the seco nd war s t arted . 

15 Do you see that? 

1 6 A. Um- hum . Yes , I see it . 

17 Q. And was there anyth ing e l se i n 

1 8 thi s pr i or memo tha t wou ld l ead anyone t o 

1 9 believe t hat Mr . Egia za ryan ' s actions led t o 

20 k i dnappings? 

2 1 A. His ac tions -- I think that 

22 embezzling money in Chechnya what l ed to the 

23 Se cond Chechen War . It' s al l the Government 

24 i n Rus s i a execu t ed t hese restructuring so 

25 badly t hat the second war star ted. So that 
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was 

Q. When d i d the second war start ? 

A. I think around the time when the 

new g overnment came in . 

Q. What year was t hat? 

A. So rry , I do n o t remember . 

Q. And what at the time y o u 

wrote t h i s memo i n December of 20 10 , wha t 

evidence did you have that Mr . Egiazaryan 

had been involved in embezzlement of funds? 

A. I t was widely reported in Russian 

media t hat this restructur i ng o f Chechnya l ed 

t o the second war -- the Second Chechen War . 

And since Mr . Eg i azaryan was the per- --

person entire -- or the person in charge of 

this in s ome ways on the legislative side 

overseeing these funds and if it hasn 't been 

executed properly , tha t means t hat I kn ow 

that was his role and wo uld -- I would like 

Mr . Za l mayev to researc h tha t, h i s role . 

I -- I do not state that 

Mr . Egiazaryan started world war -- Seco nd 

Chechen War , but some ac t ions of tha t 

c o mmi ttee , which were , to th i s day , actual l y , 
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I -- I think not very we l l - kn own . 

I' ve -- I -- I do have persona l 

belief that if , a fter Che - First Chechen 

War ended and when this f irst peace was 

achieved , if Russian Governmen t wou ld have 

d o ne better j o b in rebuilding the c o un try and 

d o ing -- helping pe ople , I -- I think the 

second war wou l d never have happened 

Q. And is it correct --

A. that ' s my perso nal belief . 

Q. tha t at the time t his e - mail 

was dra ft ed, you had no evidence in y o ur 

p ossession that Mr . Egiazaryan perso nally 

embezz l ed funds directed for --

MR . SPERDUT O: Objection 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. the Chechen War? 

MR . SPERDUTO : -- objectio n 

THE WITNESS : Sir , I have never 

stated tha t --

MR . SPERDUT O: -- to the f orm; 

misstates the witness ' testimo ny . 

THE WITN ESS : I never stated 

that he embezzled personally , but I 
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know tha t mo ney were embezzled 

be c ause no t h i ng was rebu i l t i n 

Chechnya . 

So 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Am I --

A. and money was a l located by t he 

Russ i an Government . 

Q. Am I correct that to this day , 

y o u ' ve never stated -- str i ke that . 

To this day , you have no evidence 

t hat Mr . Egiazaryan personal l y embezzled 

Chechen War f unds? 

A. I -- I' m not in a posi t ion to 

know those f acts , sir . 

Q. Yo u d o n ' t know o ne way o r 

another? 

A. I d o not kn ow one way or an o t her . 

Q. Do you have any evi dence today , 

one way or anot her , whether Mr . Eg i azaryan 

was personally involved in torture? 

A. I d o not perso nally know , sir . 

Q. Do you have any evi dence , one 

way or an o t her , whether Mr . Eg i azaryan was 
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personally involved in kidnappings? 

A. I have no i dea , sir . 

Q. Do you have any evidence today , 

one way o r ano ther , whether Mr . Egiazaryan 

was involved in s tealing of money allocated 

t o help refugees? 

A. He might have . I have no idea , 

sir . 

Q. You don ' t know one way or the 

othe r? 

A. I do not know. 

Q. Yo u have no idea whether he did? 

A. Sir , I do no t know . I have 

just s i mply cannot an swe r th i s quest i on 

because I do not know . 

Q. And d o you have any evidence 

today that Mr. Egiazaryan ' s personal actions 

are a reason why the Second Chechen War 

started? 

A. I d o bel i eve that he had rol e 

in in a failure of first disagreement in 

Chechnya as a public servant . 

This i s my personal belief . 

Q. Do you -- d o you have any 
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evidence tha t Mr . Egiazaryan c ommitted 

crimina l acts as a public servants 

servant with regard to his role on on a 

Duma oversight committee relating t o 

Chechnya? 

A. I d o not kn ow, s i r . 

Q. Did y o u , a t -- a t -- dur ing the 

c ourse of your work on var i ous projects 

relating to Mr . Ashot Egia zaryan , seek to 

obt a i n evidence regarding t hose i ssues 

raised in the f irs t paragraph o f your e - mail 

dated December 2 1s t, a t 7 : 48 a . m. ? 

A. I did ask Mr . Za l mayev to l ook 

i nto these is sues . And thi s e - ma il i s an 

instruction to research these matters . 

Q. Did -- d i d Mr . Zalmayev f ind 

anyt h ing t ha t demonstrated t ha t 

Mr . Zalmayev' s [sic ] act i o ns led to 

kidnappings , tor t ure , steali ng o f mo ney 

a llo cated t o help refugees , and , eventua lly , 

became a reason why the second war started? 

A. I --

MR . SPERDUTO : Compound . 

THE WITNESS : -- don ' t think 
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Mr . Za l mayev was ever invo l ved in 

these ma tte rs . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did Mr . Zalmayev fi nd anything 

to suppor t t he propos ition t ha t you were 

asking h i m to research in t he fi rs t 

paragraph of Exh i b i t 262 [sic ]? 

A. I' m not sure , sir . 

Q. If he had f ound such a th ing , he 

wo uld have told y o u ; i s t hat c o rrect? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Ob j ection t o 

f o rm ; hypo t het i cal ; ass umes f acts . 

THE WITNESS : I -- I do know 

that he c onduc t ed very thorough study 

o f these matters , because he , 

himsel f, was involved i n Chechen 

refugee matters . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. And wi th regard t o his research 

re l ating to the Eg i azaryan project , he 

reported to you the results o f his research ; 

i s tha t c o rrect? 

A. He was no t reporting t o me 

regu l arly , but he discussed with me matters, 
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of course . 

Q. He communi c a t ed wi t h you 

regular l y , didn ' t he? 

A. Co rrect , yes . 

Q. And -- and and he shared wi t h 

y o u numero us memos and e - mai l s con t a i n i ng 

i n f o rmat i o n t hat he c o l lec t ed ; is t hat 

c orrec t ? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objection to the 

f o rm . 

THE WITN ESS : Mr . Za l mayev and 

I discussed his wo rk o n a regu l ar 

basis . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. You e - mai l ed back and f orth on a 

regu l ar basis , too , c o rrec t ? 

A. I wou l d say so , yes . 

Q. To the exten t t hat Mr . Zalmayev 

f o und s o me t h i ng of interes t regardi ng 

Mr . Eg i azaryan , you wou l d have expec t ed h i m 

to report that to you ; i s that correct? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Ob j ection to t he 

form ; hypot he ti ca l; capacity ; assumes 

f acts n o t i n evidence . 
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Yo u can answer that if you 

unders t and it. 

THE WITNESS : Could you please 

rephrase it? 

I'm -- just, you know -- you 

know , if -- y o u know , just because I 

am a bit uncomf ortable with this "if" 

parts. 

If we are talking about f acts 

in documents , l e t's t a lk about facts 

in documen t s , s ir. 

Co uld y o u rephrase it, please? 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. You t est ifi ed t hat Mr . Zalmayev 

never 

MR . SPERDUTO : No . By the 

way 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. repo rted t o you --

MR . SPERDUTO : -- can -- Ja son , 

can I ask 

MR . COHEN: No , no , no . Let me 

finish . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Al l right . 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. tha t Mr . Za l mayev never 

reported to you that he found evidence 

supporting the prop o sition that y o u asked 

him t o research , tha t t he -- his actions 

that Mr . Egiazaryan ' s actions l ed t o 

kidnappings , torture , stealing o f mo ney 

al l oca t ed t o help refugees , and , eventua l ly , 

became a reason why the second war started? 

MR . SPERDUTO : All right . I ' m 

going t o objec t t o the form of tha t . 

There ' s two or three evident i ary 

problems with the question as 

formulated . 

Number 1 , it ' s an improper 

hypo thetical ; Number 2 , it ' s based o n 

founda t ion not in evidence , because 

i t ' s based o n whatever research 

Mr . Zalmayev may have d o ne ; Number 3 , 

i t ' s based on asking this wi t ness 

what Mr . Zalmayev would have done had 

he found something that hasn ' t been 

es t ablished --

MR . COHEN : I th i nk y o u --
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MR . SPERDUTO : -- a 

founda tion --

MR . COHEN : -- misheard the 

question . 

MR . SPERDUTO : -- for. 

So there ' s three o r f o ur 

di fferent evidentiary object i o ns . We 

wi ll asser t al l of them . 

You can answer that question 

if if -- if you think you can do 

so tru t hfully. 

THE WITNESS : I know that 

Mr . Zalmayev conducted very thorough 

research , and I know he was very 

careful in stating something wh ich 

I -- I don ' t think he wo uld ever make 

s tatemen t which were not suppor ted by 

f acts . 

So I -- I'm n o t aware of his 

research in grea t de t a il s , but I kn ow 

that this Chechen matter has not been 

discussed that extensive ly, t o my 

knowl edge . 

MR . COHEN : I' m g o ing t o ask 
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t he c o ur t reporter to mark as 

Exhibi t 267 3 a copy of an e - ma i l 

MR . SPERDUTO : I ' m sorry . 

What ' s the e x hibi t number? 

MR . COHEN: 2 263 . 

THE WITNESS : 1-

THE COURT REPORTER : 1 63 . 

MR . COHEN: -- 1 63 a copy of an 

e - mail dated December 21st , bearing 

Bates Number 2673 . 

(Whereupo n , an e - ma i l s t r i ng 

was marked , f o r i den t i f ica t ion 

purposes , as Depos i t i on Exhibi t 

Number 163 . ) 

THE WITNESS : Thank you so 

much . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen t h i s documen t 

be f ore? 

New York 
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A. Yes , I have , yes . 

Q. Just ca ll ing your at t ention t o 

t he memo tha t begins a t t he e - ma i l f r om 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 

New Jersey 
Pennsylvania 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0 

1 1 

12 

13 

1 4 

15 

1 6 

17 

1 8 

1 9 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

136 

RI NAT R. AKHMETSH I N 

6 : 12 p . m., which s t arts wi t h St rategy . 

Do you see tha t ? 

A. Yes , I do see it , yes . 

Q. Who -- who prepared that 

document? 

A. I t mi ght have been Mr . Zalmayev . 

Q. Do you kn ow f o r sure wh o 

prepared tha t doc ument? 

A. I do not know f or sure , sir . 

Q. It ' s -- i t ' s calling your 

at t ention t o The Message por t ion . 

Do you see tha t --

A. Um- hum . 

Q. -- towards the bot t om of the 

page? 

A. Yes , I do see i t . 

Q. I t says , AY shou l d be barred 

en t ry t o the Uni t ed States? 

A. Co rrect, yes . 

Q. Does "AY" refer t o 

Ashot Egia zaryan? 

A. I wo uld believe s o . 

THE VI DEOGRAPHER : I' m sorry . 

Co uld I ask t he wi t ness t o --
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THE WITNESS : I ' m s o rry . 

THE VI DEOGRAPHER : Than k you . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Was that the -- the g oal o f the 

campaign against Ashot Egiazaryan , to have 

him barred in t he Un i ted S t a t es? 

A. That is c o rrect, yes . 

Q. Was t hat -- who -- who d i rec t ed 

that that be the goal? 

A. Mr . Vavil o v . 

Q. What did he say wi t h regard t o 

what he wanted to see happen to 

Ash o t Eg i azaryan? 

A. He said t hat he l ives i n the 

United States now , and he doesn ' t want 

th i s -- I ' m s o rry -- shit t o be around the 

United St a t es . 

Q. And why i s tha t ? 

A. I wo uldn ' t kn ow. 

Q. Be c ause he was angry a t 

Mr . Egia zaryan ; is that correct? 

A. As I mentioned to y o u , they were 

adversaries for so many years , and 

Mr . Vavi l o v su ffered so much harassmen t f rom 
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Mr . Eg i azaryan in t he past 10 , 12 years . 

I t was a case of Sc hadenfreude on 

Mr . Vavilov 

THE COURT REPORTER : I ' m sorry? 

Just repea t t hat l as t part . 

THE WITNESS : I t was a case o f 

Schadenfreude , S- H-

S- C- H- A- 0 - E-N-F- R- E-U- D- E, 

Schaden f reude . It ' s a German word --

MR . LUPKIN : It ' s no t a Russ i an 

word . 

THE WITNESS : I t ' s a German 

wo rd . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Is it f air to say that 

Mr . Vavil ov had a vendetta aga i nst 

Mr . Egiazaryan? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objec t ion to t he 

f o rm . 

THE WITNESS : I wouldn ' t k now , 

sir . He f e l t strongly about 

Mr . Eg i azaryan ' s presence i n the 

United St a t es . 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. And he wan t ed you t o ta ke 

actions that would result in Mr . Egiazaryan 

being f o rced to leave the United States ; is 

t hat correct? 

A. He d i d not wan t Mr . Eg i azaryan in 

t he Un i ted St a t es . 

Q. And he -- did he d i rec t you t o 

take actions to assist achieving that goal? 

A. He asked me t o educate American 

publ ic about Mr . Egiazaryan ' s t rue record . 

Q. Fo r t he purpose o f ensur i ng or 

t rying to have Mr . Egiazaryan removed f rom 

t he Un i ted St a t es ; is t hat corre c t? 

A. I would not put it in those 

wo rds , sir . 

Q. I t says for -- for -- AY shou l d 

be barred en t ry t o the Uni t ed States . 

A. I -- Mr . Vavi lov d i d not wan t 

Mr . Eg i azaryan in t he Un i ted St a t es . 

Q. What -- was one o f the purposes 

f o r which y o u were engaging in what y o u call 

an educa t ion effor t t o try to have 

Mr . Eg i azaryan removed f r o m t he 
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United St a te s? 

A. We l ook ed i nto that . 

Q. Would you characteri z e that as a 

g oal o f t he Asho t Egiazaryan pro ject tha t 

you were work i ng on? 

A. I wo uld n o t describe the goa l o f 

the projec t as remove Mr . Egiazaryan . 

Q. How wou ld you describe the goa l 

o f the project? 

A. I t ' s publi c awareness campa ign . 

Q. Do you know wha t bus i ness 

inte rests Mr . Vavi l o v has n ow in -- in 

Russ i a? 

A. I' m not aware of any , ac tua lly . 

Q. What does he do now? 

A. He ' s a hedge fu nd manager . 

Q. What ' s t he name o f t he hedge 

f und? 

A. I t ' s IFS -- I -- I wou l d d ire c t 

you t o The New York Times article . Business 

section o f The New York Times has publi shed 

very e x tens ive p i ece abo ut h i m and h i s hedge 

fund . 

Q. I s it a Russ i an - based hedge 
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f und? 

A. No ; U.S.-ba sed hedge fund -- or 

it was . I think that after this crisis , they 

might have withdrew f rom the United States , 

so the bes t place to do financial matters. 

Q. Have you ever known Mr . Vavil o v 

t o be invo lved in the Russian Government in 

any capacity? 

A. He was Deputy Finance Minister o f 

Russia . 

Q. Under whose administration? 

A. Under Yeltsin Administration . 

Q. Has he had any o ther Government 

positions , to your kn owl edge? 

A. I think he was a member o f 

Russian Senate f or a sho rt while . 

Q. And when was he a member of the 

Russian Senate? 

A. I d o n 't remember , sir . Just -- I 

think ear l y 2000s , if I' m not mistaken . 

Q. Do you know if he currently 

operates in any capaci ty f or the Russian 

Governmen t? 

A. No , he is n o t wo rking f o r Russian 
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Government in any capacity, as far as I know . 

New York 
Connecticut 

Ex c use me . Can I t a lk wi th my 

counsel? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Can we take a 

shor t break? 

MR . COHEN : Sure . 

MR . LUPKIN : Sure . 

THE VI DEOGRAPHER : The t i me i s 

12 : 43 . We ' re going o f f the record . 

(Whereupo n , at 12 : 43 p . m., a 

luncheon recess was t aken . ) 
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A F T E R N 0 0 N S E S S I 0 N 

( 1: 50 p . m. ) 

RINAT R. AKHMETSHIN 

was called for con t inued examina t ion and , 

a f ter having been previ o us l y duly sworn , was 

New York 
Connecticut 

examined and testified further as f ollows : 

THE VIDEOGRAPHER : The time is 

1 : 50 p . m. We are back o n the re cord . 

EXAMINATION (CONT I NUED) 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Welcome back , sir . 

A. Thanks . 

Q. Do you know who Steve LeVine i s , 

the j o urna l ist? 

A. He ' s a journalist , yes , I d o kn ow 

him . 

Q. Have you spoken with him from 

time to time? 

A. 

Q. 

I do know him well . 

Has he interviewed you f or 
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ar ti cles o r b ooks? 

A. No t me d i rectly , but , you k now , 

we -- we ta l k about matters f requently . 

Q. Did y o u ever read his b ook , The 

Oil and the Gl ory? 

A. I' ve seen t he b ook , yes . 

Q. And y o u know tha t i t makes 

reference t o you in the book? 

A. It does , very fl atter ing one . 

Q. Al l right . I t a l so -- do y o u 

recall t ha t it a l so refers t o you as a 

f o rmer Soviet Army counterintelligence 

of fi cer? 

A. I t does . 

Q. Okay . And -- and it re fe rs to 

y o u as a l obbyi s t; i s t hat c o rre ct? 

A. I was a lobbyi s t a t s ome point, 

yes . 

Q. Okay . And is that a cor - -- is 

the stateme nt that you are a former Sovi e t 

Army c o unterintelligence o ffice r a c orrect 

statement ? 

A. It' s no t a exactly correct 

statemen t. 
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Q. Do you kn ow what the term 

" osobist" means? 

A. Osobist? Osoby Otdel . Osobist , 

yes . I t ' s called Special Service . 

Q. And i s -- i s t ha t -- were you an 

osobist in the Soviet Army? 

A. Our servi ce had -- was -- has 

been l oose l y as soc i ated with these se rvices . 

Q. Can you describe f or us what you 

understand the term " o s o b i st " t o mean? 

A. It' s called the special 

department , Osoby Otde l, special depar tment. 

Q. And i t -- d o es it -- it have --

play a rol e i n counter i nte lli gen c e? 

A. Some parts o f it does -- do , yes . 

Q. Okay . I s the c haracterization 

o f -- o f you as a counterintelligence 

o ff icer accura te ? 

A. I t ' s not accurate . 

Q. Did you t e ll h i m that you were a 

counter in te lligence o ffi cer? 

A. I t o l d him I was c ommandant , th i s 

person . 

Q. And t he b o ok a lso discusses y o ur 
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wo rk as a l obbyist for Kazhege l d in 

A. Kazhegeldin . 

Q. -- Kazhegeldin ; is that correct? 

A. I have represented 

Mr . Kazhegeldin. 

Q. And we d is cussed earlier that 

y o u ' re aware that there were warrants f o r 

his arrest? 

A. Yes, Kazhegeldin , correct . 

Q. And y o u're aware a l so o f Red 

Notices? 

A. I'm aware o f this -- I was . 

Q. And h ow did y o u beco me aware o f 

the Red No tice? 

A. Because he was arrested , and I 

help him to get ou t o f priso n twice. 

Q. Have you seen the INTERPOL Red 

No ti ce f or Mr . Kazhegeldin? 

A. I might have loo ked it up online 

sometime ago -- I mean , 10 years ago . 

Q. Am I correct that the warrants 

f o r his arrest and the Red Notice did no t 

give you -- prevent from you representing 

him ; is that correct? 
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A. That is c o rrect, yes . 

Q. And -- and you ' ve wor ked wi th 

Peter Za l mayev f or many years ; is that 

c o rrect? 

A. I did no t work wi th him for 

many y e ars , bu t I have kn own him f or 

many years . 

Q. Okay . You -- you ' ve been 

empl oying him in various capacities f or a 

number o f years? 

A. For a few years a ft er he 

gradua t ed f rom the univers i ty , graduate 

school . 

Q. When d i d you f i rst beg i n to use 

him to assist you in projects or assignments 

that you had? 

A. I t hink , when he was in gradua t e 

school , he was -- he was a t t he Co l umbi a 

gradua t e schoo l and he needed s o me money , and 

I gave h i m some t ranslat i on jobs , some --

some -- some other , like , research jobs . 

Q. Do you recall ho w many years 

t hat was how -- how l ong ago t hat was? 

A. I -- I cou l d try to c o ns t ruc t i t . 
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Three years -- it ' s about five o r 

six years , probably 

Q . Five or six 

A. but I ' m not 

Q. -- years from -- ago today? 

A. Ago from -- from now , yes ; f ive, 

six , maybe seven . I don ' t kn ow. 

Q. Do you know when he set up the 

Eurasia Democracy Initiative? 

A. I d o not kno w, but -- I d o not 

know . 

Q. Did y o u assist him with that? 

A. I -- he asked my advice on 

whether -- how he shou l d -- he had an i dea of 

starting a business and starting this 

organization . He asked my advice on it . 

Q. A business kind of like yours ; 

is that c o rrect? 

A. I wo uldn ' t describe it that way . 

I t ' s 

Q. Okay . Does he provide advocacy 

services for individuals o r c o untries or 

en t i t ies? 

A. I c o uld n o t answer that, because 
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I know wha t he does f o r me . That's the only 

thing I can talk about . 

Q. Would it be f air to say that his 

organiza tion , the Euras ia Demo cracy 

Initiative , is not a very serious 

organization? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objection to 

form . 

THE WITNESS : I would not 

describe it like that . 

BY MR. COH EN: 

Q. Okay . I will show you a 

d o cument that was previ o usly marked as 

Exhibit 10 1. 

A. I ' m sorry . 

Q. I'm s o rry . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Thank you . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen this e - mail 

before? 

New York 
Connecticut 

A. Yes , I did . 

Q. And and you see there ' s a 

3 / 14 / 11 at 1: 54 p.m. e - mail --

A. Yes, I do see that 
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Q. fr om Rinat Akhmetshin? 

A. I do see i t . 

Q. And it says , I think we should 

keep Peter o f f o f this ; is that c o rrect? 

A. Yes. 

At that time , I had -- I th o ught 

that way . 

Q. Okay . And you said , h i s 

organization is not very serious ; is that 

c o rrect? 

A. It says so here. 

Q. And that was your p o sition 

regarding his organization at this time in 

March of 20 11; is t hat correct? 

A. It appears so . 

Q. It is s o , isn ' t it? 

A. Excuse me? 

Q. Yo u wrote th i s , c o rrect? 

A. I did write this , c o rrect . 

Q. Okay . And this i s your e - ma i l 

address ; is that correct? 

A. That is c o rrect , sir . 

Q. And you sent an e - mail to 

Mr . Bloo mfi e l d at a -- at around 1 : 54 p . m. 
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on 3/ 14 --

A. Correct, s i r 

Q. is that correct? 

A. -- yes . That's what it says . 

Q. And when you wro t e t ha t, you 

believed it ; is t hat correct? 

A. I though t s o , yes . 

Q. Now , you mentioned 

earlier that it -- we ll, le t ' s step back 

aga in -- tha t y o u received $70 , 000 a t the 

ou t se t f or the pro j ec t relating to 

Ash o t Egiazaryan ; is that c o rrec t ? 

A. So me thing around tha t amount . I 

do not remember exac t amou nt. 

Q. What did you do with that money? 

A. I remember I too k s o me o f thi s 

money to reimburse myse l f for the ticke t, and 

t hen I transferred the amo un t -- and 

transferred that money to Mr . Za lmayev ' s 

ac c ount. 

Q. Through what entity did you 

trans fer the money? 

A. I n Russia , there are services 

which y o u can d o it . They mostly wo rk f or 
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these Kazak - Latvian between the Russian banks 

so they c ould do money -- wire -- wire 

transfers , because I didn ' t want to carry 

cash , and I wanted to be transparent . 

So 

Q. Do you recall when it was that 

y o u transferred that money? 

A. I think during that trip to 

Moscow where I -- where I had discussion with 

Mr . Vavil ov . 

Q. I'm going to show you --

MR . COHEN : Let's mark as 

Exhibit 164 a c opy o f a reco rd o f a 

wire transfer . I' m sorry . Let me 

save one f or the court reporter . 

(Whereupon , a 

lllllllN.A. wire transfer, January 27 , 

201 1 was marked , for identificati o n 

purposes , as Depos i t i on Exhibit 

Number 164 . ) 

BY MR. COHEN: 

Q. It's marked with Bates Number 
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PZ3857 , and i t ' s fr om a • 
•••document. 

A. Um- hum . 

THE WITNESS : Um- hum . Thank 

you . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. I'l l cal l y o ur a t ten t ion to t he 

bot tom r i ght - hand c orner 

A. Um- hum . 

Q. -- and the $70 , 000 amo unt . 

A. I do see this . 

Q. And t hen i f y o u l o ok over t o the 

l e f t , t here ' s a da t e o f 1/27 . 

Do you see tha t ? 

A. January , yes . 

Q. Do you bel i eve tha t t h i s 

represen t s a paymen t t ha t you made t o 

Mr . Zalmaye v f or work regardi ng 

Ash o t Eg i azaryan? 

A. Yes , I th i n k it appears t hat way . 

Q. And you see there ' s a re f erence 

on the fi rst l i ne under t he wo rd Redac t ed " 

t o Avitek Li mited . 

Do you see tha t ? 
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A. Yes , I see it . 

Q. Do you know what tha t i s? 

A. I have no idea . 

Q. Do you kno w who Martin Bonders 

is? 

MR . SPERDUTO : I ' m sorry? 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Do you know Mart i n Bonders , 

B- 0 - N-D- E- R- S? 

A. I d o not recall that name , sir . 

Q. Do you know Vladimir Antonov? 

A. I d o not recal l that name , s i r . 

Q. So explain to me what y o u did --

you had $70 , 000 of cash wi t h you in Moscow? 

A. Yes . 

Q. What did you do with that? 

A. I asked a friend , and he 

reco mmended me this servi ce where wh i ch y o u 

c o uld wire the money . 

Q. And was t hat a Mos c ow servi ce? 

Was it in Moscow or when you --

A. Right --

Q. came back to t he States? 

A. the f riend was i n Mosco w, yes . 

New York 
Connecticut 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 

New Jersey 
Pennsylvania 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

1 6 

17 

1 8 

1 9 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

155 

RINAT R. AKHMETSH IN 

Q. Okay . You d i dn 't bring 

70 , 000 --

A. No , no . 

Q. -- o n the plane back --

A. No. 

Q. -- to -- to t he United S t a te s? 

A. I brought , li ke , probably 

10 gra n d . 

Q. Why is it that you believe that 

thi s wire trans fer reflects the $70 , 000 that 

came from you? 

A. I d o ub t he cou l d get anyt h ing 

fr om anyone else . 

Q. Why i s that? 

A. Because it was around the time 

when he star t ed wo rking on th i s project . 

I cannot t e ll tha t thi s i s 

exactly t h is amo un t o f money , but it -- t he 

da te s appear to reflect that . 

Q. Okay . You're n o t -- you 

can 't can you state with certa inty that 

there' s no t another 70 , 000 payment -- or 

approx i ma t e l y $70 , 000 payment tha t 

Mr . Za l mayev received around this time ? 
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A. I d o not kn ow, sir . 

Q. Okay . Do you know what other 

payments were made to support the campaign 

against Asho t Eg i aza ryan ? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Campa i gn? 

I'll object t o the f orm . 

THE WITNESS : Excuse me , sir? 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did Mr . Vav- -- Vavilov make any 

other payments to support the campa ign 

against Ashot Eg ia zaryan? 

A. He d id, yes . 

Q. What o ther payments d i d he make? 

A. He made paymen t s for me , for my 

organizat i on . 

Q. How much in payments did you 

receive for your wor k on the campaign 

against Ash o t Egiazaryan? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Form . 

THE WITN ESS : I do not -- how 

much did I initiate f or myself f or my 

personal compensatio n f o r wo rk o n 

thi s thing , right --
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Yes . 

A. -- i s that what you ' re trying to 

say , s ir ? 

Q. Yes. 

A. 30-, $4 0 , 000 , maybe a bit mo re , 

but around tha t amount -- 50 maybe . 

Q. And how did you rece i ve t hat 

money? 

A. Thro ugh wires t o my acco unt . 

Q. Did you receive any amoun t s from 

anyo ne o t her than Mr . Vavi l o v f o r y o ur work 

on the campa i gn aga ins t Mr . Egiazaryan? 

A. Yes . 

MR . SPERDUT O: Form with 

" campaign ." I'll just -- if I can 

have a s t and i ng ob j ec tion t o 

" campa i gn ," I wo n 't i nterrupt . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Okay . I s is t hat a phrase 

that you ' ve used 

A. I -- I'm not com f o rtable . See , I 

t hink it was thi s awareness project. 

Q. Yo u ca l l it s ometimes t he Ash o t 
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projec t ? 

A. For short purposes , just l ike we 

cal l IEI , International Eurasian Institute . 

Q. And i n some d o cuments , you re f er 

t o i t as a campaign ; is t hat correct? 

A. I t cou l d have been . I do n o t 

remember , sir . 

Q. Did you re c e i ve any paymen t s 

f rom anyone e l se f or your work regarding 

Asho t Eg i azaryan? 

A. Anywhere e l se from whom? 

Q. From -- f rom anyone other t han 

Vavi l ov? 

A. No ; on l y Mr . Vavi lov . 

Q. Did Mr . Vavilov make any 

payments in addition to the 70 , 000 that was 

t rans f erred t o Mr . Za l mayev and t he 30 - or 

40 , 000 tha t was wired direct l y to y o u? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Capac i ty . 

THE WITNESS : I do not k now . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did y o u arrange f o r any 

addi t iona l payments above t he 70 , 000 tha t 

was -- tha t y o u f o rwarded t o Mr . Zalmayev 
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and t he 30 - or 40 , 000 t hat you received 

dire c t l y? 

A. I did , sir . 

Q. What o ther payments did y o u 

arrange for? 

A. Mr . Vavi l ov i s payi ng 

Mr . Za l mayev ' s legal b i l l s in t h i s mat t er . 

Q. I s Mr . Vavi lov payi ng your legal 

bee -- bi l ls? 

A. I hope he will . 

Q. What? 

A. When this t h i ng i s over , I hope 

he wi l l. 

I' m paying i t myse l f r i ght now . 

Q. Have you arranged f or any other 

payments relat i ng t o your wo rk regarding 

Ashot Egiazaryan? 

A. I did pay Mr . Zalmaye v mysel f as 

we l l . 

Q. Other t han the 70 , 000 you pa i d 

him? 

A. I did , yes . 

Q. How much did you pay him? 

A. I d o not remember n ow, but 
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probabl y 20 -- 10 -- $20 , 000 , s o me thing li ke 

that . 

Q. Why did why did you pay h i m? 

A. Because he was doing more 

research on thi s ma tter . 

Q. Why didn ' t Mr . Vavilov pay h i m 

f o r that? 

A. I t was -- Mr . Vavilov was pay ing 

me , and then -- f rom that amount f or the 

project . And f rom tha t amount , I was paying 

Mr . Zalmayev . 

Q. Do you kn ow o f any amo un ts that 

were pa i d by Mr . Vavilov o ther than the 

70 , 000 and the 3 0 -- that you rece i ved in 

Moscow and the 30 - to 40 , 000 that you 

received in a wire trans f er? 

A. I did receive more . Thi s 30 , 000 

re fle c ts my amount 

Q. Okay . How much mo re --

A. so the amou nt is --

Q. how much more did you 

receive? 

A. Probably another $ 100 , 000 , I 

guess . I d o not remember exact amount , sir . 
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Q. Am I correct that y o u wo uld have 

bank records that would reflect al l the 

payments that you've received 

A. I -- I sho uld --

Q. -- from Mr . Vavilov? 

A. I -- I think I would , yes . 

Q. Let me show y o u a d o cument that 

has Bates number PZ3858 . That' s another 

record fr om 1111· We'll have it 

marked as Exhibit 165. 

(Whereupo n , a 

1111 wire transfer , April 4 , 2 011 

was marked , for i dentification 

purposes , as Deposition Exhibit 

Number 1 65 . ) 

THE WITNESS : Yes, sir . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you see n thi s before? 

A. No , I have not . 

Q. I'll refer you to the b o ttom , 

and it refers to an ATM check deposit of 

$ 20 ,000. 
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A. Um- hum . Yes . 

Q. Are you aware of a $20 , 000 

payment that was made to Mr . Za lmayev on or 

around April 4 , 2 0 11 ? 

A. It mi gh t have been t he paymen t I 

gave h i m. It might have been my check . I ' m 

n o t aware of the exact check . 

I f you have a c opy of the check, 

I'm happy to l ook at it. 

Q. No , we haven ' t been produced a 

copy of the check. 

When you sent t he $ 70 , 000 t o 

Mr . Za lmayev , who d i d y o u tell him it was 

from? 

MR . SPERDUT O: Object i on ; 

assumes f acts no t i n evidence . 

Go ahead . 

THE WITNESS : What d i d I tell 

h i m? 

I sa i d it was for the paymen t 

f or this project . 

BY MR . COH EN: 

Q. Did you t e ll him wha t the source 

o f the money was? 
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A. I d o not recal l at tha t p o i n t, 

bu t . 

Q. You previously testi f ied that 

y o u t o ld Mr . Zalmayev that Mr . Vavi lov was 

t he one who had -- was the c l ient; is t hat 

c o rrec t ? 

A. My c l ient, correct , yes . 

Q. " Cl ient," i s tha t a fa i r word? 

A. It is a f air word , yes . 

Q. Okay . And and Mr . Zalmayev 

knew during t he course of your work t oge t her 

on this projec t t hat Mr . Vavi lov was the 

cl i ent ; i s tha t c o rrec t ? 

MR . SPERDUTO: Objec t ion ; 

capacity and ambiguous . 

But g o ahead . 

THE WITNESS : I do think tha t 

he was under tha t impression , and --

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Be c ause 

A. -- because that was which was 

t o ld to him many , many times . 

Q. By you? 

A. By me , y e s . 
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Q. Did he ever c ommun i cate direct l y 

wi t h Mr . Vavi lov? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Capacity . 

Go ahead --

THE WITNESS : I was -- I was --

MR . SPERDUTO : -- if you kn ow. 

THE WITNESS : -- I was -- I was 

i n mee t ings wi t h Vavi lov and 

Mr . Za l mayev , yes . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Where were those mee t ings? 

A. New Yo rk . 

Q. Do you recal l when the f i rst 

meet i ng was when -- was t here anyone e l se at 

those meetings? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Can I j ust 

ob j ect to t he represen t -- excuse 

me -- represen t -- objec t t o any 

charac t eriza t ion o f t he meet i ng t hat 

he tes t ified about? 

THE WITNESS : I know that they 

met . I was present there , and I 

t hink Mr . Ryan was present as we ll. 

New York 
Connecticut 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 

New Jersey 
Pennsylvania 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

1 8 

1 9 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

165 

RINAT R. AKHMETSHIN 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. When was the first time that 

there was a meeting among you, Mr . Vavi l ov , 

Peter Zalmayev and Andrew Ryan? 

A. I do not recall exactly , bu t it 

was probably in the spring o f 2011 . 

Q. So before the lawsuit was filed; 

i s that c orrect? 

A. Correct, yes . I do not remember , 

but I think s o , yes . 

Q. What was the subject of the 

meeting? 

MR . SPERDUTO : We ll, to --

we ll 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Without describing the con - --

the spec ific content , can you t e ll me what 

the subject matter o f the meeting was? 

A. I think Mr . Egiazaryan . 

Q. What was Mr . Ryan ' s ro l e at the 

meeting? 

MR . SPERDUTO : I'm going to 

ins truc t the witness not to answer to 

the extent that that answer requires 
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discl osure o f c ommunicati o ns between 

Mr . Ryan and h i s c lient. 

To the extent you can answer 

that questi o n without such 

disclosure , you ' re fr ee to do so . 

THE WITNESS : From what I 

remember , he just provided the space 

for thi s meeting at his office . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did did -- was he physica lly 

present during the meeting with Mr . Vavilov? 

A. I d o not recall . Might have not . 

The c o nversation was in Russian , so I wo uld 

say no --

Q. And -- al l right . 

A. -- not throughout the meeting , 

I'm sure . 

Q. What was the purpo se o f the 

meeting among y o u , Mr . Zalmayev and 

Mr . Vavilov i n the spr i ng of 20 11 before the 

lawsuit was brought? 

A. Just discussi o n o f -- I think 

Mr . Vavilov shared his personal recollection 

o f Mr . Egiazaryan . 
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Q. Was he angry at Mr . Egiazaryan? 

A. I wouldn ' t descr i be anger , but I 

think he took -- I do not remember details o f 

this meeting , but I remember that it was 

educational for Mr . Vavilov. It was personal 

experiences . 

Q. Was the meeting , in part , t o 

discuss the status of the Ashot Eg i azaryan 

project? 

A. I think that discussio n o f the 

project took place , to the bes t of my 

reco llection. 

Q. Did Mr . Vavil ov give any 

i nstruct i o n regard i ng the proj ec t at the 

meeting? 

A. I wo uld no t ca ll it instruct i o ns . 

He i s not that kind of person. 

But I -- I think he might have 

given s ome suggesti o ns . 

Q. What suggest i o n s do you reca ll 

that he gave at the meeting in the spring o f 

2 011? 

A. I think -- I think he talked 

s omething about the LDPR . I think that was 
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the big discussion . And I think he has 

personal v i ew and distaste for that party . 

And I think he expressed that to 

Mr . Zalmayev . 

Q. Do you recall anything e l se that 

was discussed at the mee ti ng? 

A. I d o not . 

Q. Do you recal l i f anyone e ls e was 

present that -- during any periods o f the 

meet i ng? 

A. I do not remember , sir . 

Q. Do you recal l if there was any 

c o nc l usion o r agreemen t at the mee ti ng to 

proceed i n any particular way? 

A. I do not remember details, sir , 

bu t t here was a discussion f or -- f o r sure . 

Q. Have you ever been pa id by 

Mr . Zalmaye v -- by Mr . Zalmayev? 

A. I have 

MR . SPERDUTO: Form . 

THE WITNESS : -- yes , I have . 

BY MR . COH EN: 

Q. What have you been pa id by 

Mr . Zalmaye v f or? 

New York 
Connecticut 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 

New Jersey 
Pennsylvania 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

1 8 

1 9 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

169 

RINAT R. AKHMETSHIN 

A. We do many things t o gether , and I 

think that he pa i d for working on thi s 

project as well . 

New York 
Connecticut 

MR . COHEN : Let me ask the 

court reporter to mark as Exhibit 166 

a c opy o f the 2010 tax returns f or 

the Eurasia Demo cracy Initiative, 

wh i ch begins wi th Bates Number PZ584 . 

(Whereupo n , Eurasia Democracy 

Initiative 20 10 tax returns was marked , 

f o r identifi ca tion purpo ses, as 

Deposition Exhibit Number 166 . ) 

MR . COHEN : You ready? 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. All right. I'll call your --

A. And y o u see the 

Q. -- to the final page . 

A. Thi s one , right (ind i cat i ng)? 

Yes, sir . 

Q. Yes . 

And you see the second check down 

from the top? 
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A. Co rrect , yes . 

Q. That' s made ou t t o you ; i s tha t 

correct? 

A. Correct, yes . 

Q. And for an amoun t of $10 , 000 ; is 

that correct? 

A. Co rrect , yes . 

Q. Wi t hou t a da t e as far as I can 

tell ; is that correct? 

A. Yeah . That ' s what I'm trying t o 

find here , yes . 

Q. Do you kn ow what this $10,000 

check was f o r? 

A. I do not recal l, s i r . 

Q. Do you recall engaging in any 

projects with Mr . Zalmayev in 2 010 before 

t he Ashot Egiazaryan project in which you 

were paid 

A. I have --

Q. by him? 

A. I -- I have been engaged with 

Zalmayev o n other projects 

Q. And --

A. -- in the past , yes . 
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Q. -- do y o u reca l l wha t y o u migh t 

have been engaged i n a t t h i s t i me t hat 

resulted in a $10 , 000 payment? 

A. Something o f Central Asia , 

probably . 

Q. Do you remember seeing 

rece i v i ng paymen t s d i rec t ly f r o m 

Mr . Ak hmetsh i n in 20 11 ? 

A. I am Mr . Akhmetshin . 

Q. I ' m s o rry . 

Wi t h Mr . Za l mayev in 20 11 ? 

A. He -- I -- I -- I know f or a f ac t 

he paid me f o r doing something o n t he 

Eg i azaryan mat t er . 

Q. Do you recall the amount? 

A. 10 - o r $ 2 0 , 000 . 

MR . COHEN: I'll ask the court 

repo rter to mark a copy o f a check 

wi t h Bates Number PZ3856 . 

Give i t t o counsel . 

THE WITNESS : Sir . 

(Whereupon , a c opy of check 

was marked , f o r i den t i f ica t ion 
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purposes , as Depositi o n Exhibit 

Number 1 67 . ) 

MR . SPERDUTO : Jason , this is 

1 67? 

THE WITNESS : 1 67 , y e s . 

THE COURT REPORTER : Yes . 

MR . COHEN: 1 67 , yes . 

THE WITNESS : Thank you . 

BY MR . COH EN: 

Q. I assume you ' ve seen this check 

befo re? 

New York 
Connecticut 

A. I've seen i t . I -- I h ope I 

cashed it . 

Q. It ' s made out to you? 

A. Yes . 

Q. And it ' s f rom the Eurasia 

Democracy Initia tive? 

A. 

Q. 

correct? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Co rrect . 

I t says • -

That ' s what i t --

Have you --

-- it says . 
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Q. -- have y o u ever seen an o ffice 

t hat Euras i a Democra c y I ni tiat i ve has at 

- --? 
A. I d o not remember , s ir. 

Q. Why did you receive t his check? 

A. I t was -- I t h i nk i t ' s in 

c o nnection to this Egiazaryan matter , yes . 

I t says exp enses and consu l tan c y . 

Q. Why was Mr . Zalmayev paying you 

on a pro ject that y o u said you -- that you 

brough t him on t o? 

A. Because t h i s was s t u ff which I 

have contributed as being fr om my expenses 

and c ontribution. 

Q. So sometimes you pay 

Mr . Zalmayev , and s ometimes he pays y o u? 

A. When he has a projec t and he 

wants me to d o something o n i t , he pays me . 

When I have a project and I have something 

for him t o do , the same , I pay h i m. 

Q. Would you characteri z e the 

Asho t Eg i aza ryan pro ject as Peter Zalmayev ' s 

projec t ? 

A. I wo uld say s o , yes . 
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Q. Mo re so than it was y o ur 

proj ec t ? 

A. It ' s hard f or me to say , but I 

assisted him in that pro ject f or sure . 

Q. I s it your position t hat he was 

the lead perso n on the Ashot -- strike that . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Form 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Was 

MR . SPERDUTO : -- I'm s o rry . 

Wi t hdrawn. 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. was Peter Zalmayev the lead 

p erson on t he Ashot Eg i azaryan project? 

A. It ' s hard f or me to make this 

distinctio n , s ir. He was wo rking on that 

project. 

Q. A key person ; is that c o rrect? 

A. He knew mo re abo ut this thing. 

Q. Who was -- who was in charge of 

the project from your perspective? 

A. I d o n 't think, s ir, it was who 

was in charge and giving orders and s tuff 

like that . 
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Q. Fair to say that you and 

Mr . Za l mayev collabora t ed on the project? 

A. I did ass i st h im on that project , 

yes . 

Q. Did you ever receive any money 

on the Ashot Egia za ryan projec t f rom anyone 

other than Mr . Vavilov? 

A. I don 't remember , sir . 

Q. Do you know whether Mr . Za lmayev 

received money o n the Asho t Eg i aza r yan 

project from anyone o ther than Mr . Vavilov? 

A. I t h ink y o u asked me a l ready , and 

I sa i d tha t I d o not kn ow, but I wou l d doubt 

i t . 

Q. Were there other individua l s who 

were pa id t o ass i s t y o u and Mr . Za lmayev o n 

the Ashot Eg i azaryan pro j ec t? 

A. Ye s . 

Q. Who? 

A. Mr . Bloomf i e l d . 

Q. Is that Doug l as Bloomfield? 

A. Do uglas Bloomfi e l d , c o rrect . 

Q. Who paid Douglas Bloomfield? 

A. I d o n 't remember . 
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I know tha t he was paid f o r his 

expert i se on this ma tter . 

Q. Was anyone else paid to work on 

the Asho t Egiazaryan pro ject? 

A. I do not remember , sir 

Q. Do you kn ow who Le on i d 

A. mi ght -- migh t 

Q. Komarovs ky i s? 

A. might -- might be Mr . Za lmayev 

did s o me t h i ng , but I d i dn 't d o anyth i ng . 

Q. Do you k now who Leonid Korn- --

Komarovsky is? 

A. I've heard the name , yes . 

Q. Where do you kn ow h i m from? 

MR . SPERDUT O: Objection ; 

charac t eriza tion . 

THE WITN ESS: I heard o f him , 

sir . I d o not kn ow him . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Where have you heard of h i m 

f rom? 

A. He was detained i n 

Tur kmen i s t an -- in country called 

Turkmenistan . 
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THE COURT REPORTER : He was 

what? 

THE WITNESS : He was detained 

there by the regime there , and there 

was a campaign to re l ease him . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you ever had any 

c ommun i cat i ons wi th him? 

A. Never persona l ly , no . 

I -- I take that back , I 

t hink I -- we a l s o had a mutua l acquaintance , 

who I t h i nk st i l l i s in pr i son there , and I 

t h i nk , a f ter he was re l eased --

Mr . Komarovs ky was r e l ea sed from prison 

there , I might have spoken with him . 

Q. Do you know if Mr . Komarovsky 

was paid f or his assis t ance on the 

Ash o t Eg i azaryan pro ject? 

A. I migh t have kn own tha t, but I do 

no t remember . 

Q. Who wou l d authorize payments --

who was respons ible f o r author i z i ng payments 

for work on t he Ashot Egiazaryan pro j ect? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objec t ion to 
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f o rm ; assumes f acts . 

THE WITNESS : What do you mean 

" authori z e " ? 

BY MR . COH EN: 

Q. Who wou ld be i n charge of making 

paymen t s to t he people wh o we re wo rk ing on 

the projec t ? 

A. Whoever wr i t es the che ck or ma kes 

the wire trans f er . 

Q. Do you kno w who 

Lyudmila Al exeyeva i s ? 

A. Exc us e me? 

Q. Do you kn ow who 

Lyudmila Al exeyeva is? 

A. She is -- if if -- if that ' s 

t he person ' s c o mmo n name in Russia , bu t if 

you refer to t h i s human rights activ i s t i n 

Russ i a , I I heard o f her , y e s . 

Q. Do you kn ow if she p l ayed a r o le 

i n the Ashot Egiazaryan project? 

A. I know she was approached by 

Mr . Za l mayev o n thi s matter , yes . He 

di s cus sed with me . 

Q. Do you kn ow whether she was pa i d 

New York 
Connecticut 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 

New Jersey 
Pennsylvania 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

1 8 

1 9 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

179 

RINAT R. AKHMETSHIN 

f o r -- paid on this project? 

A. I' m not sure , sir . 

Q. Do you know who Lev Ponomarev 

i s? 

A. I've heard the name. 

Q. And where d o you kn ow the name 

fr om? 

A. I think i t was a l so i n connect i on 

with this matter . I know that Mr . Zalmayev 

menti o ned t o me that he approached them . 

Q. Do you know if he -- if -- do 

y ou know if Lev Ponomarev was paid any money 

f o r assistance in the Ash o t Egiazaryan 

project? 

A. I did not pay him and -- but he 

might have o r no t . 

Q. Did Mr . Zalmayev ever report to 

y ou that he paid money to Mr . Ponomarev? 

A. I think Mr . Ponomarev -- if I 

remember correct l y , he mi ght have ment i oned 

to me that Mr . Ponomarev asked him f or some 

payments . 

Q. And do -- did Mr . Zalmayev ever 

tell you that he made payments to 
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Lev Po n omarev? 

A. I do not remember . 

Q. Did Mr . Za l mayev te l l you that 

he made paymen t s to Lyudmi l a Al e x eyeva? 

A. I do no t remember . 

Q. Did Mr . Za l maye v tel l y o u t hat 

he made payme n t s to t he Ame r i can J ewi sh 

Commi t t ee? 

A. I do not know , sir . 

Q. Di d Mr . Zalmayev --

A. Yeah , I k now he ' s a member of 

Amer i can Jewi sh Commi t t ee . 

Q. Di d Mr . Za l mayev te ll y o u t hat 

he made p aymen t s to Zhanna Sne l bec ker? 

A. Sne l becker , yes , he d i d . 

Q. Who i s Zhanna Snelbecker? 

A. He ' s an a ttorney . 

I asked him t o make t hat payment . 

Q. Yo u -- you asked h i m to make the 

p aymen t t o Zhanna Sne l be cker? 

A. Correct . 

MR . COHEN : I'l l ask the court 

repor t er t o mar k as Exh i b it 1 68 a 

d o cument wi th t he Ba t es range -- wi th 
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the Bates Number PZ1273 . 

(Whereupon , informational 

d o cuments were marked , f or 

identification purposes , as Deposition 

Exhibit Number 168 . ) 

THE WITNESS : Than k you . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you ever seen this d o cument 

before? 

A. I might have , yes . 

Q. Let me cal l y o ur a t tention to 

the second page , PZ 1274 . 

A. Um- hum . 

Q. This reflects a travel schedule 

from New York to Moscow and back? 

A. That ' s wha t it appears to be , 

yes . 

Q. And do you kn ow whose trave l 

schedule that is? 

A. I d o n 't know . 

Q. Do you recall whe t her 

Mr . Zalmaye v was in Mo scow a t t he end o f 
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Mose- at at the end o f January 20 11? 

New York 
Connecticut 

A. He mi gh t have been . He went 

there quite a few times , actually . 

Q. And ca lling y o ur attention to 

t he next page , there ' s a s t a t ement , From 

Ruben . 

Do you kn ow who --

MR . SPERDUTO : I' m s orry . 

Just 

MR . COHEN : I ' m s o rry . 

Page 127 5, the nex t page . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Thank you . 

Thank y o u . 

THE WI TNESS : I d o see i t, s i r , 

yes , From Ruben . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Okay . Who i s t hat referring to? 

A. I d o not kn ow, s i r . 

MR . GO LDEN : I ' m sorry . 

What -- what -- what d i d you ask? 

THE WITNESS : From Ruben . 

MR . GOLDEN : Oh , From Ruben in 

t he middle . 

Thank y o u . 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Do you kn ow Ruben Markar i an? 

A. Oh , yes , yes . That ' s Ruben . 

Q. Who -- who is that? 

A. He i s -- he ' s an a ttorney for a 

person wh om Mr . Egi a zaryan de f rauded f or 

large amounts of money . Ruben Markarian . 

Ruben Markar i an . 

Q. And is that an issue that you ' ve 

personally investiga t ed , a dispute between 

Mr . Markarian ' s cli en t and Mr . Egiazaryan? 

A. Oh , we de fi n i tely l o oked into 

this, sir . I did n o t personally investigate, 

bu t I t h i nk t hat we did everything -- we d i d 

very thorough due diligence . 

And , actua lly, I would like t o 

poin t ou t t o the exh i b it --

Q. Just -- l e t' s just if you 

c o uld just answer my questi o ns . 

A. I -- I -- we d i d inves tiga t e a ll 

aspects o f Mr . Egiazaryan ' s activities , yes . 

Q. Ca lling y o ur a ttention to the 

next page of the expense repor t. 

A. Okay . 
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Q. Have you seen that before? 

A. Okay . Let ' s see . 

I might have been, yes . 

Q. Does the 20 , 000 re f er t o the 

20 -- 20 , 000 that has an (R) next to it? 

A. Yes. 

Q. That wou l d refer to y o u; is that 

c orrect? 

MR . SPERDUTO: Objection to the 

f o rm. 

THE WITN ESS: It' s hard for me 

t o say , but it -- it -- it makes 

sense , actua lly, it was t o me . If 

i t ' s payments and there was a $20 , 000 

payment to me, correct , yes . 

This seems so . I d o not know 

for a fact . I did not write thi s . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Was anyo ne else d irectly 

i nvo l ved in the Ashot Eg i azaryan project 

other than you , Mr . Zalmayev , 

Mr . Bloomfield , Mr . Vavilov? 

A. I don 't remember , s ir. I think 

these are pretty much the people . 
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Q. I s there anybody else who -- wh o 

you or Mr . Za l mayev c oordinated with to 

develop f acts or informat i on re l ating to the 

Asho t Eg i aza r yan pro ject? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Cou ld you read 

t hat back f o r me , please? Please. 

THE COU RT REPORTER: I 'll d o 

i t . 

Do you want 

MR . COHEN : I'll I'll do i t . 

THE COURT REPORTER : Okay . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Al l r i ght , 

thanks . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Let me -- I'll withdraw the 

question . 

MR . SPERDUTO : I j us t didn 't 

hear it . I d o n 't 

MR . COH EN: I unders t and . 

MR . SPERDUTO: Okay . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. I s there anyone else who you , 

Mr . Zalmayev or Mr . Bloomfield coordinated 

with o n t he Ash o t Egiazaryan pro ject? 
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A. What do y o u mean " c oordina te"? 

Q. Worked wi th t o develop 

information or strategy . 

A. We did do very tho r o ugh due 

diligence. 

If I mi ght point o ut to this 

Do cument Number 163 --

Q. I -- no . I' m asking you who --

who else 

A. I just like -- s ir, I wo uld 

like -- can I please make my point? 

Q. I -- I -- I' d l ike you to answer 

my questi o n 

A. Yes , s i r . 

Q. -- about the name --

MR . SPERDUTO : I think this i s 

his answer --

THE WITNESS : I t ' s my answer 

MR . SPERDUTO : -- let him 

answer . 

THE WITNESS : -- so we did 

thi s -- we made sure that everything 

t hat was sa id in thi s projec t 

reflec t ed f acts , not a l legat i o ns . 
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So , therefore , we c o nducted very 

thorough due d ili gen c e . 

And we interviewed , I think 

I, perso nally , interviewed some 

people . Mr . Za lmayev wen t t o Russia 

t o talk t o countless number o f pe ople 

t o establish facts , interviewing 

peop l e , do i ng research online , 

doing -- gathering documents . And 

t here are many pe ople who were 

interviewed on t h i s matter , yes , s ir. 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did y o u interview 

Mr . Eg i azaryan? 

A. No . We couldn ' t get h i m. 

Q. Did y o u -- d i d you , personally , 

reach ou t to him? 

A. I d o not remember t hat ef f or t, 

sir . 

Q. Did you speak with 

Mr . Egia zaryan ' s representatives? 

A. I d o not remember , s ir. I --

Q. Do 

A. perso na lly , d i d not . 
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Q. Do you recal l, d i d you , 

personal l y , reach ou t t o Mr . Egiazaryan ' s 

representatives? 

A. I did no t . 

Q. Back to my ear l ier question , 

were -- y o u -- o t her than peopl e wh om y o u 

i n t ervi ewed wi t h -- i n t ervi ewed , was there 

anyone who you col l abora t ed wi t h to deve l op 

a strategy or approach? 

A. We d i d talk t o pe ople who were a 

victim of Mr . Egiazaryan ' s actions , and we 

did t ry t o fi nd ou t f rom them t heir stor i es . 

And we tried to ut i l i ze t hem i f -- to t he 

ex t ent they were app l i c able t o our effort. 

Q. Do you reca l l who you spoke 

with? 

A. On wha t -- on what mat t er , sir? 

Q. Excuse me? 

A. On wha t ma t ter , sir? 

Q. Re l a t ing to Mr . Eg i azaryan . 

A. I spoke with many people . 

Q. Who did y o u speak t o ? 

A. Many peopl e . I do not remember 

t he names . I me t wi t h pe ople i n Russia . I 
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me t wi th pe ople in Washing t o n , D. C. on these 

ma tters . 

Q. Is there anyone who stands out 

who y o u spoke t o who se name y o u can recall? 

MR . SPERDUTO: Ob j ection to the 

f o rm ; ambiguous ; asked and answered . 

I assume you mean in addi t i o n 

t o everybody he ' s a lready talked 

about? 

BY MR . COH EN: 

Q. Can you identify t he names of 

individual witnesses wh o you spo ke to? 

A. Mr . Markarian i s probably the 

most helpful person on this ma tter . 

Q. Okay . Anybody else other than 

Mr . Markar i an who c o mes t o mind? 

A. He i n troduced us t o many peopl e , 

actually , who were victims o f Mr . Egiazaryan . 

Q. And Mark - -- and Mr . Markarian 

i s an adversary of Mr . Egiazaryan ' s? 

A. I think he ' s -- I think he ' s a 

l awyer f or a perso n who was a victim o f 

Mr . Egiazaryan ' s l aunder i ng . 

Q. And -- and any -- i s there 
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anyo ne else who y o u can recall speaking 

with? 

A. I don't remember . He introduced 

us to many pe ople , to j o urnalists . 

Q. Do you recall if you spoke with 

anyo ne wh o either did n o t have -- who did 

n o t have a d i spu te wi th Mr . Egiazaryan o r 

did not represent someone who had a dispute 

with Ms . Mr . Egia zaryan? 

A. I spoke t o j ournal i s t s who were 

j us t in genera l covering t h i s i ssue . 

Q. So journalists and -- y o u spoke 

with journali s t s ; y o u spoke with pe op le who 

are i n a d i s pute or represented p eop l e wi th 

a dispute with Mr . Eg i azaryan . 

Anybody else? 

A. Tha t' s pre tty much peopl e who 

c o uld be help f ul o n t h is pro ject . 

Q. Did y o u speak with 

Su l e i man Ker i mov? 

A. No , I did not . 

Q. Do you know who he i s? 

A. I heard o f him . He ' s a rich man . 

Q. Did y o u speak with any 
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represen t a t ives of Suleiman Kerimov? 

A. I do not recal l. I -- I mi ght 

have spoken -- I know that he has dispute 

with Mr . Egiazaryan , and I know that there 

migh t have been some peopl e who represen t ed 

him ; but I do n o t remember , sir . 

Q. Did y o u c ommun i cate wi t h pe ople 

who represen t ed or work ed for 

Suleiman Kerimov? 

A. I might have talked t o h i s lawyer 

here , his PR person here . 

Q. Who i s tha t ? 

A. Greg Hi t t. 

Q. You sa i d you mi ght have? 

A. I -- I -- I did talk to him . I 

met him f o r a c o uple o f times -- met him . 

Q. I' m sorry . What was 

A. I me t him . I me t Greg Hi t t. 

Q. Greg Hi t t ? 

A. Yes . 

Q. Where did you meet him? 

A. I met him f irst at the o f fi ces o f 

Akin Gump . I t ' s a l aw firm here in o. c . 

Q. And i n New York or in O. C . ? 
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A. Here , i n D. C. 

Q. And you sa i d tha t you me t him 

first . 

On how many times did y o u meet 

wi t h Greg Hi t t? 

A. Two , three times , maybe . I 

had -- I remember I had tea with him a couple 

of t i mes . 

Q. What was the purpose of your 

meeting with Greg Hitt? 

A. I was t rying to find a lit t le bi t 

mo re . I kn ow t hat he had a cl i ent wh o had 

issue with Mr . Egiazaryan . I wanted to find 

ou t what the i r s t ory is . 

Q. Who was his client? 

A. I think it was o ne o f the 

businesses which were hurt by Mr . Egiazaryan . 

Q. Other t han the couple o f -- t wo 

or three meetings , did you have any other 

meet i ngs or c ommun i cat i ons wi th Greg Hi t t or 

anyone at Public Strategies? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Hold on . Just a 

minu t e . Give me a second . 

Other t han the mee t ings y o u had 
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2 wi t h Greg Hi t t , did y o u have 

3 anybody -- any o t her mee t ings wi t h 

4 Greg Hitt or other people at? 

5 MR . COHEN : Publ i c Strategi es . 

6 THE WITNESS : I me t -- yes , in 

7 t he f irs t meet i ng , I met Greg Hi t t 

8 and his c o l leagues . I don ' t remember 

9 t heir names . That was one mee t ing of 

1 0 people , and then , you know , just --

1 1 and then Greg and I , we met a f ew 

12 t imes . 

13 BY MR . COHEN : 

1 4 Q. Did y o u --

15 A. We as ked Mr . Zalmayev t o 

1 6 interview him or just work -- to talk to him , 

17 because he had some questions also I think 

1 8 t hat he I think tha t t he -- there was some 

19 c ommun i cat i o n be t ween Mr . Zalmayev . 

20 Q. Did y o u have o t her 

2 1 c ommun i cat i ons wi th Greg Hi t t or people at 

22 his organi zation other than the couple -- or 

23 f ew meet i ngs you described? 

24 A. I migh t have -- migh t have spoke 

25 on the ph o ne o r exchanged e - ma i ls . I d o not 
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remember . It was n o t very helpful . 

Q. Did -- d i d Mr . Hi tt provi de you 

with information regarding Ashot Egiazaryan? 

A. He summarized his matter just t o 

me . 

Q. In a meeting? 

A. In a meeting , yes . 

Q. Did he provide you wi th 

information by e - mail or give you documents? 

A. I d o not remember . I -- as I 

mentioned to you , I did not find those 

meetings particularly helpful . 

Q. Yo u didn ' t find the info rmati o n 

you rece i ved from Mr . Hitt --

A. It was --

Q. very help f ul? 

A. it was some commercial matter , 

and we had very little abi lity to t ake 

p osition o ne way o r another . 

Q. I'll show you a document 

containing Bates Number PZ 1705 . It will be 

Exhibit 168. 

(Whereupo n , an e - mail string 
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was marked , f o r i den t i f ica t ion 

purposes , as Depos i t i on Exhibi t 

Number 169 . ) 

THE WITNESS : - 69 . 

MR . COHEN : 1 69 . 

Okay . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen this document 

be f o re? 

A. I migh t have received t his , yes . 

Q. If you turn t o the las t page , 

was t h i s forwarded to y o u by J ef f El l er of 

Publ i c S t rateg i es? 

A. I think it was this 

Peter Zalmayev message . 

Q. We ll, how did you -- do you see , 

at the back , there ' s a t he address and 

t e l ephone i n f o rmat i o n? 

A. Yes , I do see t h i s , a signature 

f ile . 

Q. Excuse me? 

A. Signature fi l e , yes --

Q. Yes . 
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A. -- whereby for Jeff El l er , v i ce 

c hairman of Publ i c S t rateg i es . 

Q. And then you f orwarded that 

e - mail to Mr . Zalmayev; i s that correct? 

A. Oh , yes . Yes , that' s correct. 

Okay . 

Yes , thank you . 

Yes , I d i d . He -- he sent it t o 

me , yes , de f initely . 

Q. And y o u sent it t o Mr . Zalmayev 

on February 6th, 20 11; i s t hat correct? 

A. Co rrec t, y es. I t appears s o . 

Q. And t hat ' s your e - ma i l address ; 

i s tha t c orrec t ? 

A. That is correct , yes . So I might 

have received thi s art icl e f r o m Mr . Ell er and 

t hen f orwarded it t o Mr . Zalmayev , because it 

was an irrelevan t ar t icle , I guess . 

THE COU RT REPORTER : I ' m sorry . 

What was the la s t part? 

THE WITNESS : Because it was a 

irre l evant art icl e . 

BY MR . COH EN: 

Q. Do you kn ow who Levan Zgen t i is? 
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A. Who? 

Q. Levan , L-E-V- A- N, Z- G- E-N-T-I. 

A. Levan Zgenti . I don ' t know the 

person , bu t i t ' s a Ge o rgian name . 

New York 
Connecticut 

MR . SPERDUTO: I' m sorry . It' s 

what k ind o f name? 

MR . LU PK I N: Ge o rgian . 

MR . SPERDUTO: Thank you . 

THE WITNESS : Georgian , f rom 

Georgia . 

MR . COHEN: I'll as k t he court 

repo rter to mark as Exhibit 170 a 

d o cument wi th the 

Bates Number PZ 1080 . 

THE WITNESS : Okay . I know who 

he i s . 

THE COURT REPORTER : Hold on , 

sir . 

(Whereup o n , an e - ma il s tring 

was marked , f or identification 

purposes , as Depos i t i o n Exhib it 

Number 170 . ) 
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MR . SPERDUTO : You need t o wai t 

for a ques t ion . 

(Sotto voce . ) 

THE WITNESS : Okay . 

Thank you . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Do you see o n t he -- the bot t om 

e - ma i l from Levan Zgen t i --

A. Yes . 

Q. -- March 23 , 20 1 1 t o Greg Hitt , 

Jeff Eller , Rina t Akhmetshin? 

A. Yes , I do see i t . 

Q. Do you recal l rece i v i ng t h i s 

e - ma i l? 

A. Yes , I -- and I do know who --

i t ' s not Levan Zgenti , i t ' s not a perso n . 

Q. I t ' s not a person? 

A. No . 

Q. What is i t? 

A. I t ' s jus t an e - mai l address . 

Q. Do you know whose -- whose 

e - ma i l address it i s? 

A. I t ' s f or a gentleman named 

Viktor , i s 
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Q. Yo u see Viktor ' s name is o n the 

bot tom ; i s tha t c orrec t ? 

A. Yes , yes . And I met him , 

actually . 

Q. Who is Vik t or? 

A. He ' s the i r local counsel in 

Mo scow -- n o t c o unsel , but he ' s s omeone who 

wor k s wi t h them . 

Q. Works with Public Strategies? 

A. With -- with Greg Hitt , yes , 

Public St rategies . 

Q. How did y o u first c o me to l earn 

that Greg Hitt was representing an a lleged 

v ictim of Kerimov? 

A. Because it ' s -- I think it came 

the other way around . I met Vikto r in 

Moscow , and he referred me t o Greg Hit t, he 

or h i s col l eagues . I d o n 't remember . 

Q. And it says Dear colleagues and 

i s addressed to you . 

A. Well , it ' s I -- I ' m not a 

c o lleague since I haven 't been paid f rom him . 

Q. You you -- you were wor king 

t o gether in s o me capac i ty with Mr . Hi tt and 

New York 
Connecticut 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 

New Jersey 
Pennsylvania 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0 

1 1 

12 

13 

1 4 

15 

1 6 

17 

1 8 

1 9 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

200 

RI NAT R. AKHMETSH I N 

Mr . El l er ; is t hat correct? 

A. No , t hat ' s not corre c t , sir . 

Q. You both have an interest in 

with Ashot Egiazaryan ; is that c o rrect? 

A. I -- I wou l d say yes , we -- we ' re 

b o t h interes t ed i n -- or we were interes t ed 

i n Ashot Egiazaryan ma t ter . Tha t i s an 

ac c ura t e s t a t ement . 

Q. And you ' re sharing in f ormation 

among ea ch o ther between you and Public 

Stra t egies ; is tha t correc t ? 

A. Yes , I -- I -- I think Peter 

shared some i n f o rmat i o n wi t h them , and I got 

some informa t ion from t hem as we l l , just 

discussed these things with them . And their 

person was f o reign medi a in Russ i a . 

MR . COHEN: I'll ask the court 

repo rter to mark as Exhibi t 17 1 an 

e - ma i l dated March 2 4 , bearing Bates 

Numbe r PZ 1082 . 

(Whereupo n , an e - ma i l was 

marked , for iden t ifica t ion purposes , as 

Depo si t ion Exhibi t Number 17 1. ) 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. It ' s an e - mai l f rom 

Rinat Akhmetsh i n to Peter Zalmayev . 

As you 'll see , a t t he bot tom 

THE COURT REPORTER : Hold on a 

seco nd . He d o esn 't have i t ye t. 

Wa i t , wa i t , wa i t , wa i t . 

THE WITNESS : Thanks so much . 

Yes , s i r . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Th i s is you ' re also 

f o rwardin g info rma t i o n received f r om 

Greg Hi t t on this oc c asion ; i s tha t c or r ec t ? 

New York 
Connecticut 

A. Correct , yes . 

MR . CO HEN : And I will ask the 

cour t reporter to mark as Exhibi t 172 

an e - mai l bear i ng Ba t es Number PZ2855 

f r om Ri nat Akhme t shin t o 

Pe t er Za l mayev . 

(Whereupo n , an e - ma i l was 

marked , for iden t ifica t ion purposes , as 

Deposi t ion Exhibi t Number 172 . ) 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen this --

THE COURT REPORTER : Wait . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. e - mai l be f o re? 

MR . COHEN : I ' m s o rry . 

THE COURT REPORTER : No , he 

hasn ' t . 

THE WITNESS : No t f o rmally , I 

guess . 

THE COURT REPORTER : Here y o u 

g o . 

THE WITNESS : I'l l say tha t 

I ' ve seen this , yes . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. What -- what i s t he conten t of 

t h i s e - mai l ? 

A. It ' s wri t ten in Russ i an . So i t 

says , Rina t, he l l o . I' m sending two memos 

about -- I mean , ironically, just heroic 

actions --

Q. Wel l, le t me -- le t me jus t ask 

y o u a di fferen t q ues t ion . 
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2 A. Yes . 

3 Q. Does it say i n this e - ma il tha t 

4 to -- when transcribed the stories , to 

5 f o rward them alo ng with --

6 A. Greg and Jeff. 

7 Q. -- links o f photos to Greg and 

8 Jeff? 

9 A. Correct, yes . 

1 0 Q. And that Greg and Jeff is Greg 

11 and Je ff o f Public Strategies ; is that 

12 correc t ? 

13 A. That is c o rrect, y es. 

1 4 Q. This documen t was sent o n or 

15 around March 15th , 20 11 at 6 :3 5 p . m.; i s 

1 6 that correct? 

17 A. That ' s what the date says . 

1 8 Q. And it was sen t from -- from you 

1 9 t o Peter Zalmayev? 

20 A. Co rrect , yes . 

2 1 Q. I' m go i ng t o s t art ask i ng some 

22 questions about the con fi dentia l Public 

23 Strategies documents . 

24 MR . SPERDUTO : Okay. I s now a 

25 c o nvenie nt time f o r a break? I need 
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a very short break . 

MR . COHEN: Sure , abso l u t e l y . 

MR . SPERDUT O: Be right back . 

THE VIDEOGRAPHER : The t i me i s 

2 :5 6 . We ' re going off t he record. 

This is t he end o f Dis c Number 2 , 

g o ing on to Disc Number 3 . 

(Whereupon , a br i ef recess was 

taken f rom 2 :5 6 p . m. to 3 : 06 p . m. ) 

THE VIDEOGRAPHER : The t ime i s 

3:06 p . m. Thi s i s the beg i nn ing of 

Disc Number 3 in the depos itio n o f 

Rina t Akhme tshin. 

BY MR . COHEN: 

Q. Just going back to Exhibi t 170 

f o r a seco nd . 

A. Yes , s ir. 

Q. And t hat ' s the o ne that has t he 

Dear colleagues? 

A. Yes . 

Q. And -- and you sa id that you 

d o n 't c o nsider yoursel f c o lleagues wi th the 

New York 
Connecticut 

Public Strategies people ; i s tha t correct? 

A. I did n o t -- I do n o t 
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Q. And that ' s not --

A. consider myse l f a col l eague . 

Q. a phrase that you would 

use 

A. Defini t e ly not . 

Q. -- strike that. 

That ' s not a phrase that you 

would use t o descr i be your relat i o nship wi t h 

them? 

A. Oh , de fi nitely not . 

Q. And -- and you wou ldn't refer t o 

Mr . Hitt o r Mr . El l er or Mr . Laurence as a 

c o lleague; is that correct? 

A. I defini t e l y wou l d not . 

Q. By the way , who ' s -- who ' s 

there's an A. Laurence . 

A. I have no idea 

Q. Do you kn ow who --

A. I never met him 

Q. do you know who Hilland 

Hilland Knowlton is? 

A. -- I know the firm, actually . I 

empl oyed them years ago . 

Q. Do you kn ow them as re l a t ing to 
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any Ash o t Eg i azaryan issue? 

A. I' m no t aware of i t, but I k now 

the firm I heard the name I know the 

f irm, actually . I used t o know people there 

before . 

Q. Do you kn ow who Andrew Laurence 

i s? 

A. Never , never met h i m. 

MR . COHEN : Ask the court 

repo rter to mark as Exhibit 173 an 

e - mai l from Rina t Akhmetshin to 

Levan Zgen t i , who i s not a perso n . 

Yeah , we have l o t s o f c opies . 

(Whereupon , an e - mai l was 

marked , f o r i denti f ication purpo ses , as 

Deposi t ion Exhibit Number 173 . ) 

MR . SPERDUTO : Oh , thank you . 

MR . COHEN: And we ' l l ge t 

another one . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Okay . Do you know who 

Paul But l er i s? 
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A. He ' s a lawyer there . 

Q. He ' s a lawyer for who? 

A. For -- I don ' t know . He ' s a 

lawyer at Akin Gump . He works f o r o ne o f 

t hose in t erests which were hit by 

Mr . Eg i azaryan . 

New York 
Connecticut 

Q. He ' s a lawyer f o r 

Su l e i man Ker i mov- r e lated inte r es t s ; i s tha t 

correct? 

A. I -- I think so , yes . 

Q. I s tha t s ome t hing 

A. He ' s a lawyer f o r the firm , I 

think , for the company which is -- some way 

t he r e . 

Q. And this is an e - mail from you 

t o Levan Zgenti --

A. Um- hum . 

Q. -- is that correct? 

A. Yes . 

Q. And and tha t' s Russ i an 

that -- is that a company or --

A. It ' s -- it ' s just a name , I 

t hink . I t ' s not the name of the person ; 

i t ' s , l ike -- t he name o f t he person is 
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Viktor . 

Q. I t ' s jus t an e - mai l address? 

A. It ' s an e - mail address , yes --

Q. Okay . 

A. -- the name o f the person is 

Viktor . 

Q. And -- and wha t is the subject 

of this e - ma il ? 

A. Let me just read it . 

MR . SPERDUTO : You sho uld use 

t his . 

THE WITNESS : Um- hum . 

(Whereupon , the wi tness reviews 

t he document . ) 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Yo u c opied Jef f Eller on this as 

well , righ t ? 

A. Co rrect, y es. 

Q. And Greg Hitt? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And Pau l Butler , who we just 

discussed ; is that correct? 

A. They were -- correct , yes. 

Q. And y o u refer t o a ll o f those 

New York 
Connecticut 
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individuals as col leagues ; is that correct? 

A. Yes , an unfortunate turn of 

phrase . 

Q. At that p o i nt , you felt that 

they were colleagues? 

A. I did n o t feel that way, but I 

thin k that s ince this was -- was it befo re o r 

af t er thi s o ther coll eague mat t er? Maybe 

it ' s some thing in this spirit . 

But t hey were never my 

colleagues , s ir, f or t he record. 

Q. This e - mai l i s be f ore t he e - mail 

fr om Vi k t o r referring t o you as a c o lleague ; 

i s that c orrect? I f I can ask you to 

compare 

A. I s this 15 

Q. Exhibit 170 with 173 . 

A. One seco nd . 

March 23rd . February 25 th. 

Yes , it appears that way , sir . 

Q. Why were you passing along this 

i n f o rmati o n t o the -- t hese i ndividuals and 

entities who work for Suleiman Ker i mov? 

A. Just to make them aware, because 
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they shared s ome information with us , and I 

shared wi th them our s trategy . And thi s is 

exactly the strategy which we employed , as 

y o u c o uld see f urther d own the line . It was 

an exchange o f information . 

Q. Yo u were coo rdinating on 

in wi th -- wi th these individuals 

A. Yeah , I think I --

Q. -- and developing information 

regarding Asho t Egiazaryan --

A. I think I --

Q. is that correct? 

A. I think I informed them o n our 

strategies . 

Q. Did you consult with them on 

y o ur s trateg i es? 

A. No. I don 't think they ' re people 

who c o uld be help f ul in this situation . 

Q. Did y o u ever seek the input of 

Publ i c Strateg i es or o ther representat i ves 

o f Suleiman Kerimov on your strategy? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objection to 

form , " other representatives ." 

THE WITNESS : Do I have t o 
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2 answer? 

3 MR . SPERDUTO: Pardon me? 

4 THE WITNESS : Do I have to 

5 answer this? 

6 MR . SPERDUTO: You get to 

7 answer . 

8 THE WITNESS : Oh , I ge t t o 

9 answer . Okay . 

1 0 Yes , I -- I ran it by them . 

11 Yo u know , i t ' s a l ways g o od to run 

1 2 certain t hings by people . You k now , 

13 t hey mi ght advi se s omething . 

14 BY MR . COHEN : 

15 Q. I' m go i ng t o show you a document 

1 6 we ' re going to have marked as Exhibit 174 . 

17 

1 8 (Whereupon , an e - mail was 

1 9 marked , f o r i den tifi ca tion purpo ses , as 

20 Deposi tion Exh i b i t Number 174 . ) 

2 1 

22 THE WITNESS : Thank you . 

23 BY MR . COH EN: 

24 Q. Thi s i s anot her e - mail from you 

25 t o Greg Hitt , Paul Butle r and Jef f Elle r ; i s 

New York Hudson Reporting & Video New Jersey 
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that correct? 

A. Yes . 

Q. It was sent by you on March 21 ; 

i s that c o rrect? 

A. It does appears that way , s ir. 

Q. And it says that -- and it says 

let's discuss; is that correct? 

A. Yes, it says . 

Q. Do you have regular 

c ommunicati o ns and discussi o ns with 

Mr . Hitt , Mr . Butler or Mr . Eller? 

A. I think I just -- my discussi o n 

wi th Mr . Hitt , you kn ow, o r other people just 

kind of were in the -- just i n the loop, I 

guess . 

Q. Was Mr . Hitt your main contact 

at Public Strategies? 

A. It was the o nly person in 

Washington wh om I t a lk abo ut these matters , 

yes . 

Q. It says that the Russian 

Government is placing him on a Red Notice 

shor tly? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. I assume you 're referring t o 

Mr . Egiazaryan ; i s that c orrect? 

A. I think so , yes . 

Q. And -- and how d i d you come t o 

l earn wha t t he Russian Governmen t wou ld be 

d o ing ? 

A. Mr . Markarian info rmed me abou t 

it. 

Q. What did he tell you? 

A. He sa id that , y o u know , just 

there ' s a Red Notice a l er t, I thi nk, a lready 

ou t. It's in c o nnec tion to his cl ie nt ' s 

ma t ter . 

Q. Did he say how he came to l earn 

that a Red Notice wou ld be coming out 

shortly? 

A. I thi n k it was in connection --

direct connect i o n t o his c lient, so he was 

aware of it, yes . 

Q. Did he say how he came to be 

aware o f it? 

A. I d o not remember him saying 

tha t. 

MR . SPERDUTO : I just -- a ll 
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these things say Con fidential. The 

ex t ra c opi es I' m handing back t o you 

so you can deal with the protective 

order . I'm just going to keep o ne 

se t. 

MR . COHEN : Okay , that's fi ne . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Thank you for 

t he ex t ra one . 

MR . COHEN : Just --

MR . SPERDUTO : Okay . 

MR . COHEN: leave them in 

pile and we 'l l --

MR . SPERDUTO : Yes , sir . 

MR . COHEN: I'll ask t he 

court reporter to 

MR . SPERDUTO : Is thi s o ne o r 

is thi s severa l? 

MR . COHEN : That ' s -- that's 

several of the same . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Okay . 

MR . COHEN : So you can 

c irculate those . 

MR . SPERDUTO : I' m sorry . 

MR . COHEN : the court 
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reporter to mark this d o cument , 

PS I 2 107 , as Exhibi t 175 . 

(Whereupo n , an e - mail s tring 

was marked , for identification 

purposes , as Depos i t i o n Exhibit 

Number 175 . ) 

THE WITNESS : Thank you . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. I s thi s e - mail -- an e - mail from 

y o u? 

A. It does appear that way , sir . 

Q. And i s this an e - mai l from you 

on April 13th , 201 1? 

A. That ' s what it says . 

Q. I s it t o Sarah Hale? 

A. I think s o , yes . 

Q. Do you kn ow who Sarah Hale is? 

A. I t h i nk she ' s one of the lawyers 

f or that matter , f or a matter o f Kerimov , 

yes . 

Q. Do you know what Denoro 

I ndustries is? 
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A. That ' s the company which I think 

t hat had the d i s pu t e wi th Mr . Eg i azaryan . 

Q. And that ' s a -- that ' s a 

Suleiman Kerimov c ompa ny , correct? 

A. I t hink s o , yes . I believe s o , 

yes . 

Q. Do you kn ow who the 

Gadzhiev Nar i man is? 

A. It ' s someone who works in Moscow 

f o r this Denoro c ompany . 

Q. I' m s orry . Work s for who? 

A. Fo r t h i s Denoro c ompany . 

Q. And why are y o u sending him 

e - ma i ls or copying h i m on e - ma i ls? 

A. Because he approached me on this 

matter o f story investigatio n , and I said 

t hat I would do t his -- I will talk t o the 

airpor t abou t i t . 

MR . LU PK IN : Can you speak up 

just a l i t t le bi t ? I' m having --

THE WITNESS : Sure , no problem . 

MR . LUPKIN : Thanks . 

THE WI TNESS : So I -- I t hink 

t hat he -- I met him in Mo scow f or 
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Mr . Markarian , and they -- he asked 

me to he l p them on one is sue . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. What was tha t i ssue? 

A. It was an i ssue o f t he inqu i ry 

f rom the repor te r whom I kn ow. 

Q. What -- what reporter and what 

i nqu i ry? 

A. It was a reporter f rom Radio Free 

Europe . It was an inquiry abo ut something 

abou t Mr . Kerimov and Mr . Eg i azaryan . 

Q. And -- and wh o is t he one who 

approached you to ass i st them in respo nding 

t o a press inquiry? 

A. I think Mr . Nariman asked me to 

help . 

Q. Did you k now him t o be a -- a 

re l a tive o f Mr . Kerimov? 

A. I' m n o t sure . I kn ow he works 

for h i m. 

Q. Were you paid to assist? 

A. I did no t. 

Q. Why no t ? 

A. Because it's very easy . I met 
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the guy and talked to him , but --

Q. So you 

A. it wasn ' t 

Q. were d o ing this 

A. it wasn ' t difficult for me. 

Q. you were d o ing this as a 

favo r? 

A. I did thi s as a favor , yes . 

Q. You did this because you were 

sharing info rmati o n back and f or th between 

Public Strategies and -- you and 

Peter Zalmayev; is that c o rrect? 

A. We d i d share information , and 

I -- I thought it was i n a good fa i th t o help 

these people , because they were treated 

un f a irly by that s t o ry . 

MR . GOLDEN: It' s not the 

music ; it ' s a c o n f erence call . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Do you kn ow who J. Martin i s at 

pstrategies- ? 

New York 
Connecticut 

A. J . Martin? No , I d o n 't think --

I don 't remember meeting him . 

Q. Do you kn ow who Jim Langdo n is ? 
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A. I d o not kn ow, s i r . 

Q. You k new enough t o inc l ude them 

as cc ' s? 

A. I th i nk i t was this -- something 

which I repl ied t o something . 

Q. We l l , t he e - ma i l below is also 

an e - mai l f rom you ; i s tha t c o rrec t ? 

A. Yes . Yes , i t appears t hat way . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Jason , can I 

just ask you a quest i o n? I mean , 

honest l y , t his documen t has been 

redacted . I don ' t kn ow who redacted 

i t o r why . 

Bu t do you k now whether t h i s 

document is a stand- a l one or i f this 

string o f e - ma i ls g oes f urther than 

t he t wo we see f rom Rina t ? 

MR . COHEN : Th i s is al l we 

have . I don ' t kn ow anything fur t her . 

MR . SPERDUTO: I mean , does 

2108 l ook like it ' s the same string 

i n terms o f Bates numbers? 

MR . COHEN: I don 't know 

o ff hand . 
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MR . SPERDUTO : Okay . 

MR . COHEN: I f i t was , we would 

have included it together . 

I ' ll ask the court reporter t o 

mark as Exhibi t 176 a document with 

t he Ba t es Number PSI2102 . 

(Whereupon , an e - ma i l s t r i ng 

was marked , for identification 

purposes , as Depositio n Exhibit 

Number 176 . ) 

THE WITNESS : I find it 

myster i ous . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Redact 

everything e x cept y o u . 

MR . COHEN: 176 . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen Exhibit 176 

before? 

New York 
Connecticut 

A. 

sir . 

Q. 

Jef f El ler? 

It looks like an e - mail from me , 

I s i t an e - mail from you to 
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A. Co rrect , yes . 

Q. On February 4th , 20 11 ? 

A. Correct , sir . 

Q. And it' s refer -- re f resh --

referencing an AP inqu iry? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you kn ow what AP inquiry 

t hat ' s referring to? 

A. It was a -- I would assume it's 

Ass o c iated President inquiry. 

Q. Exc use me? 

A. AP , Ass o c - -- Ass o ciated Press . 

Q. Yes . 

Do you kn ow who -- who -- what 

the inquiry was? 

A. I think it was something abo ut 

t he Eg ia zaryan mat t er . 

Q. Do you recal l any i nqu i r i es from 

Do ug Birch? 

A. No t t o me , persona lly . I know 

Peter talked to him . 

Q. And the e - mail towards the 

bottom incl udes a cc t o Eliot Lauer? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. Do you kn ow who Eli o t Lauer is? 

A. I think he ' s one of the l awyers . 

Q. For Denovo Denoro , I mean? 

A. The -- the f o r the same 

people , actually --

Q. Fo r -- f or Kerimov ' s company --

A. for -- yes --

Q. is that correct? 

A. Kerimov company , I think so , 

yes . 

Q. I s thi s another e - mail where 

y o u ' re providing some assistance to the 

Den o r o pe ople? 

A. I t ' s not ass i s tance , rather , but , 

you know , if -- if I could refer to message 

f rom April 13, Dro p SK ang l e , and -- and the 

s t ory , really , i s about an asylum matter in 

the Un ited S t a tes. So , therefore , my f o cus 

was on this asylum matter , which was paid by 

my c lient. 

And I really , to be honest , did 

no t want a ll tho se pe ople running around and 

trying -- trying t o put all the se s t or i es 

about murky business dea ls which I really 
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have no i dea about and something which wou l d 

have rea lly mudd i ed up the i ssue wh ich I was 

working on . 

So i t was just the ang l e o f my 

s t ory a l ways was t he asyl um ma tter i n t he 

Un i ted S t a t es f o r Mr . Eg i azaryan . 

And t hese I v i ew t hese peopl e 

as people who are t ryi ng to d il u t e our pun c h 

by having these stories about bus i ness 

d i sputes . And th i s i s such a murky ma t ter , 

no one wan t s t o t a ke s i des on t hese ma tters . 

You know , just bus i ness deals went wro ng and 

t hen they ' re , li ke , 20 l aw f i rms i nvol ved i n 

t h i s th i ng . 

And here , this Mr . Eg i azaryan 

ma t ter , as f ar as I' m concerned , i s abou t 

be i ng -- provi d i ng suppor t f or message of 

ha t red in Russ i a and why -- and shou l d a 

person li ke t hat be admitted to t he 

Un i ted St a t es . 

So , there f ore , a ll these 

commun i cat i o n with these pe ople , wh i ch d i d 

no t l as t f or much l onger , was t ryi ng t o 

dissuade them f rom muddyi ng up my ma t ter . 
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Q. And -- and you ' re trying to 

persuade them t o focus on t he asylum mat t er? 

A. To the ef f ect which -- to the 

e x tent which they c o uld have focused o n this 

t hing . I wish they did , but they -- they had 

t heir own i n t erests . 

Q. And -- and have y o u seen -- y o u 

ment i oned t o a message of ha t red in Russ i a? 

A. I have seen message o f hatred 

being propagated by LDPR . 

Q. Have you seen Mr . Egiazaryan 

making any perso na l statemen t s tha t reflec t 

the message of hatred? 

A. I have seen Mr . Eg i azaryan being 

an associate of this party and 

Q. Have you seen 

A. serving on t heir 

Q. o kay . I'l l ask you the 

question again . 

Have you seen Mr . Eg i azaryan --

any statements f rom Mr . Egiazaryan expressing 

hatred for anyone? 

A. I haven 't seen many statement s 

wi t h Mr . Egiazaryan because I d o not bel i eve 
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he was a pol i t i c i an , per se . Bu t he was a 

support er . That ' s why I very c arefu l ly sa i d 

about support o f this message , because he 

lended h i s name t o that message . 

Q. Did you ever see him -- any 

statemen t s f r om him -- any anti-Semi t ic 

statement s fr om Mr . Eg i azaryan? 

A. I don 't have seen any statement s 

f rom Mr . Egiazaryan , except f or him being a 

member -- or an ass o ciate o f that party . 

Q. Have you seen any statement s 

f rom him suppo rt i ng any p o si t ions o f the 

LDPR? 

A. No , bu t by h i s -- I saw him 

supporting LDPR by l ending them their name 

his own personal name , which is -- I think 

it ' s qui t e significant , in my view . 

Q. Did y o u see any -- any 

p osi t ion any statement by Mr . Egiazaryan 

i n favor of any posi t ion of t he LDPR tha t 

you f ind reprehens i ble or inappropriate? 

A. I th i nk him be i ng servi ng on the 

l ist of t hat par t y wi thin Russian Duma , 

whereas he cou l d have j o i ned any o f t he 
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parties . There ' s a Communist party; there ' s 

the Fair Russia party; there ' s -- there ' s 

several parties . 

He cho se year after year f or 

nearly 10 years to -- to be associate -- if 

y o u ass o ciate with Hamas , it's the same way . 

Yo u know , they -- they wan t t o des troy 

I srae l. And anyth i ng that' s havi ng t o do 

with Hamas is deplorable . It just -- just 

in the same way , that's how I f eel abo ut this 

matter , s ir. 

Q. Do you understand that 

Mr . Egiazaryan was an independen t and n o t a 

member of the LDPR? 

A. He served 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objection to the 

form . 

THE WITNESS : -- I sir, as 

f ar as I ' m concerned , he was a 

supporter of that party by l ending 

them his name . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. But going back t o the previous 

q ues tion you d idn 't answer , y o u ' ve not seen 
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any statement s by him suppor t ing any 

p o si t ion of t he LDPR --

A. Not until now 

Q. that y o u th i nk i s 

inappropriate? 

A. not un t i l now -- I' m n o t aware 

by now whe t her he made any -- any statement s , 

per se , ac t ual l y --

Q. You ' ve re -

A. statements by him . 

Q. you ' ve researched the mat t er 

t horough l y ; i s tha t c o rrec t ? 

A. I t h i nk s o , yes . 

Q. And -- and by -- in your effort s 

with -- in providing support to Publ ic 

Strategies , y o u were also assist i ng 

Su l eiman Kerimov ; is tha t correc t ? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objec t ion to t he 

f o rm ; assumes f acts ; mi scharac t erizes 

t est i mony . 

Go ahead . 

THE WITNESS : I d o n ' t th i nk i t 

was Mr . Kerimov . When I -- I 

remember my f irs t meet i ng wi t h Publ ic 
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Stra t egies , and t he very f i rst thing 

I t o l d them what my stand on this 

issue is . I said that I ' m a 

representative o f Mr . Vavil ov . 

And I have -- I t o l d 

Mr . Vavi l ov ' s story i n connect i o n t o 

t heir adversary . And , you kn ow, in a 

way , there ' s a Russia saying , 

adversary o f my adversary is my 

f r i end . So that ' s -- that ' s , I 

t hink , bes t describe my at t i t ude 

t owards t hese peopl e . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. And so your at t i t ude towards the 

Kerimov people who you were communicating 

with o n a regular basis was they were y o ur 

friend? 

A. I -- I v i ew t hem as a f r i endl y 

f o rce . 

Q. And -- and you understood , by 

providing information and advice , that you 

were ass i sting them i n some way or hopi ng 

t o? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objec t ion to t he 
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f o rm . 

Go ahead . 

THE WITNESS : The same way as I 

assisted Mr . Smagan , l i ke the same 

way I assisted some other peop l e . So 

we we re t rying to kind o f share t hese 

n o t es wi t h pe ople who have interes t 

i n th i s i ssue . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Yo u had the same -- y o u had the 

same interes t s? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objec t ion to t he 

f o rm 

THE WITNESS : Th i s person --

MR . SPERDUTO : 

mischaracter i zes prior testimo ny . 

Sorry . 

THE WITNESS : -- as --

MR . SPERDUTO : Ambi gu o us . 

Go ahead now . 

THE WITNESS : -- say same --

we we -- we -- we are interested 

in the same person . Tha t' s t he 

ex t ent a t wh i ch we k i nd o f joined . 
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But our interests were quite 

opposite as wh i ch , in thi s case , of 

them trying to tell their story, 

which wo uld have undercut my s t o ry . 

BY MR. COHEN: 

Q. And -- and you f elt that by 

providing them with s ome information , they 

migh t be able t o tel l a more effective 

story? 

A. I though t maybe they could 

amplify our s t ory , bu t they had no intere s t 

in doing that . 

Q. And y o u felt if they amplified 

your s t ory , t hat wou l d be he l pfu l for you? 

A. That would have been he l p ful f or 

my client . 

Q. And it wou ld have been helpful 

f o r Mr . Kerimov? 

A. I d o n 't think s o . 

Q. And you c om- -- as we ' ve seen , 

you were regularly communicating with 

Mr . Ker imov ' s c o lleagues ; i s that c o rrect? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objection ; 

charac teriza tion . 
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Bu t g o ahead . 

THE WITNESS : I would no t 

describe it " regularly," but I -- I 

have e x changed quite a f ew e - mails . 

I wou l d say probab l y 10 , 20 , a t most . 

I t mi ght be l ess than t hat . I don ' t 

know how many y o u have . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. And did you -- and you knew that 

Mr . Kerimov was a member o f the LDPR ; i s 

t hat correct? 

MR . SPERDUTO : I ' m sorry . I 

didn ' t hear t he beginn i ng . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did you know that Mr . Kerimov 

was a member o f the LDPR? 

A. I did know , and I know tha t he 

l e f t tha t party i n d i sgust . 

Q. And and you , n o ne t heless , 

c ont i nued t o provide support for Mr . Ker i mov 

and Kerimov ' s position , notwithstanding the 

f act that he was a member o f the LDPR? 

A. I t hink he pub l ic l y l eft tha t 

party . He d i sasso ciated himse lf f r om t hat 
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message . 

Good enough for me . 

Q. But he was not -- he was a 

member f or a perio d o f time ; is that 

correc t ? 

A. I be l ieve s o , yes . 

Q. Yo u know so ; is t hat correct? 

A. I t h i n k so , yes . I es t abl i shed 

New York 
Connecticut 

that . 

MR . COHEN : Mark as 

Exhibi t 176 --

THE WITNESS : 1 77 . 

MR . COHEN : -- 177 an e - mail 

da t ed February 5 t h , bear i ng 

Bates Number PSI2227 . 

THE WITNESS : Thank y o u . 

MR . COHEN: Le t me keep one for 

t he c o ur t repo rter . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Sorry . 

(Whereupon , an e - mail string 

was marked , f o r identi f ication 

purposes , as Deposition Exhibi t 

Number 177 . ) 
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THE WITNESS : Than k s . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen thi s e - ma il 

before? 

A. Ye s , I do -- I d i d . I think so . 

Q. I t ' s an e - ma il fr om y o u t o 

var ious p eop l e who work for Su l e i man Ker i mov 

or his companies? 

A. Correct . I' m wr i t i ng thi s was --

yes . 

Q. Yo u sent this e - mail o n or abo ut 

February 5 th, 2 011 ; i s tha t c o rrect? 

A. That ' s wha t i t says , s i r . 

Q. And you ' re updating them on the 

status o f -- o f an Assoc i a t ed Press piece ; 

i s tha t correc t ? 

A. I t h ink t h is was in f o llow up 

with the previ ous e - ma il, yes . 

Q. And you ' re des cribing an effort 

to insert an a l ternat ive narrat ive in to the 

story; i s that c o rre ct? 

A. Correct. I wan t ed t o have a 

r o unded story, not a o ne - way -- n o t a 
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o ne - sided story . 

Q. And did t he Kerimov peop l e 

support your ef f orts to d o this? 

A. I think they were the ones who 

t hey ' re t he ones who alerted me t o thi s 

story 

Q. They a lerted you to --

A. -- the s t or i es comi ng -- excuse 

me? 

Q. Who -- who a l e rted you that the 

AP was wr i t ing thi s s t ory abou t 

Ash o t Eg i a zarya n ? 

A. I think it might have been 

J e ff El l e r 

Q. Jeff Eller? 

A. so he -- Je f f Eller , yes --

i ssued thi s AP inquiry . So t hi s was , like , 

leadi ng up to th i s thing . 

Q. Why d i d Jeff Eller a lert you to 

t he A the inquiry fr om AP? 

A. Because he wante d to let me know 

that there ' s a s t o ry coming ou t and give me 

an oppor t un i t y t o inser t my s t ory in thi s . 

Q. Did y ou share y ou r conversat i on 
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wi th Mr . -- that you had with Mr . Eller wi th 

Mr . Za l mayev? 

A. I might have , yes , because I ask 

him t o appro ach AP correspondent trying t o 

provide additional informa tion on t he 

story 

Q. And --

A. yes . 

Q. and the reference to the 

f riendly human rights NGO person fr om 

New York in t he second line i s Mr. Zalmayev; 

is that c o rrect? 

A. Yes , I think so , yes . 

Q. Do you recal l t hat he me t 

Mr . Birch in D. C. ? 

A. I -- if I remember correctly, 

yes , s ir. 

Q. Do you recall if Mr . Zalmayev 

met with Mr . Birch before the story came 

ou t -- h i s f i rst AP story came out? 

A. I think that was the purpose to 

meet Mr . Birch . 

MR . COHEN: I'll ask the court 

repo rter to mark as Exhibit 178 a 
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c opy o f an e - mai l fr o m 

Rina t Ak hmetsh i n to Greg Hi tt bear i ng 

Bates Number PSI2 08 4. 

(Whereupon , an e - mail was 

marked , f o r i den tifi ca tion purpo ses , as 

Deposi tion Exh i b i t Number 178 . ) 

THE WITNESS : Thank you . 

BY MR . COH EN: 

Q. Have you seen thi s e - ma il 

befo re? 

A. Yes , I have , s ir. 

Q. Did you send this e - ma il to 

Mr . Hitt on or around February 25th, 20 11? 

A. That ' s wha t i t says . 

Q. Does t h i s contain a draft 

o f an o f an art i c le ? 

A. Co rrect . That ' s the d ire c t o r of 

the op- ed . 

Q. Why were you sharing with 

Mr . Hitt dra f ts o f an -- o f an art icl e tha t 

you were hop ing to p l ace? 

A. I h oped maybe he cou l d help me 
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wi t h this . 

Q. Did he help you wi t h i t ? 

A. No . 

Q. Did he provide comments or edits 

t o i t ? 

A. No . 

Q. How d o -- h ow d o you -- why d o 

you re c a l l tha t ? 

A. I -- I think I talked to him 

about that , and he said that , really , he had 

no abi l i t y to he l p me . 

Q. Did he help y o u place t he 

ar t icle? 

A. No , he d i dn 't. 

Q. Who placed the article? 

A. I ' m no t sure whether the -- has 

it ever run? 

THE COURT REPORTER : I ' m sorry? 

THE WITNESS : Yeah . I -- I ' m 

no t sure whe t her this ar t i c le has 

ever run . So we were shopping it . 

I thought maybe he could 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Do 
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A. help --

Q. do 

A. me to find the place for it . 

Q. do y o u know who dra f ted this 

ar t icle in the first place? 

A. I t could be Peter Zalmayev , 

Mr . Zalmayev . 

Q. I' m sorry . I didn ' t catch the 

answer . 

A. It could have been Mr . Zalmayev . 

Q. Do you know whether or not i t 

was Mr . Zalmayev? 

A. I d o not remember , sir . Probably 

Mr . Za l mayev . 

Did it ever run? 

Q. I ' ll show y o u in a second . 

A. Sure . 

MR . COHEN : I'l l ask the court 

reporter to mark as Exhibit 179 a 

e - ma i l from Rina t Akhmetsh i n bearing 

Bates Number PSI2030 . 

(Whereupon , an e - mail s t ring 

was marked , f o r i dentification 
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purposes , as Depos i t i o n Exhibi t 

Number 179 . ) 

THE WITNESS : Thank y o u . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you -- have you seen t h i s 

e - ma i l before? 

A. Yes , I have . 

Q. Did you send this e - mai l to 

s omeone at Public Strategies o n or aro und 

March 13 t h , 20 11 ? 

A. Probabl y , yes . 

Q. And y o u sent this t o -- i t 

doesn 't have a To on i t; is t hat corre c t? 

An addressee? 

A. I d o n ' t see i t , yes , s i r . 

Q. You sent this t o a group of 

did y o u send this t o a gro up o f peopl e? 

A. I d o n 't remember , sir . I t loo ks 

we i rd , because you a l ways have b e e a t l eas t 

i f you send to the group . 

Q. I ' m s o rry . I c o uldn ' t hear y o u . 

A. Yeah . I f you send to t he group , 

i t wi l l appear a bee tag , bu t i t -- t here ' s 
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n o t h i ng here . 

Q. And at the end of t he firs t 

paragraph , it says ra , right , on the f irst 

page? 

A. Sir . 

Q. At the end o f t he f irs t 

paragraph , i t says 

A. Uh - huh 

Q. l ouder than --

A. all r i ght --

Q. 1000 words 

A. tha t' s me , yes . 

Q. Yeah . 

A. Yes , the p i c t ure -- t here ' s a 

wonder f ul cartoon , yes . 

Q. And d o you recall sendi ng th i s 

t o Pub l ic Stra t egies? 

A. I migh t' ve sen t i t to t hem , yes . 

Q. And t h i s is an art i c l e tha t 

stated tha t i t ' s authored by 

Leonid Komarovsky ; is that correct? 

A. Yes , it d oes say so . 

I s tha t t he same one? 

MR . COHEN : I'l l ask the court 
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reporter to mark as Exhibit 180 an 

e - ma il bearing Bates Number PS I 2035 . 

(Whereupo n , an e - mail was 

marked , for identification purposes , as 

Depo sition Exhibit Number 180.) 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen this before? 

A. Yes , it l ooks like I sen t it. 

Q. And you sen t thi s to 

Mr . Nariman ; is that correct? 

A. Correct, yes . 

Q. He ' s who you previously 

described as someone who works f or Kerimov ' s 

company? 

A. I know that there' s a 

company Oen o r o , yes . 

THE COU RT REPORTER : It ' s a 

c ompany what? 

THE WITNESS : It ' s a company 

ca lled Denoro or something like that. 

BY MR. COH EN: 

Q. And is he repo rting on variou s 
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ef f o rts of -- t hat you and Peter are tak i ng 

regard i ng Ashot Eg i azaryan ; i s tha t c orrec t ? 

A. Not correct , sir , no . 

Q. What is -- what i s this repo rt? 

A. I t ' s informing them . 

Q. I s in f orming something 

di f feren t 

A. informing is shar i ng --

Q. than report? 

A. but it ' s -- repo rt " repo rt " 

assumes re l a t ions hip . "I nformation " means 

shar i ng . 

Q. I' m g o i ng t o show y o u Do cument 

Number PS I 2029 , wh i ch wi l l be mar ked as 

Exhibit 18 1. 

(Whereupon , an e - mai l was 

marked , f o r i den t i f ica t ion purpo ses , as 

Deposi t ion Exh i b i t Number 18 1 . ) 

THE WITNESS : Thank you . 

BY MR . COH EN: 

Q. Are you i s t his your e - mai l ? 

A. I t says t hat ' s my e - ma i l , yes , 
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c o rrect . 

Q. And -- and is i t i s this an 

e - mail that you sent to Greg Hitt and 

Je ff Eller o n or around March 14th, 2 011? 

A. It does say so , s ir. 

Q. And it says it's a ttaching two 

letters? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Do you recall what two letters 

those were? 

A. I t hink it was some group l e tters 

on Ashot Egiazaryan ' s matters . 

Q. Why were you sending that along? 

A. Just to i nform them so they would 

know that . 

MR . COHEN : I'll ask the court 

reporter to mark as Exhibit 182 a 

March 23 e - mail from Ri nat Akhmetshin 

bearing Bates Number PSI 2062 . 

(Whereupon , an e - mail was 

marked , f o r identifi ca tion purpo ses , as 

Deposi tion Exhibit Number 182 .) 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen thi s e - ma il 

be f ore? 

A. I did . 

Q. Did you send thi s e - mail on or 

around March 23 , 201 1 ? 

A. Yes , it d o es appear that way , 

sir . 

Q. It says that it l ooks like our 

f riend Ashot i s i n Wash ing t o n next week . 

Do you see tha t? 

A. Ye s , I do . 

Q. Where d i d y o u learn info rmati o n 

abou t Mr . Eg i azaryan ' s trave l plans? 

A. I think that the people in the 

NGO i n f o rme d me abou t i t . 

Q. Who? 

A. It was their -- t here ' s t h is -- I 

thin k that they g o t request f o r meet ings wi th 

Mr . Eg i azaryan . 

Q. Do you recall who -- who --

A. I --

Q. -- notifi ed you tha t 

Ash o t Egiazaryan was going to be in 
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Wash ing ton the foll owing week? 

A. I thi n k someone from 

Freedom House . 

Q. Sam Patten? 

A. Correct, yes . 

Q. And why was he sharing that 

info rmati o n wi th you? 

A. Because we approached h i m 

describing the impression o f Mr . Eg i azaryan 

ma t ter , and he tho ught tha t i t ' s goo d t o let 

us know tha t Mr . Eg i azaryan i s coming to 

Wash ington . Tha t' s t he na t ure o f c o ur te sy . 

Q. Let me show y o u a d o cument tha t 

i s marked as PS I 2 188 , wh i ch we will mar k as 

Exhibit 183 . 

(Whereupon , an e - mail was 

marked , f o r i den tifi ca tion purpo ses , as 

Depo s ition Exh i b i t Number 183 . ) 

MR . SPERDUT O: -4. 

THE WITNESS: - 3 . 

MR . SPERDUTO : You ' re right. 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen t h i s documen t 

be f ore? 

A. Co rrect, I -- I' ve seen i t . 

Q. I s t h i s an e - ma il t ha t you sen t 

t o Greg Hi t t , Je ff El ler and Pau l Bu t ler o n 

or ar o und March 9th , 20 1 1? 

A. Yes , s i r , i t does app ear tha t 

way , yes . 

Q. Yo u ' re notify i ng Greg Hit t , 

Jef f Eller and Pau l Butler t ha t a publi shed 

i tem requires an an immedi a t e respo nse ; 

i s tha t c o rrec t ? 

A. Correct, I suggested them . 

Q. You suggested that they 

provi de a -- pro v i de a respo nse? 

A. Correct; med i a 

Q. Why did --

A. oppor t unity . 

Q. why d i d you suggest tha t t hey 

provide a response? 

A. Because I wo uld ha t e to see 

abso l u t e l y made - up s t ory t o go withou t havi ng 

another side o f t h i s s t o ry . 
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Q. Why didn ' t you respo nd? 

A. I had abso l u t e l y no expert i se 

to -- to say about this . You could say that 

permanent l ega l e x pert to -- to t a lk abo ut 

t hese ma tters. 

Because I' m n o t an expert on 

these matters , but I see an oppo rtunity and I 

know an opportun i ty when I see it. And t h i s 

was a perfect media opportunity . 

Un f o rtunately , I'm not sure they 

ever used it. 

Q. And i t says , No d o ub t this wi l l 

g o into Ash o t's asylum file . We sho uld have 

another one t hat will i nva lida t e it? 

A. Correct , yes . This is cynical 

attempt t o portray himself as a victim, which 

he never was . So , therefore , it's important 

t o set the record stra i ght . 

Q. Do you kn ow who Kirill Kabanov 

i s? 

A. I ' ve heard the name , sir . 

Q. What -- what do y o u know 

abou t 

A. I know --
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Q. Ki r i l l Kaban ov? 

A. he ' s -- I thin k he ' s one of 

the , l ike , Russian activists f or 

transparency , antico rruption e fforts . 

Q. Have you coordinated wi th him in 

any capaci t y wi th regard to t he 

Ash o t Eg i azaryan pro ject? 

A. I did not. I never -- I heard of 

him . I never met him . I know some --

s omeone might ' ve , but no t me . 

Q. The foregoing on l y constitutes a 

p o rt i o n o f your c ommun i cat i o ns wi th Publ i c 

Stra t egies and o t her pe ople who wo rk for 

Kerimov ; is t hat corre c t? 

A. These are the ones which I could 

tell f or sure that happened , but I ' m not sure 

whether t here are more . 

Q. Yo u know you had 

c ommun i cat i o ns other c ommun i cat i o ns wi th 

t hem from t ime to t ime ; i sn 't t hat corre c t? 

A. For the short period o f time , you 

know , if you could loo k i nto this th i ng , 

because t he -- the answers were differen t 

f rom mi ne . 
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Q. And y o u spoke wi t h them on the 

t e l ephone from t i me t o t i me , in addi t ion to 

exchanging e - mails --

A. I spoke --

Q. is t hat correct? 

A. to Mr . Hi t t , yes 

Q. And t hen 

A. three , four t i mes . 

Q. and , as you said , you had 

meetings with them f r om time to time ; is 

t hat correct? 

A. I had meet i ngs wi th Mr . Hi t t , bu t 

n o t just o n t h i s mat t er . We had mutua l 

acquaintanc es . 

Q. And and I believe you stated 

that your team and the Kerimov team had 

unanimity of purpose? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objec t ion ; 

mischaracter i zes prior tes t imo ny 

THE WITNESS : I did no t state 

that 

(Multiple speakers ; reco rd 

unat t ainab l e . ) 

BY MR . COHEN : 
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Q. Okay . Do do --

A. I d i d not ever say t hat . 

Q. did your team and 

Mr . Kerimov ' s t eam have unanimi ty o f 

purpose? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Asked and 

answered . 

THE WITNESS : I sa i d tha t we 

both were f ocusing on the same 

individual f or dif f erent purpo ses . 

BY MR. COHEN: 

Q. And y o u ' re f ocus i ng on the same 

result ; is that c o rrect? 

A. That' s not correct , sir . 

Q. What result were you seeking? 

A. As I mentioned in thi s 

previous answers -- as we discussed in the 

previ o us my -- o f my answers , my issue was 

the asylum issue . It ' s s omething wh ich I was 

paid for and I was retained for . 

The ir interest was the commercial 

matter which had -- and , a t one p o int, I 

realized hindered and overshadowed my i ssues . 

So that c ompar i son c ompar i ng no tes or 
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exchange o f info rmati o n has stopped by the 

time when we rea li zed that, you know, just 

there's nothing else to discuss or compare . 

Q. Yo ur is sue -- was y o ur is sue to 

have Mr. Egiazaryan deported? 

A. No . My iss ue , as my c lient asked 

me to d o , t o not t o a llow my client not to 

see Mr . Eg i azaryan in the United States . I 

will put it that way . 

Q. Did y o u participate in the 

securing of l e tters from Lev Ponomarev and 

Lyudmi l a Al exeyeva? 

A. I d i d n o t. I d o not kn ow. 

Q. Did you play any role i n the 

drafting o f those letters? 

A. I might have seen s ome -- I'm no t 

sure , s ir. No, I --

Q. Did y o u --

A. -- the answer probably is n o . I 

do not remember . 

Q. You don ' t remember or you did 

no t? 

A. I do not remember , s ir. 

Q. Did y o u play a role in dra fting 

New York 
Connecticut 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 

New Jersey 
Pennsylvania 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

1 8 

1 9 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

252 

RINAT R. AKHMETSHIN 

or developing the message that wou l d be in 

the l etters that were signed by Ponomarev or 

Alexeyeva? 

A. I might have had input into those 

matters. 

Q. In what way? 

A. Well , I discussed Mr . Zalmayev . 

I think he was -- he kn ew those peop l e for 

his previous work on Chechnya issue and human 

rights , and I might have suggested him 

certain approaches . 

Q. Did y o u c o nduc t research that 

was inco rporated into letters that were 

prepared for Mr . Ponomarev and 

Ms . Alexeyeva? 

A. I c o nducted a l o t o f research , 

s ir. I'm not sure whe ther it was applicable 

t o th ose letters , but very th o r o ugh due 

di ligence has been done on th ose matters . 

MR . COHEN: I'll ask the court 

reporter to mark as Exhibit 184 a 

d ocument containing Bates Number 

PZ1327 . 
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(Whereupo n , a col l ect i o n of 

l e t ters was mar ked , for i den t ifi c a t ion 

purposes , as Deposition Exhibit 

Number 184 . ) 

THE WITNESS : Thank y o u . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen t h i s documen t 

before? 

A. I have , sir . 

Q. What? 

A. I -- I have seen this d o cument 

be f o re , sir . 

Q. Do you k now who draf t ed i t? 

A. I think it was drafted -- I don ' t 

know , sir . It ' s signed by Mr . Ponomarev . 

Q. I t was not signed at al l; is 

t hat correct? 

A. There ' s a name there . I ' m not 

sure whe t her i t was signed , bu t I' m fami l iar 

with these letters . I ' ve seen it . 

Q. Do you know who signed it? 

A. I t ' s signed by Mr . Ponomarev . 

Q. Do you kn ow who dra ft ed i t? 
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A. I d o not kn ow, s ir. Maybe you 

shou l d ask Mr . Ponomarev . 

Q. Do you know if -- did you p l ay a 

r o l e in dra ftin g this? 

A. I do not remember , sir . 

Q. Did Mr . Zalmaye v , t o your 

kno wledge , p l ay a r o le in draf ti ng this? 

A. He mi ght have . I don 't k now . 

You should ask him , sir . They ' re a ll the 

same 

Q. Addressed to different peopl e? 

A. -- except except, s i r , t here ' s 

the l ast o ne is by Ms . Gannushkina which is 

different . The same --

Q. These are a ll 

A. -- it ' s a di fferent l etter . The 

l ast page , it ' s dif f eren t l e tter by a 

dif f erent person . 

Go od letter . 

Q. Did you do research that 

supported this -- any information in this 

l etter? 

A. I did no t write thi s l et t er , sir . 

Q. Did y o u d o research t hat 
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suppor t -- tha t suppor t ed t he i n f o rmat i o n i n 

t h i s l et t er? 

A. My research was similar to -- my 

c o nclusion was simi lar to the c o nclusions o f 

t his l et t er . 

Q. Did y o u d o research on the 

c o mmi t t ee t hat ' s referenced i n this l e t ter? 

A. I migh t have , sir . I' ve done a 

lot o f research . 

Q. Do you have any research that 

shows t hat the commi t tee was entrusted wi th 

f unds? 

A. I t h i nk i t was -- t o the bes t of 

my recol l e c t i on , i t was subjec t of s c rut i ny 

by Russian journa l ists , this committee . And 

that ' s my knowl edge about th i s committee 

shou l d be based on those artic l es . 

Q. And y o ur kn owledge is based upon 

newspaper ar t icles? 

A. Correct, s i r . 

Q. Did you read committee reports? 

A. I ' m s o rry? 

Q. Did you read commi t tee repor t s? 

A. I did n o t see c o mmi t t ee repo rts , 
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sir . 

Q. Did you meet wi th members of the 

committee? 

A. Sir , I did not write this letter , 

so why are you asking me? 

Q. Did y o u meet wi th members o f the 

c ommit t ee? 

A. I do not k now members of the 

committee , sir . I do not represent this 

either? 

Q. I' m sorry? 

A. The c o mmi t t ee -- which commi t tee 

are y o u saying . 

Q. The c ommi t t ee t hat ' s d i s c ussed 

in the letter . 

A. There are two c o mmi ttees : the 

Helsinki Security and Cooperation Commit t ee 

i n Europe , and the Commi t tee f or Ass i s t ance 

i n Pol i t i cal Regulat i o n and Observance o f 

Human Righ t s in Chechnya . 

Q. Did you meet with the Chechen 

c o mmi ttee? 

A. I did not, sir . I don ' t think 

i t ' s 
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Q. Did y o u --

A. in ex i s t ence . 

Q. did you l ook at their books 

and reco rds? 

A. I -- not personally , no. 

Q. Did y o u audit any financ i a l 

reco rds fr om the Russian Government 

regard i ng Chechnya? 

A. I did not , sir . 

Q. Was y o ur was y o ur research 

regarding Chechnya lim- -- limited to 

newspaper articles? 

A. I d o not remember , sir . 

Q. I' m go i ng t o show you a document 

bearing the Bates number PZ1553 . 

MR . COHEN : This will be marked 

as Exhi - --

THE WITNESS : 185. 

MR . COH EN: -- Exhibit 184 --

THE WITNESS : 185 . 

MR . SPERDUTO : - 5 . 

MR . COHEN : 185. 

(Whereupo n , letters f r om 
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Lyudmila Alexeyeva , Chairperso n , Mosco w 

He l s i nki Group were mar ked , for 

identification purposes , as Deposition 

Exhibit Number 185 . ) 

THE WITNESS : Yes, s i r . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen thi s --

A. I have seen this --

Q. -- these documents be f ore? 

A. I have seen , sir , yes . 

Q. And i s this -- these documen t s a 

produc t of the pro ject tha t y o u were working 

on wi th Peter Za l mayev? 

A. I could not tell , sir . I did not 

wr i te t h i s letter . I did no t sign it . 

Q. Did you have a -- did you play 

any r o le in t he devel opment or dra fting o f 

the se let ters? 

A. I did not -- I was not invol ved 

in the dra f ting or deve l opment o f these 

l e t ters . 

I -- I -- I have -- I might have 

sugges ted t he need f or a ttention f r o m human 
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righ t s o rgan i zat i o ns . 

Q. Bu t you didn ' t provide research 

to support this letter ; is that correct? 

A. I did no t , to the best o f my 

recollec t ion , sir . 

Q. Yo ur -- i t ' s your p o si t ion tha t 

y o u had n o t h i ng t o do wi t h these let t ers 

other t han perhaps suggest i ng Mr . Za l mayev 

reach out to Russian human rights 

organizations? 

A. That is correct, sir , yes . 

Q. Bu t y o u ' ve seen t hese l e t ter 

have you seen t he l e t ters t hat have been 

mar ked as Exhibi t 185 before? 

A. I have seen it , yes . 

Q. Ho w did they come t o -- i nto 

your possession? 

A. Mr . Zalmayev 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objec t ion to 

form . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did y o u ever have a c opy o f 

t hese l e t ters? 

A. Maybe Mr . Zalmayev may have 
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menti o ned t o me , and I might have had c opies , 

yes . 

Q. It ' s possible you never even saw 

it be f ore? 

A. No, no . I saw them , definitely. 

Q. It's possible y o u never had a 

c opy before? 

A. I think I did have cop i es . I 

should , probably . That ' s how I saw them . 

Q. I'm g o ing t o sho w y o u a d o cument 

that bears the Bates range -- or s t arts wi t h 

the Bates Number PZ1559 , and it will be 

marked as Exhibit 186 . 

(Whereupon , letters fr om 

Lev Po nomarev , Executive Directo r , 

All - Russian Public Movemen t "For Human 

Rights " were marked, f or identi fi catio n 

purposes , as Depositi o n Exhibit 

Number 186 . ) 

THE WITNESS: Thank y o u . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Here ' s t he 

original. 
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THE WITNESS : Yeah . 

BY MR . COHEN: 

Q. Have you seen these l etters 

be f o re? 

A. The same as 184 . 

Q. Exc us e me? 

A. The same le t ter as 184. You 

as k ed me abo ut it a lready , s i r . 

Q. Okay . That was in the dra f t 

f o r m i s 184? 

A. I t hink s o , yes 

Q. And t h i s is t he fi na l f o rm --

A. the same -- same guy fr o m --

Q. in 186? 

A. Correct , yes 

Q. Okay . And --

A. it appears t hat way . I --

I -- I d i d not do wo rd- by- wo rd check , b u t it 

d o es appear that way . 

Q. Did you have anyth i ng t o do with 

writing the -- the -- the -- th i s l etter , 

186? 

A. I do no t remember , s ir. I doubt 

it. 
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Q. Did y o u play -- play a role , as 

far as you can reca ll, i n provi d i ng 

in f ormation to support the statements in 

Exhibit 186? 

A. I do not remember , sir . I do 

no t -- I do no t t h i nk s o . 

Q. I wi l l show y o u a d o cument 

t hat ' s been previ ous l y marked as Exh i b i t 14 . 

A. Thank you . 

Q. Have you seen th i s set o f 

documents before? 

A. I' m no t sure I d i d , sir . 

Q. Yo u see -- cal l ing your 

at t ent i on and I k now i t ' s a li t tl e 

di ff icu l t to read -- on the third line 

A. Uh - huh . 

Q. -- i t says , Recent l y , I go t new 

i n f o rmat i o n abou t Mr . Eg i azaryan ' s act i v i ty , 

wh i ch was ment i o ned i n my l e t ter and which 

was t he po i n t of my c oncern . And t h i s 

in f ormation has been ca l led by me into 

ques t ions . 

Do you see t ha t ? 

A. Yes , I do see i t , sir . 
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Q. Do you remember ever hearing o r 

read i ng t hat? 

A. I sir , I don ' t remember seeing 

this letter . 

Q. Do you remember hearing t hat 

Ms . Alexeyeva re t rac t ed her l e t ters? 

A. I -- I heard abo ut i t, yes , sir . 

Q. And what d i d you hear abou t 

that? 

A. Mr . Zalmayev told Ms . Alex eyeva 

re t rac t ed her l e tter . 

Q. Did y o u reach ou t t o 

Ms . Alexeyeva t o find ou t why? 

A. As I men tioned to you , I do no t 

know her , sir . 

Q. Okay . 

A. I never me t her . I never 

probabl y wi l l. 

Q. But y o u c o uld have cal l ed her if 

you wanted to ; is t hat corre c t? 

A. I have no idea who she is, sir . 

I mean , I know who she is, but I do no t know 

even how t o reach her . And t here ' s no reason 

f o r her t o take a phone ca l l f r om me . 
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Q. Yo u have lots of con t act in 

Russ i a , don 't you? 

A. I f I wanted to , I probably could 

f ind her and contact , but --

Q. And she ' s a --

A. I d i dn 't. 

Q. i t' s a prom- -- she works for 

a promi nen t 

A. I know it ' s --

Q. human r i ghts organization --

A. a very --

Q. correct? 

A. respect f u l l ady , and I know 

t hat she after -- af t er t hat retra c t i on , she 

retracted that retraction , too , as you may 

know . I don ' t know if you ' re aware o f that . 

She made a s t a t ement about 

Mr . Eg i azaryan in very un fl a t ter i ng t erms . 

Q. Bu t she didn ' t -- she did no t 

wi t hdraw her -- what -- do you have a she 

did not withdraw her retraction , did she 

A. No . She made --

Q. she made com-

A. she made another 
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Q. -- she made additional 

c ommen t s 

A. -- she made additional --

THE COURT REPORTER : Wait , 

wait . 

She made addi t i o na l ? 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. She made add i t i ona l c ommen t s , 

correct? 

A. To the best of my knowledge , 

Ms . Alexeyeva , again , reviewed this case , and 

she made the comments wh i ch are n o t 

flattering to Mr . Egiazaryan . And she really 

ques t ions his t rack re c ord as a posi t ion --

politician and his I I do not remember 

verbally , but it ' s in a way , the fact was the 

re t rac t ion of her re t rac t ion ; so a 

restatement o f her fi rst statement , if you 

c o uld say that . 

Q. And l e t me cal l your a t ten t ion 

to the next page and Leonid 

Lev Po nomarev? 

A. As I men t ioned to you , I never 

met the guy , but I ' ve heard o f him , yes . 
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Q. Did y o u reach ou t t o him after 

seeing this re t raction? 

A. I did not , sir . I never met him 

in perso n and really have no reas o n t o 

contac t him. 

Q. Did it cause you to have any 

c o ncern abou t the truthfulness o f the 

i n i t i a l l e t ters t hat both Ms . Ponomarev 

Mr . Ponomarev and Ms . Alexeyeva had 

retracted their statements? 

A. No . I think that it caused me 

c o ncern about Mr . Po nomarev ' s integrity. 

It's 

Q. Do you kn ow 

A. to me -- to me -- to me it 

l ooks 

Q. Do you -- do you know Ms . --

A. ridiculous . 

Q. Ms . Pono- -- Mr . Po nomarev 

and Ms . Al exeyeva t o be respec t ed human 

rights activists in the Soviet Union f or 

many years ; i s that c o rrect? 

A. I believe so , yes. I know a t 

least f o r Ms . Alexeyeva . I know 
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Mr . Po n omarev was also human rights person . 

Q. And you k now Ms . Al exeyeva was 

nominated f or a Nobel Peace Prize ; is that 

c o rrect? 

A. I'm sure she was , yes . 

Q. And y o u know that she -- both o f 

them have operated in the human rights 

sphere in Russ i a for many years ; is that 

correct? 

A. I've heard rumors . 

Q. And -- and you k now tha t you 

have to have a lot o f backbo ne to d o that in 

the Soviet Union ; i s tha t c o rrect? 

A. I wou ld agree with you , sir , yes . 

There f ore , these statements is out o f 

ordina r y . 

Q. And you -- you know tha t 

Mr . Za l mayev paid Ms . Po n omarev [ s i c] cash ; 

i s tha t c o rrect? 

A. On the request of Mr . Ponomarev , 

yes . 

Q. And y o u know tha t Mr . Zalmayev 

paid Ms . Al exeyeva cash --

A. Ye s --
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Q. prior to --

A. I -- I --

Q. the statement? 

A. I heard a f terwards . And I 

also heard rumors t hat Mr. Egiazaryan ' s l ega l 

New York 
Connecticut 

representatives paid cash t o --

Q . And 

A. both of this . 

Q. I ' m not asking you f or your 

knowledge o f rumors --

A. I'm j ust --

Q. o r speculatio n . 

A. trying t o state it f o r the 

record , sir . 

MR . SPERDUT O: Jason , he ' s just 

trying to f inish his answer , that ' s 

all. 

MR . COHEN : He was adding 

s omething that was not asked -- in 

response to someth i ng that wasn 't 

asked . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Well , i f y o u use 

thi s in Cour t, you can make your 

mo tion to strike . But just as a 
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matter o f professional courtesy, let 

him finish h i s quest i on -- h i s 

answer , sir . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. I'm going to hand you what ' s 

been previously marked as Exhibit 85 . 

This is a Vo ice of America 

article . 

Have you seen this before? 

A. I must have , yes , sir . 

Q. You like to read almost 

everything abo ut --

THE VIDEOGRAPHER : Wh oa , I ' m 

sorry . I c ouldn ' t hear 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Mr . Egiazaryan , right? 

THE COURT REPORTER : Yeah , 

yeah , we couldn 't hear you . 

MR . COHEN : Okay . I ' m sorry . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. What was your answer? 

A. Yes , I must have seen this , sir . 

New York 
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t a l k i ng . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen this article 

be f o re? 

A. I -- I have . 

Q. I s this t he ar t icle t hat you 

be l ieve re f lec t s a retract i o n of the 

at t rac t ion -- re t rac t ion? 

A. I ' m not sure . Let me read the 

whole th i ng . It ' s a long one . 

Q. I t hink -- I'll j ust -- you can 

sk i p o r read wha t y o u want --

A. Te l l me what needs to be 

i mportant. 

Q. -- but I take it the l ast 

paragraph 

A. Yes . 

Q. -- is t he paragraph t hat --

A. Okay . 

Q. -- addresses the issue a t hand . 

(Whereupon , the witness reviews 

the d o cument . ) 

THE WITNESS : Yes , sir , I' ve 

read i t. 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Okay . And is -- d i d you read 

this at around the time that this article 

was publ i shed? 

A. I must have i f I f orwarded it 

t o -- I -- I -- I wo uld say yes . 

Q. And -- and am I c o rrec t t hat 

t h i s i s further support for her re t rac t ion 

o f the l etter? 

A. It ' s j ust an opinion o f a person . 

I t ' s j us t a media ar t ic l e , sir . 

Q. And -- and i t says she was led 

i n decept ion ; i s tha t c o rrec t ? 

A. I would no t -- tha t' s her 

opinion , yes , sir . I f she says that , that ' s 

what Ms . Al e x eyeva bel i eves 

Q. You -- you --

A. -- I do n o t have this -- I do n o t 

share t h i s opinion . I do n o t know en o ugh 

abou t t h i s case t o have an opinion . 

That ' s the -- I ' m sharing an 

article with pe ople I wo rk wi th . That ' s what 

it means . It' s an op- ed . I did not wri t e 

i t ; I did n o t edi t i t. I just shared wi t h my 
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c o l leagues . 

Q. Be c ause you t hough t i t was 

important for them to read --

A. I 

Q. is t hat correct? 

A. shared a l o t o f art i c l es abou t 

Mr . Eg i azaryan . This i s o ne o f probabl y 100 . 

I t has no sign i f i canc e 

Q. And --

A. whatsoever . 

Q. did you share this ar t ic l e 

wi t h pe ople other t han Mr . Zalmayev and 

Mr . Bloomf i e l d? 

A. I do not remember , s i r . 

Q. Did you send this article to 

Mr . Bloo mf ield and Mr . Zalmayev on aro und 

February 13th , 20 11 ? 

A. That ' s how i t appears , s i r , yes . 

Q. Did y o u share t he re t rac t ion 

t hat we previ ous l y d i s c ussed , Exhibi t 14 , 

with anyone other than Mr . Bloomfield and 

Mr . Zalmayev? 

A. I do not remember , sir . 

Q. And were you interes t ed i n 
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educating people abo ut Mr . Egiazaryan? 

A. I thi n k I was i n t erested and I' m 

sti ll interested , sir . 

Q. And -- and are you interested i n 

doing so f a irly? 

A. Abs o l u tely , sir . 

Q. And in doing so , wou l d you be 

i n t erested in circu l at i ng i nformat i on and 

opinions fr om people who disagreed with 

Pe t er Zalmayev 

A. I --

Q. -- and you? 

A. Why n o t, s ir? Yes . 

Q. And did you circ - -- so who --

who e l se did you circulate this to to make 

sure they were wel l educated abo ut issues 

relating t o Mr . Egiazaryan? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objec tion to t he 

f o rm ; argumentat i ve 

THE WITNESS : I do not 

remember , sir --

MR . SPERDUTO : -- assumes f acts 

no t in evidence --

THE WITNESS : -- but I -- I --
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MR . SPERDUTO : 

mischara c ter i zes prior tes t imony . 

Go ahead . 

THE WITNESS : Yes , I -- I d o 

no t remember , sir , but I' m sure t his 

was t h i s su - -- subjec t o f publ ic 

knowl edge . I ' m n o t t he on l y o ne wh o 

reads t h i s art i c l e , so whoever is 

interested in Mr . Egia zaryan ' s story 

might have known abo ut this . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. I know . You said y o u were in 

t he business o f educat i ng peopl e abo ut 

Mr . Eg i azaryan --

New York 
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A. Correct , and --

Q. is that f air? 

A. I might have -- I might have 

shared wi th peopl e --

Q. Oh . Do y o u have any 

A. -- I cannot remember corre c t l y , 

sir . 

Q. -- do y o u have any record o f 

having shared t his wi th anybody? 

A. I d o not remember , s i r . 
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Q. Do you have any reco rd o f having 

shared the 

A. I might have discussed it in 

with some o ne , s o 

Q. Just -- I didn ' t finish my 

ques t ion . 

A. Sure . 

Q. Do you have any re c ord of having 

shared the retractions that are Exhibit 1 4 

with anybo dy? 

A. Sir , these retraction have never 

been sen t t o me . I never rece i v e d them . 

Q. Did -- Mr . Zalmayev never sent 

you t he re t rac t ions? 

A. Why should he --

Q. So 

A. I -- I doub t he ever ge t t hem . 

I d o not kn ow, s i r , bu t t h i s 

t h i ng I d o not remember . 

I k new tha t l e t ters were -- t hese 

people -- two individuals were coerced into 

rephrasing the i r concern abo ut 

Mr . Egiazaryan , bu t I did no t ge t t hese 

or i g i nal copi es . 
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Q. What ' s your basis f o r y o ur 

be l ief tha t Ms . Alexeyeva and Mr . Ponomarev 

were coerced? 

A. I th i nk I' ve heard the rumors 

abou t it . I f -- if t hey were ab l e to t ake 

mo ney at the fi rst p l ace , what wou l d prevent 

t hem fr om t aking money much more mo ney i n 

t he se c ond p l a c e? 

Q. Is there anything o f -- any 

reason o t her than y o ur specu l a t ion tha t t hey 

were co- -- coerced in t o changing t he i r 

i n t o retract i ng t he or i g i nal let t ers? 

A. I t h i nk Mr . Za l mayev mi ght have 

ment i oned t o me t hat there was pressure from 

Mr . Egia zaryan ' s representatives . 

Q. And who d i d -- and wha t d i d t he 

source of Mr . Za l mayev ' s i n f orma tion? 

A. Co l leagues o f Mr . -- o f t hose t wo 

i ndividuals . 

Q. You k now th i s for a fa c t? 

A. It was ment i oned to me by 

Mr . Zalmayev . 

Q. Do you k now if Mr . Za l mayev --

A. I d o not kn ow t h i s f or a f ac t, 
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sir . 

Q. -- d i d you k now i f Mr . Zalmayev 

had -- had evidence o f that or was 

speculat i ng that he believed that --

MR . SPERDUTO: Ob j ec t ion to 

f o rm 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. mi ght be t he c ase? 

A. I do not know , sir --

MR . SPERDUTO : -- object i o n t o 

form 

THE WITNESS : -- I told y o u 

what I kn ow --

MR . SPERDUTO: -- c apa c i t y 

THE WITNESS : -- I -- I --

MR . SPERDUTO : -- assumes 

facts . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Do you kn ow i f the retract i o ns 

were provided t o Douglas Bl oomfield? 

New York 
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A. 

Q. 

Exhibi t 11 4 . 

I do not know , sir . 

I ' m g o i ng t o show y o u a c opy o f 

Th i s is an e - mai l f rom 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 

New Jersey 
Pennsylvania 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0 

1 1 

12 

13 

1 4 

15 

1 6 

17 

1 8 

1 9 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

278 

RI NAT R. AKHMETSH I N 

Do ug l as Bloomf i e l d to Rina t Akhmetsh i n 

A. Um- hum . 

Q. -- dated May 5 , 20 1 1 ; is that 

c o rrect? 

A. That ' s wha t it says , sir . 

Q. And d o you recal l rece i v i ng t h i s 

e - ma i l o n around tha t t ime? 

A. Probab l y . 

Q. Do you -- do you reca l l that 

Mr . Bloomfi eld said , Unl i ke what Peter told 

me , t he l e t ters from two Russian par t ies , 

t he Al l-Russ i a Publ ic Movement and Lyudmi la 

Alexeyeva have retracted the i r let t ers? 

A. That ' s wha t i t reads , sir , yes . 

Q. Do you know what Mr . Bloomf ie l d 

was re f err i ng t o at that time? 

A. I t hink t his -- t o wha t he 

wr i tes . 

Q. Did he -- did y o u ever 

i nvest i gate whether Pe t er Za l mayev provided 

the retraction l etters to Mr . Bl oom f ield? 

A. I did no t , s i r --

Q. Did t hat concern --

A. -- I kn ow t hey had this -- I kn ow 
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they had d irect line o f c ommunicati o n . 

Q. I' m sorry . I didn ' t catch the 

last words . 

A. They do -- they did have direct 

line of communication , and I' ve -- you know , 

I've been busy with many o ther matters as 

we ll, sir . I travel extensively, s o I d i d 

not forward every sing l e document . 

Q. Do you know who David Whiddon 

Wh iddo n i s? 

A. Yes , I do , sir . 

Q. Who is he? 

A. He ' s working for International 

Re l ations Commi ttee on the House of 

Representatives . 

Q. He ' s a Congressional sta ffer? 

A. He is a fellow , Congressiona l 

fellow, yes . He works f or the commi ttee. 

Q. Did y o u know -- did y o u ever 

reach out t o h i m --

A. I have --

Q. with regard 

A. I did , sir . 

Q. -- to the Egiazaryan matter? 
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A. I did , sir . 

Q. And for what purpose? 

A. To educate him . 

Q. And did have y o u ever seen 

thi s -- thi s e - mail I' m sorry . We shou ld 

mark this . 

New York 
Connecticut 

A. Yes . 

MR . COHEN: Le t me ask the 

court reporter to mark as 

Exhibit 3 -- PZ -- strike that . 

Exhibi t --

MR . SPERDUTO : 187 is the next 

in sequence . 

MR . COHEN: 187 a documen t 

with the Bates stamp PZ3505 . 

(Whereupon , an e - mail s t ring 

was marked , f o r i den tifi ca tion 

purposes , as Depositi o n Exhibit 

Number 187 . ) 

THE WITNESS : Thank y o u . 

BY MR . COHEN: 

Q. Have you seen this e - mai l 
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be f o re? 

A. I migh t have , yes . I f i t' s sent 

to me , I might ' ve , yes . 

Q. Did y o u receive a bee o f 

Pe t er Zalmayev ' s e - mail of March 29 , 20 11 ? 

A. If i t' s addressed t o me , i t was 

probabl y sen t t o me , yes . 

Q. I would c a l l your at t ent i on t o 

the second e - mail on the page 

A. Um- hum . 

Q. -- from David Whiddon t o 

Pe t er Zalmayev . 

A. Co rrect, I see i t. 

Q. Do you see where i t says , Are 

folks having a change o f heart over 

Egiazaryan? 

A. Correct, I see i t. 

Q. And t hen i t says , Perhaps 

because t hey , and Lyudmi l a , spoke wi t h 

Eg i azaryan ' s lawyers and have heard fa c ts 

relevant to the case that made them con - --

reco nsider? 

Do you see tha t ? 

A. I d o see tha t. 
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Q. Did y o u ever investigate whe ther 

Mr . Ponomarev or Mr . Al exeyeva heard facts 

relevant to the case that made them 

reco nsider? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Ob j ection t o the 

f o rm . 

THE WITNESS : So rry . I c o uld 

not speak on the i r behalf . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did y o u ever seek t o fi nd ou t 

wha t t hey heard tha t made them i ssue t he 

re t rac tion? 

A. Sir , I ' ll refer y o u t o Page 4 of 

thi s . And it's a Russ i an article wh i ch I 

think Mr . Za lmayev shared with Congressiona l 

sta ff er on March 28th . 

And they -- it says tha t -- I 

d o n 't know if y o u have a translation 

Alexeyeva , qu o te, Egiazaryan was never human 

rights defender nor person who --

who provided charitable --

THE COURT REPORTER : Sorry . 

Who wha t? 

THE WITNESS : Alexeyeva, qu o te, 
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Egiazaryan is n o t a human rights 

defender , and he was never person who 

provided charitable contributions . 

And the f irst line says --

headliner says , Head of Moscow 

Helsinki Gro up , Lyudmila Al exeyeva , 

c o nsiders that ex - member o f Russian 

Duma from LDPR party , 

Ashot Egiazaryan , does not deserve 

the status o f p o litical asylum . 

That' s the s tory. 

So I think that this is the --

this is the response o f Mr . Zalmayev 

t o Mr . Whiddon ' s concerns about thi s 

a lleged retraction . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did you discuss with Mr. Whiddon 

his q ues tion that perhaps they heard f acts 

relevant to the case that made them 

recons i der? 

A. I don't think Mr . Whiddon 

directed this question at me , sir . 

Q. Okay . Do you know if 

Mr . Zalmayev had that c o nversa tion? 
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A. I wo uld assume he did , and tha t 

was his response tha t' s --

Q. His response was 

A. in the tex t . 

Q. was one artic l e? 

A. Co rrec t, y e s . 

Q. Do you kn ow i f he had any other 

response? 

A. I do not know , sir . Please ask 

him . 

Q. And t here ' s a reference on the 

page to an o p - ed in t he -- o n t he b o t tom o f 

t he f irs t e - ma i l , i n the Mosco w Times by 

Kiri l l Kabanov --

A. Kabanov , yes . 

Q. -- do y o u see that? 

A. Yes . 

Q. I s i t 

MR . SPERDUTO : I ' m sorry . I 

don 't see i t . 

Where are you? 

MR . COHEN : The last paragraph 

of the first e - mai l. 

MR . SPERDUTO : I ' m sorry . 
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Okay . 

Than k you . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did -- d i d you o r Mr . Zalmayev 

arrange for tha t op- ed by -- by 

Kiri ll Kabanov? 

A. No , I did n o t, and I -- I d o not 

know about Mr . Za l mayev . But he ' s a very 

we ll- respected person and we ll-known to 

Amer ican autho rities and human rights 

defenders. Former policeman . 

Q. And while y o u ' re talking abo ut a 

we ll-respected and a former p oli ceman , 

you ' re talking about Mr . Kabanov , right? 

A. Correct , sir , yes . 

MR . COHEN : I' m g o i ng t o ask 

the court reporter t o mark as 

Exhibit 18 8 an e - mai l bearing t he 

Bates Number PZ2708 . 

(Whereupon , an e - mail was 

marked , f o r i den tifi ca tion purpo ses , as 

Deposition Exhibit Number 188 .) 
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THE WITNESS : Thank y o u . 

BY MR . COHEN: 

Q. Is this an e - mail f rom you to 

Mr . Zalmayev I' m s o rry -- f r om 

Mr . Za l mayev t o you? 

A. I t does appear tha t way , s i r , 

yes . 

Q. And i t ' s dated February 9th , 

20 1 1? 

A. Co rrect. 

Q. You rece i ved t h i s e - ma il on 

around February 9th , 201 1 ? 

A. That ' s wha t i t s t a t es , yes . 

Q. And I'll ca ll your a t tention to 

the bottom . 

And i t says , the Chechnya t h i ng 

even t evi dently backfi red on us --

A. Co rrec t. 

Q. -- do y o u see t hat? 

A. Yes , I see tha t, s i r . 

Q. What did you understand 

Mr . Za l mayev to mean by t hat? 

A. I do no t k now , s i r . I t h i n k t ha t 

he probably re f ers to t he f act tha t, you 
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know , t here ' s research o n Chechen ma t ter . We 

c ouldn ' t f i nd any c red i b l e informa t ion . 

And I think that was the time 

when d i scuss i o n o f Mr . Egiazaryan ' s Chechen 

record was suspended , because we cou l dn 't say 

wi t h cer t a i n t y abo ut h i s Chechen act i v i ty . 

We ' re very careful to say on l y fac t s . 

Q. And -- and the informa t ion 

regarding what happened in Chechnya was 

murky at best ; is that correct? 

MR . SPERDUTO: I' m sorry . 

The -- the in f orma t ion -- can y o u 

read i t back? I beg your pardon . 

MR . COHEN: I -- I' l l -- I' l l 

say it I ' l l ask the question 

again . 

Just give me a second . 

(Pause . ) 

MR . COHEN : Al l right. Can we 

t a k e a few- mi nute brea k ? 

THE WITNESS : Absolutely . 

MR . COHEN : Thank y o u . 

THE VI DEOGRAPHER : The time is 

4 : 37 . We ' re going o ff the record . 
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2 (Whereupon , a brief recess was 

3 t aken from 4 :3 7 p . m. to 4 :5 0 p . m. ) 

4 THE VI DEOGRAPHER : The time is 

5 4 : 50 . We are back o n the reco rd . 

6 BY MR. COHEN: 

7 Q. Welcome back , sir . 

8 A. Thank y o u . 

9 Q. Do you kn ow who Vladimir Burkov 

1 0 is? 

11 A. Say it aga in. 

12 Q. Vladimir Burkov? 

13 A. The name does n o t appear f ami liar 

1 4 t o me . 

15 MR . COHEN: I'll mark as 

1 6 Exhibit 18 8 --

17 THE COURT REPORTER : - 9 . 

1 8 MR . COHEN: 189 I'm 

1 9 always o ne behind the a 

20 d o cument bearing Bates Number PZ527 , 

2 1 wh i ch appears t o be a draf t affidavi t 

22 o f Vl adimir Burkov . 

23 

24 (Whereupon , a draft affidavit 

25 o f Vl adimir Burkov was marked , f or 
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i den t i f ica t ion purposes , as Deposi t ion 

Exhibi t Number 189 . ) 

THE WITNESS : Thank y o u . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you ever seen this d o cument 

be f o re? 

New York 
Connecticut 

A. I c annot say I have . 

Q. Do you reca l l ever having 

rece i ved o r f o rwarded th i s to Mr . Zalmayev? 

A. I do not remember , sir . 

MR . COHEN : I' m g o i ng t o ask 

t he c o ur t repo rter to mark as 

Exhibi t 1 90 a doc ument wi th 

Bates number RA134 . 

MR . SPERDUTO : No , that ' s mine . 

(Whereupo n , Wi tness S t a t ement 

of Artem Egiazaryan on Behal f of the 

Claimants (CW2) was mar ked , for 

identi f ication purposes , as Deposition 

Exhibit Number 1 90 . ) 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Th i s is a doc ument tha t bears 

the header , London Court of International 

Arbitrat i o n , LCIA Case Numbers 10 1 689 and 

10 1 69 1. 

Have you seen t h i s documen t 

be f o re? 

A. I migh t have , sir , yes . I mi ght 

have . 

Q. Do you recall ho w the 

document how you came to see t he document 

if, i n f ac t, you saw i t ? 

A. No . I talked t o many -- when I 

was i n Russian , I t a lked to many journal i s t s 

who were l ooking into this issue . I know 

that Novaya Gazata newspaper has shared with 

me some documents which I, persona lly , f ound 

i rre l evant , because t h i s is t o o much o f a --

Q. And -- and this 

A. commerc i a l dispute . 

Q. this is a document that was 

i n your p o ssession ; i s that c o rrect? 

A. I t hink so , yes . 

Q. I t bears your Ba t es number , 
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RA134 , meaning tha t i t came f rom your f i l es ; 

i s tha t c orrec t ? 

MR . SPERDUTO : We ' l l stipulate 

that my law f irm pro duced th i s 

document in t his l itigation . 

MR . COHEN : Okay , t hank y o u . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. And -- and i t was produced 

because you located it somewhere in your 

o ff ices and gave it t o your c o unsel ; is that 

correc t ? 

A. That ' s how appears to be , yes , 

sir . 

Q. Okay . And do you have a 

speci f ic recollection o f how it came into 

y o ur possess i o n? 

A. I do not have specific 

reco l lec t ion , sir ; but I do remember tha t 

t here was very unpl easan t process of -- I 

don 't k now whe t her i t was you or someone e l se 

tried to serve me , which was , in a way , 

b o rderline harassing . And my wi f e was 

harassed by whatever this subpoena server and 

was t hreatened wi th p o l ice . 
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And I think that , y o u know , f o r a 

wh ile there ' s thi s who l e bunch of l ega l 

documents were lying in front o f my door f or , 

I think , over a week . And this might have 

been among those documents . Or , as well , you 

know , I might -- I d id receive some -- some, 

like, business - related documen ts in Mo scow 

from Novaya Gaza ta newspaper . 

I do not -- I do not have a 

direct recollectio n o f how I came into 

possession of thi s document , sir . 

Q. Did y o u ever receive any 

litiga tion documen ts fr om Greg Hitt or 

anyone at Publ i c Strateg i es? 

A. I have not , sir . 

Q. Yo u have not? You ' re saying 

that definitively? 

A. I might have got some -- I kn ow 

that they were involved in some matter in 

Los Ange l es or somewhere in Ca l iforn i a . I 

might have . I do not remember , sir . 

Q. Do you recall if you received it 

from any of the Kerimov attorneys with whom 

y o u c o rrespo nded f r o m time to time ? 
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MR . SPERDUTO : I ' m sorry . 

An t e c edent to t he pronoun now i s 

what? 

MR . COHEN : The Kerimov 

at t orneys . 

MR . SPERDUTO : You said " i t." 

MR . COHEN : Okay . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. I f you received Exhibit 1 90? 

A. I de f initely d i d not receive it 

from the a t torneys . I wou l d have remembered 

t hat , because I t h i nk t hey -- I specifical l y 

t o l d them I d o n 't want to know th ose s t u f f , 

be c ause i t was rea lly muddyi ng up my 

narrative . So 

Q. Who -- who -- did y o u te l l --

t e ll Sarah Ha l e t hat? 

A. I d o n 't t h i nk I eve r received 

anything fr om her . They were asked me t o 

hand l e one mat t er as a favor , and I d i d t hat 

f or them . That was my extent o f re l ationship 

with tho se pe ople . 

Q. We ll, other t han -- you had --

certainly had a number o f e - ma i l 
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c o mmun i cat i o ns 

A. On the 

Q. with them? 

A. -- same ma t ter , I wo uld say . 

Sir , j us t one matter wh ich was discussed and 

was res o lved . 

I d i d n o t receive anyth ing fr om 

Sarah . I never eve n me t he r in p erson . I 

talked to her on the phone . 

Q. Have you ever spoken wi th 

Eliot Lauer? 

A. I d o not remember , sir . 

Q. Yo u d o n 't remember o ne way o r 

the other? 

A. I don't remember one way or the 

other , because I spo ke wi th many pe ople . 

Who -- who i s he? He ' s one o f 

t he l awye rs also . 

Ak in Gump person? 

Q. He ' s another l awyer for 

Mr . Ker imov ' s companies . 

A. I d o not remember , s ir. 

Q. Curti s Mallet , are you f amiliar 

with that l aw fi rm? 
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A. I heard t he name . I have a 

fr i end who joined t hat f i rm re c ent l y . 

Q. Have you had any communication 

with Curtis Mallet wi th regard to 

Ashot Egiazaryan? 

A. I have handled -- I t h i nk t hat 

Sarah was a l awyer wi th t hat f i rm . And I 

hand l ed one ma t ter , media ma t ter , as a favor 

to someone in Russia . That was my extent o f 

c o operat i o n with tho se pe ople . 

Q. So is it -- is i t some --

s o me o f y o ur tes t imo ny is y o u you ' re n o t 

sure how this d o cument , Exhibi t 190 , came 

i n t o your possession? 

A. I am not sure how it came to my 

p o ssession , but I f elt compelled to produce 

everything we had t o do wi t h Mr . Egiazaryan . 

And I t urn i t ove r to my a t torney and -- I 

d o n 't know . They produced i t, actua l ly . 

I had i t around t he house , I 

think . 

Q. Yo u have what around the house? 

A. This documen t 

Q. Yo u --
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A. -- I sho uld have had it . I d o 

no t -- I do no t spec i f i cal l y remember t h i s , 

because now , every time , you know , you open 

this , like , LLC , JL , Limited , it ' s just -- it 

has absolu t ely no relevance t o wha t I do , 

sir . 

Q. I ' m g o ing t o show y o u another 

document from t he London Court of 

International Arbitration , RA146 , and ask if 

y o u ' ve seen this before . 

MR . COHEN: Le t me have one t o 

mark . 

(Whereupon , Wi tness St a t ement 

of Ashot Gevorkovich Egiazaryan on 

Behalf o f the Claimants (CWl) was 

marked , for iden t ifica t ion purposes , as 

Depo sition Exhibi t Number 191 . ) 

THE WI TNESS : Thank you . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Is this 191 

MR . COHEN : Yes . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Jason? 

MR . COHEN : Yes , it i s . 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen t h i s documen t 

before? 

A. I might ' ve . It l o oks 

suspiciously similar to -- ah , this is CW2 , 

CWl. 

I might have . I do n o t have 

direct recol l ect i on . 

Q. Do you recall where you found 

these LCIA documents , 190 and 191? 

A. I do not -- now I know wha t you 

refer t o , LC I A. But I -- this mi ght have 

been , once again , placed together with 

simi l ar documents or I mi ght have got ten i t 

in Moscow from some journalists . 

I d o not remember e x actly t o say 

one way or anot her , sir. 

Q. Do you kn ow who Larry Weist is? 

A. The name does n o t s o und familiar 

t o me . 

Q. Did you ever arrange for any 

private investigators t o tail or do any 

work 

A. No . 
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Q. -- related to Ash o t Egiazaryan? 

A. No . 

Q. Did Mr . -- did -- did 

Mr . Zalmayev? 

A. I would be very surprised , 

because i t ' s very expens i ve . We had no mo ney 

t o do that , sir . 

Q. You got a l o t of money from 

from Russia on this case , didn ' t you? 

A. From Mr . Vavilov? 

Q. Yes . 

A. I t h i nk i t ' s I wo uld be in 

pain describing it a lot o f mo ney . I think 

i t ' s wha t probab l y you guys make in a few 

days . 

Q. Did -- let me 

A. The answer is we did not hire any 

survei l lance o f -- o f any s o rt , because just 

it ' s -- it was absolutely no t necessary . 

Q. I' m go i ng t o show you what we 'l l 

mark as Exhibit 192 . 

I ' m g o ing t o ask you to read it . 

(Whereupo n , an i nvest i gat i ve 
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report by Larry We i s t was marked , f o r 

i den t ifi c a t ion purposes , as Deposi t ion 

Exhibit Number 192 . ) 

THE WITNESS : I t ' s not very 

easy to read . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. No . 

A. Do you have a better copy , 

please? 

Q. No , bu t it ' s -- it ' s an 

i nvest i gat i ve repo rt by Larry We i s t 

i nvo l v i ng Ash o t Eg i azaryan . 

And have you ever seen this 

be f ore? 

A. Let me loo k at this , s i r . 

Thank you . 

I remember see i ng s o me t h i ng abou t 

l avish l i fes t y l e , yes . I t cou l d have been --

Q. You c ould have seen t h i s before? 

A. I cou l d have , yes . 

Q. Do you recall where y o u g o t i t 

from? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objec t ion . 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Do you recal l where you ' ve seen 

it? 

A. I d o not -- maybe online 

somewhere . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Jason , I just --

just for my info rmati o n , it is hard 

t o read t h i s thing , bu t I don 't see 

any reference to I think you 

ca lled him Larry Weist? 

MR . COHEN: Yes. 

MR . SPERDUTO : Where c o uld 

y o u just point o ut where that is? 

MR . COHEN: I' m no t sure 

it ' s -- it ' s referenced on here , but 

f rom o ther sources . 

MR . SPERDUTO : But are you 

making a representati o n on the 

reco rd , then, that this is a document 

you obt a i ned from Larry We i s t ? 

MR . COHEN : I ' m making a 

representation o n the reco rd that 

t his i s a -- a documen t t hat was 

crea ted by Larry Weist . 
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MR . SPERDUTO : I ' m sorry . You 

are making tha t represen t a t ion? 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Putting aside who -- who it ' s 

from , t he -- the -- t he ques t ion tha t I' m 

i nterested in having answered i s whe t her you 

received this or seen it and , if so , where 

from? 

A. I might have seen this online . I 

know that there was a great discussion o f 

Mr . Egiazaryan ' s excessive lifes t yle . 

Russ i an I n t ernet ' s f ul l o f th o se s t o ries . 

Q. Do you recall where y o u saw it 

on l ine? 

A. I do not , sir . 

Q. Have you ever seen this -- I 

mean 

A. Th i s --

Q. the document itself? 

A. this e - ma i l , i t does no t --

I -- I I know that I heard about cars . I 

d o not never owned a car , so I did no t 

know much abou t cars . But I had to ask a 

fr i end o f mine abo ut some o f th o se cars , and 
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they told me they ' re qui te expensive and 

rare . 

MR . SPERDUT O: Is -- is this , 

i n f ac t, the bes t c opy o f t he 

document you have , sir? 

MR . COHEN : It it is . 

MR . SPERDUTO : All right . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. I show you a document that was 

previo usly marked as Exhibit 111. 

THE COURT REPORTER : It' s 

already marked . 

THE WITNESS : Oh , I' m s o rry . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. It ' s an e - mail fr om 

Do uglas Bloomfi e l d to Pe t er Zalmayev . 

Do you recall if you ' ve ever seen 

t h i s e - mai l ? 

A. I d o not recall that , sir , no . 

Q. And -- and it states that We ' ve 

received confirmation that 

Vladi mir Zhirinovsky ' s aco l yte , 

Ashot Egiazaryan , whose case we discussed 

when we met recent l y , has f o rmal l y applied 
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f o r p oliti ca l asylum . 

Do you see that? 

A. Yes , I do see this sentence . 

Q. And that's a -- that's a 

statement from Douglas Bloomfie l d ; is that 

c o rrec t ? 

A. It does appear tha t way . 

Q. Did you ever come t o learn how 

Mr . Bloomfi eld came in possession -- or came 

t o bel i eve that Mr . Egiazaryan had f ormally 

appli ed for political asyl um? 

A. I d o not kn ow whether he f orma lly 

appl ied f o r p oliti ca l asylum . So I thin k 

that -- bu t I do kn ow that we kin d of put 

numbers together , because there ' s only 

limited number o f days -- I d o remember 

discussion with Mr . Bloomfield about this 

p o liti ca l asylum mat te r , and tha t' s --

Q. Did -- d i d Mr . Bl oomfiel d ever 

t e ll you tha t he had learned tha t 

Mr . Egia zaryan had f ormally applied for 

p o litical asylum? 

A. I don 't thi nk he cou l d possibl y 

know abo ut this with cer t a inty . 
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Q. Do you kn ow if anyone t o l d him 

that -- did he ever tell you that anyone 

told h im that Mr . Egiazaryan applied f or 

p o liti ca l -- political asylum? 

A. I doubt anyone could have t e ll 

him, but I do -- I did commissio n a study on 

the p o litica l asylum pro cedure in the 

United States , and I had asked someone wi th 

expertise on these immigrat i on matters to 

l o ok into this. 

And I do remember , according to 

that perso n, we assumed that Mr . Egiazaryan 

must have he had t o somehow adjust his 

status in the United States , because -- I do 

not remember details , but I think that was 

the issue. And I think that it was discussed 

in a publication somewhere . 

Q. Who did y o u have conduct that 

study? 

A. I did c ommi ss ion a memo by an 

immigration l awyer . 

Q. Who was that? 

A. Ms . Snelbecker . 

Q. And that was paid f o r, correct? 
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A. It was paid f o r , yes . 

Q. Al l right. I' m go i ng t o show 

you a document we ' re going to mark as 

Exhibit 193 . 

(Whereupo n , an e - ma i l str i ng 

was marked , f o r identification 

purposes , as Depos i t i on Exhibi t 

Number 193 . ) 

THE WI TNESS : Thank you . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you ever seen this d o cument 

before? 

is? 

well . 

New York 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

I can ' t say I have . 

Do you know who Niko la Krastev 

Yes , I do , s i r . 

Who is that? 

He ' s a repor t er . I know h i m 

Fo r what o rganizati o n? 

He ' s repor t er for RFE / RL . 

Say i t aga i n . 
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A. He ' s a reporter f o r Radio Free 

Europe / Radio Libert y , RFE/ RL. 

Q. Did you have any communications 

with him regarding Ashot Egiazaryan? 

A. I might have discussed with him . 

He ' s some o ne I ' ve known -- got to know over 

the years . He covers a So uthern District 

Court for our firm . 

Q. He covers what? 

A. He covers a c o urt i n Southern 

District 

Q. Of New York? 

A. for the court in So uthern 

District of New York, yes . 

I had c lient matter in that court 

f o r many , many years , s o I -- that ' s how I 

go t to k now him . 

Q. And I'll cal l y o ur a ttention to 

the t o p li ne o f Exhibit 193 in which 

Mr . Za l mayev says , Forgot t o add an 

important detail : I have con fi rmation f rom 

s o urces that Egiazaryan has , indeed , applied 

for asyl um . 

Did Mr . Zalmaye v ever tell you 
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that he had received con firmat i o n fr om 

sources that Egiazaryan has , indeed , applied 

f or asyl um? 

A. I d o not recall him saying it . 

Bu t he -- I know he was aware o f t ha t 

memo randum , lega l memo randum , which pret t y 

much concludes tha t a asylum appli ca tion mus t 

be done i n -- around some period of time . I 

do not remember exact time . 

I' m seeing this March 2 2nd , 

March 24 th, so it shou ld have been around 

t hat time, y e s . 

Q. And i t says he has con firmat i o n 

from sources . 

Do you know what sources he ' s 

re f err i ng t o ? 

A. I do no t k now , sir . 

Q. And y o u testified earlier t hat 

y o u c o uldn ' t kn ow f o r sure whe ther he had 

appli ed for asyl um? 

A. I did not . I -- to this point , 

I' m no t sure whe t her he did , but I wou l d 

assume t ha t he did , because he had t o ; 

otherwi se , he wo uld be kicked ou t o f here 
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earl i er . 

Q. And t h i s e - mai l says , he has , 

indeed , appl ied f or asyl um . 

Mr . Zalmayev never told y o u that? 

A. I do not remember , sir . But I --

I wo uld assume tha t i t ' s based o n t h i s -- I 

remember d i scuss i o ns abo ut this t h i ng . I t ' s 

a memorandum , and I t h i n k t hat it was -- the 

date was kind o f projected . It ' s like 

pregnancy, you know, i t' s just some o ne is 

n i ne mon t hs pregnant, and you have , li ke , a 

f ew days when i t happens . 

Q. And y o u d o n 't know for sure 

what -- what the bas i s for Mr . Za l mayev ' s 

in f ormation is ; is that correct? 

A. I d o not , sir . 

Q. I' m going t o ca ll your a ttention 

t o a documen t wi t h the Bates number 

Freedom Ho use 22 , wh i ch we ' l l mark as 

Exh i b it 1 94 . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Can you repeat 

t he Ba t es , p l ease? 

MR . COHEN: Yes . 

Freedom Ho use 22 . 
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(Whereupon , an e - ma il s t r i ng 

was marked , f or identification 

purposes , as Depos i t i o n Exhibit 

Number 1 94 . ) 

THE WITNESS : Thank y o u . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. And you previously mentioned 

that you kno w Sam Patten ; i s that c o rrect? 

A. I do know Sam. Yes , I do know 

Sam Pa tten. 

Q. And y o u c o mmun i cated wi th 

h i m on -- with regard t o Ashot Egiazaryan ; 

is that correct? 

A. I have bro ught this case to his 

at t ention , correct . 

Q. And y o u ' ve d i scussed the mat te r 

wi th him ; i s tha t right? 

A. I have , yes . 

Q. And -- and --

A. Do you mind if I just read this 

e - mail a minute? 

Q. Yes, o f c o urse . 
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(Whereupon , t he wi t ness reviews 

t he doc ument . ) 

THE WITNESS : Yes , sir . Thank 

y o u . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you ever seen this e - ma i l 

be f o re? 

A. I have not , sir . 

Q. And am I correct that 

i n f o rmat i o n that Mr . Patten has regardi ng 

Ashot Egiazaryan is , a t l eas t in part, 

provi ded by y o u and Mr . Zalmaye v? 

A. He was briefed abo ut this case by 

Mr . Za l mayev and me . 

Q. Okay . And you see , at the end , 

he says that I came t o see this as a 

pi t ching match pissing ma t ch be t ween t wo 

ol i garchs and n o t a simpl e pol i t i cal/HR 

case? 

Do you see tha t ? 

A. Yes , I see that , sir 

Q. And what 

A. yes . 

Q. wha t d o you understand HR to 
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stand f o r? 

A. I would say human righ t s --

Q. And Mr . 

A. -- that ' s how I wo uld interpret 

t hat . 

Q. Did Mr . Patten ever share th i s 

sentiment with you , personally? 

A. Oh , yes . 

Q. That he see -- saw this as a 

pissing match between two oligarchs? 

A. He was aware of Mr . Vavilov ; he 

was aware o f my cl i ent . Yes . 

Q. And s o the two o ligarchs he ' s --

he referring to are whom? 

A. I would say Mr . Vavilov and 

Mr . Egiazaryan . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Can I have a 

nunc pro tune object i o n t o the f orm 

of that last questi o n? 

MR . COHEN : Yes . 

MR . SPERDUTO : I ' m getting 

tired , yes . 

MR . COHEN: Le t' s -- I think 

the 
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MR . SPERDUTO : Snuck o ne pas t 

me . 

MR . COHEN : -- tape is running 

out? 

THE VI DEOGRAPHER : Yes . 

And the time is 5 :1 7 . We ' re 

g o ing of f the reco rd . This is the 

end of Di s c Number 3, go i ng on to 

Disc Number 4 . 

(Whereupo n , a discussio n was 

held off the record.) 

THE VIDEOGRAPHER : The time is 

5 : 19 p . m. This is the beginning o f 

Disc Number 4 i n the depos i t i on of 

Rinat Akhmetshin . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did you share with Mr. Patten 

that your e ff o rts and Mr . Zalmayev ' s ef f orts 

wi th regard t o Mr . Egiazaryan were being 

New York 
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financed by Mr . Vavilov? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Before you 

answer that , Rinat , l et me just no te 

for the record that my copy , at 

least, o f Exhibit 194 seems t o be 
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just a par t of the e - mai l string . 

And i t appears a t t he very bot t om of 

the page bearing Bates Number 22 that 

there ' s f urther e - mail -- at least 

one further e - mai l invol ved in the 

chain t hat we d o n 't have be f ore us . 

MR . COHEN : I I bel i eve this 

i s how i t was produced to us , bu t 

we ' ll double -- do a double check on 

that . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Yo u can answer the --

A. So can you 

Q. ear l ier quest i on . 

A. please repeat the question? 

I ' m s o rry . 

Q. Yes . 

Did y o u share wi t h Mr . Pat t en 

t hat Mr . Vavi lov was f i nancing your efforts 

agains t Mr . Eg i azaryan? 

A. I believe I did , yes . 

Q. Who else did you share that 

information wi t h , other t han Mr . Pat t en and 

Mr . Zalmayev? 
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A. I thin k the people I met wi th , 

yes . Some some of the peop l e , yes . 

Q. Do you reca ll speci fi ca lly any 

other i ndividuals who y o u t o ld that 

Mr . Va l- Va l v i- --

A. Vavi l o v . 

Q. -- Vavilov is fi nanc ing the 

campaign aga i nst Mr . Egiazaryan? 

A. I don't think people real l y asked 

me abo ut it . But if pe ople asked , I -- I did 

vo l unteer thi s information . 

Q. Did y o u v o l unteer t hat 

info rmati o n t o journal i s t s? 

A. I did . I did , yes . 

Q. To which journal did you -- to 

wh ich j o urnalists? 

A. I thi nk that my contact in 

New Yo rk Times is aware o f, because I have 

d o ne o ther s t o ries abo ut Mr . Vavilov wi th 

New York T i mes . So they kn ow that I am 

Mr . Vavilov ' s relationship . 

Q. Who i s that c o ntact at 

New York Times? 

A. Mr . Kramer . He writes abo ut 
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business issues there. Andrew Kramer , not 

David Kramer . 

Q. Well , then Andrew Kramer , 

Mr . Zalmayev and Mr . Patten . 

I s there anyone else who you can 

recall you shared the info - -- shared --

strike that . 

Did you provi de i nformat i on 

regarding who was financing your efforts 

regarding Asho t Egiazaryan to anyo ne e l se? 

A. I shou ld' ve -- if -- if I was 

asked, I I most de fi nitely did . 

Q. Do you recall any other 

i ndividuals who you can spec i f i cal l y recal l 

sharing that information with? 

A. Maybe the guy at the RFE/RL , 

Mr . Krastev. He might have known thi s thing , 

because I have kn own him f or many years, and 

he kn ows that I d o work f o r Mr . Vavi l ov , yes . 

I do not remember , s i r , but when 

people -- when this question came up -- and I 

must say it hasn ' t come up o f ten , because the 

whole -- the va lue of our message was so 

p ower f ul and convincing that pe ople -- pe ople 
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really d i d not ask abo ut it . 

Q. I t wou l d be -- d i d -- be of 

interest to people who you were sharing 

info rmati o n with that y o u were a paid 

advocate? 

A. I'm sure they were aware o f this, 

yes , sir . I never was a act ivist. 

Q. That wou l d be someth i ng that 

would be important f or people to know? 

A. Of course , they did know that 

it ' s -- it ' s an effort , a paid ef f ort. 

Q. Did y o u have any perso na l 

c ommunicati o ns with anyo ne a t the UJC? 

A. What was it? I' m sorry . 

Q. Do you have any pers -

c ommunicati o ns with anyo ne a t the UJC? 

A. What does it s tand f or? I' m 

s o rry . 

Q. United Jewish Committee? 

A. No , I do not kn ow anyone there . 

Q. American Jewish Committee , I ' m 

s o rry . The AJC . 

A. AJC. 

No . I kn ow Mr . Zalmayev , he ' s a 
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member o f AJC . But other than him , I d o not 

know anyone there . 

Q. Do you know Sam Kliger? 

A I might have heard the name . 

Q. Did you ever have any 

communication s with him regarding 

Ash o t Egiazaryan? 

A. I have not . 

Q. Do you know Lesley -- do you 

know who Le s l ey Weiss i s? 

A. I heard the name . 

Q. Are y ou no t f ami liar with the 

organi z a tion the NCSJ? 

A. I I d i d kn ow the ir 

organization , yes . I know their 

organiza tion . 

Q. Formerly known as the National 

Council f o r Soviet 

New York 
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A. Soviet 

Q. Jewry? 

A. Jewry , correct , yes . 

Q. And have you ever spoken to 

Lesley We i ss from that organization? 

A. I have never spo ken t o her . 
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Q. Have you ever spoken with 

Mark Levi n from that organ i zat i on? 

A. I met Mr . Levin probably 10 years 

ago , but I never appro ached him on this 

Egiazaryan matter. 

I knew pe ople in that 

organiza tion . 

Q. Do you kn ow i f Lev Ponomarev or 

Lyudmil a Alexeyeva knew o f Mr . Zalmayev's 

ass o c iatio n with Mr . Vavilov? 

New York 
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MR . SPERDUTO : Objection ; 

capaci t y . 

THE WITNESS : I -- I do n o t 

know, sir . 

MR . COHEN : I'm going to mark 

as Exhibit 195 a copy o f a document 

with the Bates Number PZ3523 . 

(Whereupo n , an e - mail string 

was marked , for i dentification 

purposes , as Deposition Exhibit 

Number 195.) 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 

New Jersey 
Pennsylvania 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

1 6 

17 

1 8 

1 9 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

319 

RINAT R. AKHMETSH IN 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Do you kn ow who Ky l e Parker i s? 

A. I heard the name . 

Q. Have you spo ken with Kyle Parker 

regarding Ashot Egiazaryan? 

A. I did n o t. I d o not recal l. 

Q. And what do y o u unders t and 

Ky l e Parker ' s ro l e to be? 

A. I think he ' s -- has committee 

thi s i s Co mmi ss i on o n Security and 

Coopera tion i n Europe. And I' ve done -- I' ve 

d o ne work with that c o mmi ttee in the pas t on 

Centra l As i an ma t ters . 

But I think he ' s the i r Russia 

person , the person who -- I mean , has 

p o rt f o lio o f Monaco and Russian a ff a irs . 

Q. Do you see , on t he second e - mail 

d own f r om Pe te r t o Pe te r Za l mayev to 

Kyle Parker , it says , I t appears tha t the 

asyl um is a fa i t accompl i ? 

MR . SPERDUT O: Excuse me . I ' m 

s o rry . Ho l d o n . 

Than k you . 

THE WITNESS : Ye s , I see it, 
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sir . 

Yes , s ir. 

MR . SPERDUTO: Wait f or a 

question . 

BY MR. COHEN : 

Q. Did Mr . Zalmayev ever tell you 

that? 

A. The fact that i t ' s a fait 

accompli? 

Q. Yeah . 

A. I do not recall , sir . 

Q. Did y o u ever tell Mr . Zalmayev 

that it ' s a f a it accompl i? 

A. I do not remember saying that , 

sir . It ' s a f ancy term o f the phrase . 

Q. Putting aside the phrase , did 

you ever notify Mr . Zalmayev that you have 

heard or understand that the -- that the 

asylum is c omplete? 

A. I did not , s i r . 

MR . SPERDUTO: Objection . 

THE WITNESS : I d o not 

remember . It' s more metaphorical 

appears t o me like more as a metaph o r 
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rather than a statement of fact . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did you ever advise 

Mr . Akhmetsh i n to keep -- make sure t o keep 

a ll his e - mail records? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Form --

object i o n t o form . 

THE WITNESS : I' m 

Mr . Akhmetshin . 

BY MR . COH EN: 

Q. I'm s orry. 

MR . GOLDEN : I was going to say 

y o u misspo ke . 

MR . COHEN: I did , thank you . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did y o u ever suggest to 

Mr . Zalmayev that he ma ke su re to keep a ll 

o f h i s e - mai l reco rds? 

A. I d o not remember , s ir. 

Q. I want to show you wha t will be 

marked as Exhibit 1 96 , which is a document 

wi t h the Bates Number PZ3784 . 

(Whereupo n , an e - mail s t r ing 
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was marked , f o r identification 

purposes , as Depos i t i on Exhibi t 

Number 196 . ) 

THE WI TNESS : Thank you. 

BY MR . COHEN : 

me . 

New York 
Connecticut 

Q. Did y o u prepare this e - mail? 

A. I t looks l i ke i t ' s e - mai l from 

MR . SPERDUTO : Just f o r the 

record , t here ' s a string of e - mails 

here . 

THE WITNESS : Let me read this 

whole t hrough t h i ng . 

(Whereupon , the witness reviews 

the d o cument . ) 

MR . SPERDUTO : Which -- which 

one are y o u referring t o , sir? 

MR . COHEN : The -- the o ne o n 

t he t op . 

THE WITNESS : Yes , I -- it does 

appear that I suggested Mr . Zalmayev 

keeps all his e - mail records . 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. And why did you sugges t t hat? 

A. I think that , you know , it was 

always goo d t o jus t f o r the cases --

occas i ons like t h i s , so a t l eas t someone has 

t h i s institutional memory -- so he has an 

inst i tut i o nal memo ry o n thi s matter . 

Q. Why don 't you fo llow you for 

yourself your advi ce to Mr . Za lmayev? 

A. Because Mr . Za lmayev i s paid to 

do tha t, so t here ' s no need t o replica t e the 

e ff o rt . 

Q. Yo u have some e - ma il s that wou l d 

n o t be in Mr . Za l mayev ' s possess i o n? 

A. I doubt that it wou ld be a nything 

wh ich i s o f relevance t o th i s case wou l d be 

in his possess ion -- will no t be in 

Mr . Za l mayev's possess i o n . 

I t ' s good advi ce I gave h i m. 

Q. You can't say for c erta in t hat 

you don ' t have a nything that Mr . Za lmayev --

A. I --

Q. wou ld have -- wou ld have? 

A. canno t answer that q ues tion , 
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sir . I cannot state with certainty . 

Q. You can't say with certa i nty , 

one way or another , on whether there was an 

e - mail in y o ur pos itio n that was deleted and 

no l onger exists that was not in 

Mr . Zalmayev ' s possessio n ; is that correct? 

A. I think everything which was 

re l evant to thi s public educat i on campaign 

was a lways circulated to Mr . Zalmayev, to the 

best o f my e ffor t and the best o f my 

knowl edge . 

MR . COHEN : Let me ask the 

c o urt reporter to mark a document 

with the Bates Number PZ29 10 -- what 

number are we up to? 

THE COURT REPORTER : 197. 

MR . COHEN: -- as 19 7 . 

(Whereupo n , an e - mail was 

marked , for i dentification purposes , as 

Depos ition Exhibit Number 1 97 . ) 

THE WITN ESS: Thank you. Thank 

y o u . 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen t h i s documen t 

before? 

A. I -- I must have , yes . 

Q. I t ' s an e - mail from you t o 

Mr . Zalmayev; i s tha t c o rrec t ? 

A. I think it ' s -- appears the other 

way 

MR . SPERDUTO : It ' s not 

THE WITNESS : -- fr om 

Mr . Zalmayev to me . 

MR . SPERDUTO : I ' m sorry . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. And i t ' s dated Apr i l 2 1, 20 11 ? 

A. I think it ' s -- appears the 

oppo site , Mr . Zalmayev ' s communication to me . 

Q. Yeah . Okay . 

I t ' s f r om -- o kay . 

And he says , We need to explore 

as soon as possible t hat Google opt ion you 

mentioned? 

A. Yes . 

Q. What was the Google opt ion tha t 

y o u ment i o ned? 
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A. Mr . Za l mayev was concerned tha t 

t here are a l o t of these smear informa t ion 

about him was posted on search engines . And 

it was done e ff ect i vely , artifi c i ally . 

And I sugges t t o him this company 

wh i ch pret t y much could have e l imina t ed t h i s 

ef f ect . 

Be c ause I -- I don ' t k now i f 

you ' re aware there are ways o f writing , 

br i nging up piece o f something and then d own . 

Q. And do you engage in effor t s to 

br i ng d own Web s i tes o r I n t ernet in f orma t ion 

t hat mi ght be perceived as favorab l e to 

Mr . Eg i azaryan? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objection to the 

f o rm , "bring down ." 

Go ahead . 

THE WITNESS : I d o not remember 

anything abo ut Mr . Egiazaryan , but I 

do remember t he effort on beha l f of 

Mr . Za l mayev . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. You said you were -- you think 

i t was v e ry un l ike l y tha t anything tha t y ou 
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had sent o ut wou l d not have been copi ed t o 

Mr . Za l mayev ; i s tha t c orrec t ? 

MR . SPERDUTO : I ' m not --

object ; mischaracter i zes prior 

t estimony . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Yo u can answer . 

A. Yeah . Cou l d you p l ease rephrase 

it? I ' m not sure what you mean . 

Q. Was i t your testimony f rom a f ew 

minu t es ago t hat i t' s un l ike l y tha t t here 

wo uld be any relevan t e - ma i ls t hat you had 

prepared and sen t t hat wou l d not have been 

c opied to Mr . Za l mayev? 

MR . SPERDUTO : I don ' t think 

that ' s what he said . I -- I don ' t 

t hink t hat ' s a fair charac t eriza t ion 

o f wha t he said --

THE WITNESS : Co uld y o u read 

ba ck ? 

MR . COHEN : -- you know , the 

reco rd is the reco rd , s o we can g o 

back and l ook at i t. 

THE WITNESS : Co uld y o u please 
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read 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Yes . 

A. -- what I said? Because I would 

like to be 

MR . COHEN : Can y o u g o --

THE WITNESS : -- sure --

MR . COHEN : back and find 

that a few questions ago? 

THE COURT REPORTER : You may 

want to go off the record firs t, 

because 

MR . LUPKIN : I -- I -- I have 

i t . I have i t . 

" Question : You can ' t 

say with certainty, one way or 

another , whe t her there was an 

e - mail in y o ur possessio n that was 

n o t deleted and n o longer exists 

t hat was not in Mr . Za l mayev ' s 

possession ; is that correct? 

"Answer : I think 

everything which was relevan t t o 

th i s public educat i o n campaign was 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 

New Jersey 
Pennsylvania 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

1 8 

1 9 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

329 

RINAT R. AKHMETSHIN 

always circulated t o Mr . Zalmayev , 

t o the best of my effort and the 

best o f my knowledge ." 

MR . SPERDUTO : Is there a 

question 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Is that y o ur testimo ny? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Yeah , of c ourse 

that ' s his testimony , but the -- the 

new question had -- was limited t o 

stu ff that he prepared . That' s why 

it's not the same q ues tion. 

THE WITNESS : I c o uld repeat 

the same answer . I think --

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Yes , repeat the same answer . 

A. I think that I do be li eve 

if -- the best o f my kn owledge and best o f my 

effort , everything which is -- which was 

re l evant to thi s public educat i on , public 

awareness campaign , Mr . Zalmayev has received 

every c ommunicati o n on that campaign . 

Q. And did he receive it some way 

other than being copied by an e - mail? 
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MR . SPERDUTO : Objec t ion to t he 

form 

THE WITNESS : I --

MR . SPERDUTO : -- capacity . 

THE WITNESS : -- do no t 

remember , sir . I d o not kn ow. 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did you pr i n t ou t c opies of 

e - mails that you sent to other people and 

hand them t o Mr . Zalmayev? 

A. I do not reca ll t hat , sir . 

Q. Yo u wo uld n o t have done t hat , 

wo uld y o u? 

A. I would -- I do no t even have a 

printer , so 

Q. Okay . So then you know y o u 

didn ' t do t hat? 

A. I t wou l d be hard to d o . 

Bu t i f i t happened -- i t mi ght 

have happened -- he shou l d have t hem and he 

should have produced them . 

Q. Well , let ' s turn to Exhibit 177 , 

p l ease . 

MR . SPERDUTO : I ' m sorry . 
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Wh i ch one? 

MR . COHEN: 177 . 

THE WITNESS : This is 1 96 , 1 77 . 

BY MR . COH EN: 

Q. That ' s PS I 2227 . This is 

atto rney ' s o nly again . 

A. I see that , sir , yes . 

Q. Okay . And this i s an e - ma il 

f rom you to a group o f peopl e ; is that 

c o rrect? 

A. Yes , sir . 

Q. And re l a te s t o Ashot Egiazaryan ; 

i s tha t c o rrect? 

A. I t does refer t o Mr . Egiazaryan 

and to the article o f -- AP artic l e , yes . 

Q. And Mr . Zalmayev is no t c opied 

on t h i s , i s he? 

A. But he d i d receive this -- he did 

receive thi s e - mai l, I think , because there 

i s -- h is i nformat i on i s there . 

Q. He received -- he sent an e - mail 

be l o w t hat you f orwarded ; i s tha t c o rrect? 

A. Yes , correct , yes . 

Q. But t he e - mail that y o u 
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f o rwarded t o Pau l Bu t ler , Blee Ri chard , 

Jeff -- Ri c hard Blee , Jeff El ler , 

El iot Lauer and Sarah Hale , Mr . Za l mayev is 

no t c opied o n that? 

A. I t hink t hat this probab l y was 

n o t re l evant because i t was his e - ma i l . 

THE COURT REPORTER : I ' m sorry? 

THE WITNESS : Yeah . I -- I do 

not believe -- it might have bcc ' d --

been bcc ' d to him . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Bu t y o u d o n 't know o ne way o r 

t he other? 

A. I do not k now one way or anot her , 

sir . 

Q. Yo u wo uld have kept his -- h i s 

presence a secre t ? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objec t ion . 

THE WITNESS : I' m s o rry? He 

would have 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Yo u wo uld have -- strike that . 

You don 't have any reason t o 

be l ieve t hat Mr . Zalmayev was c opied o n t h i s 
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e - mail o f February 5th , 2011 , d o you? 

MR . SPERDUTO: Mr . Zalmayev 

wrote the e - mail dated February 5th , 

2 011 . 

MR . COHEN: No . It says -- if 

y o u l o ok a t t he t o p e - ma i l --

MR . SPERDUTO : I ' m talking 

MR . COHEN: i t says --

MR . SPERDUTO : about the 

nex t e - mail --

MR . COHEN: Well , you know I' m 

n o t t a l k i ng abou t t hat . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Wel l, I ' m not . 

You -- you ' re t a lki ng abou t t he 

February 5th , 2011 e - mail . 

MR . COHEN : I -- I listed the 

names of the people who t he e - mail 

was t o , s o you kn ow t hat ' s the e - mai l 

I was t a l k i ng about. 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. So it ' s from Mr . Akhmetshin 

A. It mi ght have no t been --

Q. to Pau l Butler and others . 

That ' s the e - mai l I' m --
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A. Yes . 

Q. -- talking abou t . 

A. But I don ' t think he -- it was 

irrelevant to Mr . Zalmayev because it was his 

e - mail s . So there ' s nothing new here for 

Mr . Zalmayev ' s kn owledge . 

Q. But the update to Pa ul Butler --

t he r e ' s a l ong paragraph which inc l udes an 

update to Paul Butler that you didn ' t copy 

Mr . Zalmayev o n ; is that c o rre ct? 

A. I migh t have not . 

Q. Because y o u thought i t was not 

relevant? 

A. I t probably was no t re l evant 

because it was his -- his e - mail . So he 

didn ' t need t o receive it 

Q. All righ t --

A. a second time . 

Q. let ' s turn t o Exhibit 178 . 

That ' s an e - ma i l from 

Rinat Akhmetshin to Greg Hitt ; is that 

correct? 

A. Correct, sir . 

Q. And Mr . Zalmayev is n o t c opied 
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on tha t; is t hat correct? 

A. I t does no t appear he was c opied 

on this e - mai l. 

Q. And th i s is a dra f t o f an op- ed 

piece ; is t hat correct? 

A. I t is c o rrec t, s i r , yes . I t does 

appear tha t way . 

Q. And i t relates to 

Ashot Egia zaryan ; is that correct? 

A. That ' s correct . 

Q. And and I ca ll your a t ten t ion 

t o Exhibi t 179 . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Are we g o i ng t o 

go --

THE WITNESS : I just answered 

that quest i o n , s i r . 

MR . SPERDUTO: -- a ll t he way 

back through these? I mean -- you 

know , Co unse l, you kn ow, i f we 

haven 't got t o seven hours , we ' re 

getting c l ose to it . I ' m not sure 

MR . COHEN : Just a couple mo re . 

MR . SPERDUTO: -- what ' s the 

t ime , s o -- say i t aga i n . 
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THE WITNESS : Yes , I see i t, 

sir , yes . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Okay . And was this e - ma i l sent 

t o Mr . Za l mayev? 

A. I c o uldn ' t say wi th certainty, 

sir 

Q. You --

A. -- there ' s no recipients on this 

e - ma i l --

Q. but you can ' t say one way --

A. I canno t say --

Q. o r t he other ; is t hat 

c orrec t ? 

A. I cannot say because there ' s 

no rec i p i ents . 

Q. Okay . Jus t ca ll -- ca ll your 

at t ent i o n t o Exhibi t 180 . 

MR . SPERDUTO : The las t 

ques t ion was about 179? 

MR . COHEN : Yes . 

THE VIDEOGRAPHER : I ' m sorry . 

Cou l d I ask t he wi t ness t o take 

t he --
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THE WITNESS : So sorry 

THE VI DEOGRAPHER : -- papers 

o ff the mic? 

THE WITNESS : -- e xcuse me . 

Ye s . Sorry . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. One -- was 180 sen t t o 

Mr . Za l mayev? 

A. I think I did receive that e - mail 

f r om Mr . Zalmayev . So , t here f o re , there ' s no 

need 

Q. Was 18 0 sent to Mr . Za l mayev? 

A. I thin k i t was received fr om 

Mr . Za l mayev . 

Q. I'm ask ing whether it was sent 

t o Mr . Zalmayev . 

A. I couldn 't say with certainty --

Q. Okay . 

A. -- it migh t have been bcc ' d t o 

h i m. 

Q. Okay . Was 181 sent to 

Mr . Zalmayev? 

A. I'm not su re , s ir. 

Q. Okay . Was 18 2 sent t o 
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Mr . Za l mayev? 

A. I' m not sure . 

Q. Was 183 sent to Mr . Za lmayev? 

A. I t might have been . I do no t 

I cannot say with certainty, sir . 

Q. On a ll the e - mai l s in which y o u 

say y o u ' re not sure if it was sent to him , 

i t doesn ' t appear on the documen t that it 

was sent to him ; is that correct? 

A. A l o t o f tho se e - mai l s were 

e - mails from Mr . Za lmayev which I forwarded 

t o th ose pe ople . 

Q. But I' m asking you a quest i o n --

A. Yes , s i r . 

Q. wh i ch i s , does Mr . Za lmayev ' s 

name appear on any o f t he e - ma il s we jus t 

discussed? 

A. It does no t appear here , but it 

migh t appear in bee . I cannot 

Q. But you don 't know 

A. say with certa inty , sir . 

Q. you don ' t know f o r sure? 

A. I cannot say f or certain , s ir. 

If -- if it was re levant , it 
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might have been , but , y o u know , 

articles which -- stuff wh i ch I get from h i m, 

there's absolutely no reason f or him to 

receive it a second time fr o m me back . 

Q. I'm going to show you a document 

bearing Bates Number 1287, which we 'l l mark 

as Exhibit 1 98 . 

(Whereupon, April - May Progress 

Repo rt was marked , f or identificatio n 

purposes , as Deposition Exhibit 

Number 198 . ) 

THE WITNESS : Thank you . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen thi s document 

before? 

A. Let me read it, please . 

(Whereupon , the wi tness reviews 

the document . ) 

THE WITNESS : I believe I've 

seen this d o cument be f ore , s ir. 

BY MR. COH EN: 

Q. Who dra ft ed this documen t ? 
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A. I thin k i t ' s fr om Mr . Za l mayev . 

Q. Why do you be li eve that? 

A. Because I think that I did not 

draft i t , and I thi nk I did receive i t -- if 

my recollection i s correct , I have received 

t h is f r om him . 

Q. Who -- wh o was th i s a report to? 

A. I t mi ght have been to Mr . Vavilov 

or to me or both -- both o f us . 

Q. Did y o u send regular reports to 

Mr . Vavilov? 

MR . SPERDUTO : I ' m sorry . I ' m 

s o rry . I' m s o rry . 

Did who send regular repor t s? 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Yo u or Mr . Zalmayev? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Than k you . 

THE WITNESS : I did c ommunicate 

with Mr . Vavilov . 

BY MR . COHEN: 

Q. Did you communicate by writ ten 

repo rt wi th him? 

A. Thi s mi gh t have been -- it' s out 

o f usual , I wo uld say , but it might have 
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been , yes -- I think it might have been -- he 

migh t have r ece ived t h i s e - mai l. Bu t at 

least he was aware of the substance . 

Q. And d o you kno w f o r ce rtain who 

draf t ed t his? 

New York 
Connecticut 

A. I t wasn ' t me , f o r certain . 

Q. Okay . 

MR . COHEN : I' m go i ng t o ask 

the court reporter to mark as 

Exhibit 199 a d oc ument bearing 

Ba t es Number PZ992 . 

(Whereupo n , progress report 

was marked , for i den t ifica t ion 

purposes , as Depos ition Exhibit 

Number 199 . ) 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Is that the same o ne? 

Have you see n t h i s b e fore ? 

I might ' ve , yes . 

Did y o u draft it? 

I did no t . 

Do you kn ow who dra f ted i t? 
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A. I can 't say wi th cer t a inty . It 

wasn ' t me . 

Q. Do you know who it was prepared 

f o r? 

A. I couldn ' t say with certainty, 

sir . It has -- it doesn ' t have any markings . 

Q. I' m g o ing t o show y o u what ' s 

go i ng t o be mar ked as Exhibit 200 , wh ich is 

document Bates Number PZ 145 9 . 

(Whereupon , a Bank 

t ransact i o n was marked , f o r 

i den tifi ca tion purposes , as Deposi tion 

Exhibit Number 200 . ) 

THE WITNESS : Thank y o u . 

MR . GOLDEN: I couldn 't read it 

s o I put my glasses on , but t hat 

didn ' t help . 

MR . LUPKI N: Those are some 

f ancy g l asses . 

MR . GOLDEN: It ' s i n Russian . 

MR . COHEN: Soon t hey 'll have 

t hose . 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen t h i s documen t 

before? 

A. I d o not remember , sir . 

Q. Does Mr . Vavilov speak English? 

A. He does . 

Q. Does he read Eng l ish? 

A. Ex c use me? 

Q. He reads English? 

A. Oh , he does . 

Q. And he ' s re l ative l y f l uent in 

Engl i sh? 

A. I wo uld say s o , yes . 

Q. Okay . Wha t -- wha t i s -- what 

is this document? 

A. This is -- it appears it 

appears it ' s a summary of a Bank 

t ransact i o n wi t h AE -- some o ne cal l ed AE . 

Q. Do you kn ow who prepared this 

doc ument? 

A. I cannot say , sir . I do not 

know . 

Q. Have you seen Mr . Za l mayev 

prepare d o cuments i n Russian f or this --
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A. He pre -

Q. wi th regard to 

Mr . Egia zaryan? 

A. -- he did prepare Russian 

documents , correct . 

Q. What Russian documen ts d i d he 

prepare with regard t o Mr . Egiazaryan? 

A. I f I' m correct, I think that he 

communicated in Russian with some o f the 

people in Russia . But I'm not sure abou t 

thi s particu l ar one . 

It's very specifi c . 

Q. I' m g o ing t o show y o u a d o cument 

we ' re go i ng t o mark as Exh i b i t 20 1. It 

bears Bates Number PZ1302 . 

(Whereupon , a l e tter was 

marked , f o r i den tifi ca tion purpo ses , as 

Depo s ition Exh i b i t Number 201 . ) 

THE WITNESS : Thank you . 

BY MR . COH EN: 

Have you seen thi s --

MR . COHEN : Yo u ready? 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. have you seen this document 

before? 

A. I'm no t sure I have . 

Q. Do you know who the Joel i s 

referenced in the d o cument? 

A. I d o not kn ow, sir . 

Q. Do you kn ow who prepared this 

document? 

A. I d o not kno w, s ir. Services by 

BDSM prostitutes . That' s interesting. 

Q. Do you see that it says, We 

think it wou l d be a better appr oach t o get 

AE as he l eaves the house . We are working 

with people from his entourage who are 

t e lling us that a f ace - to-face encounter 

(with or without his lawyers) could be 

arranged somewhere in L.A. Po ssibly a 

photo- op? 

Do you see that? 

A. I do see this sentence , sir, yes . 

Q. And d o you kno w who -- who the 

people from his entourage are who i s be ing 

referred to there ? 
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MR . SPERDUTO : Objection to the 

form . 

THE WITNESS : Can I answer 

this? 

MR . SPERDUTO : I' m -- I'm not 

sure just 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Who -- who is be i ng referred to 

in the sentence when it refers to We are 

wo rking with pe ople --

New York 
Connecticut 

MR . SPERDUTO : Have --

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. fr om his ento urage? 

MR . SPERDUTO : -- have we 

established who the author o f this 

i s? 

THE WITN ESS: I have no idea --

MR . COHEN : He says he doesn ' t 

know . 

THE WITNESS : -- so how wou ld 

I --

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. 

A. 

Well , are 

-- how do I say 
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Q. -- you familiar wi th any efforts 

by Mr . Zalmayev or anybody on your team t o 

suggest that someone approach Mr . Egiazaryan 

as he l eaves his house? 

A. I' m no t sure whe t her we have ever 

f o cused on Mr . Egiazaryan as this phys i cal 

person . We are f ocusing o n his track reco rd . 

So I wou l d be surprised t hat --

i f anything like that came f rom us . 

Q. If -- if did -- somebody had 

arranged for someone to follow or approach 

Mr . Eg i azaryan , y o u t h i nk t hat wou l d be 

i nappropriate? 

MR . SPERDUTO: Objec t --

objection to the f orm . It ' s a 

hypo thetical. And you ' re asking him 

ques tions abou t documents by an 

au t hor he d oesn 't know and ask i ng if 

t he au t hor ' s mot i vat i o ns are -- t he 

au t hor he doesn 't k now is speculat i ng 

correctly? 

I -- I mean , this i s get ting 

pret t y far afie l d . 

THE WITNESS : I' m s o rry , s i r , I 
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cannot answer this questi o n . I 

have --

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Are y o u f amiliar 

A. absolutely --

Q. with the circumstances 

described in this -- in this e - mail? 

New York 
Connecticut 

MR . SPERDUTO : Which o nes? The 

BDSM 

MR . COHEN : The -- the --

MR . SPERDUTO : 

prostitutes --

MR . COH EN: the appr oach 

MR . SPERDUTO : -- t he sex 

shop 

THE WITNESS : I heard 

MR . SPERDUTO : -- t he PR men? 

THE WITNESS : -- I heard abo ut 

sex shops fr om many people in Russia , 

t hat he likes t o engage pros tit u t es . 

And I think that , in the past , he has 

engaged prostitutes and videotaped 

encoun t ers with t hem , Mr . Eg iazaryan, 

y o ur client . 
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Bu t I am not aware o f ne i ther 

of these 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. I s tha t t he kind o f research 

t hat you ' ve been i nvol ved with as -- as --

l o ok ing into h i s perso na l prac ti ces? 

A. I t has been repo rted wi dely in 

Russ i a . It goes down for t h i s Ru s sian 

prosecutor genera l, Mr . Egia zaryan ' s , I mean , 

penchant f o r pro st i tutes 

Q. The --

A. it ' s a well - kn own f act, sir . 

Q. tha t y o u were engaged in --

are you aware of Mr . Za l mayev e ngaging in 

any harassment or approaching Mr . Egia zaryan 

as he l eaves his house? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Ob j ection t o t he 

f o rm 

THE WI TNESS : I have --

MR . SPERDUTO: -- t o t a lly 

without f oundat i on 

THE WITNESS: I have 

abso l u t e l y --

MR . SPERDUTO : -- n o f oundat i o n 
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f o r that questi o n whats oever . 

THE WITNESS : I' m no t aware of 

any such efforts , sir . 

MR . GOLDEN: Jason , can we go 

o ff t he record a second? 

MR . COHEN : Yes. 

MR . GO LDEN: I have 

THE VI DEOGRAPHER : Hold on . 

The time is 5 : 57 . We ' re going 

o ff the reco rd . 

(Whereupon , a discussion was 

held o ff the record . ) 

THE VIDEOGRAPHER: The time is 

6 :1 2 p . m. We are back on t he record . 

MR . COHEN : I 'll ask the court 

repo rter to mark as Exhibit 2 0 2 a 

copy of a document from 

Rinat Akhmetshin to -- o r an e - mail 

fr om Rinat Akhmetshin t o 

Pe t er Za l mayev . 

(Whereupo n , an e - mail with 

at t achment was marked , f or 

identifi ca tion purpo ses , as Depo sition 
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Exhibi t Number 202 . ) 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen th i s document 

before? 

A. I have , sir , y e s . 

Q. Did y o u send this e - ma i l to 

Pe t er Za l mayev on May 24 t h , 20 11 ? 

A. It does -- it does appear that 

way , yes , sir . 

Q. What was the purpose of t his 

e - ma i l? 

A. I t ' s actua l ly a summary of 

Russ i an media publ i cat i ons abou t 

Mr . Egia zaryan . 

Q. Why was i t prepared? 

A. Because we wan t ed t o make su re 

t hat we are c overing comprehensive l y this --

Mr . Eg i azaryan ' s track record . 

Q. And -- and how -- who -- d i d you 

contract someone --

A. I did . 

Q. -- to do some re sea rch for you? 

A. Yeah , I did , s i r , yes . 
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Q. Who did y o u c o ntract? 

A. There ' s someone i n Russia , jus t I 

don ' t remember now . I -- I should go back , 

but that' s some o ne who was recommended to me 

and t hat -- I t hink it' s an organ i za tion , 

s o me medi a o rgan izat i o n , and -- bu t I did pay 

f o r it. 

Q. How mu c h d i d you pay? 

A. I think , like, $3 , 000 . 

Q. And it' s suppo sed t o be a 

comprehensive survey of research regarding 

Mr . Eg i azaryan? 

A. I think s o . There sho uld be some 

me t hodology how t h i s research was c onduc t ed . 

There it says , neutra l, pos itive, 

negative . 

Q. Did you read thi s enti re 

d o cument? 

A. No t exactly , to be honest . 

Q. Were you made aware by this 

document o f any anti - Semitic or 

anti - American statements by Mr . Eg i aza ryan 

or a tt ribu t ed t o him? 

A. I t h i nk t here ' s s o me t h i ng here 
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with him . There might have been . 

I -- I do not -- to be honest , 

it ' s been a long time since I got this . I 

can --

MR . SPERDUTO : You ' re not 

asking him to read this --

MR . COHEN : No , I ' m n o t . I ' m 

asking h i m if he recal l s any specific 

anti - Semitic or anti - American 

statements made by Mr . Egiazaryan or 

at t ributed to him --

THE WITNESS : I think --

MR . COHEN : -- o n this 

document . 

THE WITNESS : -- there ' s 

s omething about anti - Semitic stu f f . 

It says t hat Ashot Egiazaryan in 

Russian media history o f scandals . 

So 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. I ' m sorry . I didn ' t hear the 

answer . 

A. It ' s -- I -- I I do not 

remember , sir . I c o uld -- if y o u want me t o , 

New York 
Connecticut 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 

New Jersey 
Pennsylvania 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0 

1 1 

1 2 

13 

1 4 

1 5 

1 6 

17 

1 8 

1 9 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

24 

25 

354 

RI NAT R. AKHMETSH I N 

I c o uld review this d o cument . 

Q. No . 

A. But I ' m sure there was some stu f f 

here abo ut anti - Semitism . 

Q. And -- and this is exclusively 

f rom newspaper art i c l es ; is t hat correct? 

A. I t says smee (phonet i c) . Smee in 

Russ i a is l i k e med i a , so i t c ould be art i c l es 

and online newspapers . 

Q. It could be blogs? 

A. I t hink t hat a t t hat time , i t 

c o uld have been , yes . I ' m not sure . 

So there are a lot o f ar t icles 

here from Novaya Gazata . Everything is i n 

the public record . Let ' s put it that way . 

Q. And if you had a speci f ic 

statement of an an t i - Semitic or 

an t i - America a specifi c ins t ance o f an 

an t i - American or anti-Semi t ic statement, you 

would have used i t in your edu c a t ional 

e fforts ; is that correct? 

A. I th i nk we had eno ugh f o r 

education efforts , sir . 

Q. Do you recal l eve r notifying any 
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j o urna l ist o r anybody of any speci f ic 

an t i - Ameri c an or ant i-Semi t i c statement s by 

Mr . Egia zaryan? 

A. His presence o n the party list o f 

LDPR was enough reason for us , sir --

Q. And t hat was --

A. I -- t here migh t have been 

some art i c l es . I do not recal l, s i r . 

Q. You don ' t recal l, one way or 

another , whether there was any art i cles o f 

anything o t her than an an -- an a lleged 

a ff i l iat i o n wi t h the LDPR 

MR . SPERDUTO : Wel l, J ason --

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. is that correct? 

MR . SPERDUTO : -- just -- just 

a minu t e , p l ease . 

Yo u ' re ask i ng him abou t a 

d o cument tha t has 28 pages . I t' s 

over -- what ' s tha t ? -- seven or 

eight months old . 

And y o u ' re ask i ng him if he can 

reca ll wha t' s in the documen t or is 

i t in t he d o cument? 
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Fl i p through and see i f y o u 

find anyt h i ng . 

THE WITNESS : There ' s this 

whole Chapter 14 . It ' s about 

an t i - Semitic l inks of t he LDPR . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Al l right. The l ast quest i o n 

t hat I as ked was , i f you had any s pe c ifi c 

instance of an anti - American or anti - Semitic 

statement , you would have i ncluded that i n 

-- in writing ; i s t hat correct? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Hypothe t ica l; 

i mproper . 

THE WITNESS : I t h i n k we 

included what we knew for the best of 

ou r knowledge , s i r . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Yo u i ncluded wha t y o u knew f r om 

t he best o f y o ur kn owledge ; i s tha t c o rrec t ? 

A. I t h i n k whatever was 

communicated , that was the stu ff which was 

based on due d i l i gence . And i f we have 

referred to s ome t hing , i t has -- i t must have 

been sourced to s o me t h i ng . That ' s -- t hat ' s 
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a f a ir thing to say . So we try t o be very 

fa i r . 

Q. And if you f ound -- strike that . 

Are y o u aware , in any o f the 

l e tters or materia l s that were prepared by 

Mr . Zalmayev o r by you , o f any speci fi c 

an ti- Semi t i c o r an ti-American statement by 

Mr . Eg i azaryan? 

A. I think that -- I do not reca ll, 

sir , o ne way o r another -- I do no t recall 

one way or another , sir . 

Q. I'm g o ing t o show y o u PZ2292 , 

wh i ch we ' ll mark as Exhibit 203 . 

(Whereupon, an e - mail was 

marked , f o r i denti f ication purpo ses , as 

Deposition Exhibit Number 203 .) 

MR . COHEN : I' m s o rry . This 

one . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen this document 

before? 

A. I d o not recal l, s i r . I don ' t 

New York 
Connecticut 

Hudson Reporting & Video 
Nationwide 1-800-310-1769 

New Jersey 
Pennsylvania 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

1 8 

1 9 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

358 

RINAT R. AKHMETSHIN 

believe s o . 

MR . COHEN: I' m go i ng t o mark 

as Exhibit 20 4, PZ2911 . 

(Whereupon , an e - mail with 

attachment was marked, f or 

i den tifica tion purposes , as Deposition 

Exhibit Number 204 . ) 

THE WITNESS: Thank y o u . 

BY MR. COH EN: 

Q. Have you seen this be f ore? 

A. Yes . 

Q. And did -- do you know who 

prepared this compilation o f materials? 

A. I d o n 't remember , but the se are 

compilation o f articles. 

Q. Do you kn ow where y o u g o t it 

fr om? 

A. From Moscow , most like l y . I 

don ' t recall exactly . 

Q. Do you know who -- who sen t it 

to you? 

A. Maybe s ome journalist from Novaya 
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Gaza t a --

Q. Was --

A. -- these are articles from --

that ' s a compilation o f articles . 

Q. Was t his par t of your research 

f o r -- f or learn i ng i nfo rmat i o n abou t 

Ash o t Eg i azaryan? 

A. I' m sure i t was part of i t . 

MR . SPERDUTO : This is 204 , 

right? 

THE WI TNESS : This is 204 , yes . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. I ' m g o ing t o show y o u what ' s 

been what has Bates Number PZ27 18 . 

MR . COHEN : And we ' ll mark that 

as Ex hibit 205 . 

(Whereupo n , an e - ma i l wi th 

attachment was marked , for 

i den t ifi c a t ion purposes , as Deposi t ion 

Exhibit Number 205 . ) 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. What is t h i s? 
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A. A summary of the art i c l es . 

Q. And who -- who -- who prepared 

it? 

A. I d o not recall . I did rece i ve 

it f rom Russia , most l i ke l y , since i t' s in 

Russ i an . 

Q. I' m g o i ng t o show y o u what 

c ontains Bates Number PZ278 1 

(Whereupo n , Russian document 

was marked , for iden t ifica t ion 

purposes , as Depos i t i o n Exhibi t 

Number 206 . ) 

THE WITNESS : Thank you . 

BY MR . COH EN: 

Q. which we 'll mark as 

Exhibi t 206 . 

What is t h i s? 

A. I t ' s the summar i es of articles , 

but , you know , I -- I might specu l ate -- I 
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summaries o f artic l es abou t Russian -- i t' s 
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peopl e wh o are men t ioned here . 

Bu t i t mi ght have been from 

Mr . Markarian , because it ' s his client 

matter . 

Q. Wel l, whose -- wha t do you mean , 

" h i s c l ien t" ? 

A. Eur opark was something which 

Mr . Smagan was -- Mr . Eg i azaryan a l leged l y 

stole this property from Mr . Smagan . 

And if this -- I -- I did no t 

prepare t his s t a t ement , bu t if I did receive 

i t , i t probably was f rom Mr . Smagan ' s 

l awyers . 

Q. And you don 't have any spe c ifi c 

knowledge regarding or expertise regarding 

the dispute between Mr . Eg i azaryan and 

Mr . Smagan , do you? 

A. I d o not kn ow. I t ' s jus t stu ff, 

i t ' s art i c l es . 

Q. I'l l show you what we 'l l mark as 

Exhibit 207 , which bears Bates Number 2849 . 

MR . COHEN : I ' m s o rry . Let 

me --
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(Whereupo n , an e - mail wi th 

at t a c hment was mark ed , for 

identification purposes , as Deposition 

Exhibit Number 207 . ) 

THE WITNESS : Thank y o u . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Have you seen t hat before? 

A. I might have , yes . 

Q. Do you know who prepared this? 

MR . SPERDUTO : I' m sorry . 

Wh i ch page are you talking abo ut , 

2849 o r the subsequent pages? 

MR . COHEN: The subsequent 

pages . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Do you know who prepared the 

repo rt tha t' s on the subsequen t pages? 

A. Summary . It cou l d have been 

Mr . Mar kar i an ' s peop l e , his l aw firm . 

Q. You don ' t recall one way or the 

other? 

A. I -- I mos t likely -- I did no t 

wr i te t h i s . This I c o uld t e l l f or sure . 
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I d o remember thi s documen t, yes . 

Q. I' m go i ng t o show you what we 'll 

mark as Exhibit 208 . 

(Whereupon , series o f ar ticl es 

and papers was marked , f or 

i den tifi ca tion purposes , as Deposi tion 

Exhibit Number 208 . ) 

BY MR . COH EN: 

Q. Have you seen thi s be f ore? 

A. I d o not remember , s i r . But this 

i s jus t ar ti cles and papers . 

Q. And who c o llec t ed that? 

A. It might have been Peter 

Mr . Zalmayev . 

Q. And are you aware o f any other 

t han I ' ve -- anyt h ing other t han wha t I' ve 

shown y o u that const i tutes wri t ten research 

regard i ng Mr . Eg i azaryan that you ' ve seen? 

A. I do not remember , sir . This 

migh t there might be -- I'm sure t here ' s 

much , much more , because t here ' s a l o t of , 

li ke , rubbi sh onli ne and , y o u know , s ome 
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stuff wh ich is absolutely outrage o us . 

But these are articles which we 

probably can see that would be relevant, you 

New York 
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know , and just --

Q. Are you aware 

A. reports --

Q. o f any other wr itten or 

c o llec t ed c ompilat i ons of articles or 

research other than the ones that I've just 

shown y o u? 

A. I'm not sure , s ir. 

Q. Yo u ' re not aware o f anything? 

A. I --

MR . SPERDUTO : He just talked 

about the online stuff . 

MR . COHEN : I said 

THE WITN ESS: So there are --

there are I -- I c ompiled s ome 

of the stuff was compiled or I 

c ommi ss ioned compi l ation of -- or 

research 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. 

A. 

Right. 

-- the stuf f. 
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And I read a lot o f ar t icles 

myse l f , bu t t hese are stuff wh i ch I' ve 

probably seen be f ore . These are old articles 

wh i ch we d i scussed two , three times i n this 

deposi t ion a l ready . 

Q. Do you recal l anything e l se t hat 

y o u c o mmi ssioned o r rece i ved tha t c o ntains a 

c ompilat i on of med i a or articles regardi ng 

Mr . Egia zaryan? 

A. No t t o the best o f my 

recollec t ion , sir . 

Q. Do you recal l any other wr i t t en 

reports or o t her informa t ion regarding 

Mr . Eg i azaryan o t her than what we ' ve seen i n 

this pi l e o f materials that we ' ve discussed? 

A. I th i nk I did -- I d i d 

commission we men t ioned i t, but I haven ' t 

seen this among t hese d o cuments I d i d 

c o mmi ssion a legal memo --

Q. Okay . 

A. -- on Mr . Egia zaryan ' s 

immigrat i o n matters . 

Q. That ' s the Sne l becker memo? 

A. Snelbeck- -- Ms . Snelbecker ' s 
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Q. Okay --

A. memos . 

Q. so anything -- other than the 

Snelbecker memo , was there anything else 

t hat you can recall t hat you commi ss ioned 

with regard t o providing research or 

materials on Mr . Egiazaryan? 

A. I t doesn ' t come t o my memory 

right now , but we ' ve seen quite a few things 

here , sir . 

Q. There ' s quite a few t hings tha t 

seems t o be re l a - -- does that seem t o be 

relatively comprehensive in terms of what 

you reca l l? 

A. I think that there are probably 

over a tho usand pages o f serio us documents . 

I t hink it ' s pre t ty se riou s ma t erials . 

Q. I' m g o i ng t o show y o u what ' s 

been previously marked as Exhibit 83 . 

Have you see n t h i s documen t 

before? 

A. Yes , I have , sir . 

Q. What i s it? 

A. I t ' s a -- i t ' s a memo from 
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Mr . Bloomf i e l d . 

Q. And t hen i t says -- on the very 

top o f the f irst page , it says 

A. Memo con f erence , I guess --

Memcon --

Q. -- Memco n , and then i t says 

Spoke t o Ri nat , c o rrec t ? 

A. Correct, yes . 

Q. And then there ' s a date o f 

February 4th , 2 011 ; i s that c o rrect? 

A. Correct, sir , it does appear so . 

I did n o t wr i te t h i s memo . 

Q. And t hen I cal l y o ur a t ten t ion 

t o the -- we l l , l e t me jus t step bac k for a 

second . 

So there came a time when y o u 

t urned the -- your a t ten t ion away from 

Chechnya and towards anti-Semi t ism; i s tha t 

c o rrec t ? 

A. Correct, because -- yes , corre c t . 

Q. And -- and did you have numerous 

c o nversations with Mr . Zalmayev about the 

streng t h of -- of t he argument regarding 

an t i - Semi t i sm? 
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A. Co uld y o u please --

Q. Did you have a conversat i on wi t h 

Mr . Zalmayev as to how strong a case there 

was t o allege that -- t o allege 

an t i - Semitism wi t h regard t o Mr. Egiazaryan? 

A. We always -- we discussed this 

issue of anti - Semitism o f h ow stro ng o r h ow 

weak . We -- we es t abl i shed t hat Chechnya 

thing was not -- we could not say with 

certainty . So , therefore , we dropped this 

ma t ter and we focused on o t her mat t er. 

Q. Did y o u c o nclude that y o u 

c o uldn ' t make the anti - Semitism argument 

wi t h cert a i n t y? 

A. I don ' t think so , sir . 

Q. Okay . I ' ll call your attentio n 

t o Paragraph 17 , which is on Page 484. 

And d o you see where it says , No t 

an easy issue , largely circumstantial . It ' s 

t he party and i ts l eader , Zh i r i novsky? 

A. Yes , I do read this , sir . 

Q. And did y o u discuss -- does 

t hat -- was t hat Mr. Zalmayev ' s posi t ion on 

February 4 , 2011? 
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MR . SPERDUTO : I ' m sorry . The 

c onten t s of paragraph -- you ' re 

asking if -- you ' re asking 

Mr . Akhmetsh in i f the c o ntents in 

Paragraph 17 in a memo wr itten by 

Mr . Bloomfi eld is Mr . Zalmayev ' s 

p osition? 

MR . COHEN: Yeah , did he 

express that position when -- in a 

c o nversation o n or aro und 

February 4 t h , 201 1 ? 

MR . SPERDUTO : On who -- d id 

who -- d i d --

MR . COHEN: Mr . Za l mayev --

THE WITNESS : I do not --

MR . COHEN : -- s t a t e --

BY MR. COH EN: 

Q. Did -- d id you hear Mr . Zalmayev 

state wi th regard t o the ant i-Semitism 

argument tha t i t ' s not an easy is sue , i t ' s 
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BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. tha t t he party and i ts 

leader --

MR . SPERDUTO : -- there's 

no t hing in Paragraph 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Zhirinovsky 

MR . SPERDUTO : t here ' s 

nothing in Paragraph 17 

MR . COHEN : I'm asking him a 

ques tion . 

THE WITNESS : I d o not --

MR . SPERDUTO : But there ' s 

no t h i ng i n Paragraph -- object i on t o 

the f orm; it assumes facts not in 

evidence . 

I don 't see anything in 17 

right here that t a lks about li nk ing 

n o t 

MR . COHEN: I didn ' t 

MR . SPERDUTO: -- an easy issue 

with 

MR . COHEN: -- ask about 17 . I 

referenced 17 . I asked if he had a 
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c o nversa t ion 

MR . SPERDUTO: You ' re quot i ng 

f rom 17 , Not an easy issue . 

MR . COHEN : I asked him if he 

had a conversa t ion wi th Mr . Za l mayev 

or was involved i n a conversat i o n 

wi t h Mr . Zalmayev i n which 

Mr . Za l mayev sa i d with regard t o the 

anti - Semitism argument that it ' s not 

an easy i ssue , it ' s l argely 

circumstan t ia l, it ' s the par t y and 

i ts l eader , Zh i r i novsky . 

THE WITNESS : I d o not remember 

t hat conversat i on , s i r --

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Yo u 

A. -- this is not my memo . It' s 

wr i t t en by some o ne e l se . 

New York 
Connecticut 

Q. We l l , i t says Spoke t o Ri nat a t 

t he t op , doesn ' t i t ? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Spoke to Rinat . And that ' s --

And y o u --

and these are --

you are Ri nat? 
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A. I am Rinat , and -- but it 

doesn 't -- and i t says , here , Pe t er Za l mayev , 

re : project . 

Q. And regardless o f whether y o u 

recall this specific 

A. I d o not 

Q. conversati o n 

A. remember t hat specific 

conversation , sir 

Q . Okay --

A. tha t answers your question. 

Q. so regardless whether you 

remember that this specific conversati o n 

at this t ime , do you recal l Mr . Za l mayev 

saying , in sum or substance with regard to 

the anti - Semitism issue , that it ' s not an 

easy issue , it ' s largely circums t antial , 

it ' s the party and its leader , Zhirinovsky? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objection to the 

form . 

THE WITNESS : Sir , I do not --

once again , as I mentioned to y o u , I 

do not recall t hat conversation 

and -- o r characterization o f th i s 
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issue as circumstantial , because I 

th i nk i t ' s a fair i ssue and we 

proceeded with it . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. I asked you whether you heard 

Mr . Zalmayev say that . 

A. I d o not remember , sir , 

ment i on Mr . Zalmayev ment i oning this to 

me . 

Q. Do you kno w who -- was this memo 

circulated to you or Mr. Zalmayev at any 

time , t o your reco llection? 

A. I think it ' s the notes o f 

Mr . Bloomf i e l d ' s to himself . Spoke t o 

Rinat it ' s not addressed to me . 

Q. Is it -- is it your -- just t o 

clarify, is it your posi t ion tha t you don 't 

recall , one way or an o ther , whether 

Mr . Zalmayev ever made that statement or a 

simi l ar t ype of statement ? 

A. About this -- which statement , 

please? 

Q. The statement t hat -- wi t h 

regard to the anti - Semi tism issue, that it ' s 
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n o t an easy i ssue , it ' s l argely 

circumstantial , i t ' s the party and its 

leader , Zhirinovsky? 

A. I d o not recall the statement , 

sir , to the best of my recollection. 

MR . COHEN : Mark as -- wel l --

okay . 

Le t me mark as Exh i b i t 209 a 

document bearing Bates Number PZ2843 , 

the e - ma il fr o m Rinat Akhmetsh i n to 

Pe t er Zalmayev dated Thursday , 

March 10 , 20 11. 

(Whereupon , an e - ma i l s tring 

was marked , f or identification 

purposes , as Depos i t i o n Exhibit 

Number 209 . ) 

THE WITNESS : Thank y o u . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. Did you send this e - mail to 

Peter Zalmayev o n or abo ut March 10 th , 20 11 ? 

A. It does appear that way , sir , 

yes . 
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Q. And -- and you see the -- y o u 

are forwarding to Mr . Za l mayev an e - ma i l 

from you -- an an e - mail exchange between 

y o u and David Whiddo n --

A. That is correc t . 

Q. -- is that correct? 

A. That is c o rrect , sir . 

Q. And do you see , i n 

David Whiddon ' s e - mail of March 10th , 2011 

at 12 : 48 , he wro te , No guilt by ass o ciatio n . 

Mr . Zalmayev -- I ' m sorry No guil t by 

ass o ciatio n . Zhirinovsky may be 

anti - Semitic (odd , because I always thought 

his fa t her was Jewi sh) -- t he ar t icle does 

not provide any evidence that Egiazaryan is ; 

he ' s just a bad businessman . 

Do you see tha t ? 

A. That ' s -- I d o believe this was 

Mr . Whiddo n ' s opini o n , perso nal opini o n , 

wh i ch he ' s absolutely en t i t led . 

Q. Would that cause you to go back 

and want to think f urther about whether it 

was appropriate t o consider Mr . Egiazaryan 

anti - Semi tic? 
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RI NAT R. AKHMETSH I N 

A. I d o think tha t, you kn ow -- i t' s 

my persona l be l ief was being in a po l i t i c a l 

party and lending your name to a message of 

hate is is like message o f terrorism . Yo u 

may no t go and blow up bridges and American 

t roops , bu t if you g i ve t hese peopl e money o r 

give them shel t er , tha t -- tha t' s what i t i s . 

I t h i n k t o --

Q. Are you equating 

Mr . Egiazaryan ' s actio ns with that o f a 

t erroris t ? 

A. I was --

MR . SPERDUTO : Objec t ion to t he 

form ; argument . It' s a me t aphor . 

He ' s using an analogy ; he ' s not 

equating . 

THE WI TNESS : Correct, sir , 

i t ' s an analogy . 

MR . SPERDUTO : Tha t' s an 

argument in a ques t ion . You k now 

better . 

THE WITNESS : I did no t -- it ' s 

a me t aphorica l ly me t aphorica l 

statemen t, s i r . 
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RI NAT R. AKHMETSH I N 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. And i sn 't i t the case t hat when 

you were f irst drafting letters regarding 

New York 
Connecticut 

the anti - Semi tism issue , that y o u wanted to 

keep Zhirinovsky ' s name ou t of the -- ou t of 

the l e t ters? 

MR . SPERDUTO : Objection to the 

form . 

You can answer . 

THE WITNESS : It was my opinio n 

at the time . 

BY MR . COHEN : 

Q. And and how did you come t o 

t he -- why d i d you wan t t o keep 

Zhirinovsky ' s name out of letters at the 

time? 

A. I jus t didn 't want confus ion . 

I t ' s very hard . 

MR . COHEN : Let ' s take a short 

break . 

THE WITNESS : Sure . 

THE VIDEOGRAPHER : The time is 

6 : 43 . We ' re going off the record . 

(Whereupon , a br i ef recess was 
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RINAT R. AKHMETSH I N 

taken fr om 6 : 43 p . m. to 6 : 49 p . m. ) 

THE VI DEOGRAPHER : The t i me i s 

6 : 49 . We ' re back on the record . 

MR . COHEN : Mr . Akhmetsh in, I 

have no further ques tions for righ t 

now . Thank y ou very much f o r y ou r 

time. 

THE WITNESS : Thank you . Glad 

to be o f he lp, sir . 

MR . GOLDEN: I have no 

ques tions. 

MR . SPERDUTO : Thank you , 

gentlemen . 

MR . LUPKIN: Thank you . 

THE VI DEOGRAPHER : All right . 

The time is 6 : 50 p . m. We are g o ing 

off t he record . Thi s is the end of 

Disc Number 4 and the end o f today ' s 

deposition . 

(Witness excused . ) 

(Depos ition concluded at 

6 : 50 p . m. ) 
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l C E R T I F I C A T E 

2 DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA: 

3 I,-- II 1111, a Notary Publ i c 

4 within and f or the Jurisdiction a f oresaid , do 

5 hereby certify that the f oregoing depositi o n o f 

6 RINAT R. AKHMETSHIN , was t aken before me , pursuan t 

7 to n o ti ce , at the time and place i ndicated ; that 

8 said depo nent was by me duly sworn t o tell the 

9 tru t h , t he whole t ruth , and nothing but the tru t h ; 

1 0 that the testimony o f said deponent was correctly 

11 recorded in machine sho rthand by me and thereafter 

12 transcr i bed under my supervi s ion wi t h 

13 compu ter-aided transcript i o n ; that the depo sition 

1 4 is a true record of the testimo ny g iven by the 

1 5 wi tness ; and t hat I am ne i ther of counsel nor kin 

1 6 to any party in said action , nor interested in the 

17 o utcome thereof . 

1 8 WITN ESS my hand and official sea l 

1 9 this 22nd day o f March , 2012 . 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

24 II 1111, RMR , CSR , RPR , CRR , 

25 CCR , RSA , No t ary Publi c 
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1 INSTRUCTIONS TO WITNE SS 

2 

3 Pl ease r ead your deposi t i on over 

4 c arefully a nd make any nec e s s a ry cor rections . You 

5 s h ould s t a t e the reason in the appropri a te space on 

6 the e rrata sheet f or any c orrec tions t hat are made . 

7 Af t e r doing so , p lea se s ign t he errata 

8 s h e et a n d date it . 

9 You are s ign i ng same subject t o the 

1 0 changes you have noted on the errata sheet, whi ch will 

11 be a ttac hed to your depositio n. 

12 It i s impe rative tha t you r e turn the 

13 original errat a sheet t o t he deposi ng a t torney wi t hin 

14 thirty (30) days of receipt o f the deposition 

15 transcript by you. If you f a il t o d o so , t he 

1 6 deposition trans c ri p t may be deemed to be accurate and 

17 may be u sed in court. 

1 8 

1 9 
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1 ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF DEPONENT 

2 

3 I' , do 

4 hereby certify that I have read the f oregoing 

5 pages , 1 t o 378 , and that the same is a correct 

6 transcription of the answers given by me to the 

7 quest i o ns therein prop ou nded, except f o r the 

8 correcti o ns o r changes in form or substance , 

9 if any , noted in the attached errata sheet . 

1 0 

11 

1 2 

13 DATE SIGNATURE 

1 4 

15 

1 6 

17 

1 8 Subscribed and sworn t o be fore me 

1 9 this day o f 2012 . 

20 

2 1 My Commiss i on expires: 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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EXHIBIT 

f j 

Subject: Re: Prevezon case 
From: 

Date: 12/15/2015 3:36 PM 
To: 

dear. thank you for reaching out about that case . i am traveling this week but my colleague glenn 
simpson (cc'ed) will be able to brief you on the particulars of the case. please say hi to 
- and thank you again for looking into this very important matter! rinat 

On Dec 15, 2015, at 20:39, wrote: 

Rinat : my name is and I ' m a reporter with . My 
colleague gave me your name and told me you were handling 
media calls for Denis Katsyv and his Prevezon companies . I ' m doing a 
story in advance of the J an . 6 forfeiture trial and would l i ke to set up 
an interview with Mr . Katsyv , if he ' s willing to talk . 

You can email me at the address above or call me at 
out . 

RELEASED BY AUTHORITY OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE SENATE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

. Thanks 

CONFIDEl'+TIAL RA SEN JUDICIARY000001 



Subject: Meet later? 

From: Glenn Simpson 

Date: 2/4/2016 11:28 AM 
To: Veselnitskaya Nataliya 

CC: rinat akhmetshin 

, Murat Glashev 

Nataliya, I understand the meeting is tonight at 9 but Rinat suggested we get together before hand. Are you free later this 
afternoon or for dinner? 

RELEASED BY AUTHORITY OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE SENATE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

EXHIBIT 

4 

CONFIDENTIAL RA SEN JUDICIARY000005 



EXHIBIT 

NEWS NOV 10 20\7, 4:41 PM ET I 1 
Trump Dossier Firm Also Supplied Info Used in Meeting of Russians, Trump Tee: 
by KEN OILANIAN ~--~~~~·!II••·' WASHINGTON - The Information that a Russian lawyer brought with her when she met Donald Trump Jr. in June 2016 stemmed from research conducted by Fusion 

GPS, the same firm that compiled the infamous Trump dossier, according to the lawyer and a source familiar with the matter. 

In an interview with NBC News, Russian lawyer Natalia Veselnitskaya says she first received the supposedly incriminating information she brought to Trump Tower -

describing alleged tax evasion and donations to Democrats - from Glenn Simpson, the Fusion GPS owner, who had been hired to conduct research in a New York 

federal court case. 

A source with firsthand knowledge of the matter confirmed that the firm's resea.rch had been provided to Veselnitskaya as part of the case, which involved alleging money 

laundering by a Russian company called Prevezon. 

This account casts Veselnitskaya's activities in a new light, challenging the notion that she was simply carrying talking points to Trump that originated with the Russian 

governmenl 

Veselnitskaya told NBC News she has been cooperating with the Senate Judiciary Committee, which ls investigating how the Trump dossier was complied. But she has 

not been contacted by Special Counsel Robert Mueller, she said. 

Starting In 2014, Simpson and Veselnltskaya had both worked on the same side of the Prevezon case, in which the Justice Department accused the Cyprus-based 

Russian company of laundering hundreds of mill ions of dollars via New York real estate. Beginning in 2016, Simpson was working with a former British Intelligence 

operative on another project - the Trump dossier. 

In a statement to NBC News, a lawyer for Fusion GPS said Fusion's work on the dossier was totally separate from Its work on the Prevezon case. Levy said the firm was 

unaware of the Trump Tower meeting when it happened. 

Related: The Legal Battle Behind the Trump Tower Meeting 

' No one from Fusion GPS had any idea Ms. Veselnltskaya would be meeting with anyone from the Trump campaign." attorney Josh Levy said. ' Nor did anyone from 

Fusion GPS know she would be sharing anything she learned from either the company or the Prevezon matter with the Trump campaign. This whole episode came as a 

complete surprise to Fusion when the news broke this summer." 

Reuters was the first to report that the information originated with Fusion. 

ito .. ueL= 
: X.PO·SUR:: . 

. 
·- -



Glenn Simpson. partner or Fusion GPS, speal<s on a panel at the Double Exposure lnvestigaliVe Film Festival and Symposium on October 7, 2016 In Washington. Double Exposure lnvesligative Filrp Festival an~ 
Symposium 

Months before she met In June 2016 with Trump Jr .. Veselnitskaya said she turned the information she got from Simpson over to Russian Prosecutor General Yuri Chaika. 

who she said sought to verify it through his own investigation. 

In May 2016, the Russian prosecutor general issued a statement seeking U.S. help in investigating what he described as a tax evasion scheme involving the Ziff brothers, 

American investors. and British investor Bill Browder. 

Veselnltskaya said that statement was based in part on information she provided in the fall of 2015. 

"I was in effect, the primary source of this information for the Russian Prosecutor General's office. They then published the facts I uncovered.' 

She got the information from Fusion GPS, which prepared detailed reports in 2014, she said. 

Related: Russian Lawyer Says She Didn't Have Info Trump Jr. Wanted 

The now-infamous July 2016 Trump Tower meeting was arranged by Rob Goldstone, a music promoter who said he was repres.enting oligarch Aras Agalarov and his son 

Emin, a pop star- both friends of the Trump family. 

In an email that has become public, Goldstone wrote to Trump that "the Crown prosecutor of Russia ... offered to provide the Trump campaign with some official 

documents and Information that would Incriminate Hillary and her dealings with Russia and would be very useful to your father.· 

Trump Jr. replied: "If it's what you say I love it ... • 

Donald TnJmp Ji. 6stens toe speech on the first day of the RepubQcan National Convention on July 18, 2016 in Cleveland, Ohio. John Moore I Getty Images file 

Veselnitskaya said she did not discuss the Trump Tower meeting with the Russian prosecutor general before it happened. 

" I am absolutely certain that I had not spoken about that upcoming meeting with the prosecutor general himself or with any of the officials of the prosecutor general's 

office," she said. 

Intelligence experts have theorized that Veselnitskaya may have been a pawn in a scheme by Russian spy agencies to test the waters, seeking to determine how the 

Trump team would respond to an explicit offer of Russian help. But no evidence has surfaced to buttress that theory. Mueller is investigating the Trump Tower meeting. 

Related: Former Soviet Counterintelligence Officer at Trump Tower Meeting 



Veselnltskaya's account has evolved somewhat over time. In an initial interview with NBC News in July, she said, •1 never had any damaging or sensitive information about 

Hillary Clinton. It was never my intention to have that.• 

In an August interview, she told NBC News that she did, In fact, turn over information about what she considered unflattering political contributions to Hillary Clinton and 

the Democrats. 

In an interview this week, she said she didn't think those two statements were contradictory because she didn't expect Clinton to be aware of the allegations. against the 

donors. 

Russian lawyer Natalia Veselnitskaya NSC News 

She provided NBC News with a document she says she prepared for the Trump Tower meeting, In which Clinton was mentioned in reference to contributions from the Ziff 

brothers, whom she accused of evading Russian laxes. She believes that some of the money they reaped from doing that ended up supporting Clinton and the 

Democrats. and she wanted the Trump campaign to know that. In fact, the Ziff brothers, who have declined to comment. also donated to Republicans. 

Veselnitskaya also discussed what she believed was Incriminating information about Bill Browder, a wealthy British subject who has been the chief advocate for the 

Magnitsky Act, a U.S. law that sanctions alleged Russian human rights violators. 

She said that information also came from Fusion GPS In 2014, as part of Its research Into Browder for the Prevezon case. 

Donald Trump Jr. has said that he didn't learn anything useful in the meeting. 

However, Trump Jr. did promise to reexamine the Magnitsky matter if his father was elected, Veselnitskaya said. 

"In case if we are successful in this campaign. maybe one day we would be interested In getting back to it. Because all that you told us sounds very interesting,• she said, 

paraphrasing Trump Jr. "And who knows? Maybe one day we'll get back to that conversation. but not before that.• 

Veselnitskaya told NBC News she worked with the Russian prosecutor to corroborate the information she received from Fusion GPS. 

She said she spoke to an investigator In the prosecutor's office. 'to whom I also showed and explained the sources of my information, provided details etc. As far as I 

know, forensic expertise was conducted to verify the facts. Letters were sent to various countries, including Switzerland. Cyprus, and the United States of America, in 

order to establish whether the information I shared with the Investigation and the prosecution was authentic." 

She said she worked as a consultant to the prosecutor's office as part or the investigation. 

Veselnitskaya is not a major figure In Russia, but she Is a well-connected lawyer who represented a Russian intelligence agency, the FSB, in a property case between 

2005 and 2013, according to Reuters. Her ex-husband was a deputy prosecutor in the Moscow region, according to the Guardian. 

Browder is a businessman who made a 'fortune investing in post-Soviet Russia and was a supporter of Vladimir Putin until he was kicked out or the country in 2005, 
accused of evading $40 million in taxes. Browder renounced his U.S. citizenship in 1997. 



His account of what he says the Russian government did to Magnitsky, whom he des~ribes as his lawyer, triggered international outrage, and led Congress to pass the 

Magnitsky Act. 

Russian Prosecutor General Yuri Chaika (L) speaks with Russian President Vladimlr Putin (R) during Iha Conlerence of the European ProseC<Jtors General on July 5, 2006 In Moscow. Serg8' llnftsky I EPA rile 

According to Browder. Magnltsky had been Investigating.a !hell of $230 million in tax rebates paid to Browder's companies in Russia. Browder says his companies had 

been taken over Illegally and without his knowledge by corrupt Russian officials. 

Browder says Magnitsky was arrested as a reprisal by those same corrupt officials, and then was tortured and beaten to death, although an independent medical report 

says he died of an Infection exacerbated by medical neglect in poor prison conditions. 

Browder presented documents suggesting that some officials who benefited from the alleged fraud purchased property abroad. 

The Russian government soon imposed a ban on American adoptions of Russian children. ostensibly for other reasons but done in response, many experts say, to the 

Magnitsky sanctions. 

Simpson, who is a former Wall Street Journal reporter, was paid to dig Into Browder by a law firm representing Denis Katsyv, the owner of Prevezon. 

Prevezon settled the U.S. money-laundering lawsuit in May- with no admission of wrongdoing - by agreeing to pay SS million. The U.S. government originally sought to 

freeze S20 million of company assets. Both sides claimed victory. 

Veselnitskaya said Simpson's research showed that Browder was in business in Russia with the Ziff brothers. 

The only reference to Clinton in Veselnitskaya's document is part of a reference to the Ziffs. She accused them of evading Russian taxes. and suggested that some of the 

money they reaped from doing that ended up supporting Democrats. 



Businessman BRI Browder stands fn Moscow's Red Square. Courtesy of Bil Browder 

"According to available Information, the Ziff Brothers were involved In funding both of Obama's election campaigns and have been dubbed by the U.S. media as 'the 

Democrats' main sponsors,"' Veselnitskaya wrote, in a Russian language document translated by NBC News. "They are possibly involved in funding Hillary Clinton's 

campaign." 

That allegation is hardly incriminating - and It is only partially accurate. 

Employees of Ziff Brothers Investments contributed nearly $1 .7 million to various political committees and candidates in the 2016 election cycle - a mixture of 

Republicans and Democrats. Donations to Clinton's presidential campaign totaled only $17,700. 

Regardless, Russian President Vladimir Putin of Russia has taken to mentioning some version of Veselnitskaya's charges of late, and state-run television has aired 

Interviews with Veselnitskaya and Chalks. 



9/27/2017 LD-2 Disclosure Form EXHIBIT 

Clerk of the House of Representatives 
Legislative Resource Center 
B-106 Cannon Building 

j ~ 

Washington, DC 20515 
http:l/lobbyingdiselosure.house.gov 

Secretary of the Senate 
Office of Public Records 
232 Hart Building 
Washington, DC 205 l 0 
http://www.senate.gov/lobby LOBBYING REPORT 

Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 (Section 5) - All Filers Are Required to Complete This Page 

1. Registrant Name ./ Organization/Lobbying Firm Self Employed Individual 
The Human Rights Accountability Global Initiative Foundation 

2. Address 
Address I 1050 Connecticut Ave NW# 500 Address2 

City Washinglon Stale DC Zip Code 20036 Country USA - - --

3. Princioal olace of business lif different than line 2) 

City State Zip Code Country I 
4a. Contact Name b. Telephone Number c. E-mail 5. Senate ID# 

Mr. Robert Arakelian 401104052-1 2 

7. Client Name "' Self Check if client is a state or local government or instrumentality 6. House ID# 
The Human Rights Accountabil ity Global Initiative Foundation 432870001 

TYPE OF REPORT 8. Year 2016 QI (1/ 1 - 3/31) Q2 (4/1 - 6/30) " Q3 (7/1 - 9/30) Q4 (10/1 - 12131) 

9. Check if tliis filing amends a previously filed version of this report " 

10 Check if this is a Termination Report Termination Date 11 No Lobbying Issue Activity 

INCOME OR EXPENSES - YOU MUST complete either Line 12 or Line 13 
12. Lobbying 

INCOME relating to lobbying activities for this reporting period was: 

Less than $5.000 

$5.000 or more $ 

Provide a good faith estimate, rounded to the nearest $I 0,000, of al l 
lobbying related income from the client (including all payments to the 
registrant by any other entity for lobbying activities on behalf of the 
client). 

Signature !Digitally Signed By: Robert Arakelian 

13. Organizations 
EXPENSE relating to lobbying activities for this reporting period were: 

Less than SS.000 

$5.000 or more ., $ 50,000.00 

14. REPORTfNG Check box 10 indicate expense accounting method. 
See instructions for description of options. 

<I Method A. Reporting amounts using LDA definitions only 

Method B. Reporting amounts under section 6033(b)(8) of the 
Internal Revenue Code 

Method C. Reporting amounts under section 162(e) of the Internal 
Revenue Code 

Date 
5/8/2017 
10:24:38 AM 

https://soprweb.senate.gov/index.cfm?event=getFllingDetails&filinglD=D6F09422-6458-4A9C-B97C-840C390A402F&filingTypel0=64 1/3 



912712017 LD-2 Disclosure Form 

LOBBYlNG ACTIVITY. Select as many codes as necessary to reflect the general issue areas in which the registrant engaged in lobbying on behalf 
of the client during the reporting period. Using a separate page for each code, provide information as requested. Add additional P.age(s) as needed. 

15. General issue area code FOR 

16. Specific lobbying issues 

Jrorei gn adoption issues 

17. House(s) of Congress and Federal agencies Check if None 

llJ.S. SENATE, U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

18. Name of each individual who acted as a lobbyist in this issue area 

First Name Last Name Suffix I Covered Official Position (if applicable) I New I 
=JR=ob=ert==============-l~jAf:a:~:lian:::;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;~ll 11 .--/A-------------~,~ 

19. Interest of each foreign entity in the specific issues listed on line 16 above Check if None 

ikhail Ponomarev, Albert Nasibulin, Denis Katcyv, Vladimir Lelyukh and Berryle Trading Inc support policies that would reinstate the ability for 
.S. citizens to adopt Russian children. 

Information Update Page - Complete ONLY where registration information has changed. 

20. Client new address 

Address ---------------------------------------------City __________________ _ State ---- - Zip Code------ Country 

21. Client new principal place of business (if different than line 20) 

City--------------------- State ----- Zip Code------ Country 

22. New General description of client's business or activities 

LOBBYIST UPDATE 

_23. Name of each previously reported individual who is no longer expected to act as a lobbyist for the client 

.... W_ir_st_N_arn_e ____ _..I ._IL_as_t_N_1am_e ______ __..l lsumx l ._f_ir_st_N_arn_e ____ _.I .._tt"'_as_t_N_a_m_e ______ ___.l lsuftix I 

!TI Rinat Akhmetshin ___ @] -------------------

~ ----------------- ~ ----------------

ISSUE UPDATE 

24. General lobbying issue that no longer pertains 

.__ __ _Jll L-__ __.. 

AFFILIATED ORGANIZATIONS 

25. Add the following affiliated organization(s) 

Internet Address: 
https:llsoprweb.senate.govlindex.cfm?event=getFilingDetails&filinglD=D6F09422-6458-4A9C-897C-840C390A402F&filingTypelD=64 213 



9/27/2017 

Name Street Address 

City 

LD-2 Disclosure Form 

Address 

State/Province Zip Country 

City 

State 

26. Name of each previously reported organization that is no longer affiliated with the registrant or client 

FOREIGN ENTITIES 

27. Add the following foreign entities: 

Address 
Principal place of business 

Name Street Addres.s 
(city and state or country) 

City State/Province Country 

NIA City 
Mikhail Ponomarev 

Moscow RUS State Country 

Albert Nasibulin 
NIA City 

Moscow RUS State Country 

NIA City 
Denis Katcyv 

Moscow RUS State Country 

Principal Place of Business 
(city and state or country) 

Country 

Amount of Ownership 
contribution for percentage in 

lobbying activities client 

0 0% 

0 0% 

0 0% 

28. Name of each previously reported foreign entity that no longer owns, or controls, or is affiliated with the registrant, client or affiliated organization 

https://soprweb.senate.govfindex.cfm?event=getFilingDetails&fillnglD=D6F09422-6458-4A9C-B97C-840C390A402F&filingTypelD=64 3/3 



25.08.2017 ---·--4TB, 9 VltOH 2016 22:10 

Re: Meeting confirmed for Donald Trump Jr. 

Or: Rob Goldstone •••••• 

KoMy: Haram1R········· 
EXHIBIT 

We will be at trump tower from 345pm so let me or Ike know when you are here 
Rob 

This iphone speaks many languages 

On Jun 9, 2016, at 12:39, Haramu1••••••••lwrote: 

Prefect! Will be there at 4 pm, meeting confirmed. 

OrnpaaneHo c iPhone 

9 MtOHR 2016 r .. e 9:55, Rob Goldstone·····> HanMCM(a): 

I would suggest you bring whoever you need in order to make the meeting successful. Please bring them with you and 
meet Ike for your meeting at 4pm today. 
Best 
Rob 

This !phone speaks meny languages 

On Jun 9. 2016, at 09:24, HaranMR ••••••••• wrote: 

Deer Mr. Goldstone, I am writing to ask you to pass by Mt. Trump my request to include our trusted associate and 
lobbyist Mr. Rlnat Akhmetshln, who is working to advance these issues with several congressmen. He has invaluable 
knowledge about the positions held by the members of the Foreign Relations Committee that will be very important to 
our discussion. Mr. Akhmetshin has signed an NOA with us as did Mr. Samochornov. I will be awaiting your decision. 
Kind regards, Natalia 

OrnpaaneHo c !Phone 

7 MIOHR 2016 r., B 17:27, Rob Goldstone······ HanMcan(a): 

Good Afternoon 

I have confirmed a meeting for you both at 3pm on Thursday with Donald Trump 
Jr. at his office at Trump Tower on Fifth Avenue. 

I can meet you there and bring you up to his office, introduce you all - and then I 
shall step away and leave you to the meeting. 

Please ensure you have official ID for the very tight security now at Trump Tower. 
Driver's license and or passport etc. 

I wilt be on my cell on Thursday If you need anything -­

Rob Goldstone 

111 



Message 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
CC: 

Subject: 

Attachments: 

Good Morning 

Rob Goldstone 
6/29/2016 10:16:07 AM 

Russia's largest social media network "VK" ·offers Trump campaign message to over 2 million registered Russian 
American voters in the USA 

donaldtrump.pdf; ATIOOOOl.txt 

Dan, I am following up on an email a while back of something I had mentioned to Don and Paul Manafort 
during a meeting recently. 
There are believed to be around 2 million Russian American voters living in the USA - and more than 1.6 
million of these use· the Russian UFacebook" site v Kontakte "VK" as their preferred social media 
outlet. 
As I mentioned to you guys, through Emin and my contact at VK, they want to create a VOTE Trump 2016 
promotion aired directly at these users - - people who wil l be voting in November. At the time, Paul had 
said he would welcome it and so I had the YK folks mock up a basic sample page - which I am re-sending 
for your approval now. 
It would merely require Mr. Trump to drop in a short message to Russian A111erican voters - or a generic 
message depending on your choice - and the page can be up and running very quickly. 

I have copied the head of Partner Relations for VK - Konstantin Sikorkov - who is a good friend of mine 
and Emin' s - on this email as he would oversee the promotion of the page etc. 

RELEASED BY AUTHORITY OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE SENATE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

CONPIDE!N'l'IAL 

EXHIBIT 

DJTJR00454 



\I( • :t, ~1·;r(h Konstantin @ ... 

" My Profile 

!l News 

•> Messages ' ·~ ·.:.3P.a 
c - Friends £i i 

I 

*\ Communities 

,It) _?.ho.to~ 

fJ AUdios 

It Videos 

M Games 

"It Bookmarks .. Documents 

~ Ads 

A Mana~d apps 

= Tasks 

Use the new Vi:!1'Sl1.m by 
defaul\ 

Send a message : * 
lldd tofrlends 

Donald j, is following you 

Page statistics 

Subscribe to notiflcatlons 

Add to bookmarks 

Report profile 

BlockDona!dJ. 

Noteworthy pages 2 

Videos 1 

Ocj>1.u~~an1:.Hb1e 
ClpaH~14bl BKoi-naKTe 
Internet 

Konstantin Sldorkov 
Moscow, 21 years old 

Competent Leadership 

Donald J. Trump 
#MakeAmericaGreatAgain #Trump2016 

last seen 11 JlJOP. at 6:23 pm 

Birthday: 

Current city: 

Company; 

Website; 

Donald J.'s photos 6 

Posts by Donald J. 

June 14, 1946 

New York City 

The Th.Jmp Organization 

http://Www.donaldjtrump.com 

Show full Information 

36 6 
fofowers photos v !deo 

• 

Donald J. Trump 
16 May ;it 7;58 pm 

Bernie Sanders ls being treated very badly by the Dems. The system ls rigged against 

him. He should run as an independent! Run Bernie, run. 

• l ike '{t Share Reply 

•

. Donald J. Trump 
l r . 16 May at 7:-,,7 pm 

The media is really on a witch·hunt against me. False reporting, and plenty of it · but 
we will prevail! 

RELEASED BY AUTHORITY OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE SENATE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
CONFIDENTIAL ¥# Like ~ Share DJTJm~ss 



Hope it helps 

Rob Goldstone 

President 

Oui 2 Entertainment 

NY 
www . oui2.com 

RELEASED BY AUTHORITY OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE SENATE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

CONPIDBN'i'IAL DJTJR00456 



Subject: Re: Prevezon 

From: Glenn Simpson 

Date: 4/25/2016 11:41 AM 

To: "Alaverdi, Loura" 

CC: Edward Baumgartner 

Please circulate a dial-in number. 

From: Loura Alaverdi 

Date: Sunday, April 24, 2016 at 8:44 PM 
To: Veselnitskaya Nataliya 
Cc: Edward Baumgartner 

Subject: Prevezon 

"Cymrot, Mark" 

I Mypar r11aweB 

, Glenn 

EXHIBIT 

I 1 
RELEASED BY AUTHORITY OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE SENATE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

CONFIDENTIAL RA SEN JUDICIAR Y000008 



US Congressman talks Russian money 
laundering with alleged ex-spy in Berlin · .i 
By Michael Weiss, CNN Investigates 

Updated 10:47 AM ET, Thu May 4, 2017 

:8 
a 

EXHIBIT 

10 

(CNN) - These days, most American officials wou ld be reluctant to disclose any connection to Russia, much less a 
meeting with an alleged former Soviet spy whose alleged role in lobbying on behalf of Kremlin interests was 
recently called out by the chairman of the Senate Judiciary Committee. 

But Dana Rohrabacher, a Republican representative from California, openly acknowledges such a meeting with 
Rinat Akhmetshin. 

It lasted between 15 and 20 minutes and took place the night of April 11 in Berlin, at the lobby bar of the Westin 
Grand Hotel, according to two eyewitnesses and Rohrabacher. 

The topic of discussion: A high-profile Russian money laundering case and related sanctions on Russia. 

"We were on our way ln and [Akhmetshin) was there," Rohrabacher told CNN. · 

Just one week before the meeting, Senator Charles Grassley had written a letter to John Kelly, the Secretary of 
Homeland Security, describing Akhmetshin as "a Russian immigrant to the United States who has been accused 
of acting as an unregistered agent for Russian interests and apparently has ties to Russian intelligence." Grassley 
was requesting "all information" on Akhmetshin's immigration history. 



Rohrabacher himself described Akhmetshin to CNN as someone with "an ulterior motive" who is "involved with 
people who've got an agenda" and has "international connections to different groups in Russia." When asked if he 
thought Akhmetshin was still connected to the Russian security services, Rohrabacher said: "I would certainly not 
rule that out." 

Akhmetshin declined to comment for this story. He previously told Politico: "Just because I was born in Russia · 
doesn't mean I am an agent of [the) Kremlin." 

In the past, he has described his business as "strategic communications," according to a civil court filing. 
Akhmetshin said his clients "are national governments or high ranking officials in those governments." 

'I think we've been sold a bill of goods' 
Rohrabacher was in Berlin as part of a tour to examine the legalization of marijuana in Europe. Hohrabacher, a 14-
term congressman from Orange County, openly supports legalization. It's unclear why Akhmetshin was there. 

The congressman told CNN that he cannot recall exactly what was said in the lobby, or at a subsequent dinner he 
attended with more than a dozen people, including Akhmetshin. 

The focus, according to two eyewitnesses in the hotel lobby, was a U.S. federal money-laundering case in New 
York. The government is targeting Prevezon Holdings, a Cyprus company that has invested in Manhattan real 
estate and which prosecutors allege was the receptacle for some of the $230 million stolen from Russian 
taxpayers in 2007. Rohrabacher acknowledged to CNN that the case came up in conversation with Akhmetshin. 

The case is set to go to trial later this month after being beset by over a year of surreal sideshow controversies and 
delays. A prominent lawyer for the defense was thrown off the case owing to a perceived conflict of interest. More 
recently, one of the U.S. attorney's key w itnesses, Russian lawyer Nikolai Gorokhov almost died when he 
plummeted from his Moscow apartment in March, a day before he was due to appear in a Russian court to 
present new evidence. 

But Rohrabacher told CNN that he remains "skeptical" as to the premise of the case, which he believes may be 
propaganda designed to "create hostility and belligerence toward Russia." 

The alleged tax fraud led to the 2012 Sergei Magnitsky Rule of Law Accountabili.ty Act, a landmark.human rights 
act named for the lawyer who tried to expose the theft before being arrested and allegedly tortured prior to his 
death in a Moscow prison in 2009. 

The Magnitsky law has so far been used to sanction 39 Russians implicated in the theft and coverup. 

The Russian government maintains that the lawyer died of a "heart attack," despite the Russian Presidential 
Human Rights Council's finding that Magnitsky was "completely deprived of medical care before his death" and 
that "there is reasonable suspicion to believe that the death was triggered by beating Magnitsky." 

At several points in the intervie~ wit11 CNN, Rohrabacher suggested that Magnitsky may have been fatally 
interrogated in an effort to get him to confess to where he had stashed the stolen money- a narrative that better 
tracks with a Russian government theory that Magnitsky committed the crime he first brough~ to the government's 
attention. 

"The thrust of Rohrabacher and A~hmetshin's discussion," one of the eyewitnesses at the hotel bar said, was that 
the facts of the case "were all an elaborate hoax" orchestrated by William Browder, an American-born former client 
and the CEO of Hermitage Capital Investment, once the largest portfolio manager in Moscow until he and his 
business were driven out of the country. Magnitsky was Browder's lawyer. 

As Browder tells it in his bestselling memoir Red Notice, Hermitage's corperate documents were stolen by crooked 
police officers in the Russian Interior Ministry in 2007. These officers, Browder alleges, were also under the employ 
of a man they had previously investigated for another financial crime: Dmitry Klyuev. an ex-convict and suspected 
head of a transnational crime syndicate known as the Klyuev Group. 



The group supposedly used the stolen documents to re-register three of Hermitage's subsidiary companies. Third 
party companies also owned by Klyuev then "sued" those stolen subsidiaries. 

Judges found in every case in the plaintiff's favor. And with the aid of complicit tax officers in Moscow, this group 
was able to cite the dummied-up corporate losses from litigation in justifying the $230 million refund - the largest 
in Russian history. It was processed in a single day, on Christmas Eve. 2007. 

The U.S. Department of Justice, in its criminal complaint against Prevezon, supp.arts this version of events. 

"I think we've been sold a bill of goods," Rohrabacher told CNN. "This could well be a situation where you've got an 
American billionaire [Browder] who's been able to manipulate the situation in order to protect his own activities. 
That may be the case. I'm not making that charge." 

In an emailed statement to CNN, Browder responded to Rohrabacher's accusation. "More than a dozen 
independent law enforcement agencies around the world have investigated this case and arrived to the same 
conclusion," Browder wrote. "Sergei Magnitsky was a victim of the massive corrupt scheme which goes high up in 
the Russian government. It is very suspicious for Rohrabacher to ignore those findings and publicly contradict 
them." 

Rohrabacher has advocated in Congress to have "Magnitsky" stricken from the broader version of the law, known 
on the Hill as "Global Magnitsky" because it would address human rights abuses from any foreign country, not just 
Russia. 

"I'm not an opponent of the Magnitsky law," Rohrabacher maintained. "I'm an opponent of calling it the Magnitsky 
Act because that case may not reflect" what actually happened, he said. 

He said that if the jury in the Prevezon case sides with the us government. he "might" change his mind. 

In November of last year, Politico named Rohrabacher "Putin's favorite congressman" owing to his persistent role in 
Congress as a lone defender of Russian government behavior and a personal admirer of Vladimir Putin. with whon:i 
he playfully arm-wrestled in Washington. D.C. in the 1990s, when Putin was still a relatively unknown deputy mayor 
of St. Petersburg. 

"We have a huge double standard with Russia when it comes to prisoners and other things," Rohrabacher told 
CNN, adding that the Russian intelligence services' interference ln the U.S. election was no different from the 
NSA's "bugging [German Chancellor Angela] Merkel's phone." 

Trading babies for sanctions 
Casting doubt on the accepted wisdom of this far-reaching corruption story in order to rescind the sanctions 
imposed in the dead lawyer's name has been a staple of Russian foreign policy for more than five years. 

On May 7, 2012. his first day back in office as Russia's president. Putin signed a decree making one of the 
Kremlin's prime objectives with respect to foreign policy "to work actively in prohibiting imposition of unilateral 
extraterritorial sanctions of the United States of America against Russian legal entities and individuals." 

Since then. a raft of "counter-sanctions" against various U.S. officials and politicians have been issued by the 
Kremlin, whose most notorious retaliatory measure took the form of a ban on Americans seeking to adopt Russian 
orphans - a proscription now dangled by Moscow as something that might be llfted if and when Magnitsky 
sanctions are repealed. 

Browder and Senator Grassley have suggested Akhmetshin may be one of the Russian government's U.S.-based 
facilitators for having those sanctions repealed. 

Rohrabacher. for his part. denies knowing Akhmetshin well at all. describing him as "no friend of mine. He's just 
this guy who pops up." 



Even still, Akhmetshin visited Rohrabacher in his office in May 2016, a day before the House Foreign Affairs 
Committee was due to mark up the Global Magnitsky Act. Akhmetshin had recently been hired as a lobbyist for a 
group called the Human Rights Accountability Global Initiative (HRAGI), which purports to seek the removal of the 
Russian adoption ban. 

HRAGI was founded by Natalia Veselnitskaya, the Russian lawyer for Denis Katysv, the legal owner of Prevezon 
Holdings. In other words, it is Katysv's $14 million thrit the l JS is looking to c:onfiscate as ill-gotten gains. And it is 
Katysv who stands to benefit if Prevezon is acquitted. 

In April 2016, Rohrabacher traveled to Moscow and met with Konstantin Kosachev, the chairman of the 
International Affairs Committee in the Federation Council, Russia's equivalent to the U.S. Senate. Kosachev then 
facilitated a meeting with other Russian officials who gave the congressman a letter which described the 
campaign to shift the perception of Magnitsky: 11Changing attitudes to the Magnitsky story in the Congress ... may 
change the current climate in interstate relations. Such a situation could have a very favourable response from the 
Russian side on many key controversial issues and disagreements with the United States, including matters 
concerning the adoption procedures." (Italics added.) 

As a senior member of the House Foreign Affairs committee. Rohrabacher's meeting with an accused ex-Soviet 
operative turned controversial lobbyist in the onetime cockpit of Cold War espionage is likely to draw scrutiny. 

Photographer captures people 
matching museum artwork 

Inside one of the Maldives' most luxurious resorts 

Trump asked Xi to look at cases of UCLA basketball players 

WW 

How significant is new accuser's yearbook evidence? 

~ -



Case 1:14-mc-00340-GK Document 38-1 Filed 06/18/15 Page 1of9 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

INRE: 

APPLICATfON OF INTERNATIONAL MINERAL 
RESOURCES, B.V. FOR AN ORDER TO TAKE 
DISCOVERY PURSUANT TO 28 U.S.C. § 1782, 

Applicant. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

1: 14~MC-00340 

SECOND DECLARATION OF RINAT AKH1\1ETSHIN 

CITY OF WASHINGTON ) 
) ss: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA ) 

RINAT AKHMETSHL~ declares under penalty of perjury as follows: 

I . I submit this, my second Declaration, in opposition to Applicant IMR's 

motion to compel production of documents and additional deposition testimony. For some of the 

documents that are the subject ofIMR's motion the privilege involved belongs to my former 

client ECVK. For other documents, the privilege is mine. I will try to keep dear whose 

privilege I am discussing at any given time. 

2. I was hired by New York law firm Salisbury & Ryan LLP as a consulting 

expert to assist Salisbury & Ryan with its representation ofEuroCbem Volga-Kajjy ("ECVK"') in 

litigation in the Netherlands against the Applicant here, IMR. There are also two arbitrations 

between ECVK. and related parties to lMR in Zurich and Patis. 

EXHIBIT 



Case 1:14-mc-00340-GK Document 38-1 Filed 06/18/15 Page 2 of 9 

3. Because I am an expert on Eurasia and how business is conducted in that 

part of the world, Patrick Salisbury reached out to me for consulting assistance. Indeed, the 

name of the document 1 signed as an engagement letter was captioned "Research and Litigation 

Suppo1t." Specifically. Salisbury & Ryan retained me to research and consult with respect to 

the unique legal, social, economic, and political issues that arise in Eurasia relevant to the 

litigation bet,1veen ECVK and IMR. That was import.ant in the litigation because two of the 

principals of IMR are nationals of Uzbekistan and one is a national of Kyrgyzstan. 

4. \Vhen Salisbury & Ryan retained me, Mr. Salisbury confirmed that all of 

my work for his firm should comply with both U.S. Jaw and any relevant foreign law. My 

engagement letter provided a specific provision to that effect. l, of course, confirmed that I 

would fully comply, and did so during my engagement with Salisbury & Ryan. 

5. At the time Salisbury & Ryan retained me l had not bad previous contact 

·with anyone from EuroChem or ECVK for any purpose. I did not meet or correspond with 

anyone at EuroChem or ECVK at the time of my retention. During my engagement, all of my 

involvement and activities were done at the request of Salisbury & Ryan, led by Mr. Salisbury. 

With one exception, described below, l had no direct contact with anyone from EuroChem or 

ECVK. 

6. During my work for Salisbury & Ryan, I did not pru1icipate in any of the 

legal proceedings in which Salisbury & Ryan represented ECVK, including by offering any 

testimony or suomitting any reports. Nor did I communicate or provide any materials or 

information to any other expert or consultant retained by Salisbury & Ryan. Other than my 

2 



Case 1:14-mc-00340-GK Document 38-1 Filed 06/18/15 Page 3 of 9 

engagement as a consulting expert. I had no personal connection whatsoever to the underlying 

disputes between ECVK and IMR. 

Atfy Work For Salisburv & Ryan Was At All Times Lawful. 

7. At no time during my engagement with Salisbury & Ryan, or at any other 

time for that matter, did l hack into the computer systems of IMR. Nor did I ask or encourage 

anyone else to do such backing. Nor did I otherwise obtain, access, or distribute information that 

I believed to be hacked from IMR. 

8. As I testified in my deposition on April 7, 2015, l do not recall my exact 

words during my meeting with Mr. Halpert, some eight months after my Salisbw·y & Ryan 

engagement terminated. As I recall, Mr. Halpert was interested in the Troika's assets in 

Kazakhstan. The Troika's company ENRC has assets in Kazakhstan; to my knowledge IMR has 

no assets in Kazakhstan. I do not recall mentioning [MR in that meeting at all. 1 could not have 

said I had a meeting the next week with Salisbury & Ryan because I had been terminated eight 

months earlier. No such meeting the following week ever occurred. 

No Strategic Communications Work. 

9. One of the first things I did after Mr. Salisbury reached out to me was to 

draft a proposal for Mr. Salisbury for my work that included a strategic communications element. 

Many of my clients from countries that formerly comprised part of the old Soviet Union are 

unfamiliar with the American and western press and how it works and doesn't work. As a result, 

1 frequently undertake strategic communications efforts just to get their story out. In this case. 

3 
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Mr. Salisbury told me that neither he nor his client had any interest in strategic communications 

work. 

10. I presented my strategic communications proposal again to Salisbury & 

Ryan and representatives of EuroChem at a meeting in Moscow in September 2012. That 

September 2012 meeting was the only time during my engagement with Salisbury & Ryan or 

ever that I have met with anyone from EuroChem or ECVK. (Before the meeting I had one brief 

telephone conversation with EuroChem's General Counsel Mr. Sidnev to arrange the meeting; 

we did not discuss anything substantive on that call). 

11. At the September 2012 meeting, my strategic communications proposal 

was the only substantive topic discussed. I did not discuss my research and consulting for 

Salisbury & Ryan. 

12. Both ECVK and Salisbury & Ryan made clear that they had absolutely no 

interest in any strategic communications work, and they rejected my strategic communications 

proposal out of hand. After the meeting, Mr. Salisbury emphasized to me the commercial and 

business components on which he wanted me to focus my research, all of which related to the 

litigation with IMR. I have not met or communicated with anyone from EuroChem or ECVK 

since that September 2012 meeting. 

13. As a result, I have no documents that relate to any scrategic 

communications work on behalf of ECVK because there was no such work. 

4 
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The London ln[ormalion Ba:uur. 

14. Most of my research for Salisbury & Ryan was open source research --

simply gathering information that is already publicly available. One of my most important 

resources was the vibrant exchange of financial. political. social) and cultural news or 

information that exists in London. I call this the London Information Bazaar or London 

lnfonnation Exchange. In London, journalists, businessmen, entrepreneurs, stock brokers and 

traders, corporate officers and directors, politicians, and workers at non-governmental 

organizations and interest groups, attempt to obtain some financial or other advantage by being 

the first to know certain facts that could affect corporate strategies, commercial outcomes, social 

pecking orders, political fortunes or futures, or other kinds of data. Because London fancies 

itself as the financial capital of the world, one can find information on the London Information 

Bazaar about almost any patt of the world. For Salisbury & Ryan, I was interested in obtaining 

information on the three owners of !MR known as the Troika, that is Alexander Machkevitch, 

Patokh Chodiev, and Alijan Ibragimov, and, among other things, how their businesses were 

structured and the nature of their businesses' assets. 

15. Information passes on the London information Bazaar by barter. 

Particularly among journalists, if one is interested in a given topic and has news to share, one can 

quite frequently discover information on the topic of interest by sharing infonnation with the 

source of that information. The unique mix of finance, politics, journalism. and geopolitics that 

exists in London makes it a very lively Information Barter Bazaar. 

16. Dw"ing the period that I was doing my research for the Salisbury & Ryan 

engagement, Messrs. Machkevitch, Chodiev, and Ibragjmov were embroiled in one of the most 

5 
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infamous scandals in London. That scandal involved the de-listing from the London Stock 

Exchange of the Troika's public company Eurasian Natural Resources Corporation, or ENRC. 

That scandal made the Troika the subject of the front page oftbe business section in many 

London papers on a very frequent basis for several years (at least 2011 - 2014 when ENRC was 

finally delisted from the London Stock Exchange). London journalists -- and non-governmental 

watchdog organizations reporting on corporate fraud such as Global Watch (which published 

scathing reports on the Troika's (or ENRC's) business practices -- were ravenous for information 

relating to the Troika, and how they made their fortunes in Kazakhstan under the privatization 

schemes that followed the collapse of the Soviet Union. It is now a published fact that one of my 

clients is the former Prime Minister of Kazakhstan Akezhan Kazhegeldin. a leading member of 

the political opposition of the incumbent regime ofNursultan Nazarbayev. Mr. Kazhegeldin 

lives in exile in London. The convergence of all those factors made it possible for me to batter 

and obtain information on the Troika and the structure of their businesses through the London 

Information Barter Bazaar. 

17. I bartered information about the Troika, and the structure of the Troika's 

assets (both public companies and private companies) with several journalists -- or people who at 

that time I believed to be journalists - including but not limited to Simon Goodley of the 

Guardian, Mark Hollingsworth of the Guardian, Ken Silverstein of Harpers~ and Kirstin Ridley 

of Thomson Reuters. I also exchanged information with NGO representative Daniel Balint-Kwti 

of the highly respected Global Witness, an international think tank dedicated to fostering 

transparency in the commercial world and exposing and rooting out bribery and corruption in the 

political realm. All of this I did as part of my consulting expert role for Salisbury & Ryan. 

6 
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Other CUents. 

18. Salisbury & Ryan is not a major client of mine. I have others for whom I 

do far more extensive work, including former Prime Minister Kazhegeldin. 

J 9. I also have other clients that 1 work for, including many located in or 

involved with Eurasia. For example, I have done several projects Vvith Mr. Ed Liebennan, an 

atiomey who I am told is a member of this Court. When I work for other clients with Mr. 

Lieberman be acts as a lawyer to our team. Many of the communications I have with Mr. 

Lieberman are for the purpose of obtaining his legal counsel or in furtherance of work he is 

doing for his clients. I did not work with Mr. Lieberman with respect to my engagement with 

Salisbury & Ryan. Because the Subpoena issued by IMR is so broad and seeks any documents 

related to ENRC it ostensibly seeks documents that have nothing to do with fMR, the Dutch 

Action, or even my work for Salisbury & Ryan. That includes documents involving Mr. 

Lieberman and our work for other cl.ients in Kazakhstan. 

20. I consider certain infom1ation and materials related to my consulting 

business to be confidential, including client names, client lists, my means and methods of 

research or information gathering, and my private sow·ces, among other things. It would be an 

economic (and political) disadvantage to me if people associated \\rith my economic competitors, 

or people associated with the regime of Mr. Nazarbayev. were to obtain my confidentiaJ 

infonnation and materials. 
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Atfr. Salisbury Terminates My Services. 

21. On Memorial Day weekend of 2013 I received a telephone call from Mr. 

Salisbury. .Mr. Salisbury stated that he and I needed to speak in person: and I responded that I 

would be in New York in the next coupJe of weeks and would stop by his office. He said we 

needed to speak immediately and came to Washington by train the very next day or two to see 

me. When we met, he told me that Troika member Patokh Chodiev had requested a meeting 

with ECVK owner Audrey Melnichenko. In that meeting. Chodiev apparently told Mr. 

Melnichenko that I was an anathema to the incumbent Nazarbayev regime, and that ifEuroChem 

wanted to conduct business in Kazakhstan or with Kazakhstan entities. ECVK should not retain 

me as an expert. Apparently= Mr. Melnichenko agreed. Mr. Salisbury told me that he had been 

directed to immediately cease using my services and that I was terminated on Sunday or Monday 

of Memorial Day weekend 2013. l confirmed that I understood I was terminated effective 

immediately. 

22. Bet\veen my termination Memorial Day weekend and August of2013, I 

had little contact with anyone at Salisbury & Ryan. Most of the minimal contact t11at I did have 

related to Salisbury & Ryan paying for the consulting services that I had provided. 

23. Since August 2013, 1 had no contact with anyone at Salisbury & Ryan 

until this proceeding began, with one exception. That exception was that Mr. Salisbury reached 

out to me when Salisbury & Ryan feared that their phones were tapped and their computers had 

been hacked. I had expressed to them similar concerns during my work for their fim1 and tv1r. 

Salisbury wanted to know the facts relating to this episode. 

8 
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24. It is frustrating to me that my professional work for the Kazakhstan 

political opposition led to my services being termfoated. ECVK holds a $1.3 billion pre-

judgment attachment against IMR, but when the principals of those massive companies 

convened what they agreed on was getting rid of me. As a mere custodian of documents 

involving a dispute between these two international conglomerates, I have now had to participate 

in this proceeding for over a year at a cost far greater to me than the income 1 earned from 

Salisbury & Ryan. 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Dated: Washington, D.C. 
June 14, 2015 
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1 general description, so there's -- because there's 

2 a lot of legal activity happening in London with 

3 the stock exchange and other things. The due 

4 diligence is being done; there's a certain 

5 informal kind of exchange, barter, of information 

6 which is connected to pretty much everything. 

7 I'm aware of Russian situation matters, 

8 but I'm sure there's some Nigerian stuff going on 

9 that's -- like every where else. 

10 So I must say that there's in 

11 addition to information, there's a lot of 

12 misinformation and a lot -- a lot of forgeries as 

13 well, actually, that's circulating . 

14 So people -- it's -- it's very 

15 informal, and it's not an entity which kind of 

16 guarantees any kind of accuracy of those. 

17 BY MR. SPERDUTO: 

18 Q When you say "barter," what do you --

19 what do you mean by that? 

20 A Barter means nonmonetary exchange. 

21 People doing favors for each other. 

22 Q And the -- the coin of the realm is 

23 information; is that correct? 

24 

25 

877-479-2484 

A 

Q 

It is information, yes. 

Then -- and -- and do you participate 
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fyi : Alan Futerfas, the attorney retained by Donald Trump Jr, confirms he has 
spoken to the individual described in our reporting (see Ken Dilanian's prior note.) 
"It's very simple," Futerfas says. "The person was described as a friend of Emin 
[Agalarov)'s and maybe as a friend of Natalia [Veselnitskaya]'s." Futerfas says he 
has ta lked with that individual. "He is a US citizen. He told me specifically he was 
not working for the Russian government, and in fact laughed when I asked him that 
question." Futerfas confirms: "For the purpose of security or otherwise, the names 
were reviewed" but says Trump Jr. knew nothing about the man's background at 
the time of the meeting. When asked about whether he had concerns knowing what 
he knows now, Futerfas responded: "I have absolutely no concerns about what was 
said in that meeting." 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUl\IBIA 

INRE: 

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL MINERAL 
RESOURCES B.V. FORAN ORDER TO TAKE 
DISCOVERY PURSUANT TO 28 U.S.C. § 1782 
Jan Luijkenstraat 68 
Amsterdam, 1071 CS 
Netherlands 

Applicant. 

Case No. - ----

DECLARATION OF AKIS PHANARTZIS 

Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, I, Akis Phanartzis, declare under penalty of perjury as 

follows: 

1. I am a Senior Manager with GlobalSource Cyprus Ltd. ("GlobalSource"), based 

in Nicosia, Cyprus. GlobalSource carries out research and investigations for our clients 

worldwide, including in the United States and the United Kingdom. I have been with 

GlobalSource since May 2011 . 

2. I submit this Declaration in support of International Mineral Resources B.V. 's 

("IMR") Ex Parle Application for an Order Under 28 U.S.C. § 1782 Permitting IMR to Issue a 

Subpoena for the Taking of a Deposition and the Production of Documents from Rinat 

Akhmetshin. 

3. I am familiar with the facts set forth in this Declaration, either from personal 

knowledge or on the basis of documents that have been provided to me. Insofar as they are 

within my own knowledge, the facts and matters testified to are ttue to the best of my own 

knowledge and bel ief. Because this Declaration is being submitted for a specific legal purpose, 



the information provided in the Declaration does not include every single fact that I know that 

may be pertinent to this subject matter. 

4. GlobalSource was retained, among other things, to investigate allegations that 

Rinat Akhmetshin was employed by a Russian company named EuroChem to organize a smear 

campaign against IMR, aimed at weakening IMR's and its associated companies' positions in 

various legal disputes with EuroCbem and its subsidiary, EuroChem Volga-Kaliy LLC ("ECVK"), 

over a mining project located near the Russian city of Kotelnikovo. GlobalSource was also 

retained to investigate reports that Mr. Akhmetshin had organized the hacking of IMR's and 

associated entities' computer systems in an attempt to collect information that could be used in 

his smear campaign. 

5. In the course of our investigation, GlobalSource received information in the 

middle of January 2014 that Mr. Akhmetshin would be traveling to London. We periodically 

made inquiries with five star hotels in Central London where we thought he might be staying, as 

we planned to conduct surveillance on him. 

6. On January 29, 2014, through the inquiries with London hotels, we located him at 

Le Meridien Piccadilly. 

7. I immediately instructed one of our local surveillance teams to initiate work, and I 

also went to the location. 

8. Our surveillance team had a detailed description of Mr. Akbmetshin as well as 

several pictures of him that we had obtained from public sites on the Internet. 

9. Using this description and pictures, we identified l\1r. Akhmetshin checking in at 

Le Meridien Piccadilly at approximately 5:30 p.m. on the evening of January 29, 2014. 

2 



10. The next morning, on January 30, 2014, at approximately 11 :15 a.rn., we 

observed Mr. Akhmetshin entering the Cafe Royal Coffee Shop on Regent Street. 

11 . I also entered and took a table close to where Mr. Akhmetshin was sitting. I was 

sitting at a table approximately one meter from him, with the goal of hearing any conversation 

that might take place. 

12. At approximately 11:25 a.m., Mr. Akhmetshin was joined by an unidentified 

businessman who appeared to be in his forties. The businessman was carrying a laptop. 

13. After exchanging pleasantries, Mr. Akhmetshin banded the businessman an 

external hard drive and stated that it contained internal documents and emails from IMR. Mr . 

.t\khmetshin explained that the hard drive contained "memos, emails and stuff' and that there are 

all "these fo lders and documents about transactions, memos, statements and stuff. There are 

emails and attachments." Mr. Akhmetshin further stated: "There are directories and sub­

directo1ies. There are folders for different things." 

14. Mr. Akhmetshin described how the documents were obtained. Mr. Akhmetshin 

stated that he organized the hacking of IMR's computer systems specifically on behalf of 

EuroChem, which was in a dispute with lMR over a mining project near the Russian city of 

Kotelnikovo. Mr. Akhmetshin further stated that he used a group of Russians to do the actual 

backing and that: "I bad to pay a lot of money to get this stuff." 

15. Mr. Akhmetshin explained: "\Ve targeted everyone important" at IMR, 

"everyone connected." Mr. Akhmetshin said that this targeting included senior executives such 

as IMR CEO Amre Y ouness, as well as persons in key administrative positions whose computers 

would also contain important internal IMR documents. 
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16. Mr. Akhmetshin explained to the businessman that there is "about 50 gigabytes of 

stuff," and the businessman asked Mr. Akhmetshin, "How much information in a gigabyte?" Mr. 

Akhmetshin replied that, "there is a lot of shit." Mr. Ak.hrnetshin said that there were additional 

materials that were not as sensitive which were not included in the electronic folders. Mr. 

Akhmetshin said: "I have this at home. I will try to pull it together for you in the next couple of 

days." 

17. The businessman commented on the volume of material. Mr. Akhmetshin stated: 

"There is a lot of the stuff, so -- but that's why you are paying money." 

18. Mr. Akhmetshin explained that one of the persons he was dealing with at 

EuroChem was the company's ''head of security" who he described as "a former KGB agent." 

19. Mr. Akhmetsbin explained that EuroChem hired him because of bis expertise in 

disputes that require sensitive work and because of his contacts in Kazakhstan. 

20. Mr. Akhmetshin stated that he had met with lawyers for Andrey Melnichenko, 

EuroChem's owner, in New York. He identified one of these lawyers as Patrick Salisbury of 

Salisbury & Ryan LLP, and said Salisbury was representing EuroChem in its cases against Shaft 

Sinkers and IMR. 

21. Mr. Akhmetshin added that be was hired because there were certain things that the 

law firm could not do. 

22. Mr. Akhmetshin noted that he had a meeting with Patrick Salisbury the following 

week in New York to discuss next steps for the case against IMR. 

4 



I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America that the 

foregoing is true and correct 

Executed in_i??wsia CtP/lvS , on this 20 day of March, 2014. 
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IN RE: 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

E.){H\B\T 

:: t l_L--
l 

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL 
MINERAL RESOURCES B.V . FOR AN 
ORDER TO TAKE DISCOVERY 
PURSUANT TO 28 U. S.C . § 17 82 , 

Civil Actio n No . 14 - mc- 340 (GK) 
(Under Se al ) 

Appl i cant. 

MEMORANDUM OPINION 

On May 18, 2014, Applicant International Mineral Resources 

B.V . ("IMR" or "Applicant") filed a Motion to Compel Production of 

Documents [Dkt . No. 27] that Rinat Akhmetshin ("Mr. Akhrnetshin" or 

"Respondent") had refused to produce on grounds of privilege. On 

June 18, 2015, Mr. Akhmetshin and Intervenor Eurochem Volga-Kaliy 

LLC ( "ECVK" or "Intervenor") filed their Oppositions [Dkt. Nos. 

38, 39), and on June 25, 2015, IMR filed its Reply [Dkt. No. 43) . 

On July 28, 2015, the Court issued a Memorandum Opinion and 

Order [Dkt. Nos. 47, 48], requiring Mr . Akhmetshin to submit the 

documents at issue for in camera review. In re Application of Int 1 l 

Mineral Res. B.V., No. CV 14-MC - 340(GK), 2015 WL 4555248, at *7 

(D.D.C. July 28, 2015) [Dkt. No. 48). The Court refers readers to 

that Opinion for additional background on the matter at hand . 
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Having reviewed the 261 docurnents 1 submitted by Mr. 

Akhmetshin, the Court concludes that the overwhelming majority of 

them are not privileged. Indeed, a great many of Mr. Akhmetshin's 

(and Intervenor's) assertions of p rivilege are ent irely frivol ous. 

Accordingl y, Mr. Akhrnetshin shall immediately produce to counsel 

for IMR all non-privileged documents as set forth below. 

I . PRIVILEGES ASSERTED 

Mr. Akhmetshin has asserted that all of the 261 documents at 

issue are subject to one or more of the following : attorney-client 

privilege, work-product doc t rine, and non-test i fying expert 

privilege. Intervenor joins Mr . Akhmetshin's assertions of 

privilege for the most part, but notes t hat "34 [of the 261 

documents) are not subject to any privileges that belong to [it)" 

and thus "defers to Mr . Akhmetshin about whether to produce those 

documents[.)" Intervenor's Opp'n at 2 . 

" In order to demonstrate the applicability of the attorney-

client priv ilege, the proponent must establish each of the 

following essential elements: (1 ) The ho l der of the privil ege is, 

or sought to be, a client; (2) The person to whom the communication 

is made is a member of the bar or his subordinate and, in connection 

i The Privilege Log Mr . Akhmetshi n submitted to the Court, as well 
as the Revised Privilege Log Submitted to Opposing Counsel 
Applica nt's Ex. A [Dkt. No. 27 - 2), contain 263 entries, but Mr . 
Akhmetshin deter mined t hat entries 226 and 227 are not privileged 
and has released them to I MR. 
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with the communication at issue, is acting in his or her capacity 

as a lawyer; (3) The communication relates to a fact of which the 

attorney was informed by his client, outside the presence of 

strangers, for the purpose of securing legal advice; and(4) The 

privilege has been claimed by the client." In re Veiga, 746 F. 

Supp. 2d 27, 34 (D .D.C. 2010) (citing Elkins v. District of 

Columbia, 250 F.R.D. 20, 24 (D.D.C. 2008)). Attorney-client 

privilege "has generally been narrowly construed" and may be waived 

by voluntary disclosure. Id. 

The work-product doctrine is codified at Fed. R. Civ. 

P . 26(b) (3) (A) and protects from discovery "documents and tangible 

things that are prepared in anticipation of litigation or for trial 

by or for another party or its representative (including the other 

party's attorney, consultant, surety, indemnitor, insurer, or 

agent) . " 2 Fed. R. Civ. P. 26(b) (3) (A) . 

This privilege too may be waived, but the test differs from 

the one applicable to attorney-client privilege. "[V] oluntary 

disclosure to a third party constitutes a waiver where the 

disclosure is made under circumstances inconsistent with the 

maintenance of secrecy from one's adversary. Pursuant to this so-

2 Work product "may be discovered if: (i) they are otherwise 
discoverable under Rule 26(b) (l); and(ii) the party shows that it 
has substantial need for the materials to prepare its case and 
cannot, without undue hardship, obtain their substantial 
equivalent by other means ." Fed. R. Civ. P . 26. 
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called 'maintenance of secrecy' standard, courts inquire whether 

the proponent 1 had a reasonable basis for believing that the 

recipient would keep the disclosed material confidential.'" Veiga, 

746 F. Supp. 2d at 35 (quoting United States v. Deloitte LLP, 610 

F.3d 129, 140 (D.C. Cir. 2010)). 

The non-testifying expert privilege, codified at Fed. R. Civ . 

P . 26 (b) (4) (D), provides that 11 [oJ rdinarily, a party may not, by 

interrogatories or deposition, discover facts known or opinions 

held by an expert who has been retained or specially employed by 

another party in anticipation of litigation or to prepare for trial 

and who is not expected to be called as a witness at trial . " Fed. 

R . Civ. P . 26 (b) (4) (D) ,3 

The Parties disagree as to whether this privilege is subject 

to waiver, and as recently as July 25, 2013, another Judge in this 

District noted the "uncertain state of the law with respect to 

waiver and Rule 26 {b) ( 4) (D} [ . ]" Eidos Display, LLC v. Chunghwa 

Picture Tubes, Ltd., 296 F.R.D. 3, 8 (D . D.C. 2013}. Moreover, as 

the Court noted in its July 28, 2015 Memorandum Opinion, before 

the Court may reach the issue of waiver of Rule 26(b) (4) (D}, it 

3 A party may discover such information "only: ( i) as provided in 
Rule 35(b); or {ii) on showing exceptional circumstances under 
which it is impracticable for the party to obtain facts or opinions 
on the same subject by other means." Fed. R. Civ. P. 26 (b) (4) (D). 
Rule 35 deals with physical and mental examinations where a party's 
"mental or physical condition ... is in controversy[,]" Fed. R. 
Civ. P. 35(a) (1), and therefore, is not relevant. 
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must firs t determi ne whether the communications at issue were made 

in furtherance of Mr. Akhmetshin's asserted role as a non­

testifying witness. In re Application, 2015 WL 45552 4 8, at *7. 

II . APPLICATION OF PRIVILEGE DOCTRINES 

A. Document s Scheduling E- mails 

As noted above, the vast majority of Mr. Akhmetshin's 

assert ions of privilege are entirely without basis. The first group 

of non-privileged documents that must be released are e-mails 

containing nothing more than attempts to schedule phone calls and 

in-person meetings. See e.g., United States v. Moazzeni, 906 F . 

Supp . 2d 505, 514 (E.D. Va. 2012) ("emails scheduling appointments 

or discussing administrative matters" were not protected by 

attorney- client privilege). Such communications do not contai n 

"facts known or opinions held" by an expert, Fed . R. Civ. P. 

26(b) (4) (D), nor do they "relate [ ] to a fact of which the attorney 

was informed for the purpose of securing legal advice," 

Veiga, 746 F. Supp . 2d at 34, nor are they work product "prepared 

in anticipation of litigation or for tr i al," Fed. R. Civ. 

P. 26(b) (3) (A) . Accordingly, Mr. Akhmetshin must produce the 

documents identified by the fol l owing privilege log entries: 5-

21 , 27 - 44, 47-53, 58-63, 68-69, 7 1 -75, 78-88, 93-96, 100-102, 125-

2 9 I 13 1 - 3 6 I 13 8 - 4 8 I 19 5 - 9 6 I 2 3 3 - 3 5 I and 2 3 7 . 
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B. Documents Relating to Strategic Communications and 
Public Relations 

In their briefs, the Parties made very different 

representations as to Mr. Akhmetshin's role as ECVK's agent . IMR 

contended that Mr. Akhmetshin did not serve as an expert, but 

instead, performed "strategic communicationsu work on ECVK's 

behalf. See Applicant's Mot. at 9-10 . 

During his deposition, Mr. Akhmetshin acknowledged that, in 

t he course of his consulting work for variou s clients, he often 

engages in strategic communicat i ons campaigns and described the 

methods he employs to "encourage journalists to look into [his] 

client[ 's ] matters." Akhmetshin Deposition at 149-151, Applicant's 

Ex. H [Dkt. No. 27-9] . He also stated that he "developed and 

proposed to ECVK a strategic communications strategy relevant to 

[litigation between IMR and ECVK in the courts of the 

Netherlands ] . 11 Deel. o f Rinat Akhmetshin ("Akhmetshin Decl. 11
) ' 6 , 

Applicant's Ex. I (Dkt. No. 27-10]. Mr. Akhmetshin and ECVK, 

however, have consistently maintained that Mr . Akhrnetshin's 

strategic communications and public relations proposal was swiftly 

rejected and that Mr. Akhmetshin performed no such work on ECVK's 

behalf. 

As the Court noted in its previous Memorandum Opinion, "Mr. 

Akhrnetsh i n and BCVK do not argue that strategic communications or 
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public relat ions work performed by Mr. Akhrnetshin would be 

privileged. Instead, they simply contend that Mr . Akhmetshin' s 

numerous communications with j ournalists i nvolved research and 

investigation in his capacity as a non-testifying expert . " In re 

Application, 2015 WL 4555248, at *6. The Court also stated that 

"whether the documents sought concern strategic communications and 

whether Mr. Akhmetshin performed such work at all are factual 

questions that the Court will be able to answer as part of its in 

camera review." Id . Having performed an extensive review of the 

documents submitted, the Court can conclusively answer both 

questions in the affirmative. 

Mr. Akhmetshin's Privi l ege Log is riddled with e-mai ls 

between him and reporters for major publications. See ~, Priv 

Nos. 22, 23, 24, 97, 164, 170, 192, 201, 202 , 205. Respondent 

explains this by contending that "Mr. Akhmetshin was able to use 

journalists to obtain research as part of his i nvest igation." 

Resp't's Opp'n at 17. According to Respondent, rather t han feeding 

stories to journalists, Mr . Akhmetshin merely "[e)xchanged 

information with journalists on the London Information Exchange[, 

which] does not equate to engaging in a strategic communications 

campaign . " Resp't's Opp'n at 17 . 

Mr. Akhmetshin's explanation of his interactions with 

reporters, as it turns out, is simply not accurate. In none of the 
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e-mails produced does Mr. Akhmetshin ask these reporters for 

information. Instead of exchanging information, the flow of 

information appears to be one-way : In numerous emails Mr. 

Akhmetshin forwards the detai l s of ECVK's suit against IMR as well 

as generally derogatory information about IMR and its affiliates 

to reporters, see ~, Priv Nos . 170, 201, 202, 205. Moreover, 

Mr. Akhmetshin's public relations role i s made clear by e-mails 

containing what could reasonably be called a smoking gun. 

For example, Privilege Log entry 76 contains an email between 

ECVK's counsel, Mr. Akhmetshin, and an ECVK employee. Among other 

things, it states, "As I mentioned, Rinat [Akhmetshin] is advising 

on the international PR campaign we have been discussing. . . He 

has thoughts as to how we should proceed and can help your PR and 

IR people." Id. Those "thoughts" quickly turned into actions as 

reporters went directly to Mr. Akhmetshin for information about 

ECVK's dispute with IMR. See~, Priv No. 98 (reporter asks Mr. 

Akhrnetshin, "what is the chance i can get an on the record comment 

from eurochem? And any possibility of documents/charges? i'm 

running out of time so would realy love to get a quote or two and 

a bit more info."). 

In Privilege Log entry 163, Mr . Akhmetshin writes to ECVK's 

counsel, "was great to see you, patrick . Attached is the document 

i mentioned to you. pls send me your filings once they are ready 
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and i will work on getting the story out." Priv No. 163 (emphasis 

added). In entry 171 , Mr. Akhmetshin forwards ECVK's counsel an e-

mail from a reporter along with the following note: "this guy is 

writing for the sunday times [a prominent UK newspaper], he 

did tons of kazakh stories with me. pls send me details about 

arbitration and NL [presumably, Netherlands] cases, will channel 

it to him when the time is right." Priv No. 1 71 (emphasis added}. 

Later, Mr . Akhmetshin does just that, sending the same reporter 

copies of documents from the Dutch Action. Priv No . 205. 

The examples above were not isolated incidents. On another 

occasion, Mr. Akhmetshin wrote ECVK' s counsel stati ng, "pa trick, 

simon [a reporter for The Guardian, another UK newspaper] is trying 

to run a piece in the guardian about yr case, can u send a link or 

some info where their lawyers can confirm the filing?" Priv No. 

197. Minutes later, he asks Intervenor's counsel for information 

to answer questions from another reporter. Priv No. 198. 

La t er, Ed Lieberman, a lawyer whom Mr. Akhmetshin contends i s 

his personal counsel , forwarded Mr. Akhmetshin a copy of a news 

story from The Guardian . Priv No. 217. 4 Mr . Akhmetshin responds, 

4 Despite Mr. Akhmetshin's claims to the contrary, this particular 
e-mail exchange is not subj ect to attorney-client privilege 
because there is absolutely nothing to indicate it was made for 
the purpose of givi ng or receiving legal advice. 
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"i MADE that!! Thanks meester!" Priv No. 218. Mr. Lieberman 

answers, "Who didn't know that[? ] " Priv No . 219. 

Finally, if there was any doubt that Mr . Akhrnetshin was 

performing public relations and strategic communications work on 

ECVK's behalf, ECVK's counsel felt the need to c l arify the 

following in an e-mail e nding Mr . Akhmetshin's relationship with 

ECVK: "to avoid any further confusion, if you [Mr. Akhmetshin] 

receive any inquiries form the press or other outsiders about our 

case, just ask them to contact (ECVK's ] press relations department 

directly." Pri v No. 254. 

In short, despite his assertions to the contrary, there is 

overwhel ming evidence that Mr . Akhmetshin, in fact, engage d in 

strategic communications and public relations on ECVK's behalf . 

Mr . Akhmetshin and ECVK have never claimed that such documents 

are subject to the non - testifying expert privilege (instead, they 

falsely c l aimed that such documents did not exist). Resp't's Opp'n 

at 16; Intervenor's Opp'n at 11- 1 2. Moreover, strategic 

communications-related documents are not subject to the work­

product or attorney-client privilege, because even if such 

privi l eges could apply to some of the underlying documents, sharing 

the i n formation with journalists looki ng to disseminate them 

would, of course, constitute waiver. In re Veiga, 746 F. Supp. 2d 

a t 34-35 . 
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Accordingly, Mr. Akhmetshin must produce to IMR all documents 

related to strategic communications, including any e-mails 

providing information to journalists, any e-mails between 

Mr. Akhmetshin and ECVK' s counsel containing information also 

provided to journalists, and any e-mails between Mr. Akhmetshin 

and ECVK' s counsel concerning Mr. Akhmetshi n' s conduct of the 

strategic communications and/or public relations campaign. Those 

documents are listed as Privilege Log entries : 4, 22 - 24, 55-56, 

76, 97 - 98, 103, 104, 152, 153, 155, 163-165, 169-71, 175, 177-82, 

187-93, 197 - 203, 205, 208, 216-219, 238, 240, 241, 243-254, 261. 

C. News Art i cles 

The next group of documents that are very clearly not subject 

to any privilege are news articles appearing in major publications. 

Many of the withheld documents are simply copies of articles 

reprinted from the internet without any analysis or indication 

that they were used for any particular purpose (or even read by 

Mr . Akhmetshin). Because the Court concludes that Mr. Akhmetshin 

was engaged in non-privileged , strategic communications work, and 

has no reason to believe these news art i cles were used for anything 

other than that work, it follows that the news articles themselves 

are not privileged and must be produced . These documents are 

Privilege Log entries: 137, 166, 174, 194, 204, 206, 210-213, 215, 

223, 236, 239, and 242. 
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D. Do cuments Sub j ect t o Non-Test i fying Exper t Privilege 

Despite Mr . Akhmetshin's overbroad assertions of privilege 

discussed above and below this section, several of the documents 

listed in Mr. Akhmetshin' s Privilege log do, i n fact, contain 

"facts known or opinions held" by Mr . Akhmetshin in his capacity 

as an expert on Eurasian business and political affairs hired by 

ECVK in anticipation of litigation. Fed. R. Civ. P. 26(b) (4) (D) . 

As discussed in the next section, many of these documents must be 

produced under the crime-fraud exception, but a fair number do not 

appear to be connected to the wrongdoing IMR alleges. Therefore, 

the following Privilege Log entries are pri vileged under Rule 

26(b) (4) (D) and need not be produced: 25, 26, 45, 46, 64, 65, 77, 

89-92, 107, 108, 114-117, 130, 149-151, 154, 156-162, 168 , 172, 

173, 176, 183-186, 209. 

E . Crime- Frau d Exc eption 

In its Motion to Compel, IMR alleged that Mr. Akhmetshin had 

organi zed the hacking of computer systems belonging to IMR and 

affiliated companies and then proceeded to d i sseminate that 

information to ECVK and journalists. More specifically, IMR 

contended that Mr. Akhmetshin had accessed a thumb-drive 

containi ng the hacked f i les and that the thumb-drive was later 

given to IMR's agents by an anonymous source . According to IMR, 

-12-



Case 1:14-mc-00340-GK Document 49 Filed 08/19/15 Page 13 of 21 

these actions violated 18 U.S.C. §§ 1030 and 2701. 5 See In re 

Application, 2015 WL 4555248, at *4-*7 for a more extended 

discussion of IMR's allegations. 

The Court held in its previous Memorandum Opinion that the 

crime-fraud exception applicable to most forms of privilege also 

applies to the non-testifying expert privilege udner Fed. R. Civ. 

P. 26 (b) (4) (D) . In re Application, 2015 WL 4555248, at *3. When 

invoking the crime-fraud exception to defeat a claim of privilege, 

a party "satisfies its burden of proof if it offers evidence that 

if believed by the trier of fact would establish the elements of 

an ongoing or imminent crime or fraud . 11 In re Sealed Case, 754 

F.2d 395, 399 (D.C. Ci r. 1985). This prima facie showing "does not 

have to be established entirely with independent evidence-the 

documents themselves are commonly the best evidence available. 11 

Tri -State Hospital Supply Corp. v. United States, 238 F . R.D. 102, 

104 (D. D . C . 2006) (citing United States v. Zol i n, 491 U.S. 554, 

567 (1989)). Once a party has made its prima facie showing, in 

5 Under § 1030, it is a crime to gain unauthorized access to and 
obtain information from a "computer . . which is used in or 
affecting interstate or foreign commerce or communication, 
including a computer located outside the United States that is 
used in a manner that affects interstate or foreign commerce." 18 
U.S.C. § 1030(a) (2) (C) & (e) (2). Under § 2701, it is a crime to 
"intentionally access[) without authorization a facility through 
which an electronic communication service is provided; or 
intentionally exceed[] an authorization to access that facility; 
and thereby obtain[) ... a wire or electronic communication while it 
is in electronic storage." 
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order to obtain discovery of a particular communication it must 

"establish some relationship between the communication at issue 

and the prima facie violation.n In re Sealed Case, 754 F.2d 395, 

399 (D.C. Cir. 1985 ) . 

The Court previously concluded that IMR had made a sufficient 

showing to trigger in camera review. Now the Court concludes that 

the evidence submitted by IMR with its Motion together with several 

of the withhel d documents are sufficient to make the prima facie 

showing necessary to overcome the non-testify expert privilege. 

IMR' s claims that Mr. Akhmetshin organized the hacking of 

!MR-related computers and searched for specific information 

located there are supported by e-mails between Mr. Akhmetshin and 

ECVK' s counsel. See Pri v No. 54 (Mr. Akhmetshin writes, "the 

project is already up and running and it is churni ng up the 

info."); Priv No. 57 (To ECVK's counsel: "patrick, the indexing is 

done, can you, pls send me a list of terms/names for a scan?"); 

Priv No. 67 ( "dear patrick, looks like the work is finally 

completed."); Priv No . 119 ("just spoke with the guy - he said 

they pulled everything there was available. Need to go collect it 

some time after the holidays") . 

Other e-mails reference an object - mentioned only as "the 

thing" - which must be dropped off. See Priv No. 66 (Mr. Akhrnetshin 

writes, "i really hope to be ab l e to have the thing in the next 
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day or two . ") ; Priv No. 70 (Mr. Ak.hmetshin writes, "plan to get 

that thing in London tomorrow, can take it anywhere, pls advise 

where should I go."); Priv No. 121 ("i plan to collect the thing 

in london on wed this week and be traveling to msk after that . 

. can drop the thing with you afternoon dec.10 . "). A reasonable 

fact finder could conclude that this object is the thumb-drive 

containing sensitive IMR files that IMR's agents later recovered 

in London. 

IMR has thus made t he requisite showing, and therefore, Mr. 

Akhmetshin must produce all documents related to the alleged crime. 

The related documents are Privilege Log entries 54, 57, 66, 67, 

70, and 118-24.6 

F. Attorney - Client Privi lege 

Mr. Akhmetshin claims that his e -mai ls corresponding with his 

"personal counsel" Mr. Lieberman are protected by attorney-client 

privilege and the work-product doctrine. They are not. 

6 ECVK contends that any crime allegedly committed by 
Mr. Akhmetshin could not overcome a privilege owned by ECVK unless 
IMR could make a showing that ECVK had somehow been implicated in 
the wrongdoing. The Court need not reach that contention because 
the communications make clear that ECVK's counsel had knowledge of 
Mr. Akhmetshin's alleged activit ies taken on ECVK's behalf. See In 
re Sealed Case, 676 F. 2d 793, 815 (D.C. Cir. 1982) ("The prima 
facie violation may also be the attorney's, since attorney 
misconduct negates the premise that the adversary system furthers 
the cause of justice . "). 
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As discussed above, several of Mr. Akhmetshin's e-mails with 

Mr. Lieberman involve not legal advice or work produced in 

anticipation of litigation, but discussion of Mr. Akhmetshin' s 

strategic communications work. Priv Nos. 207, 217-219. 

Other e-mails that on first blush appear to be of a legal 

nature, see Priv Nos. 220, 221, and 222, are likewise not subject 

to attorney-client privi l ege. Whether or not these communications 

were originally made for the purpose of receiving legal advice, 

Mr . Akhmetshin waived whatever privilege the e-mails had by 

acknowledging in later Privilege Log entries that he forwarded the 

communications to a third-party, see Priv No. 224, 225, whose job 

apparently was "to sell it[,)" see Priv No. 222. See also Priv No. 

228 (sharing communication with Mr. Lieberman with third party); 

Priv No. 229 (communication from Mr. Lieberman); Priv No. 230 

(forwarding Priv No. 229 to third party) . 

Finally, two e-mails between Mr. Lieberman and Mr. Akhrnetshin 

are simply not of a legal nature and do not fall under any asserted 

privilege. Priv Nos. 231, 232. 

For these reasons, none of Mr. Akhmetshin's communications 

with Mr. Lieberman are privileged and the following Privilege Log 

entries must be produced: 207, 217-222, 224, 225, 228-232. 

-16-



Case 1:14-mc-00340-GK Document 49 Filed 08/19/15 Page 17 of 21 

G. E-mails with Third Party 

The documents produced for in camera review include numerous 

e-mails between Mr. Akhmetshin and the owner of the e-mail address 

2703tarazuisun@gmail.com. Mr . Akhmetshin contends that two of his 

e-mails with 2703tarazuisun@gmail . com are protected by attorney­

client privilege. See Priv Nos. 228, 230. But the mere inclusion 

of Mr. Lieberman on e-mails sent to 2703tarazuisun@gmail . com does 

not bring the communications within the bounds of attorney-client 

privilege. Instead, the inclusion of a third party's e-mail address 

waives the privilege that Mr . Akhmetshin's communications with Mr. 

Lieberman might have otherwise enjoyed. In re Veiga, 746 F . Supp. 

2d at 34; United States v. Singhal, 800 F. Supp. 2d 1, 7 (D . D.C. 

2011) (e-mails between lawyer and client including "third party 

recipientsu were not privileged) . 

Mr. Akhmetshin contends that the rest of the e-mails sent to 

or from 2703tarazuisun@gmail.com are protected from discovery by 

the non-testifying expert privilege and the work product doctrine . 

Respondent's basis for asserting the protection of the work product 

doctrine is hard to understand, as none of the documents appear to 

have been created by a party's representative in anticipation of 

litigation as Rule 26(b) (3) (A) requires. Moreover, even if t he e­

mails contained work product, Mr. Akhmetshin has not put forth a 

reasonable basis for concluding 
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2703tarazuisun@gmail.com would keep the information confidential, 

and thus, sharing the information waives the asserted privilege. 

In re Veiga, 746 F. Supp . 2d at 35. 

Finally, with respect to the non-test i fying expert privilege, 

!MR contends that Mr. Akhmetshin's e-mails with 

2703tarazuisun@gmail . com constitute waiver of the privilege 

provided by Rule 26(b) (4) (D) . Mr . Akhmetshin argues that the non­

testifying expert privilege simply is not waivable. 

As the Court has noted earlier, the law is unse t tled as to 

whether the prot ections of Rule 26(b) (4) (D) may be waived. Eidos 

Display, 296 F.R.D. at 8. However, the Court need not reach that 

issue because context makes c l ear that Mr. Akhmetshin's e-mails 

with 2703tarazuisun@gmail.com fall within the scope of Mr . 

Akhmetshin' s strategic communications and public relations role 

rather than his role as an expert. 

Many of the e-mails between Mr. Akhmetshi n and 

2703tarazuisun@gmail.com simply share news coverage. See ~· 

Priv No . 2, 99, 111 . Others discuss the news. See ~, Priv No. 

3, 112, 113 . In others, Mr . Akhmetshin forwards his communications 

with journalists to 2703 t arazuisun@gmail.com. See e.g., Priv No. 

250 (forwarding journalist ' s question). 

Nowhere in his e-mails with 2703tarazuisun@gmail.com does Mr. 

Akhmetshin appear to be acting as an "expert," and accordingl y, 
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the e-mai l s are not covered by Rule 26 (b) (4) (D). The following 

Privilege Log entries must be produced : 1 - 3, 92, 99, 1 OS, 106, 

109-13, 150, 151, 157, 167, 175, 177, 179, 181, 182, 191 , 214, 

228, 230, and 250. 

H. Documents Post-Dating May 27 , 2013 

By Mr . Akhmetshin's own admission in Privi l ege Log entry 255, 

whatever role he played as IMR's agent ceased on May 27, 2013. 

Priv No . 255 . Yet, he claims that 17 e-mails post-dating May 27, 

2013, are protected by various privileges. 

E-mails written or received by Mr . Akhmetshin after he severed 

his relationship with EVCK are not subject to the non-testifying 

expert or work-product privileges . Work-product doctrine p r otects 

the work of a "party or its representative,u which on May 27, 2013, 

Mr. Akhmetshin had ceased to be . Fed. R. Civ. P . 26(b) (3) (A) . The 

non- testifying expert privilege protects facts and opinions known 

to or held by an exper t "retained or special l y employed by another 

party . " Fed. R . Civ. P. 26(b)(4)(D) . After May 27, 2013, 

Mr. Akhmetshin was no longer retained or employed by ECVK, so facts 

and opinions made known after that date cannot be privileged. 

Accordingly, Privilege Log entries 247-263 must be released . 7 

7 Except for several e-mails that address Mr . Akhmetshin's 
negotiation of his final payment from ECVK, these e-mails also 
relate to strategic communications and would also be discoverable 
on that ground. 
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III. RULE 11 

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 11 provides: 

By presenting to the court a pleading, written motion, 
or other paper . . . an attorney . . . certifies that to 
the best of the person's knowledge, information, and 
belief, formed after an i nquiry reasonable under the 
circumstances : 

(1) it is not being presented for any improper purpose, 
such as to harass, cause unnecessary delay, or 
needlessly increase the cost of litigation; 

(2) the claims, defenses, and other l egal contentions 
are warranted by existing law or by a nonfri volous 
argument for extending, modifying, or reversing existing 
law or for establishing new law; 

(3) the factual contentions have evidentiary support or, 
if specifically so identified, will likely have 
evidentiary support after a reasonabl e opportunity for 
further investigation or discovery; and 

(4) the denials of factual contentions are warranted on 
the evidence or, if specifically so identified, are 
reasonably based on belief or a lack of information. 

Fed. R. Civ . P . ll(b) . The Rule goes on to state that "[i)f, after 

notice and a reasonable opportuni ty to respond, the court 

determines that Rule l l (b) has been violated, the court may impose 

an appropriate sanction on any a ttorney, law firm, or party that 

violated the rule or is responsible for the violation . n Fed . R. 

Civ. P . 11 (c). 

As explained above, the vast majority of Respondent's and 

Intervenor's assertions of privilege are utterly baseless. 

Moreover, Mr. Akhmetshin and Intervenor have made groundless 
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factual contentions . They have also denied other factual 

contentions that are, in fact, supported by the documents they 

sought to withhold. All of these actions have unnecessarily delayed 

the proceedings before this Court and appear to have needlessly 

increased the costs of litigation. 

"On its own, the court may order an attorney, law firm, or 

party to show cause why conduct specifical l y described in the order 

has not violated Rule ll(b)." Fed . R . Civ. P. ll(c)(3) . The Court 

shall do so here. 

I V . CONCLUSION 

In response to IMR ' s discovery requests and Motion to Compel, 

Mr. Akhmetshin has made - and ECVK has supported - overbroad and 

unwarranted assertions of privilege. Mr. Akhmetshin must now 

produce all unprivileged documents to IMR, and bot h Mr. Akhmetshin 

and Intervenor must show cause, by September 1, 2015 , why their 

unwarranted assertions of privilege do not violate Rule ll(b) . 

August 19, 2015 Gladys ssler 
United States District Judge 

Copies to: attorneys on record via ECF 
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2015 WL 7180277 (N.Y.Sup.) (Trial Pleading) 
Supreme Court of New York. 

New York County 

INTERNATIONAL MINERAL RESOURCES B.V., Plaintiff, 
V. 

EXHIBIT 

\7 

Rinat AKHMETSHIN, Patrick P. Salisbury, Salisbury & Ryan LLP, Eurochem Vo1ga-Kaliy LLC, Defendants. 

No. 161682/2015. 
November 12, 2015. 

Summons 

Jonathan D. Cogan (NY Bar No. 4167276), Steven W. Perlstein (NY Bar No. 2982478), Rebecca G. Mangold (NY 

Bar No. 4741021), Kobre & Kim LLP, 800 Third Avenue, New York, New York 10022, Tel: 212.488.1200, Fax: 
212.488.1220, 
John (Fritz) Scanlon (NY Bar No. 4538781), Kobre & Kim LLP, 1919 M Street, NW, Washington, DC 20036, Tel: 
202.664.1900, Fax: 202.664.1920, , Counsel for Plaintiff International Mineral Resources 
B.V. 

IN TRODUCTION 

1. This lawsuit concerns Defendants' unlawful scheme to hack highly confidential and/or commercially sensitive 
communications and other private information from l MR's computer systems. 

2. The scheme - which, upon information and belief, was conceived of and has been largely executed in the United 
States - has been carried out at the direction of a New York lawyer (Salisbury) and his New York City law firm (S&R). 
Salisbury and S&R are U.S. counsel to Russian potassium-mining company ECVK in a $1 billion litigation against IMR 
that is currently pending in the Netherlands (the "Dutch Action"). 

3. In connection with the Dutch Action, Salisbury, S&R, and ECVK hired Akhmetshin, a former Soviet military 
counterintelligence officer. Upon being retained, Mr. Akhmetshin hacked into IMR's computer systems and stole IMR's 
sensitive and confidential materials. Defendants then sought to inflict maximum damage on IMR, including by using 
the fruits of this hacking to assist ECVK in the Dutch litigation. 

4. In addition, Defendants disseminated the stolen materials and other negative information to journalists and other 
third parties as part of a smear campaign against IMR designed to harm IMR's business reputation. 

5. ECVK then made applications in the Dutch Action that relied on negative press articles authored by individuals to 
whom Defendants have disseminated IMR's stolen electronic information. 

6. That Defendants would resort to such underhanded tactics comes as no surprise. The primary ultimate beneficiary 
and owner ofECVK is Andrey Melnicbenko, who has personally, and through companies he owns, been associated with 
a number of allegedly improper and illegal activities throughout the world, as described further below. 

7. Defendants' unlawful actions in hacking IMR's computer systems and disseminating its confidential information have 
caused IMR significant damage by, among other things, (1) causing IMR to incur substantial expenses in investigating 
and responding to the hacking of and theft from its computer systems, (2) causing IMR to incur substantial additional 
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expenses in the Dutch Action (as described in more detail below), and (3) causing serious injury to IMR's business 

reputation. 

8. Defendants' conduct constitutes common law trespass to chattels and civil conspiracy. As a result, Defendants' 

misconduct entitles IMR to, among other relief, (a) injunctive relief precluding Defendants from further retaining, using 

or disseminating IMR's stolen electronic information in any way, (b) compensatory, consequential, statutory and/or 

punitive damages resulting from Defendants' malicious hacking of IM R's computer systems and subsequent use and 

dissemination of IMR's stolen electronic information, and (c) the fees and costs associated with bringing this action. 

Date Purchased: November 12, 2015 

TO THE ABOVE NAMED DEFENDANTS: Rinat AkJunetshin 

Washington, D .C. -

Patrick P. Salisbury 

1325 Avenue of the Americas 

New York, New York l 0019 

Salisbury & Ryan LLP 

1325 A venue of the Americas 

New York, New York 10019 

EuroChem Volga-Kaliy LLC 

7 Lenin Street 

Kotelnikovo 404350, Russia 

You are hereby summoned to answer the complaint in this action and to serve a copy of your answer on the Plaintiffs 

attorney within 20 days after the service of this summons, exclusive of the day of service (or within 30 days after the 

service is complete if this summons is not personally delivered to you within the State of New York); and in case of your 
failure to appear or answer, judgment will be taken against you by default for the relief demanded in the complaint. 

Plaintiff designates New York County as the place of trial. The basis of venue is Defendant SALISBURY & RYAN 
LLP's principal office address, which is 1325 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10019. See CPLR § 503(d) 

Dated: New York, New York 

November 12, 2015 

KOBRE & KIM LLP 
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By: <<signature>> 

Jonathan D. Cogan (NY Bar No. 4167276) 

Steven W. Perlstein (NY Bar No. 2982478) 

Rebecca G. Mangold (NY Bar No. 4741021) 

KOBRE & KIM LLP 

800 Third A venue 

New York, New York 10022 

Tel: 212.488.1200 

Fax: 212.488.1220 

John (Fritz) Scanlon (NY Bar No. 4538781) 

KOBRE & KIM LLP 

1919 M Street, NW 

Washington, DC 20036 

Tel: 202.664.1900 

Fax: 202.664.1920 

Counsel for Plaintiff International Mineral Resources B. V. 

COMPLAINT 

Plaintiff International Mineral Resources B.V. (" IMR") for its Complaint against Rinat Akhmetsbin ("Akbmetsbin"), 
Patrick P. Salisbury ("Salisbury"), Salisbury & Ryan LLP ("S&R "), and EuroChem Volga-Kally LLC ("ECVK") 
alleges: 

PA RTIES 
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9. PlaintiffIMR is a private limited liability company organized under the laws of the Netherlands. IMR regularly invests 

in the mining and metal industries. 

10. Upon information and belief, Defendant Akbmetshin is an individual residing in Washington, D.C. 

11. Upon information and belief, Defendant ECVK is a private limited liability company organized under the laws of 

Russia that engages in the mining of potassium. ECVK is a wholly-owned subsidiary of EuroChem MCC, an openjoint­

stock company organized under the laws of Russia (together with ECVK, "EuroChem"). 

12. Upon information and belief, Defendant S&R is a limited liability partnership organized under tbe laws of New York 

with its principal office in New Yark, New York. 

13. Upon information and belief, Defendant Salisbury is an individual residing in the State of New York. Salisbury is one 

of the founding partners of S&R. S&R and Salisbury were retained by ECVK in connection with foreign proceedings, 

including the Dutch Action. 

RELEVANT NON-PARTIES 

14. Shaft Sinkers (Proprietary) Limited ("Shaft Sinkers") is a shaft-sinking company in which IMR held an indirect 

ownership interest. 

15. Eurasian Natural Resources Corporation PLC ("ENRC'' ) was a publicly listed diversified natural resources 

company. Some shareholders of the former ENRC, and its successor entity, Eurasian Resources Group, bold a beneficial 

ownership in IMR. These shareholders include three Eastern European industrialists named Patokh Chodiev, Alexander 

Machkevitch, and Alijan Ibragimov. The business holdings of these three industrialists, including ENRC, were the 

subject of Akhrnetshin's negative media campaign aimed at harming IMR. 

16. EuroChem MCC, ECVK's 100% shareholder, claims to be Russia's largest producer of mineral fertilizers. The 

primary ultimate beneficiary and owner of EuroChem MCC is Andrey Melnichenko. Melnichenko bas an estimated net 

worth of approximately $8 billion, making him one of the wealthiest men in the world and one of the top 15 wealthiest 

people in Russia, according to Forbes. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

17. This cou·rt has jurisdiction pursuant to CPLR §§ 301 and 302. Venue is proper pursuant to CPLR § 503(d) because 

Defendant S&R is a partnership with its principal office in New York County. 

BACKGROUND 

I. Akhmetshin's Background in Counterintelligence and Negative Public Relations Campaigns 

18. Akhmetshin is a former Soviet military counterintelligence officer who moved to Washington, D.C. to become a 

lobbyist. 

19. While working in Washington, D.C., Akhmetshin developed a special expertise in running negative public relations 

campaigns. 
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20. In connection with these negative public relations campaigns, Akhmetshin conducted media and legislative outreach, 

encouraged journalists to write negative articles in connection with his client matters, and developed close relationships 
with reporters in New York, Washington, D.C., and elsewhere. 

21. Akhmetshin has been linked to numerous journalists, including a former editor of Harper's, a publisher of Main 

Justice and writer for the Wall Street Journal, and an investigative reporter who contributes to The Nation and The 
Buffington Post. 

22. Akhmetshin has gained notoriety for his work, and his negative public relations campaigns were even discussed in 
Steve Le Vine's 2007 book The Oil and the Glory. 

23. The attorneys at S&R, including Salisbury, were among the people who were familiar with Akhmetshin's work. 

24. S&R previously represented an individual named Peter Zalmayev in Egia:;aryan v. Zalmayev, No. I 1-2670 
(S.D.N.Y.). In that case, the plaintiff alleged that Akbmetsbin worked with Mr. Zalmayev to orchestrate a "black (i.e., 
negative) public relations campaign" that was "designed to discredit" the plaintiff in order to benefit the plaintiffs 
"litigation foes" (among others). 

25. The plaintiff in that case specifically alleged that Akbmetshin strategically planted negative articles about the plaintiff 
in various publications, and encouraged non-profit organizations to write letters to Congress about the plaintiff that 
they later had to retract when they realized that they had been "misled." 

II. Andrey Melnichenko, EuroChem, and Patrick Salisbury 

26. The fact that ECVK would hire someone like Akhmetshin is not surprising in light of widespread reports concerning 
improper and illegal activities regularly undertaken by EuroChem, its owner, Andrey Melnichenko, and/or those 
associated with them. 

27. As noted above, Melnicbenko is a Russian billionaire who has been linked to improper acts throughout the world. 1 

28. Those close to Melnicbenko have been at the center of high profile scandals that have been reported in the press. For 
example, Melnichenko served on the Board of Directors of Greencorp SA with Daniel Clauw and Kendrick Wallace, 
former officers of chemical producer Yara International. Yara International became the subject of Norway's largest 
corporate corruption case and, earlier this year, both Clauw and Wallace were reportedly found guilty of paying bribes 
to officials in Libya andlor India and sentenced to prison. 

29. Like Melnichenko and his associates, Melnicbenko's companies are the frequent subject of investigations and 
scandals. 

30. For example, MDM Bank, founded by Melnichenko, was reportedly approached by U.S. authorities after employees 
of Bank of New York were accused of aiding Russian oligarchs launder billions of dollars through a Moscow-based 
bank that MOM controlled. 

31 . Melnichenko is also the co-founder of coal producer Siberian Coal Energy Company (SUEK), which was the subject 
of a series of scandals and allegations. In 2002, SUEK was reportedly the subject of a criminal investigation by The 
Russian Ministry of Internal Affairs for tax evasion allegedly totaling over 1 billion rubles in connection with the 
purchase of shares in three surface coal mines from its subsidiary, Krasnoyarsk Coal Company (KCC). Officers of SUEK 
and one of its subsidiaries are reportedly under criminal investigation for unlicensed coal mining in the Chita region 
of Russia. 
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32. EuroChem MCC, despite being one of the most profitable mineral fertilizer producers in the world, has also been 

the subject of a number of allegations, and its business practices have been repeatedly called into question. 

33. For example, EuroChem MCC has been accused of environmental violations and was the target of protests on at 

least two occasions. In 2010, an alleged fertilizer spill at its Tuapse shipping terminal on the coast of the Black Sea is 

said to have caused illnesses among residents and killed marine life. Similarly, in 2012, Ville Niinisto, Finland's Minister 
for Environmental Affairs, reportedly accused EuroChem MCC of contaminating the Baltic Sea with phosphoric waste 

from its fertilizer plant in the Leningrad Region. 

34. EuroCbem MCC has also been accused of questionable dealings with its subsidiaries and business partners. For 

instance, minority shareholders of Nevinnomyssky Azot, the largest producer of nitrogen fertilizers in Russia and a 
subsidiary of EuroChem MCC, reportedly accused the parent company of orchestrating an illegal takeover in 2008, 

under the guise of a set of mandatory buyouts from the minority shareholders. Similarly, in February 2015, EuroChem 

M CC allegedly purchased shares in Astrakhan Oil & Gas Company OJSC from the Astrakhan Regional Administration 
at a price well below market value. 

35. Melnichenko and EuroChem MCC's business interests outside Russia have also been called into question. Kazakh 

citizens reportedly sent a public letter to President Nursultan Nazarbaev expressing concern over Melnichenko's plans 
to develop Kazakh phosphorus deposits while receiving preferential prices for gas without paying taxes to the Kazakh 

government. 

36. Eurochem MCC's long-time business partner, Togliatti Azot (ToAz), has reportedly been accused of evading tax 

payments to the Russian government by engaging in off shore transfer-pricing schemes. Melnichenko's connection to 
ToAz may go beyond their business relations, however. Amicorp Group is a company that is located at the same 

address as Melnichenko's private family office in Monaco and has been linked to numerous Melnicbenko business 

interests, including Melnichenko-controlled entities in the United Kingdom and Switzerland. Upon information and 

belief, some time ago, Amicorp effectively acquired control over ToAz by taking control of four offshore companies who 
are shareholders of ToAz (Bairiki, Inc.; Kamara Ltd; lnstantan.ia Holdings Ltd.; and Trafalgar Developments Ltd.). 
T oAz, like Eurochem, produces urea. 

37. Salisbury and his law firm, S&R , have a long-standing relationship with Melnichenko and his companies. 

38. Over the years, Salisbury has performed all manner of legal work for Melnichenko and the entities under 
Melnichenko's control, including representing Melnichenko-controlled entities in disputes over an allegedly defective 

paint job of "A" (Melnichenko's yacht) and an allegedly undersized sculpture purchased by Melnichenko. 

39. Thus, it should come as no surprise that Melnichenko turned to Salisbury and his law firm to represent ECVK in its 
legal dispute with IMR. It should also come as no surprise that this group engaged in the wrongful hacking of IM R's 

computer systems to gain an unfair advantage in those legal proceedings and cause !MR harm. 

ill. ECVK Hires S&R in Connection with Potential Foreign LegaJ Disputes 

40. In 2007, ECVK engaged Shaft Sinkers to design and construct a mine shaft for one of its mining projects near the 

Russian town of Kotelnikovo (the "Kotelnikovo Mining Project"). 

41. l n2012, the business relationship between Shaft Sinkers and ECVK broke down, and in March 2012, ECVK retained 
Salisbury and his New York Jaw firm, S&R, to investigate potential legal claims that it sought to assert in connection 

with the Kotelnikovo Mining Project. 
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42. When S&R was retained, ECVK and S&R did not have specific information about Shaft Sinkers's organizational 

structure or its relationship to other corporate entities. S&R was retained, among other things, to investigate these issues 

and determine whether ECVK could initiate legal actions against any corporate entities in addition to Shaft Sinkers. 

43. At all relevant times, S&R and Salisbury acted as ECVK's agents and acted at ECVK's direction. In fact, S&R 

and Salisbury reported directly to EuroChem's Chairman, Melnichenko, EuroChem's CEO, Dmitry Strezhnev, and 
EuroChem's General Counsel, Valery Sidnev, who was responsible for retaining and instructing outside litigation counsel 

for EuroChem and its subsidiaries, including ECVK. 

44. Upon information and belief, S&R and Salisbury directed and coordinated their work for ECVK from S&R's offices 

in New York. 

45. ECVK gave S&R and Salisbury full authority to hire people and conduct background research in connection with 
the potential legal proceedings. 

IV. ECVK, S&R, and Salisbury Approach Akhmetshln 

46. In early 2012, S&R and Salisbury reached out to Akhmetshin to discuss his potential engagement in connection with 

the ECVK matter. 

47. When S&R and Salisbury reached out to Akhmetshin, they were familiar with his counterintelligence background 
and his experience in running negative public relations campaigns. As discussed above, S&R previously worked with 

Akhrnetshin on a case where Akhrnetshin was alleged to have orchestrated a "black public relations campaign" that was 
"designed to discredit" the plaintiff in order to benefit the plaintiff's "litigation foes." S&R and Salisbury also reached out 

to Akhmetshin specifically because they understood that Akhmetshin could gain access to private sources of information 
concerning IMR. 

48. In response to S&R's interest in his work, Akhmetshin proposed developing a "strategic communication" campaign 
for ECVK. Akbmetshin bas stated that his strategic communications campaigns simply involve "encouraging journalists 

to look into [his] client['s] matters" and "get[ting] the [client's] story out" in media and legislative forums. In reality, 

however, Akhmetshin's practice is to forward derogatory information to bis network of media contacts in the hopes that 
negative stories will be written about the campaign's target. 

V. Akhmetsbin Hacks into IMR's Computers and Steals Confidential 
Information at the Direction of Salisbury, S&R, and ECVK 

49. !MR and its executives, employees, and administrative staff lawfully possessed files and other electronic information 
that were stored on computers, computer systems, and computer servers. 

50. Upon information and belief, before Akhmetshin even signed a formal engagement agreement with Salisbury, S&R, 
and ECVK, Akhmetshin began organizing the backing ofIMR's computer systems and searching for specific information 

at Salisbury, S&R, and ECVK's direction. 

51. Upon information and belief, Salisbury and S&R directed and coordinated the scheme on ECVK's behalf from S&R's 
offices in New York. Throughout the relevant time period, Akbmetshin had multiple meetings in furtherance of the 
scheme with Salisbury and S&R at S&R's offices in New York. 
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52. In a July 13, 2012 email, Akhmetsbin informed Salisbury that "the project is already up and running and it is churning 

up the info." Upon information and belief, "the project" referred to the backing project. 

53. Upon information and belief, in this time period, Salisbury, S&R, and ECVK intentionally directed Akbmetsbin 

to work with his collaborators to repeatedly access, use, and physically interfere with IMR's computers and computer 

servers to collect and copy confidential files and other electronic information without IMR's knowledge or authorization. 

Upon information and belief, Akhmetshin did just that. 

54. Akhmetshin and his collaborators collected files from multiple individuals at IMR, including executives and 

administrative staff who were likely to have access to important documents. 

55. The files that Akhmetshin and his collaborators stole included confidential and commercially sensitive information, 

such as passport information, emails, and personal contact lists for executives within IMR; IMR bank account 
information; loan agreements; business strategy documents; board meeting minutes; board and governance documents; 

drafts of market-sensitive documents; and financial forecasts and projections. 

56. Upon information and belief, after collecting the files, Akhmetshin indexed them for use by Salisbury, S&R, and 

ECVK. 

57. On July 23, 2012, Akhmetshin e-mailed Salisbury to tell him that "the indexing is done" and to ask Salisbury to send 

him "a list of terms/names for a scan" of the information. 

VJ. Salisbury, S&R, and ECVK Formally Retain Akhmetshin 

58. On July 26, 2012, Salisbury and Akhmetshin finalized an engagement letter covering Akhmetshin's "research" work. 

Upon information and belief, both Salisbury and Akhmetshin signed the engagement letter while in S&R's offices in 

New York. 

59. The engagement letter provided that "Salisbury & Ryan LLP, as attorney agent for its client and not in its individual 
capacity (the 'Client'), has engaged you to provide the services described below." 

60. Under the heading "Services," the engagement letter stated, "you will provide the Client with assistance in the Client's 
investigation of claims it may have against companies relating to a mining project being built by the Client in Russia 
which has encountered delays. You will assist in such endeavors by researching and providing information concerning 

the relevant parties and other requested information." 

61. Under the heading "Compensation," the engagement letter stated, "[w]e shall transfer to you on behalf of the Client 

an initial payment of $45,000 and you will bill as discussed as the work progresses. The Client will reimburse you for all 
pre-approved travel and related expenses incurred by you on the Client's behalf. Tbe Client shall be solely responsible 

for payment of your fees and expenses." 

62. Finally, the engagement letter stated that it "shall be governed by and construed in accordance with New York law." 

63. On the following day, July 27, 2012, Salisbury and S&R transferred $45,000 to Akhmetshin on behalf ofECVK, to 

compensate Akh.metshin for his work on the hacking and smear campaign. 

VIl. Akhmetshin Continues the Hacking and Smear Campaign at the Direction of ECVK, S&R, and Salisbury 
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64. After Akhmetshin was formally retained, he continued to intentionally access, use, and physically interfere with 

IMR's computers and computer servers to collect and copy confidential IMR files and other electronic information at 
the direction of ECVK. S&R, and Salisbury. 

65. On August 30, 2012, Akhmetshin informed Salisbury that "the work is finally completed." 

66. Upon information and belief, Akhmetshin then arranged to pick up the fruits of the hacking, which were saved 
to a storage device that Ak.hmetshin referred to as "the thing." For example, in an email dated September 1, 2012, 

Akhmetshin informed Salisbury that be "plan[ned] to get that thing in London tomorrow, can take it anywhere, pls 
advise where I should go." 

67. Upon information and belief, Ak.hmetshin then turned over the fruits of the hacking to Salisbury, S&R, and ECVK.. 

68. A few days later, Salisbury put Akhmetshin directly in touch with a EuroChem executive so that Akhmetshin and 
ECVK could coordinate on the smear campaign. In his e-mail to the EuroChem executive, Salisbury stated, "Rinat is 
advising on the international PR campaign we have been discussing .... He has thoughts as to how we should proceed 
and can help your PR and IR people." 

69. Upon information and belief, Akhmetshin thereafter worked with his collaborators to access, use, and physically 
interfere with IMR's computers and computer servers to collect and copy additional confidential IMR files and other 
electronic information requested by Salisbury, S&R, and ECVK, which Ak.hmetshin then delivered to Salisbury, S&R, 
andECVK. 

70. On November 19, 2012, Akhmetshin emailed Salisbury, informing him that be "just spoke with the guy- be said 
they pulled everything there was available. Need to go collect it some time after the holidays." A week later, Akhmetshin 
notified Salisbury that he would be heading to London to pick up a storage device with the fruits of the hacking, again 
referred to as " the thing," and could deliver the materials to Salisbury approximately two weeks later: "[I] plan to collect 
the thing in [L]ondon [W]ed[nesday] this week and [will] be traveling to msk after that .... can drop the thing with you 
afternoon [D]ec. 10." 

VIll. ECVK, S&R, and Salisbury Initiate the Dutch Action and Other Foreign Proceedings 

71. In late 2012, ECVK. filed two arbitration proceedings against Shaft Sinkers (the "Arbitration Proceedings"). In the 
Arbitration Proceedings, ECVK alleged, among other things, that Shaft Sinkers committed misconduct in connection 
with the Kotelnikovo Mining Project. 

72. In addition, S&R and Salisbury concluded that ECVK should assert claims against IMR in the Netherlands. Upon 
information and belief, S&R and Salisbury came to this conclusion based, at least in part, on the backed information 
that Akhmetshin provided. 

73. In March 2013, ECVK commenced the Dutch Action alleging, among other things, that IMR should be held liable 
for any judgment entered against Shaft Sinkers in the Arbitration Proceedings. 

74. In June 2013, ECVK. filed an application in the Dutch Action seeking a pre-judgment attachment of approximately 
€886,000,000- or USD $1.2 billion- ofIMR's assets pending a final judgment in the case (the "Freezing Application"). 
The Dutch court granted the application in July 2013. 
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IX. Akhmetshin Distributes IMR's Stolen, Confidential Material to Third Parties and 
Conducts a Smear Campaign against IMR at the Direction of Salisbury, S&R, and ECVK 

75. In late 2012 through May 2013, consistent with Akhmetsbin's strategic communication proposal, Akhmetsbin 
disseminated negative information about IMR and associated companies such as Shaft Sinkers and ENR C to his contacts 
in the media, and urged his contacts to publish negative articles. 

76. Throughout this period, Salisbury and S&R intentionally directed Akhmetshin's activities in order to further ECVK's 
strategy in the Dutch Action and Arbitration Proceedings and harm IMR's business reputation. 

77. Upon information and belief, Akhmetshin carried out the publicity work, at least in part, in coordination with 
employees and officers at EuroChem. 

78. At the direction of Salisbury, S&R, and ECVK, Akhmetshin also disseminated to certain of his media contacts the 
confidential, commercially sensitive information that was stolen from IMR. 

79. Ultimately, numerous publications that Akhmetshin reached out to ran negative press articles about IMR and other 
associated companies. 

80. In addition, negative press articles written and published by individuals and entities with whom Akhmetshin has ties 
also served as part of the basis for actions taken by ECVK against IMR in the Dutch Action. 

81. For example, ECVK's Freezing Application contains disparaging allegations about IMR, certain entities associated 
with IMR, and their ultimate beneficial shareholders - certain of which are based on negative press articles about IMR 
written by individuals and entities with whom Akhmetshin has ties. 

82. On July l, 2013, Salisbury and S&R transferred $ 100,000 to Akhmetshin on behalf of ECVK to compensate 
Akhmetshin for his work on the backing and smear campaign. 

X. Akhmetshin Continues to Distribute IMR's Stolen, Confidential Material to Third Parties 

83. In the following months, Akhmetshin continued to distribute IMR's stolen, confidential information. 

84. For example, on January 30, 2014, Akhmetshin met with a client at the Cafe Royal Coffee Shop on Regent Street 
in central London and gave him a copy of the stolen IMR materials. 

85. Specifically, at approximately 11 :25 a.m., Akhmetshin met his client at the coffee shop and handed him an external 
hard drive, explaining that the drive contained numerous folders of documents that included memoranda, emails, and 

financial information. 

86. Akhmetshin described his process for obtaining the documents, stating that he had a team that hacked materials 
from ! MR senior executives and from individuals in key administrative positions whose computers were likely to contain 
important internal documents. 

87. Akhmetshin said that his team had collected approximately 50 gigabytes worth of material. The businessman 
commented on the volume of material, and Akhmetshin responded, " there is a lot of the stuff, so - but that's why you 
are paying money. " 
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88. Akhmetshin stated that he had met with lawyers for Melnichenko. the owner of EuroChem, in New York. 

89. Akhmetshin identified one of these lawyers as Salisbury, and said that Salisbury was representing EuroCbem in the 

Arbitration Proceedings and D utch Action. 

90. Akhmetshin added that he was hired because there were certain things that the law firm could not do. Upon 
information and belief, Akhmetshin's reference to "certain things that the law firm could not do" was a reference to the 

unlawful backing of IMR's computer systems. 

XI. IMR Wins the Dutch Action 

91. On June 25, 2014, the court in the Dutch Action rejected ECVK's theories of liability, found that ECVK's factual 
assertions were unsubstantiated, and entered a judgment in favor of IMR. 

92. ECVK filed a formal notice of appeal on September 18, 2014, and that appeal is still pending. The Freezing 
Application is still in place pending appeal. 

XII. IMR Suffered Significant Harm as a Result of Defendants' Hacking and Dissemination of Confidential Information 

93. As a direct result of the backing ofIMR's computer systems, IMR has been forced to expend significant amounts of 
money to investigate and otherwise respond to Defendants' unlawful conduct. 

94. For example, IMR was forced to incur substantial expenses to replace certain servers, whose integrity and security 

were impaired due to the hacking that was organized by A.khmetshin. 

95. IMR incurred other substantial expenses in connection with its response to the hacking, including investigative and 

remedial costs. 

96. In addition, IMR has suffered significant harm in connection with the Dutch Action. 

97. Upon information and belief, but for the hacked information provided by Akhmetshin, ECVK would not have 

initiated the meritless Dutch litigation against IMR. 

98. The confidential information stolen from IMR's computer systems included documents that are relevant to the 

substance of the D utch Action. IMR has therefore suffered, and continues to suffer, harm arising from its litigation 
adversary's access to and, upon information and belief, review of information relevant to the foreign legal proceedings 
themselves. 

99. In addition, IMR has incurred substantial additional expenses defending against applications in the Dutch Action 

that are premised, in part, on negative articles published by media outlets and individuals to whom Akhmetshin has, 
upon information and belief, disseminated some or all of the hacked documents. As explained above, ECVK's Freezing 
Application contains numerous allegations based on negative press articles about IMR and certain associated entities, 

including ENRC, published by such entities and individuals. 

100. IMR has also suffered significant harm to its business reputation as a result of the negative articles appearing in 
the press that. upon information and belief, are based in whole or in part on information that Defendants hacked from 
its computer systems. 
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CLAIMS FOR RELIEF 

COUNT O NE 

(Trespass to Chattels) 

101. IMR realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every foregoing paragraph of this Complaint as if 
set forth in full. 

102. As described above, Defendants have intentionally, unlawfully, knowingly and willfully combined, conspired, 
confederated and agreed together and with others to maliciously harm IMR through the unauthorized hacking of IM R's 
computer systems and subsequent use of the hacked material to damage IMR's business reputation and cause it pecuniary 
and non-pecuniary harm. 

103. Defendants thus intentionally and maliciously interfered with IMR's lawful possession of its computer system and 
electronic information and inflicted substantial damage on IMR, including the cost of replacing a portion of the computer 
system, the cost of investigating and responding to the hacking, and the costs associated with the harm to IMR's business 
reputation that resulted from the hacking and dissemination of IMR's sensitive, confidential information. 

104. Defendants maliciously sought to inflict the maximum amount of harm possible through their intentional 
interference with IMR's lawful possession of its computer system and electronic information, and through the 
dissemination of IMR's confidential information to third parties. 

105. IMR is entitled to recover the damages it sustained as a result of Defendants' malevolent conduct in backing IMR's 
computer systems, stealing IMR's confidential information, and then disseminating that information to third parties. 

COUNT TWO 

(Civil Conspiracy) 

106. IMR realleges and incorporates herein by reference each and every foregoing paragraph of this Complaint as if 
set forth in full. 

107. As set forth above, Defendants have committed torts against IMR, including acts that constitute common Jaw 
trespass to chattels. 

I 08. Defendants agreed to participate in a common scheme against IMR. Defendants intentionally participated in the 
furtherance of a plan for the purpose of obtaining property from IMR and using that property to harm IMR. In 
furtherance of this plan or purpose, Defendants committed overt and unlawful acts alleged herein. 

109. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants' conspiracy, the overt acts committed in furtherance of that 
conspiracy, and the torts committed against IMR, IMR bas been damaged in its business and property. 

110. Defendants have engaged in the malicious, willful, and fraudulent commission of wrongful acts and, because of the 
reprehensible and outrageous nature of these acts, IMR is entitled to, and should be awarded, punitive damages against 
each of the Defendants. 
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111. IMR is further entitled to, and should be awarded, an injunction that enjoins Defendants, their assignees, and 
anyone else acting in concert with them from (i) engaging in any further unauthorized accessing of IMR's computer 
systems and (ii) using or distributing IMR's stolen confidential information in any way. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEFF 

WHEREFORE, IMR respectfully requests the following relief: 

A. An order requiring D efendants to relinquish all of the stolen materials in their possession, custody, or control and 
return the same to IMR and to immediately refrain from using them for any purpose; 

B. An order enjoining Defendants, their assignees, and anyone else acting in concert with them from (i) engaging in 
any further unauthorized accessing of IMR's computer systems, and (ii) using or distributing IMR's stolen confidential 
information in any way; and 

C. An award against Defendants for: 
a. Compensatory damages in an amount to be determined at trial for losses incurred by IMR; 

b. Punitive damages in an amount to be determined at trial for losses incurred by IMR; 

c. Consequential damages in an amount to be determined at trial for losses incurred by IMR; 

d. Interest; 

e. Reasonable attorneys' fees and costs of bringing this suit; and 

f. Such other relief as is just, fair and equitable. 

JURY DEMAND 

IMR demands a trial by jury on all issues so triable in this action. 

Dated: 11/12/2015 

New York, New York 

Respectfully submitted, 

<<signature>> 

JonathanD. Cogan (NY Bar No. 4167276) 

Steven W. Perlstein (NY Bar No. 2982478) 
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Rebecca G. Mangold (NY Bar No. 4741021) 

KOBRE & KIM LLP 

800 Third A venue 

New York, New York 10022 

Tel: 212.488.1200 

Fax: 212.488.1220 

John (Fritz) Scanlon (NY Bar No. 4538781) 

KOBRE & KIM LLP 

1919 M Street, NW 

Washington, DC 20036 

Tel: 202.664.1900 

Fax: 202.664.1920 

Counsel for Plaintiff International Mineral Resources B. V. 

Footnotes 
1 Melnichenko is most well-known for owning a lavish 394-foot, $300 million motor yacht named "A," which reportedly 

includes six guest suites featuring furniture made with crystal and crocodile skin, bomb-proof glass windows, three swimming 
pools (one of them glass-bottomed), three motor boats valued at $1 million each, and an escape pod. Melnichenko's recent 
work on building the world's largest sailing yacht, a 480-foot ship that reportedly cost approximately $450 million, has also 
attracted attention. His new sailing yacht is reported to have eight floors, three 300-foot masts, an underwater observation 
room, and a touch-and-go helicopter pad. 

End of Document r :!017 TI1omson Reute r>. No claim to original U.S. Government Worb. 
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Lobbyist at Trump Campaign Meeting Has a Web of Russian 
Connections 
By SHARON LaFRANIERE, DA YID D. KlRKPATRICK and KENNETH P. VOGEL AUG. 21, 2017 

WASHINGTON -Rinat Akhmetshin, a Russian immigrant who met last summer with senior Trump campaign officials, bas often struck colleagues as 

a classic Washington mercenary - loyal to his wife, his daughter and his bank account. He a,·oided work that would antagonize Moscow, the~· 

suggested, only because he profited from his reputation as a man with valuable connections there. 

But interviews with his associates and documents reviewed by The New York Times indicate that Mr. Akhmetsbin, who is under scrutiny by the 

special counsel Robert S. Mueller Lii, has much deeper ties to the Russian government and Kremlin-backed oligarchs than previously known. 

He has an association with a former deputy head of a Russian spy service, the F.S.B., and a history of working for close allies of President 

Vladimir V. Putin. Twice, he bas worked on legal battles for Russian tycoons whose opponents suffered sophisticated hacking attacks, arousing 

a.llegations of compute r espionage. He helped federal prosecutors bring corruption charges against an American businessman in the former Soviet 

Union who turned out to be working for the C.I.A. 

He also helped expose possible corruption in government contracting that complicated American efforts to keep troops at an air base in 

Kyrgyzstan - an American presence that the Russian.s fiercely opposed. 

In short, Mr. Akhmetsbin's projects over two decades in Washington routinely advanced the Kremlin's interests, especially after he became an 

American citizen in 2009. American counterintelligence agents took notice of his activities, but drew no conclusions about where his allegiances lay, 

according to a former law enforcement official who spoke on condition of anonymity, citing government secrecy rules. 

Mr. Akhmetshin's meeting with Trump campaign officials is of keen interest to Mr. Mueller, who is investigating the Kremlin's efforts to interfere in 

the 2016 election. Of all the visitors who attended the June 2016 session at the Trump Tower, he appears to have the most direct ties to Russian 

intelligence. The session was arranged by a Russian businessman close to Mr. Putin whose emissary promised damaging information about Hillary 

Clinton as "part of Russia and its govemment's support for Mr. Trump." 

Mr. Akhmetshin, who did not respond to repeated requests to be interviewed for this article, has said be was a last-minute guest at an 

inconsequential get-together. Trump campaign officials have dismissed the meeting as part of an effort to amend an American law that placed 

sauctions on Russians for human rights abuses. The 2012 Jaw, known as the Magnitsky Act, infuriated Mr. Putin, whose government retaliated by 

restricting adoptions of Russian children by Americans. 

Ronald J. McNamara, a former staff member of the United States Commission on Security and Cooperation in Europe who met with Mr. 

Akhmetshin about Central Asian issues, said Mr. Akhmetshin openly alluded to involvement with Russian intelligence. "My understanding was that he 

had come from the security agencies in the So,iet Union-Russian Federation," Mr. McNamara said. "He did not make it a secret." 

!\fr. Akhmetshin, 49, said he is no Russian spy. '"1 am the target of a well-coordinated and financed smear campaign," he said last month in a text 

message to The Times. 

Keenly intelligent, relentlessly charming and assiduously opaque about his work, Mr. Akhmetshin sometimes referred to his contacts by 

pseudonyms and collected his salary in stacks of hundred-dollar bills. A trained biochemist who speaks four languages, be described himself on one 

official document as a "househusband." He identified himself as the head of a Washington think tank for years after it was officially dissolved. 

"I think he works for us. I don't think he works for them," said Lanny Wiles, a veteran Republican political operative who has worked with Mr. 

Akhmetshin for more than 15 years. "But I don't know what he really does." 

Rise of an Influence Peddler 



Born in Kazan, Russia, about 500 miles east of Moscow, Rinat Rafkatovitch Akhmetshin was drafted at age 18 into the Soviet army's war against 

Afghanistan. He served from 1986 to )988 and again in 1991. He described himself on his visa application for the United States as a sergeant who rose 

to the rank oflieutenant in the military police, specializing in communications. He told some journalists that be worked with a military 

counterintelligence unit, but said he never joined Russian intelligence services - unlike his father, sister and godfather. 

In i992 he graduated with honors from Kazan Federal University, and two years later arrived in Washington as a graduate student in chemistry at 

the Catholic University of America. He married a fellow Russian chemistry student and received his Ph.D. But he immediately abandoned his esoteric 

study of mechanistic enzymes and burrowed into Washington's foreign lobbying scene, promoting clients from Russia and former Soviet states. 

He never formally studied English, he said, or owned a car: He pedaled about Washington on a bright orange bicycle. But he was "~tty and 

erudite, a lover of literature, opera and snowboarding. Matthew Bryza, a former staff member in charge of Central Asia issues at the National Security 

Council under President George W. Bush, remembers Mr. Akhmetshin as "very smart. slick guy" serving as "the paid drone of unsavory, out-of­

fashion former Soviet leaders looking to launder their reputations." 

"He would boast about ties and experience in Soviet intelligence and counterintelligence to give himself some cachet and make himself a mystery 

man," he said. 

Mr. Akhmetshin's gateway to Washington was Edward Lieberman, a lawyer with corporat.e and political clients in former Soviet countries who 

was married to President Bill Clinton's former deputy chief of staff, Evelyn S. Lieberman, who died in 2015. He called Mr. Lieberman, who could not 

be reached for comment, a personal adviser. 

Together the two started the Eurasian Institute for Economic and Political Research. Supposedly set up to promote democratic reforms in former 

Soviet states, it was essentially a vehicle to burnish the reputation of one client , Akezhan Kazhegeldin, an ex-K.G.B. officer and the former prime 

minister of Kazakhstan. Mr. Kazhegeldin had fled under a cloud of corruption charges and was seeking Washington's support to challenge his rival , 

Kazakhstan's president, Nursultan Nazarbayev. 

Mr. Akhmetshin worked to undercut his client's rival by funneling information to American prosecutors pursuing bribery charges against James 

Giffen, an American businessman close to the Kazakh president, according to people involved with the case. The prosecutors discovered only belatedly 

that Mr. Giffen had worked for the C.l.A. in the former Soviet Union. 

By 2005 the government of another former Soviet republic, Kyrgyzstan, had hired Mr. Akhmetshin to investigate whether Washington had bribed 

the family of the country's former president to keep an American air base there. The Manas base, established as a staging ground for American forces 

in Afghanistan, was a major source of friction with the Russians. 

The Kyrgyz ambassador to Washington at the time, Zamira Sydykova, said Mr. Akhmets.hin arranged an interview with a Times reporter and 

escorted her to it. The resulting article helped set off a Washington controversy and ultimately, a congressional investigation. Kyrgy7.slan finally forced 

the United States to abandon the base in 2014. 

In an affidavit that year, Mr. Akhmetshin said he worked closely with the American government about the location of the base. But Thomas 

Graham, the Nationa.1 Security Council's Russia special ist from 2002 to 2007, said the controversy put Washington on the defensive. "Looking into 

allegations of fraud or bribery - anything that would complicate our presence at that air base - was in Russia's interests," he said. 

Mr. Akhmetshin's work took him back and forth to Europe more than once a montb, on trips lasting a few days each. Senator Charles E. Grassley, 

the Jowa Republican who is now chairman oftbe Senate Judiciary Committee, has sought to determine whether his travel pattern raised concerns 

among immigration officials who approved Mr. Akhmetshin's application for American citizenship in 2009. 

Once naturalized, Mr. Akhmetshin began traveling regularly to Moscow and taking on more overtly pro-Russian projects. The new work led him 

into legal entanglements, the halls of Congress and eventually Trump Tower. 

The Hacking Campaigns 

Few episodes from Mr. Akhmetshin's past seem more relevant to Mr. Mueller's investigation than his work for two Russian billionaires accused of 

infiltrating their adversaries' computers during nasty legal battles. 

The Trump Tower meeting in June 2016 took place less than a week before revelations that hackers had penetrated the Democratic National 

Committee's computers and obtained a trove of emails. Investigators have traced digital espionage to Russian spy agencies. There is no public 

evidence that Mr. Akhmetshin played any role in the D.N.C. hack. 

The first hacking case, which has not previously been reported, began when Mr. Akhmetshin served an alliance of businessmen led by Suleiman 

Kerimov - a financier close to Mr. Putin in a commercial and political dispute with a Russian competitor, Ashot Egiazaryan. 



In early 2011, two London lawyers on Mr. Egiazaryan's team separately received suspicious emails and hired forensic experts to scrutinize them, 

according to people involved in a Scotland Yard investigation. The experts found that the messages concealed spyware meant to infiltrate their 

computers, and they fed traceable documents into the spyware that were then opened by computers registered at the Moscow office park of one of Mr. 

Kerimov's companies. 

After an inquiry of more than 18 months, Scotland Yard investigators concluded in January 2013 that they lacked sufficient evidence to bring any 

charges, a spokesman said. Representati1•es of the lawyers targeted declined to comment. 

Mr. Akhmetshin has said in court papers that he was paid only by one businessman ln the alliance with Mr. Ketimov, but coordinated with Mr. 

Kerimov's team. 

1\vo years later, hacking accusations arose in anot11er case, this time lodged directly against Mr. Akhmetshin. He worked as a consultant to a la"' 

firm representing EuroChem, a fe11ilizer and mining company controlled by another Russian billionaire close to Mr. Putin - Andrey Melnichenko. 

Mr. Akhmetshin's target was a rival mining company, Internationa.1 l'v1ineral Resources. 

Within months, documents stored in International Minera l Resources's computer systems began surfacing outside the company, leaked to 

journalists and others. The company concluded that its computers bad been hacked, and replaced its servers. in lawsuits filed in federal court in 

Washington and state cou11 in New York, the company accused EuroChem and Mr. Akhmetshln of computer espionage. 

EuroChem 's information technology chief, Vladimir Chibisov, previously worked in the Russian government. He had written a book promoted as 

"'a backer's Bible," which he described as a book ''about us - about Russian programmers, men of the 'Sos and '90s" who "had done programming, 

and even a bit of hacking.'' 

~Ir. Akhmetshin personally handed a thumb drive containing stolen documents to a lawyer engaged in another matter potentially damaging to 

the rival company, according to a person familiar with the matter. The same thumb drive was later obtained by investigators, and someone using the 

initials "R.A." had gained access to its contents, according to court papers. 

A spokesman for Mr. Melnicheoko said in a statement that he has never condoned hacking or other illegal activity, nor had he ever met or known 

Mr. Akhmetshin. The spokesman said Mr. Chibisov's book was "tongue in cheek" and "cannot possibly be taken seriously." 

An investigator for the targeted company also testified that he had followed Mr. Akhmetshin in January 2014 to a meeting at London's Cafe Royal 

and watched him hand over an external hard drive to another individual. He said he had overheard Mr. Akhmetshin claim that he had paid a team of 

Russian hackers "a lot of money" for the records. 

Mr. Akhmetshin acknowledged in a deposition that he had turned over a hard drive with information about the firm's owners. But he said he had 

obtained the data from a Kazakh contact through a loose network he called the "London Information Biw.aar." Asked about computer hacking, he 

replied, "l do not know a single person who could do that." 

International Mineral Resources dropped the lawsuits without explanation in early 2016, withdrawing all allegations before they could be 

adjudicated. The company said in a statement Friday that it dropped the charges "after careful consideration." 

A Key Kremlin Contact 

During the same period that Mr. Akhmetshin was accused of being involved in various hacking schemes, he appears to ha,·e been nurturing a 

relationship with Viktor Ivanov, once the deputy head of Russia's intelligence sen-ice, the F.S.B., and until last year a top aide to Mr. Putin. 

From 2009 to 2014, Mr. Ivanov led the Russian side of a joint effort with the Americans to combat drug trafficking in Afghanistan, part of an 

early Obama administration initiative to improve relations between Moscow and Washington. 

When Mr. Ivanov traveled to Washington to promote the effort in October 2010, Mr. Akhmetshin helped shepherd him around town. in a 

deposition filed in one of the hacking cases, Mr. Ahkn1etshin testified that he helped facilitate the Washington visit "~th one of Mr. Ivanov's aides, 

with whom he had served in the Red Army. 

In an affidavit in that same case, Mr. Akhmetshin said he had been in email contact "~th Mr. Ivanov on matters ranging "from narco-trafficking 

and terrorism in Afghanistan to surveillance of undercover agents, suspected undercover agents and their identities." 

Reporters who encountered Mr. Akhmetshin during his travels to Afghanistan said he grew a beard and wore a skullcap to blend in wiili the local 

population. He never identified whom he worked for, but two former American officials involved with the counternarcotics program said the 

American side did not hire him. 

Mr. Ivanov, who retired early last year, could not be reached for comment about whether Mr. Akhmetshin was on the Russian government's 

payroll. 



Russia ended the counternarcotics cooperation in 2014 after the United States imposed sanctions on Mr. Ivanov and other Putin allies in 

retaliation for Russia's invasion and seizure of Ukraine's Crimea region. 

There, too, Mr. Akhmetshin had tried to ally with Ukraine's pro-Moscow elements. Before the 2014 invasion, he told reporters, he unsuccessfully 

sought consulting work with the political party dominated by the nation's pro-Putin president, Viktor F. Yanukovych. A popular revolt forced Mr. 

Yanukovych to flee to Russia. 

Mr. Akhmetshin told journalists that he was a longtime acquaintance of Paul J. Manafort, who served as a high-paid consultant to .Mr. 

Yanukovych for years before becoming chairman of the Trump campaign. Jason Maloni, a spokesman for Mr. Manafort, said, "Paul doesn't know and 

hasn't worked with the man." 

Last year, Mr. Akhmetshin took on a new project high on the Kremlin's agenda: a $240,000 lobbying campaign to amend the MagnitsJ..1• Act, 

which imposes sanctions on Russians for human rights abuses. The law was named after Sergei L. Magnitsky, a Russian tax lawyer who died in 

custody after he uncovered a $230 million ta,x fraud allegedly tied to Russian officials. Several wealthy Russian businessmen financed a nonprofit 

group to spearhead the campaign, which was represented by Mr. Akhmetsbin and a Russian lawyer named Natalia Veselnitskaya. 

Donald J. Trump Jr. has said the promise of damaging information about Hillary Clinton was just an excuse for Ms. Veselnitskaya to get into 

Trump Tower to talk about why the law should be changed. Mr. Akhrnetshin, a Washington resident, bas told repo1ters that he just happened to be 

lunching with Ms. Veselnitskaya in Manhattan that day when she spontaneously invited him to the meeting with the president's son, son-in-law Jared 

Kushner and Mr. Manafort. He did not explain why she wanted him there. 

After Mr. Akhmetshin's presence came to light, a spokesman for Mr. Putin, Dmitry Peskov, told reporters: "We don't know anything about this 

person." 

Correction: August 23, 2017 

An article on Monday about a Russian immigrant who met last summer with senior Trump campaign officials referred incorrectly to the location of Kazan, 
Russia. It is 500 miles east of Moscow, not west. 
Sharon LaFraniere and Kenneth P. Vogel reported from Washington, and David D. Kirkpatrick from London. Andrew E. Kramer and Sophia Kishko\'sky 
contributed reporting from Moscow, and Michael S. Schmidt and Eileen Sullivan from Washington. Susan Beachy contributed research. 

A version of lhls ertlcle appears 1n print on August 21 , 2017 on Page A1 of lhe New York edition with the headline· Guest at Trump Tower Meeting Has Aided Close AJhes of Putin. 

0 2017 The New York llmes Company 



EXHIBIT 
From: rinat akhmetshin •••••••••• 

Friday, March 4, 201110:30 AM 111 Sent : 
To: peter zalmayev ••••••••• 
Subject: Fwd: Op-Ed submission on the role of Russia in Afghanistan 

- ------- -- Forwarded message ----------
From: David Mastio ............ . 
Date: Tue, Oct 19, 2010 at 12:22 PM 
Subject: Re: Op-Ed submission on the role of Russia in Afghanistan 
To: rinat akhmetshin •••••••••• 

wil l use later this week 

David Mastic 
Deputy Editorial Page Editor 

The Washington Times 
3600 New York Ave. NE 

On Oct 18, 2010, at 5:02 PM, rlnat akhmetshln wrote: 

Dear Mr. Mastic, 
I would like to submit an op-ed by Mr. Victor Ivanov about the role of Russia in counter-narcotic efforts in Afghanistan. 
Mr. Ivanov is a member of the Russians Security Council and Director of the Federal Ant>-Narcotics Committee of the 
Russian Federation . Mr. Ivanov will be visiting Washington this week to c<>chair, with the U.S. Office of National Drug 
Control Policy Director Gil Kerlikowske, a session of Us-Russia Counter-narcotics Working Group where he will be 
raising these points with the Obama Administration. I did translate Mr. lvanov's original op-ed from Russian and am 
authorized to submit it on his behalf. I am a veteran of Russia's Afghanistan campaign and served with one of Mr. 
lvanov's deputies there. I do strongly believe that it raises completely new and valid points about the future of 
Afghanistan and sugges!s new solutions allowing US troops to leave that place while having it stable and independent 
Plus it talks about US-Russia cooperation in something important for both countries - Russia is suffering greatly because 
of this huge increase in drug production. I hope you will find this op-ed relevant and interesting for your readers. We are 
open to the editing process and would appreciate if you will consider it for publication. 
Sincerely, 
Rinat Akhmetshin 

tel····· 
~ .. -........................ . 
Opium Fields of Afghanistan are a Main Source of Terrorism 
Stabilization and peace in Afghanistan can only be achieved through 
efforts that include a decisive fight against the production and 
trafficking of Afghan heroin. 
Drug money is seriously undermining international efforts to restore 
order in Afghanistan and fueling terrorism elsewhere. Drug money pays 
for IEDs and weapons that kill US and NATO troops and wreaks terror 
on the civilian population. 
At the same time, the spread of heroin outside of Afghan borders brings 
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even more damage worldwide. Afghanistan produces 90% of the world's 
heroin. In Russia alone, Afghan heroin kills around 30,000 young people 
each ye~r. Among NATO countries, the civilian death from a heroin 
overdose is fifty t imes the number of mi litary casualties in the alliance 
operation in Afghanistan. Afghan heroin eventually ends up in the US­
ruining lives, devastating American families. 
The Afghan drug economy yields over 65 billion US dollars annually. 
Opium fields must be destroyed and the drug supply chain broken to 
cut financial support for Al Qaida and the Taliban. 
Early on in its Afghan campaign, the US and NATO made a decision not 
to use aerial spraying to eradicate opium plantations. This was based on 
the assumption that it would alienate the local population. We cannot 
consider the argument -- that the poppy fields are a vital economic 
alternative for Afghan farmers, who would otherwise remain without 
means of livelihood and would fall easy prey to extremists-- to be 
convincing, moral or even accurate. 
Recent reports by the UN Office on Drugs and Crime indicates the vast 
majority of Afghan farmers grow something other than poppies. Only 
6.4%t of the total population of Afghanistan or 12. 9°/o of its rural 
population is involved in poppy cultivation. However, although opium 
production in Afghanistan dropped in 2009, farmers extracted more 
opium per bulb. Poppy farmers in Afghanistan obtain yields that are 5 
times more per hectare than those in the countries of South-East Asia. 
It is clear that many landowners and drug lords would not willingly 
choose to forfeit huge sources of income from heroin nor willingly end 
their connections with the Trans border criminal networks that maintain 
the drug trade . Nor will terrorist groups give up the narcotics trade, 
which provides a steady flow of income and of new recruits for terrorist 
and extremist networks. 
Russia, which is very well aware of the menace posed by Afghan drug 
trafficking has long called on the international community to take more 
rigorous measures against opium. We cannot sit idly by while it takes 
place within the borders of Afghanistan to the detriment of that country 
and the world. 
Russia is taking an active part in helping stabilize the situation in 
Afghanistan. We facilitate transit of supplies for US and NATO troops in 
Afghanistan and exchange intelligence and information. Russia is 
actively fighting against the flows of Afghan heroin across our borders 
with neighboring countries, especially Kazakhstan and Tajikistan, and 
within Russia. · 

. Recognizing the need to make a fresh start in relations between the 
U.S. and Russia, President Medvedev and President Obama created the 
U.5.-Russia Presidential Commission to address shared challenges and 
to explore new opportunities for partnership. The Counternarcotics 
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Working Group that I co-chair with the U.S. Office of National Drug 
Control Policy Director Gil Kerlikowske, has already achieved several 
important results. This summer we provided our US counterparts with 
intelligence on the whereabouts of Afghan drug lords and on the 
locations of 175 heroin labs inside Afghanistan. But we still need to 
address the core of the problem - opium plantations. Aerial spray 
eradication in Columbia is being used to destroy about 75% of the coca 
plantations in that country, an impressive success significantly 
decreasing the production of the drug. A similar approach must be 
applied in Afghanistan. 
Eradication would not solve all of the complex problems in the Afghan 
heroin trade, but it will be a major game changing move. The drug 
threat is global; no nation can deal with the issue of drug production 
alone. The time has come to agree upon a tough, common struggle 
against the scourge of the heroin trade in Afghanistan, to elevate the 
problem to an international level, and to grant the UN Security Council a 
mandate to deal with it. 
In addition to commencement of eradication, we suggest not less than 
25 percent of the crop; we should consider conducting a registration of 
land ownership in South and South-Western Afghanistan, and then 
turning over to the UN for sanctions a list of those landlords offering 
their land for poppy cultivation. 
The mandate of ISAF should be expanded to include the duty to destroy 
opium fields. Finally, we must continue to improve the level of 
operational confidence between Russia and the US through continued 
exchange of intelligence information, including the location of drug labs 
and information on shipments of heroin precursors. 
Russia is extremely interested in and supportive of the efforts of the 
international community to comprehensively deal with the Afghan 
heroin problem and we are determined to responsibly carry out our part 
of the job to help to bring peace, health and safety to its people and 
the entire global community. 
Victor Ivanov, 
Director, Federal Anti-Narcotics Committee of the Russian Federation 

- - - ------- .. - ·-----···- -
The Information contained in this electronic transmission Is intended for the exclusive use of the 
individuals to whom It is addressed and may contain information that is privileged and 
confidential, the disclosure of which Is prohibited by law. If the reader of this transmission 
is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying 
of this communication is strictly prohibited . In addition, any unauthorized copying, disclosure or 
distribution of the material in this e-mail and any attachments is strictly forbidden. 

PZ002092 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA 

EXHIBIT 

l u 

APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL MINERAL 
RESOURCES, B.V. FOR AN ORDER TO TAKE 
DISCOVERY PURSUANT TO 28 U.S.C. § 1782 

Jan Luijkenstraat 68 
Amsterdam, 1071 CS 
Netherlands, 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

1: 14-MC-00340 
JUDGE KESSLER 
Assigned: April 3, 2014 
Miscellaneous 

Applicant. 

AFFIDAVIT OF RINAT AKHMETSHIN 

CITY OF WASHINGTON ) 
) ss: 

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA ) 

RINAT AKHMETSHIN, being first duly sworn, deposes and states: 

1. My name is Rinat Akhmetshin and I am the individual that Applicant 

International Mineral Resources ("IMR,,) seeks to take discovery from under the pretext of this 

28 U.S.C. § 1782 proceeding. I make this Affidavit to oppose IMR's application. 

2. My only involvement with the litigation and arbitrations enumerated in the 

"Ex Parte Application For An Order Under 28 U.S.C. § 1782 . .. "dated April 3, 2014 

("Application") was as a retained consulting expert for the law firm Salisbury & Ryan LLP 

counsel for the litigant EuroChem Volga-Kaliy ("ECVK") in its Dutch litigation against IMR. 

Salisbury & Ryan is also counsel to ECVK in the Paris arbitration and Zurich arbitration against 

IMR's subsidiary Shaft Sinkers (Pty) Ltd, a South African company. My services were utilized 

with respect to all three proceedings. (A copy of my Salisbury & Ryan engagement letter is 

attached as Exhibit A). 
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3. I was hired specifically to assist Salisbury & Ryan as a consulting e>..-pert 

in connection with litigation brought by its client ECVK against IMR and Shaft Sinkers. 

Specifically, I was engaged to research and consult with respect to the unique legal, social, 

economic, and political issues that arise in Eurasia relevant to this litigation. That was important 

in these proceedings because two of the principals ofIMR are nationals of Uzbekistan and one is 

a national of Kyrgyzstan. These three principals (the "Trio'') made much of their money from 

aluminum extraction in Kazakhstan, a country with which I have considerable familiarity and 

expertise. 

4. 1 am also Director and head of the Washington office of the International 

Eurasian Institute for Economic and Political Research ("!EI"). I founded IEI '1Vith others in 

1998 to try to help expand democracy and the rule of Jaw in Eurasia. One of the ways that IEI 

attempts to do so is through an educational program aimed at Western elites to inform them 

about political and economic conditions in Central Asia and Russia. It is a part of the world 

about which even the most educated Western citizens know very little. IEI also seeks to bring 

about democratization in Eurasia with a three-part program that focuses on fostering the 

development of an independent judiciary, safeguarding the rights of the individual, and 

promoting free and fair trade as a means of combating institutionalized conuption in Eurasia. 

There is a lot of work to do. 

5. I also provide consulting services beyond IEI. My clients range from 

private citizens to corporate entities to sovereign governments. For example, I was retained by a 

national government controlling te1ritory that formerly comprised part of the Soviet Union to 

assist with American military base relocations. We worked quite closely with the Defense 

Department, the State Department, and the Department of Justice to locate strategically 

2 
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significant base locations. Other matters that my private consulting practice has worked on 

include issues relating to narco-trafficking, drug eradication, and terrorism in Afghanistan and 

surveillance of undercover agents and suspected undercover agents. I have been told that our 

efforts have helped save American lives, particularly in theatres such as Afghanistan, and 

reduced the flow of narcotics originating in Afghanistan worldwide. As a consulting expert, I 

have been retained by law finns involved with Russian and Central Asian disputes before, 

including as a consulting expert in Egiazaryan v. Zalmaye1\ a dispute venued in the Southern 

District of New York. In that matter, my client was seeking to prohibit political asylum in the 

United States for oligarch Ashot Egiazaryan, a former Duma member, and fund raiser for the 

Liberal Democratic Party, or LDPR, an anti-American, anti-Semitic Stalinist rump party. Mr. 

Egiazaryan was indicted, stripped of his legislative immunity, and fled to the United States. 

6. It was in this capacity as a private consultant that I was retained by 

Salisbury & Ryan with respect to ECVK's issues with IMR and Shaft Sinkers. All of my 

involvement and activities were done at the request of attorneys at Salisbury & Ryan, led by 

Patrick Salisbury. In my role, I assisted the firm in doing due diligence research on IMR, Shaft 

Sinkers, and the Trio, and consulted with respect to legal, social, economic, and political realities 

in that part of the world. In the course of my engagement, I also developed and proposed to 

ECVK a strategic communications strategy relevant to the Dutch action. That proposal was 

rejected, and my engagement with Salisbury & Ryan terminated soon thereafter. 

7. I am not sure what IMR means on page five of their Application when 

they alleged I was hired to give ECVK "an unfair advantage in the arbitrations and litigation." I 

was hired by Salisbury & Ryan. I assumed they hired me because they thought it would be 

helpful. I have not yet been hired to provide a client a disadvantage. Nor do I understand what 

3 
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is unfair about hiring a consulting expert. That is one of the ways I make my living. Even Mr. 

Chodiev's Declaration admits that Salisbury & Ryan retained my services "to assist EuroChem 

against IMR in the Dutch action." (Chodiev Dec. at~ 11). 

8. I am not a computer specialist and I am not capable of "hacking." 

9. My own computer was stolen in the Berlin airport last year. A police 

report was filed. A copy of the Berlin police report regarding the theft of my computer is 

attached as Exhibit B. 

10. The vast majority of the research that I did for Salisbury & Ryan was open 

source research, that is, fact-finding that was available in the public domain. For example, there 

is a NGO entity based in London known as Global Witness (found at www.ulobalwitness.org) 

that is financed in part by philanthropist George Soros. Global Witness publishes articles and 

acts as an information clearinghouse for good corporate governance and individual rights. They 

have made available substantial amounts of information about IMR and its public twin ENRC. 

There were also vast amounts of information available in the press. When the British Serious 

Fraud Office opened its criminal investigation ofENRC in April of 2013, it made headlines in 

serious newspapers such as the Guardian. ("ENRC: Serious Fraud Office launches criminal 

investigation," The Guardian, April 25, 2013, copy attached as Ex. C). There were volumes of 

information published on IMR, ENRC, the Trio, bribery, scandal, and kickbacks in Kazakhstan 

and Africa. This made my job relatively easy -- just reading the morning newspapers from 

around the world could bring me new infom1ation and insights on my research topics. 

11. As noted elsewhere, ENRC was the publicly listed company of the Trio on 

the London Stock Exchange that became so bogged in scandal that it was delisted last year. 

There was even more infom1ation publicly available once the ENRC scandal became a cause 

4 
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celebre in the London press. Indeed, the very nature of the Trio's "economic model' -­

extraction of natural resources from the earth -- makes it a paradigm for bribery and private 

collusion with dictators, autocrats, and other regional strongmen that control that particular patch 

of earth. 

12. During the investigations into ENRC jn the spring of2013, in an apparent 

effort to defend itself against the charges of corruption in Kazakhstan and Africa, El\TRC issued a 

press release warning of certain electronic security issues. According to the London Telegraph, 

"a laptop containing staff details including bank account numbers, has mysteriously vanished in 

a 'domestic burglary,' while ENRC has also suffered "m intrusion into the group's electronic 

systems by a third party."' The obvious in, Iv':~· :-:f 'fh'~_. ~.11mouncement was not lost on British 

authorities or the press: .. It was enough to trigger all maimer of conspiracy theories, not least 

that the computer hacking could be used as a convenient excuse if material now went missing 

relating to alleged corruption in Kazakhstan and Africa." ("Burglary And Computer Hacking 

Add To Woes At ENRC," The Telegraph, May 23, 2013, copy attached as Ex. D). 

13. Not only were private watchdogs such as Global ·witness and the London 

press publishing vast amounts of information about IMR and ENRC, but also once the publicly­

held ENRC ship started sinking in 2012 and 2013, various directors, officers, employees, former 

employees, and disgruntled ENRC associates began leaking company information. The vast 

amount of material about ENRC that was leaked even became the butt of jokes in the press. 

According to the London Telegraph one ENRC insider was quoted as saying "ENRC leaks so 

badly why would anyone even bother to hack it" (See Exhibit D). 

14. I have been in several London coffee shops in my life. It is entirely 

possible that I was overheard talking to a colleague or client in such a location. It is not possible 

5 
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that I was overheard saying that I was turning over documents that I had hacked from an IMR or 

ENRC computer, because I have never done so, nor do I have the skills to do so. I have not 

worked on the Salisbury & Ryan matter for almost a year. Contrary to the Application at pages 7 

and 8, I certainly had no conversation discussing Salisbury & Ryan matters in January of2014. 

I might have mentioned to this relatively new client, an Israeli businessman, that I had done 

work for that firm in the past in describing to him the nature of my clientele. To the best of my 

recollection, all of my most recent meals in a London coffee shop were incidental to work I did 

for this new client, and had nothing at all to do with Salisbury & Ryan, the Dutch litigation, or 

the Paris or Zurich arbitrations. 

15. All of the due diligence and related information that I presented to 

Salisbury & Ryan was publicly available or made available to me through my personal contacts 

in Central Asia and Russia. My services with Salisbury & Ryan were terminated on or about 

May 31, 2013. I am unfamiliar with events or proceedings in any of the European proceedings 

since that date. I have not had any substantive communications with Salisbury 

summer or early fall of 2013. 

Sworn to before me this 
/~ay of May, 2014 



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 

Press Center 

Treasury Sanctions Russian Officials, Members Of The Russian Leadership's Inner Circle, And An Entity For Involvement In The 
Situation In Ukraine 

3/20/2014 

Sanctions Target Russian Government Officials, the Inner Circle that Supports Them, 
and Bank Rossiya, the Personal Bank for Officials of the Russian Federation 

WASHINGTON - The U.S. Department of the Treasury's Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC) today designated sixteen Russian government 
officials, members of the Russian leadership's inner circle. including a Russian bank pursuant to Executive Order (E.0.) 13661, which was signed 
by President Obama on March 16, 2014. E.O. 13661 authorizes sanctions on, among others, officials of the Russian Government and any 
individual or entity that ls owned or controlled by, that has acted for or on behalf of, or that has provided material or other support to, a senior 
Russian government official. 

The sixteen Individuals being sanctioned as Russian government officials are: Viktor Ozerov, Vladimir Dzhabarov, Evgeni Bushmin, Nikolai 
Ryzhkov, Sergei Zheleznyak, Sergei Mironov, Aleksandr Totoonov, Oleg Panteleev, Sergey Naryshkin. Victor Ivanov, Igor Sergun, Sergei Ivanov, 
Alexei Gromov, Andrei Fursenko, Vladimir Yakunin, and Vladimir Kozhin 

Those being designated for acting for or on behalf of or materially assisting. sponsoring, or providing financial, material, or technological support 
for, or goods or services to or in support of, a senior official of the Government of the Russian Federation are: Gennady Timchenko, Arkady 
Rotenberg, Boris Rotenberg, Yuri Kovalchuk and Bank Rossiya. In addition to being designated for providing material support to Russian 
government officials, Bank Rossiya Is also being designated for being controlled by designated inner circle member Kovalchuk. 

"With its currency near an all-time low, its stock market down twenty percent this year and a marked rise In interest rates, Russia has already 
started to bear the economic costs of its unlawful effort to undenmine Ukraine's security, stability, and sovereignty," said Under Secretary for 
Terrorism and Financial Intelligence David S. Cohen. "As President Obama has made clear, we will continue to impose costs in direct response to 
Russia's provocative acts, even as we have made clear there is a path to de-escalate the situation in Ukraine that respects Ukraine's sovereignly 
and territorial integrity and takes account of Russia's legitimate interests." 

Russian Government Officials and Members of the Inner Circle: 

Government Officials 

The following sixteen individuals are being designated because they are officials of the Russian government. Although not the basis for the 
designation, several are also very close advisors to senior Russi~n government officials. 

Viktor Ozerov is the Chairman of the Security and Defense Committee of the Federation Council of the Russian Federation. On March 1, 2014, 
Ozerov supported Russian President Vladimir Putin's appeal regarding the use of the Russian Armed Forces in Ukraine. 

Vladimir Dzhabarov is the First Deputy Chairman of the International Affairs Committee of the Federation Council of the Russian Federation. On 
March 1, 2014, Dzhabarov supported the Putin's appeal regarding the use of the Russian Armed Forces in Ukraine. 

Evgeni Bushmin is the Deputy Speaker of the Federation Council of the Russian Federation. On March 1, 2014, Bushmin publicly supported the 
deployment of Russian forces in Ukraine. 

Nikolai Ryzhkov Is a Senator in the Russian Upper House of Parliament (Federation Council). Ryzhkov publicly supported the deployment of 
Russian forces in Ukraine. 

Sergei Zheleznyak is the Deputy Speaker of the State Duma or the Russian Federation. 

Sergei Mironov Is a Member of the Council of the State Duma, a Member of the S1ale Duma Committee on Housing Policy and Housing and 
Communal Services, and Leader of the Fair Russia Factio~ in the Duma of the Russian Federation. 

Aleksandr Totoonov is a Member of the Committee on Culture, Science, and Information, Federation Council of the Russian Federation. On 
March 1, 2014, Totoonov publicly supported the deployment of Russian forces in Ukraine. 

Oleg Panteleev is the First Deputy Chairman of the Committee on Parliamentary Issues. On March 1, 2014, Panteleev publicly supported the 
deployment of Russian forces In Ukraine. 

Sergey Naryshkln has been the Chairman of the Government Duma of the Federal Gathering of the Russian Federation since December, 2011. 
Additionally, he is a member of the National Security Council of the Russian Federation and of the United Russia party. 

Victor Ivanov has been director of the Federal Drug Control Service (FSKN) of the Russian Federation since May 15, 2008; he was appointed as 
a member of the Security Council of the Russian Federation on May 25, 2008. Ivanov has served in a number of other government positions prior 
to that; he was Assistant to the President of the Russian Federation from 2004 - 2008; and Deputy Chief of the Administration of the Russian 



Federation from 2000 - 2004. Ivanov joined the KGB in 1977 and eventually rose to become the Deputy Director of the Federal Security Service. 
Ivanov is a close ally of Putin and served alongside Putin as the chief of staff of the St. Petersburg Mayor's office in 1994 when Putin was first 
deputy .head of the city's administration. 

Igor Sergun is the head of Russia·s military intelligence service (GRU) and is Deputy Chief of the General Staff. 

Sergei Ivanov is the Chief of Staff of the Presidential Executive Office. 

Alexei Gromov is the First Deputy Chief of Staff of the Presidential Executive Office. 

Andrei Fursenko is an a ide to the President of the Russian Federation and has been in that position since May 21, 2012. Fursenko has held a 
number of positions In the Government of the Russian Federation since 2001, including Minister of Education and Science from 2004 - 2012. 
Although not being designated for being a member of the Russian leadership's inner circle, Fursenko first met Putin in 19g3 and they remain 
closely associated. 

Vladimir Yakunin was appointed as chairman of the board of the Russian state-owned company Russian Railways on June 15, 2005; he has 
remained as head of the company ever since. Yakunin is being designated because of his official position in the Russian government, but he is 
also a close confidant of Putin. Yakunin regularly consults with Putin on issues regarding the Russian Railways company. In addition, Yakunln 
accompanies Putin on many domestic and international visits. Yakunin met Putin while both were working in St. Petersburg. Yakunln decided to 
create a business center in the city and contacted Putin for his support. In addition. Yakunin became a member of the board of the Baltic Maritime 
steamship Company on Putin's instructions. Yakunin and Putin were also neighbors in the elite dacha community on the shore of Lake 
Komsomolsk and they served as cofounders of the Ozero Dacha Cooperative In November 1996. 

Vladimir Kozhin was appointed the Head of Administration under the President of the Russian Federation by Putin on January 21, 2000. He has 
served continuously in that position until the present time. Kohzin is responsible for overseeing a staff of 60,000, over a hundred enterprises and 
Institutions including the Kremlin and several other government buildings, and over four thousand vehicles. Kohzin's positions have been 
variously referred to as Head of Administration, Head of the Presidential Affairs Office. Head of the Presidential Business Management Directorate 
of the Russian Federation, and head of the Presidential Property Management Directorate. 

Members of the Inner Circle 

The loilowing individuals are being designated because each is controlled by, has acted for or on behalf of, or has provided material or other 
support to, a senior Russian government official. 
Gennady Timchenko ls one of the founders of Gunvor, one of the world's largest independent commodity trading companies involved In the oil 
and energy markets. Timchenko's activities In the energy sector have been directly linked to Putin. Putin has investments In Gunvor and may 
have access to Gunvor funds. 

Arkady Rotenberg and Boris Rotenberg have provided support to Putin's pet projects by receiving and executing high price contracts for the 
Soehl Olympic Games and state-controlled Gazprom. They have made billions of dollars in contracts for Gazprom and the Sochi Winter Olympics 
awarded to them by Putin. Both brothers have amassed enormous amounts of wealth during the years of Putin's rule In Russia. The Rotenberg 
brothers received approximately $7 billion In contracts for the Soehl Olympic Games and their personal wealth has increased by $2.5 billion in the 
last two years alone. 

Yuri Kovalchuk Is the largest single shareholder of Bank Rossiya and Is also the personal banker for senior officials of the Russian Federation 
including Putin. Kovalchuk is a close advisor to President Putin and has been referred to as one of his •cashiers." 

The following entity is being designated because it is controlled by, has acted for or on behalf of, or has provided material or other support to, 
senior Russian government officials. 

Bank Rossiya (OAO A5 POCClll5l) is the personal bank for senior officials of the Russian Federation. Bank Rossiya·s shareholders include 

members of Putin's inner circle associated with the Ozero Dacha Cooperative, a housing community in which they live. Bank Rossiya is also 

controlled by Kovalchuk, designated today. Bank Rossiya Is ranked as the 17th largest bank in Russia with assets of approximately $10 billion. 
and it maintains numerous correspondent relationships with banks in the United States, Europe, and elsewhere. The bank reports providing a 

wide range of retail and corporate services, many of which relate to the oil, gas, and energy sectors. 

As a result of Treasury's action, any assets of the persons designated today that are within U.S. jurisdiction must be frozen. Additionally, 
transactions by U.S. persons or within the United·States Involving the individuals and entity designated today are generally prohibited. 

ldentitving Information 

Name: Viktor Alekseevich Ozerov 
DOB: January 5, 1958 
POB: Abakan, Khakassia, Russia 

Chairman of the Security and Defense Committee of the Federation Council of the Russian Federation 

Name: Vladimir Michailovich Dzhabarov 
AKA: Vladimir Dzhabarov 
DOB: September 29, 1952 
TIUe: First Deputy Chairman of the International Affairs Committee of the Federation Council of the Russian Federation 

Name: Evgenl Viktorovich Bushmin 
AKA: Evgeny Bushmln 
AKA: Yevgeny Bushmin 
DOB: October 10, 1958 
POB: Lopalino, Sergachiisky Region, Russia 



Title: Deputy Speaker of the Federation Council of the Russian Federation 

Name: Nikolai lvanovich Ryzhkov 
AKA: Nikolai Ryzhkov 
DOB: September 28, 1929 
POB: Duleevka, Donetsk Region, Ukraine 
Tille: Member of lhe Committee for Federal Issues, Regional Politics and the North of the Federation Council of the Russian Federation 
Tille: Senator in the Russian Upper House of Parliament 

Name: Sergei Vladimirovich Zheleznyak 
AKA: Sergei Zheleznyak 
AKA: Sergey Zheleznyak 
DOB: July 30, 1970 
POB: Saint Petersburg, Russia 
Title: Deputy Speaker of the State Duma of the Russian Federation 

Name: Sergei Mikhailovich Mironov 
AKA: Sergei Mironov 
DOB: February 14, 1953 
POB: Pushkin, Saint Petersburg, Russia 

Member of the Council of the State Duma, Member of the State Duma Committee on Housing Policy and Housing and Communal Services, and 
Leader of the Fair Russia Faction in the Duma of the Russian Federation 

Name: Aleksandr Borisovich Totoonov 
AKA: Alexander B. Totoonov 
AKA: Alexander Totoonov 
DOB: March 3, 1957 
POB: Ordzhonikidze, North Ossetia, Russia 
POB: Vladikavkaz, North Ossetia, Russia 
Title: Member of the Committee on Culture, Science, and Information, Federation Council of the Russian Federation 

Name: Oleg Evgenevich Panteleev 
AKA: Oleg Panteleev 
DOB: July 21, 1952 
POB: Zhitnikovskoe, Kurgan Region, Russia 
Title: ~irst Deputy Chairman of the Committee on Parliamentary Issues 

Name: Sergey Yevgenyevlch Naryshkin 
AKA: Sergei Naryshkin 
DOB: October 27, 1954 
POB: Saint Petersburg, Russia 

Name: Victor Petrovich Ivanov 
AKA: Viktor Ivanov 
DOB: May 12, 1950 
alt. DOB: 1952 
POB: Novgorod, Russia 

Name: Igor Dmitrievich Sergun 
DOB: March 28, 1957 
Title: Lieutenant General; Chief of the Main Directorate of the General Staff (GRU), Deputy 

Chief of the General Staff 

Name: 
AKA: 
DOB: 
POB: 
Title: 

Sergei Ivanov 
Sergey Ivanov 

January 31, 1953 
Saint Petersburg, Russia 
Chief of Staff of the Presidential Execut.ive Office 

Name: Alexei Gromov 
DOB: 1960 
POB: Zagorsk (Sergiev, Posad), Moscow Region. Russia 
Title: First Deputy Chief of Staff of the Presidential Executive Office 
Title: Presidential Administration Deputy Chief of Staff 
Title: First Deputy Presidential Chief of Staff 

Name: Andrei Alexandrovich Fursenko 
AKA: Andrei Fursenko 
AKA: Andrey Fursenko 
DOB: July 17, 1949 
POB: Saint Petersburg, Russia 
Title: Aide to the President of the Russian Federation 

Name: Vladimir lvanovich Yakunin 
DOB: June 30, 1948 
POB: Zakharovo Village, Gus-Khrustalnyy Rayon, Vladimir Oblast, Russia 
alt. POB: Melenki, Vladimir Oblast, Russia 



Name: Vladimir lgorevich Kozhln 
DOB: February 28, 1959 
POB: Troitsk, Chelyabinsk Oblast, Russia 
Name: Gennady 1imchenko 
AKA: Gennadiy Nikolayevich 1imchenko 
AKA: Gennady Nikolayevich 1imchenko 
AKA: Guennadi 1imtchenko 
Address: Geneva, Switzerland 
DOB: November 9, 1952 
POB: Leninakan. Armenia 
all POB: Gyumri, Armenia 
Nationality: Finland, Russia, Armenia 

Name: Arkady Rotenberg 
DOB: December 15, 1951 
POB: Saint Petersburg, Russia 

Name: Boris Rotenberg 
DOB: January 3, 1957 
POB: Saint Petersburg Russia 

Name: Yuri Valentlnovlch Kovalchuk 
AKA: Yury Valentinovlch Kovalchuk 
DOB: July 25, 1951 
POB: Saint Petersburg, Russia 

Name: Bank Rosslya 
FKA: Aktslonemy BANK Russian Federation 
Address: 2 Liter A Pl. Rastrelli, Saint Pelersbrug, 191124, Russia 
E-mail: bank@abr.ru 
Web Sile: www.abr.ru 
SWIFT/BIC: ROSY RU 2P 
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